PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE – AGENDA PUBLISHED 22 NOVEMBER
Date: Tuesday 4 December 2018
Time: 7.00 pm
Venue:

Committee Room B6, Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton Hill SW2 1RW

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov
Members of the Committee
Councillor Ben Kind, Councillor Jessica Leigh, Councillor Marianna Masters, Councillor Joanne Simpson
(Vice-Chair), Councillor Becca Thackray, Councillor Clair Wilcox (Chair) and Councillor Timothy Windle
Substitute Members
Councillor David Amos, Councillor Liz Atkins, Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite, Councillor Marcia Cameron,
Councillor Malcolm Clark, Councillor Joe Corry-Roake, Councillor Nigel Haselden, Councillor Jackie
Meldrum, Councillor Joanna Reynolds and Councillor Sonia Winifred
Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Maria Burton, Telephone: 020 7926 8703; Email: MBurton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. If you have any specific needs please contact
Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.
Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors (details via the website www.lambeth.gov.uk or phone 020 7926 2131) may be
contacted at their surgeries or through Party Group offices to represent your views to the Council:
(Conservatives 020 7926 2213) (Labour 020 7926 1166).
Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, you should aim to arrive at
least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 – or the number on the front
page.
Map

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING
Page
Nos.

1.

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4)) in any matter to be
considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee, sub-committee or joint
committee, they must withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the
consideration of that matter and must not participate in any vote on that matter
unless a dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2.

Minutes

1 - 20

To agree minutes of the meetings held on 30 October and 13 November

Town & Country Planning Act (1990), The Planning & Compensations Act (1991),
The Town & Country Planning (Control of Advertisement) Regulations (1992), The
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act (1990), The Town &
Country Planning General Regulations (1990), The Rush Common Act 1806 and
related legislation: Applications
For information on documents used in the preparation of the reports contact the
Planning Advice Desk, Tel: 020 7926 1180.

3.

Zennor Road Industrial Estate, Zennor Road (Thornton) 18/03142/FUL

21 - 52

Officer’s recommendations:
1. Resolve to grant planning permission, subject to conditions.
2. Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning, Transport and
Development to finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the
report including such refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions
as the Director of Planning, Transport and Development considers
reasonably necessary.

4.

Tesco Stores, 275 Kennington Lane and 145-149 Vauxhall Street
(Oval) 18/02597/EIAFUL
Officer’s recommendations:
1. Resolve to grant conditional planning permission subject to the completion
of an agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 containing the planning obligations listed in the report and any
direction as may be received following further referral to the Mayor of
London and the Secretary of State.
2. Agree to delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport
and Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report,
addendums and/or PAC minutes; and
b. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in
this report, addendums and/or PAC minutes pursuant to Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

53 - 154

3. In the event that the committee resolves to refuse planning permission and
there is a subsequent appeal, delegated authority is given to the Assistant
Director of Planning, Transport and Development, having regard to the
heads of terms set out in the report and PAC minutes, to negotiate and
complete a document containing obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in order to meet the requirement of
the Planning Inspector.
4. In the event that the Section 106 Agreement is not completed within three
months of committee, delegated authority is given to the Assistant Director
of Planning, Transport and Development to refuse planning permission for
failure to enter into a section 106 agreement for the mitigating
contributions identified in the report and the PAC minutes.

5.

Tesco Stores, 275 Kennington Lane and 145-149 Vauxhall Street
(Oval) 18/02598/FUL

155 - 190

Officer’s recommendations:
1. Resolve to grant conditional planning permission.
2. Agree to delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport
and Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report,
addendums and/or PAC minutes; and
b. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in
the report, addendums and/or PAC minutes pursuant to Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

6.

Gasholder Station, Kennington Oval (Oval) 18/04063/DET

191 - 228

Officer’s recommendations:
1. Resolve to grant approval of details pursuant to Conditions 15, part (f) of
Condition 52 and part (v) of Condition 53 of Planning Permission ref:
17/05772/EIAFUL.
2.

7.

Agree to delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport
and Development to determine Condition 52 parts (a) to (c) and Condition
53 parts (i) to (iv) and (vi) to (x) of Planning Permission ref:
17/05772/EIAFUL.

Appeal Decisions April 2018

229 - 236

To note the Planning Appeal and Enforcement Decisions for April 2018.

8.

Appeal Decisions May 2018
To note the Planning Appeal and Enforcement Decisions for May 2018.

237 - 248

PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE (PAC) FAQs - YOUR QUESTIONS ANSWERED
1

Who sits on the PAC?
The Council has established a PAC, which consists of seven Councillors (elected members).

2

Where and when do PAC meetings take place?
Meetings are usually held in Committee Room B6 at Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton Hill, SW2 1RW.
The meetings are normally held on a Tuesday evening at 7pm, one or two times a month and are
listed on the Council’s calendar of meetings at:
http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov/mgCalendarMonthView.asp?GL=1&bcr=1

3

Can I attend PAC meetings?
Yes. All PAC meetings are open to the press and public although on rare occasions the Committee
may discuss a matter in private.

4

How can I get a copy of any reports to be considered by PAC?
The officer reports on applications to be considered are circulated to PAC Members and published
on the Council’s website a week before the meeting. Papers for meetings can be viewed at:
http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=600
A limited number of hard copies are also available from Democratic Services at the meeting.

5

Can I make written representations to the PAC meeting?
Yes. Written representations, including any letters, petitions or photos should be:

Sent to the relevant case officer listed on the front page of the officer report preferably by
email.

Sent by 12 noon two clear working days before the meeting. Meetings are normally on a
Tuesday, so the deadline would be 12 noon by the Thursday before the meeting.

6

Can I speak at PAC meetings?
Yes. Up to three supporters (including applicants), three objectors and the Ward Members can
address the meeting at the Committee’s discretion for a maximum of two minutes each.
You must register your wish to speak on any application by telephoning Democratic Services on 020
7926 8703 or emailing democracy@lambeth.gov.uk by 12 noon on the last working day before
the meeting. You will be required to supply in writing an outline of the points you wish to
raise at the meeting. If you telephone, Democratic Services will record these points.
Where the number of requests to speak exceeds three, and/or it is clear the speakers wish to make
similar points, like-minded speakers will be asked to liaise with each other so that all the points can
be raised succinctly.

7

Does the PAC consider applications in the order listed on the agenda?
Not necessarily. The order of business is determined at the meeting taking into consideration:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

8

Applications which are withdrawn or which officers recommend should be deferred.
Applications where there are no notified speakers present wishing to address the committee
and members have no questions to ask the applicant or officers.
Applications which have been deferred from a previous meeting or have been the subject of a
site visit.
Applications for developments which would be in receipt of public funding and which are
subject to deadlines affecting delivery and other applications subject to specific deadlines.
Applications regarded as a priority due to the large number of people present, or where
applicants, objectors or other members of the public have special requirements.

What is the process for considering an application at the meeting?
Officers will introduce each application with a brief presentation which will usually include drawings
and photographs of the application site. The Committee will then hear from and question all

interested parties. Any registered objectors will speak first with applicants having the right of reply.
The merits of the application are considered taking into account the views of the interested parties
and planning officers before the committee reaches a decision.
9

What time does the meeting come to an end?
The meeting will be conducted in a business-like fashion and the Committee will endeavour to deal
with reports as quickly as possible.
However if there is a lot of outstanding business at 9.00pm the Chair will advise the meeting if and
how the timetable for the meeting has to be revised, in order to deal with remaining business and
finish the meeting at 10.00pm. At 10.00pm, if the meeting has not ended, the meeting will decide
which business can be completed by 10.45pm and any business not reached by that time will be
deferred to the next meeting.

10

What are site visits?
Site visits are arranged by Planning Officers to allow members of the PAC to observe the site and
gain a better understanding of the impact of the proposal. The decision of whether to have a site
visit is made by the Chair of the committee in consultation with the Director of Planning and
Development.

11

When do site visits take place and can I attend?
Site visits will normally take place on the Saturday morning immediately prior to the committee which
will consider the application. An alternative date can be arranged with the agreement of the Chair.
Other than for reasons of access, the arrangements for site visits will not normally be publicised or
made known to applicants, agents or third parties except in exceptional circumstances. Objectors
are not invited to site visits except in exceptional circumstances.
For more information please see the ‘Protocol for Members of the Planning Applications Committee’
in the Council Constitution.

12

If I am unable to attend the PAC meeting, how can I find out the decision?
Decisions will be posted on Twitter from @lbldemocracy immediately as the decision is taken. You
can also contact Democratic Services by telephone or email. The minutes from the meeting will also
be available on the Council’s website approximately five clear working days after the meeting.
Planning officers will send the applicant and any interested parties who have made written
representations formal notification of the Committee decision.

13

Can I listen to PAC online?
Yes! You can now listen to the any meeting of the PAC live via the council’s website. Simply go to
the specific meeting webpage (via the main PAC webpage) and tune in from the start of the
meeting. You can also listen back to previous meetings via the same method.

14

What is the addendum?
Sometimes planning officers are required to make amendments or add further information to
planning reports after the main agenda pack has been published. These changes will be
documented in an addendum (published the Friday before the meeting), and if necessary a second
addendum (published the day of the meeting). All addenda can be reviewed online as soon as it is
published and hard copies are made available for members of the public at the meeting.

15

Where can I get further information or advice?
If you would like further information or advice, please contact:
(a) Town Planning Advice Desk: Tel: 020 7926 1180, Email: planning@lambeth.gov.uk
(b) Town Planning Webpage: https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/planning-and-building-control
(c) Democratic Services: Tel: 020 7926 8703, Email: democracy@lambeth.gov.uk

Guide to Use Classes Order in England.
The table below is intended as a general guide. Reference needs to be made to the Town and
Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) and the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended)
Class
Class A1
Shops/Retail

Summary of Use/Description
Shops, post offices, hairdressers,
sale of tickets/travel agency, sale of
cold food for consumption off the
premises, funeral directors,
domestic hire shops, dry cleaners,
internet café (where the primary
purpose is to provide facilities to
access the internet)

Permitted Changes
Permitted change to or from a
mixed use as A1 or A2 and up to
2 flats;
Permitted change of A1 or mixed
A1 and dwellinghouse to C3
(subject to prior approval, max
150m2);
Permitted change to A2;
Permitted change to A3 (subject
to prior approval, max 150m2);
Permitted change to D2 (subject
to prior approval, max 200m2)
Temporary permitted change (2
years) to A2, A3, B1
(interchangeable with notification
to the Council, max 150m2)

Class A2
Financial and
Professional
Services

Banks, building societies, estate
agents, employment agencies,
professional services.

Permitted change to A1 where
there is a display window at
ground floor level.
Permitted change to or from a
mixed use for any purpose within
A2 and up to 2 flats and for A1
and up to 2 flats, where there is a
display window at ground floor
level.
Permitted change from A2 or
mixed A2 and dwellinghouse to
C3 (subject to prior approval,
max 150m2)
Permitted change to A3 (subject
to prior approval, max 150m2)
Permitted change to D2 (subject
to prior approval, max 200m2)
Temporary permitted change (2
years) to A2, A3, B1
(interchangeable with notification

to the Council, max 150m2)
Class A3
Restaurants and
Cafes

The sale of food and drink for
consumption on the premises

Permitted change to Class A1
and Class A2
Temporary permitted change (2
years) to A2, A3, B1
(interchangeable with notification
to the Council, max 150m2)

Class A4
Drinking
Establishments

Public House, wine bar or other
drinking establishment

Permitted change to drinking
establishment with expanded
food provision.

Class A5
Hot food takeaways

The sale of hot food for
consumption off the premises.

Permitted change to A1, or A2 or
A3.
Temporary permitted change (2
years) to A1, A2, B1
(interchangeable with notification
to the council, max 150m2)

Class B1
Business

Class B1(a)
Office

Class B1(c)
Light Industrial

Class B2
General Industrial
Class B8

B1(a)- Office other than a use
within Class A2.
B1(b)- Research and development
of products or processes
B1(c)- Light industrial uses that can
be carried out in residential areas

Permitted B1 change to B8 (max
500m2)
Temporary permitted change (2
years) to A1, A2, A3
(interchangeable with notification
to the council, max 150m2)

Permitted B1 change to statefunded school or registered
nursery (subject to prior approval)
Office other than a use within Class B1(a) office permitted change to
A2
C3 (to be completed within a
period of 3 years from prior
approval date)
Light industrial uses that can be
Permitted change (from 1
carried out in residential areas such October 2017 until 30 September
as joinery workshops, tailors,
2020 only) from B1(c) to C3
printworks, commercial kitchen,
subject to prior approval (max
workshops
500m2), completion within 3
years of prior approval date.
Industrial process other than one
Permitted change to B1 and B8
falling within class B1.
(max 500m2)
Storage or as a distribution centre
Permitted change to B1 (max

Storage/Distribution

500m2)
Permitted change to C3 (subject
to prior approval, max 500m2)
until 15 April 2018.

Class C1
Hotels

Hotel or as a boarding/guest house
here no significant element of care
provided

Class C2
Residential
institutions

Residential accommodation and
care to people in need of care
(other than C3), hospital/nursing
home, residential school, college or
training centre
Prisons, young offenders’
institutions, detention centres,
custody centres, secure training
centres, secure hospitals, secure
local authority accommodation,
military barracks
Dwellinghouse occupied by a single
person or by people to be regarded
as a single household, not more
than 6 residents living together as a
single household where care is
provided or not provided (other
than a use in C4)
Use by not more than 6 residents
as a HMO

Class C2A
Secure residential
institutions

Class C3
Dwellinghouses

Class C4
Houses in multiple
occupation
Class D1
Non-residential
institutions

Class D2
Assembly and
Leisure

Medical/health services, crèche,
day nursery or day centre,
provision of education, display of
works of art, museum, public
library, public hall/exhibition hall,
public worship or religious
instruction, law court.
Cinema, concert hall, bingo hall,
dance hall, swimming bath, skating
rink, gymnasium, area for indoor or
outdoor sports or recreations (not
involving motor vehicles or fire
arms)

Permitted change to state-funded
school or registered nursery (and
back to previous lawful use)
(subject to prior approval)
Permitted change to state-funded
school or registered nursery (and
back to previous lawful use)
(subject to prior approval)
Permitted change to state-funded
school or registered nursery (and
back to previous lawful use)
(subject to prior approval)

Permitted change to C4

Permitted change to C3

Temporary permitted change (2
years) to A1, A2, A3, B1
(interchangeable with notification
to the Council, max 150m2)

Permitted change to state-funded
school or registered nursery (and
back to previous lawful
use)(subject to prior approval)
Temporary permitted change (2
years) to A1, A2, A3, B1
(interchangeable with notification

to the council, max 150m2)
Sui Generis
Uses that do not fall
within a specified
class

Includes large HMO, hostel,
theatre, amusement arcade/funfair,
launderette, sale of fuel for motor
vehicles, sale of motor vehicles,
taxi business/hire of motor vehicles,
scrapyard, waste disposal
installation, nightclub, casino,
betting office, pay day loan shop.

Casino to A2 (subject to prior
approval);
Casino to D2;
Amusement centre of casino to
C3 (subject to prior approval,
max 150m2);
Betting office or payday loan
shop to
- A1 or mixed use A1 and
up to 2 flats (if a display
window at ground floor
level), A2 or A2 mixed use
and up to 2 flats,
- A3 (max 150m2),
- D2 (subject to prior
approval, max 200m2),
- C3 (subject to prior
approval, max 150m2), or
- mixed use betting office or
pay day load shop and up
to two flats
Use as a betting office, pay day
loan shop or launderette to C3
(subject to prior approval, max
150m2);
Mixed use betting office, pay day
load shop or launderette and
dwellinghouse to C3 (subject to
prior approval, max 150m2);
Mixed use betting office and up to
two flats to
- A1 (if a display window at
ground floor level)
- A2 or betting office or pay
day loan shop
Temporary permitted change (2
years, max 150m2) from betting
office or pay day loan shop to A1,
A2, A3, or B1.

Please note: Permitted development rights can be removed by an Article 4 Direction. Further
details of Article 4 Directions can be found at https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/consultations/article-4-direction

Abbreviations
ADF
AQA
AQMA
BNPP
BRE
BREEAM
BSPD
CAS
CHP
CIL
CEMP
MHCLG
DD
EIA
ES
ESP
EVCP
HE
FTE
FVA
HSE
GLA
LLP
LVMF
MALP
NPPF
NPPG
OAPF
PAC
PPA
PTAL
PV
RICS
RSS
S106
SPD
SPG
TA
TfL
TLRN
TVIA

Average Daylight Factor
Air Quality Assessment
Air Quality Management Area
BNP Paribas (Financial Viability Advisors)
British Research Establishment
Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Method
Brixton Supplementary Planning Document
Conservation Area Statement
Combined Heat and Power
Community Infrastructure Levy
Construction and Environmental Management Plan
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government
Daylight Distribution
Environmental Impact Assessment
Environmental Statement
Employment and Skills Plan
Electric Vehicle Charging Point
Historic England
Full Time Equivalent
Financial Viability Assessment
Health and Safety Executive
Greater London Authority
Lambeth Local Plan 2015
London View Management Framework
London Plan 2016 (formerly Minor Alterations to The London
Plan)
National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance
Opportunity Area Planning Framework
Planning Applications Committee
Planning Performance Agreement
Public Transport Accessibility Level
Photovoltaic
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
Regulatory Support Service – Environmental Health advisors
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
Supplementary Planning Document
Supplementary Planning Guidance
Transport Assessment
Transport for London
Transport for London Road Network
Townscape and Visual Impact Assessment

VSC
VSPD
WSPD

Vertical Sky Component
Vauxhall Supplementary Planning Document
Waterloo Supplementary Planning Document

Approach to Heritage Assets
Legislative Framework
Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (“PLBCAA”)
provides that in considering whether to grant planning permission for development which affects
a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority shall have special regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or
historic interest which it possesses.
Section 72(1) of the PLBCAA provides that in the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other
land in a conservation area, of any functions under or by virtue of (amongst others) the planning
Acts, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of the conservation area.
The South Lakeland District Council v Secretary of State for the Environment case and the
Barnwell Manor case (East Northamptonshire DC v SSCLG) establish that “preserving” in both
s.66 and s.72 means “doing no harm’.
National Policy
Paragraph 8 of the NPPF sets out 3 overarching objectives, contained within the planning
system, in order to achieve sustainable development. These objective are interdependent and
need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways and include the following (with detail provided on
the most relevant objective to this section);
a) an economic objective
b) a social objective
c) an environmental objective –to contribute to protecting and enhancing our natural, built
and historic environment.
The NPPF defines a “heritage asset” as:
“A building, monument, site place, area or landscape identified as having a degree of
significance meriting consideration in planning decisions, because of its heritage interest”.
The definition includes both designated heritage assets (of which, Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas are relevant here) and assets identified by the local planning authority
(including local listing)
“Significance” is defined within the NPPF as being:

“the value of a heritage asset to this and future generations because of its heritage
interest. That interest may be archaeological, architectural, artistic or historic. Significance
derives from a heritage asset’s physical presence, but also from its “setting”.
Paragraph 190 of the NPPF requires local planning authorities to identify and assess the
particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by
development affecting its setting), taking account of the available evidence and any necessary
expertise. That assessment should then be taken into account when considering the impact of
the proposal on the heritage asset, to avoid or minimise conflict between the heritage asset’s
conservation and any aspect of the proposal.
Paragraphs 192 and 193 of the NPPF provide as follows:
192. In determining planning applications, local planning authorities should take account
of:
a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;
b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities including their economic vitality; and
c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and
distinctiveness.
193. When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation (and
the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of
whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial
harm to its significance.
194. Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its
alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting) should require clear and
convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of: a) grade II listed buildings, or grade
II registered parks or gardens, should be exceptional; b) assets of the highest significance,
notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites, registered battlefields, grade I and
II* listed buildings, grade I and II* registered parks and gardens, and World Heritage Sites,
should be wholly exceptional.
Paragraph 195 of the NPPF deals with substantial harm to or total loss of significance of
significance of a designated heritage asset.
Paragraph 196 of the NPPF provides that where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of the designated heritage asset, this harm should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including securing its optimum viable use.
Paragraph 197 of the NPPF deals with non-designated heritage assets as follows:

197. The effect of an application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset
should be taken into account in determining the application. In weighing applications that
affect directly or indirectly non designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be
required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage
asset.
Paragraphs 200 and 201 of the NPPF are as follows:
200. Local planning authorities should look for opportunities for new development within
Conservation Areas and World Heritage Sites, and within the setting of heritage assets, to
enhance or better reveal their significance. Proposals that preserve those elements of the
setting that make a positive contribution to the asset (or which better reveal its
significance) should be treated favourably.
201. Not all elements of a Conservation Area or World Heritage Site will necessarily
contribute to its significance. Loss of a building (or other element) which makes a positive
contribution to the significance of the Conservation Area or World Heritage Site should be
treated either as substantial harm under paragraph 195 or less than substantial harm
under paragraph 196, as appropriate, taking into account the relative significance of the
element affected and its contribution to the significance of the Conservation Area or World
Heritage Site as a whole.
Officers have also had regard to the National Planning Practice Guidance in respect of
conserving and enhancing the historic environment.
Approach to Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing
Where a proposed development may impact upon the sunlight and daylight received by an
adjoining property, planning applications are often accompanied by a Sunlight and Daylight
Assessment. These should be undertaken following the guidelines published by the Building
Research Establishment ‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight’ (BRE Guidelines). This
is a good practice guide which provides advice on site layout for good natural lighting within a
new development, safeguarding of daylight and sunlight within existing buildings nearby a
development and the protection of daylighting of adjoining land for future development. The
guide is advisory and whilst it provides numerical target values, these need also to be considered
holistically with the needs of the development and its surrounding context.
Two methods of measurement are recommended be used to measure daylight impacts: (1)
Vertical Sky Component (VSC); and (2) Daylight Distribution (DD). VSC assesses the quantum of
skylight falling on a vertical window and DD (also referred to as No Sky Line) the distribution of
direct skylight in a room space.
VSC is calculated from the centre of a window on the outward face and measures the amount of
light available on a vertical wall or window following the introduction of visible barriers, such as
buildings. The maximum VSC value is almost 40% for a completely unobstructed vertical wall or
window. The BRE guidance suggests that if the VSC is greater than 27%, enough skylight should

still be reaching the window of the existing building. Any reduction below this level should be kept
to a minimum. Should the VSC with development be both less than 27% and less than 0.8 times
its former value, occupants of the existing building shall notice a reduction in the amount of
skylight they receive. The guide says: “the area lit by the window is likely to appear gloomier, and
electric lighting will be needed more of the time”.
The DD method is a measure of the distribution of daylight at the ‘working plane’ within a room.
For the DD assessment the ‘working plane’ means a horizontal ‘desktop’ plane 0.85m in height
for residential properties. The DD divides those areas of the working plane which can receive
direct sky light from those which cannot. If a significant area of the working plane receives no
direct sky light, then the distribution of daylight in the room will be poor and supplementary
electric lighting may be required. The BRE Guidelines state that if the area of a room that does
receive direct sky light is reduced by more than 20% of its former value, then this would be
noticeable to its occupants.
Typically, it is recommended that VSC and DD are utilised for consideration on daylight losses
resulting from the proposal to existing neighbouring residential since it is a comparative test.
Sunlight is measured using Annual Probable Sunlight Hours (APSH). Sunlight is measured using
a sun indicator which contains 100 spots, each representing 1% of APSH. Where no obstruction
exists, the total APSH would amount to 1486 hours and therefore each spot equates to 14.86
hours (for London) of the total annual sunlight hours. The number of spots is calculated for the
Baseline and Proposed Development scenarios during the whole year and also during the winter
period and a comparison made between the two. This provides a percentage of APSH for each of
the time periods for each window assessed.
The 2011 BRE Guidelines note that sunlight is valued in living rooms at any time of day but
especially in the afternoon. It is viewed as less important in bedrooms and in kitchens (the latter
where people prefer it in the morning rather than the afternoon. All main living rooms of
dwellings…should be checked if they have a window facing within 90° of due south. If the main
living room to a dwelling has a main window facing within 90° of due north, but a secondary
window facing within 90° of due south, sunlight to the secondary window should be checked.
With regard to existing surrounding receptors, the BRE Guidelines provide that a window may be
adversely affected if a point at the centre of the window receives - Less than 25% of the APSH
during the whole year, of which 5% APSH must be in the winter period; and - Receives less than
0.8 times its former sunlight hours in either time period; and - Has a reduction in sunlight for the
whole year more than 4% APSH.
Overshadowing is assessed through transient overshadowing plots which comprise an illustrative
tool showing the changing levels of direct sunlight received by amenity space throughout the day
on the dates assessed. The BRE ‘test’ for a development’s overshadowing impacts relates to the
area of an amenity space that receives more than two hours of sunlight on 21 March (the Spring
Equinox). The guide states: “…for it to appear adequately sunlit throughout the year, at least half
of a garden or amenity area should receive at least two hours of sunlight on 21 March. If, as a
result of new development, an existing garden or amenity area does not meet the above, and the

area which can receive two hours of sun on 21 March is less than 0.8 times its former value, then
the loss of sunlight is likely to be noticeable”.
Approach to Air Quality
There is a Lambeth wide Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and Lambeth is also covered by
the Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM) Low Emission Zone.
The NPPF states within paragraph 181;
…decisions should sustain and contribute towards compliance with relevant limit values or
national objectives for pollutants, taking into account the presence of Air Quality Management
Areas and Clean Air Zones, and the cumulative impacts from individual sites in local areas.
Opportunities to improve air quality or mitigate impacts should be identified, such as through
traffic and travel management, and green infrastructure provision and enhancement…Planning
decisions should ensure that any new development in Air Quality Management Areas and Clean
Air Zones is consistent with the local air quality action plan.
London Plan policy 7.14 states that development proposals should minimise increased exposure
to existing poor air quality and make provision to address local problems of air quality, promote
sustainable design and construction to reduce emissions from the demolition and construction of
buildings, be at least air quality neutral, ensure that where provision needs to be made to reduce
emissions from a development, this is normally made on-site, and where the development
requires a detailed air quality assessment and biomass boilers are included, the assessment
should forecast pollutant concentrations.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

PAC
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 30 October 2018 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Ben Kind, Councillor Jessica Leigh, Councillor Marianna
Masters, Councillor Clair Wilcox (Chair) and Councillor Timothy
Windle

APOLOGIES:

Councillor Joanne Simpson and Councillor Becca Thackray

1.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS

There were none.
2.

55 UNION GROVE (LARKHALL) 18/00968/FUL
Case No. 18/00968/FUL (agenda item two, page 1 of the agenda pack).
Members agreed to hear the item without an officer presentation.
The applicant’s architect provided the following information in support of
the application:
 This application was the product of considerable work with officers
and was an improvement on previous applications.
 The development would be an improvement on the existing use.
Officers and a representative from the Council’s viability consultants GVA
then provided the following information in response to questions from
Members:
 The development costs submitted on behalf of the applicant were
independently verified by an external quantity surveyor. GVA had
scrutinised submitted viability information and had assessed the
appropriate benchmark land value for the scheme. The benchmark
land value was relatively high because it was necessary to take
account of the value of the seven existing flats on the site.
 Typically a developer profit margin of 20% would be attributed to
market properties and 6% to affordable housing units, but as there
would be no on-site affordable housing provision in this scheme, a
lower profit margin of 17.5% was recommended.
 It was not possible to deliver on-site affordable housing as doing so
would make the development unviable.
 The initial assessment of viability carried out by GVA indicated a
potential surplus of £647,000. However this derived from the use of
an estimate of development costs that were based on BCIS median
figures rather than being site-specific. The applicant had obtained
an estimate of development costs for the scheme prepared by

Page 2















quantity surveyors and GVA had this estimate reviewed by
independent quantity surveyors acting on behalf of the local
planning authority. Using a site-specific estimate of development
costs meant that the amount of the surplus (the sum potentially
available for the provision of affordable housing) was reduced.
There would be a late stage viability review after 75% of sales.
The applicant would be required by condition to explore carbon
reduction efforts prior to occupation. A 38% reduction in carbon
levels was achieved in this application.
The GLA’s child yield calculator had been used to calculate off-site
playspace contributions. The calculator looked at the numbers,
tenure and occupancy levels of units and produced a figure for the
child yield in the light of that information. The playspace contribution
was calculated using the formula contained in Annex 10 of the
Local Plan.
There would be a secure access gate from Union Grove to the
development, with the shared amenity space in the centre, where
the cycle parking would be located. The BRE sunlight target would
not be met in the amenity space due to neighbouring buildings.
The current building was a converted office, and the amenity space
was the former car park with no soft landscaping.
Details of the boundary treatments and cycle parking would be
secured by condition.
The glazed balustrades on the top floor balconies would be fully
obscured, and the privacy screens between balconies would also
be obscure glazed. Condition 3 set out where obscure glazing
would be used. Final designs had not yet been confirmed.
The relatively low surplus was due to the fact that the site would be
redeveloped from the existing seven units to provide 11 flats. The
applicant had initially argued that the benchmark land value figure
should be higher because the site had an alternative use value, but
GVA had disagreed with that, since permitted development rights
had already been implemented. The applicant had then accepted
GVA’s reasoning on this point.
GVA had applied market pricing for the expected values of the
residential units.
The financial contribution towards affordable housing would be
secured in the S106 Agreement.

The Committee considered points raised by the speaker and information
provided by officers and the GVA representative in conjunction with the
report before making the following observations:
 Some Members had concerns about the assessment of the viability
of the scheme, and whether there may have been an overestimate
of development costs and/or an underestimate of projected sales
values. The low contribution to off-site affordable housing was a
particular concern.
 The development of the site would be positive.
 The viability figures had been independently verified and there
would be a review mechanism after 75% of sales.
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Masters,
and
RESOLVED, by three votes for to two against

Page 3
1. To GRANT planning permission subject to completion of a Section
106 Agreement and subject to the conditions as outlined in the
officer’s report.
2. To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development to:
 Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report;
and
 Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out
in the report pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
3. To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development to refuse planning permission in the
event that the Section 106 Agreement is not completed by 8
January 2019 (or an alternative timeframe agreed with the LPA) on
the grounds that the development would have an unacceptable
impact on – affordable housing, children’s play space, transport and
highways, sustainability and local employment.

3.

SOUTH BANK CENTRE, ROYAL FESTIVAL HALL (BISHOP'S)
18/03684/FUL, 18/03729/LB AND 18/03685/ADV
Case Nos. 18/03684/FUL, 18/03729/LB and 18/03685/ADV (agenda item
three, page 39 of the agenda pack).
Members agreed to hear the item without an officer presentation.
Officers and the applicant’s representatives provided the following
information in response to questions from Members:
 The ‘unspecified’ stall referred to in the report did not have an
occupant at the time of writing but would be one of the same types
as the other stalls.
 In previous years, the applicant had done their own monitoring, but
this year Council transport officers requested additional monitoring
of transport impacts. This would mean that additional baseline
information would be available in future years.
 Less time was needed for set-up and takedown this year as there
would not be a sauna installed.
 The change in the description from ‘festival’ to ‘event’ was a
commercial decision on the part of the applicant and reflected a
need to balance commercial and artistic elements. Commercial
elements, such as the stalls, funded the artistic programmes of the
Southbank Centre.
 There was a security contractor on site at all times, and the South
Bank Employers’ Group also provided security. The Police were
also informed of events.
 The Underbelly winter event in the Hungerford car park would be
operated separately, with separate delivery and servicing
arrangements. There were three service roads on the site, all of
which had adequate turning space. Chalets would arrive on site flatpacked on vans rather than in large vehicles.
 Examples of the ‘welcome panel’ and the banner from previous
years were shown to Members. The banner would only be used if a
sponsor was secured.
 The choice of tipis was a reference to those used in northern

Page 4




Canada and Russia. The tipis would be larger than the igloos used
in previous years.
The public toilets in the Hungerford car park would be accessible to
visitors. There were also public toilets on Queen’s Walk and in the
Southbank Centre.
There were cycle parking facilities nearby on Belvedere Road and
Queen’s Walk, which officers felt was adequate. The applicant
would be asked to monitor demand for cycle parking.

The Committee considered information provided by officers and the
applicant in conjunction with the report before making the following
observations:
 The efforts to ensure that Queen’s Walk would not be further
encroached on were welcome.
18/03684/FUL:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Windle,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report.
2. To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development to finalise the recommended conditions
as set out in the report.
18/01992/LB:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Windle,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT Listed Building Consent subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report.
2. To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development to finalise the recommended conditions
as set out in the report.
18/03685/ADV:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Windle,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT Advertisement Consent subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report.
2. To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development to finalise the recommended conditions
as set out in the report.

4.

VAUXHALL BRIDGE (OVAL) 18/01995/EIAFUL AND 18/01996/LB
Case Nos. 18/01995/EIAFUL and 18/01996/LB (agenda item four, page 75
of the agenda pack, page 1 of the addendum and page 1 of the second
addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the

Page 5
report and subsequent addenda that had been published on Friday 26
October 2018 and the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the
key material planning issues for consideration which included the provision
of public art through the illumination of 15 central London bridges (5 of
which are located within the London Borough of Lambeth), the installation
of lighting specific to each bridge’s context and features, the impact on the
Westminster World Heritage Site and other heritage assets, ecology
impacts, the public benefits of the application and the related applications
that were also being considered at the meeting. Members were shown
images of each bridge, the proposals for each bridge and a video of the
proposals.
The applicant then provided the following information in support of the
applications and the related applications that were also being considered
at the meeting:
 The Illuminated River Project would be the longest public art
commission in the world and would celebrate the Thames and the
distinct area of each bridge.
 The proposal for each bridge was sensitive to its context. The
lighting would reference architectural and contextual details, such
as the allegorical figures on Vauxhall Bridge and red and green
lighting on Lambeth and Westminster Bridges respectively in
reference to the Houses of Parliament.
 Vauxhall, Lambeth and Westminster Bridges were currently unlit
except for functional lighting.
 Funding had been secured from private and philanthropic sources,
with no sponsorship.
Officers and the applicant team then provided the following information in
response to questions from Members:
 Conditions required a trial illumination period, during which time the
lighting system would be installed and tested. Each LED would be
able to be controlled, and the lighting sequences could be further
fine-tuned once installed.
 It was intended that existing power substations on each bridge
would be used, but if necessary a new one would be installed.
Conditions required the submission of details for new substations.
There would be a local computer on each bridge, and a master
computer elsewhere monitoring all of the bridges.
 Faults would be reported from the local to the master computers
through wi-fi.
 Planning permission would be needed in order to alter the display.
The bridge owners would be able to switch off the lights in
emergencies or for public events. The equipment had a lifespan of
25 years. Condition 19 in each application required the long-term
maintenance plan to be approved by the Council in consultation
with TfL (for Vauxhall, Lambeth and Westminster Bridges) or
Westminster Council (for Golden Jubilee and Waterloo Bridges).
Ultimately the owners of the bridges would be responsible for the
state of the land.
 To enter into a S106 agreement the parties needed to have
interests in the land. No such proposed agreement was before
Members. Officers were satisfied that the development could be
satisfactorily managed by condition. The Legal Officer outlined to
Members the main differences between enforcement of obligations
via a S106 agreement and via planning conditions.

Page 6









Any proposed change in lighting would have to be assessed by
officers.
Condition 19 required the applicant to provide details beyond the
ten-year proposal. The applicant would also have to submit details
of the decommissioning plan.
Navigation lights were separate to the applications and were
maintained by the Port of London Authority. It was required by
condition for the applicant to submit details of how the applications
would operate alongside the navigation lights. The Port of London
Authority had been consulted and raised no concerns.
Although Vauxhall, Lambeth and Westminster Bridges were not
currently lit except for functional lighting, there was existing lighting
nearby.
Local computers would be stored separately from the master
computer, and any attempted tampering would send an alert to the
master computer. The local computers would be securely stored.
Condition 15 required a lighting management strategy to be
submitted and condition 12 required the lighting scheme to include
a light spill survey.
Efforts had been made to minimise the impact on the appearance
of the bridges. While there would be a change, it was felt that the
impact was acceptable, given the scale of the bridges. Fixtures and
fittings would be matched to each bridge to reduce the change in
appearance.

The Committee considered points raised by speakers and information
provided by officers in conjunction with the report before making the
following observations:
 The proposal was well thought through and considerate of the
settings.
 Obtaining support from UNESCO and Historic England at an early
stage was a credit to the applicant.
 The issue of who could control any changes could be addressed
through condition.
 The applicant’s efforts to understand each site and its context was
reassuring.
18/01995/EIAFUL:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Kind, and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addenda and the
following:
i. Condition 2 to be amended to include ‘or unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority in relation to
one-off events’.
ii. Condition 18 to be amended to include references to ‘birds and
bats’.
2. To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development to:
a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report.
18/01996/LB:

Page 7
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Leigh, and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT Listed Building Consent subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addenda.
2. To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development to:
a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report.

5.

LAMBETH BRIDGE (PRINCE'S) 18/01993/EIAFUL AND 18/01994/LB
Questions and discussion of this item was heard alongside item 4,
Vauxhall Bridge.
Case Nos. 18/01993/EIAFUL and 18/01994/LB (agenda item five, page
163 of the agenda pack, page 7 of the addendum and page 1 of the
second addendum).
18/01993/EIAFUL:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Masters,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addenda and the
following:
i. Condition 2 to be amended to include ‘or unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority in relation to
one-off events’.
ii. Condition 18 to be amended to include references to ‘birds and
bats’.
2. To delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Development
to:
a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report.
18/01994/LB:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Masters,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT Listed Building Consent subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addenda.
2. To delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Development
to:
a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report.

6.

WESTMINSTER BRIDGE (BISHOP'S) 18/01991/EIAFUL AND
18/01992/LB
Questions and discussion of this item was heard alongside item 4,
Vauxhall Bridge.
Case Nos. 18/01991/EIAFUL and 18/01992/LB (agenda item six, page 175

Page 8
of the agenda pack, page 8 of the addendum and page 2 of the second
addendum).
18/01991/EIAFUL:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Windle,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addenda and the
following:
i. Condition 2 to be amended to include ‘or unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority in relation to
one-off events’.
ii. Condition 18 to be amended to include references to ‘birds and
bats’.
2. To delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Development
to:
a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report.
18/01992/LB:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Leigh, and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT Listed Building Consent subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addenda.
2. To delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Development
to:
a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report.

7.

GOLDEN JUBILEE BRIDGE (BISHOP'S) 18/01990/EIAFUL
Questions and discussion of this item was heard alongside item 4,
Vauxhall Bridge.
Case No. 18/01990/EIAFUL (agenda item seven, page 187 of the agenda
pack, page 9 of the addendum and page 2 of the second addendum).
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Windle,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addenda and the
following:
i. Condition 2 to be amended to include ‘or unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority in relation to
one-off events’.
ii. Condition 18 to be amended to include references to ‘birds and
bats’.
2. To delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Development
to:

Page 9
a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report.

8.

WATERLOO BRIDGE (BISHOP'S) 18/01988/EIAFUL AND 18/01989/LB
Questions and discussion of this item was heard alongside item 4,
Vauxhall Bridge.
Case Nos. 18/01988/EIAFUL and 18/01989/LB (agenda item eight, page
197 of the agenda pack, page 10 of the addendum and page 2 of the
second addendum).
18/01988/EIAFUL:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Leigh, and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addenda and the
following:
i. Condition 2 to be amended to include ‘or unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority in relation to
one-off events’.
ii. Condition 18 to be amended to include references to ‘birds and
bats’.
2. To delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Development
to:
a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report.
18/01989/LB:
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Windle,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT Listed Building Consent subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addenda.
2. To delegate authority to the Director of Planning and Development
to:
a) Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report.

9.

LAND AT JUNCTION OF SANCROFT STREET AND VAUXHALL
STREET (PRINCE'S) 17/05509/FUL
Case No. 17/05509/FUL (agenda item nine, page 209 of the agenda pack
and page 11 of the addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the
report and subsequent addendum that had been published on Friday 26
October 2018. Members were advised of the key material planning issues
for consideration which included the retention and continued use of the
temporary site compound, the departure from Policy EN1 of the Local Plan,
the previous use of the land as ancillary open space (housing amenity
land), trip generation and the proposed landscaping works, including a
green screen and gym/play equipment.
Officers and the representative from the Council’s Housing Services Team
then provided the following information in response to questions from

Page 10
Members:
 The wider benefits of the Lambeth Housing Standard (LHS) works
were a consideration for the Committee. Members were advised
that they were entitled to take into account the improvements to
dwellings not just in the immediate vicinity of the site that would be
enabled by the continued use of the land in the manner proposed.
 The previous temporary permission expired on 25 January 2018.
 The LHS project was due to conclude in January 2020, with works
expected to be completed in late 2019.
 Condition 1 stated that the site must be brought back to its previous
use by 25 January 2020. The Legal Officer advised Members that
it was not possible to preclude a future application being made for a
further period of usage of the site.
 Previous applications for this site had been approved under
delegated powers.
 The land would revert to its ordinary use class (which was identified
in the report as ancillary C3) on the expiration of the temporary
permission. There was no suggestion that a permanent change of
use to some other lawful use had occurred e.g. as a result of 10
years’ continuous use.
 The site was open Monday to Friday, from 8.00-17.00. There had
been no complaints to the Council’s noise officers.
 The green screen would address the visual intrusion of the blue
hoarding, while also providing a benefit to air quality.
The Committee considered information provided by officers and the
Housing Services representative in conjunction with the report before
making the following observations:
 The benefits of the scheme outweighed the temporary harm to the
surrounding area. There was a lack of suitable alternative sites in
the north of the borough.
 Some Members had concerns at the possibility of works
overrunning, but acknowledged the inability to prevent a further
application being made in the future.
 Condition 5 should be amended to include reference to consulting
with residents and Ward Councillors when choosing the gym/play
equipment.
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Masters,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1. To GRANT planning permission subject to the conditions as
outlined in the officer’s report and published addendum and subject
to the following:
i. Condition 5 to be amended to include the following text: ‘The
landscaping scheme shall be developed in consultation with
local estate residents and ward councillors.’
2. To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development to finalise the recommended conditions
as set out in the report, addendum and/or minutes.
CLOSE OF MEETING

Page 11
The meeting ended at 9.55 pm
CHAIR
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 13 November 2018
Date of Despatch: Wednesday 7 November 2018
Contact for Enquiries: Maria Burton
Tel: 020 7926 8703
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: MBurton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 13

PAC
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 13 November 2018 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Ben Kind, Councillor Jessica Leigh, Councillor Marianna
Masters, Councillor Joanne Simpson (Vice-Chair), Councillor Becca
Thackray, Councillor Clair Wilcox (Chair) and Councillor Timothy
Windle

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillor Jon Davies

1.

DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS
With regard to application 18/03773/FUL (Graphite Square), Councillor
Simpson stated that she would stand down from the Committee for the
duration of the item as she had a pre-determined view and would be
speaking in objection to the application.

2.

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 09 October
2018 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record of the
proceedings.
The Chair announced a provisional timetable for the meeting in
accordance with Standing Order 9.9.1.

3.

GRAPHITE SQUARE (PRINCE'S) 18/03773/FUL
Councillor Joanne Simpson stood down from the Committee for the
duration of the item.
Case No. 18/03773/FUL (agenda item 3, page 7 of the agenda pack, page
1 of the addendum and page 1 of the second addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the
report and subsequent addenda that had been published on Friday 09
November and the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the key
material planning issues for consideration which included the demolition of
existing office, warehouse and church buildings and redevelopment of the
site to provide residential, office and replacement community space,
improvements to public realm within and outside the site, the provision of
35% affordable housing and the changes made to the application
compared to the previously refused application. These changes included
increased separation distances from 79 Vauxhall Walk and a
reconfiguration of the block heights to reduce the height of Block C.

Page 14
Members were shown images of the site and its context, conservation area
designations and the existing buildings on the site, the proposed uses for
each floor of the proposed development and comparison images of the
proposed and refused developments. The Council’s daylight and sunlight
consultant provided Members with information on the daylight and sunlight
impacts that the development would have on neighbouring residential
properties., He advised that while there would be improvements in Vertical
Sky Component (VSC) levels compared to the refused scheme there would
still be significant reductions in light, however these were considered
acceptable given the minimal massing currently on site and the urban
context.
Following the officer’s presentation, the objectors raised the following
concerns:
 The community wanted the site to be developed, but not in such a
way that would negatively affect residents.
 Solar panels had recently been installed on nearby residential
blocks for a co-operative solar panel scheme. There had been no
consideration of the potential impact on the panels.
 Nearby buildings were five storeys tall, and this development would
be significantly higher than neighbouring buildings.
 Although kitchens under 13m2 had been considered ‘uninhabitable’
when assessing daylight and sunlight impacts, residents spent a lot
of time in their kitchens. Residents’ living rooms would face the
development, with associated impacts on the light received to these
rooms.
 The development would not benefit local residents.
 The length of construction time could increase pollution in the
immediate area.
Kate Hoey then spoke in opposition to the application as the MP for
Vauxhall, stating that:
 This application was a new application, so the reasons for refusing
the previous scheme were not applicable.
 The height of the proposed development did not match surrounding
blocks and had been justified based on the height of nearby
Hayman’s Point, although this development was one storey taller.
 The tallest element had been moved from Block C to Block A.
 The surrounding area was predominantly low-rise, and the
development would be imposing.
 Limited changes had been made to the application, with the
building line being moved only one metre further from Arne House.
The surveyor, agent and architect then provided the following information
in support of the application:
 The existing site was an eyesore and did not benefit the area.
 35% of the new housing would be affordable, with a policycompliant tenure split. The application met Local and London Plan
guidance.
 Six more affordable homes would be provided than the refused
application. The affordable family-sized units would be let at
London Affordable Rent, in line with social rent.
 The community space would be let at nil rent.
 The applicant had worked with officers to deliver improvements on
the previous application.
 There had been particular focus on the daylight and sunlight

Page 15






impacts on Arne House and 79 Vauxhall Walk. The applicant and
officers had visited a number of flats in these buildings, and had
acquired full floorplans. They were confident that no living rooms or
principal bedrooms faced the site. Many rooms retained good light
levels.
The scheme had been designed to reflect the industrial heritage of
the area, and would be built with high quality materials.
All residential units would meet or exceed space standards. There
would be a high proportion of dual aspect homes, with no northfacing single aspect units.
The design of Block C had been amended considerably to reduce
the impact on 79 Vauxhall Walk.
Up to 1,000 new jobs would be provided by the development.

Councillors Joanne Simpson and Jon Davies then spoke as Ward
Councillors for Prince’s:
 The application did not overcome the previous reason for refusal.
 Officers’ arguments that the bedrooms facing the site were
secondary bedrooms misunderstood how many residents used their
homes. There was no definition of ‘secondary’ bedrooms in policy.
 The report acknowledged the major adverse loss of light, but
argued that this was acceptable due to existing light levels.
 The development would cause unacceptable harm to neighbouring
residents.
 The application site was directly adjacent to four local businesses,
which in total employed 300 staff. These businesses had tried to
engage with the applicant but did not receive responses. The
development would negatively impact on the operation of these
business, and there was a risk that jobs in these businesses would
be lost to create new jobs in the development.
 No affordable workspace was offered as part of the application.
Officers, the Council’s daylight and sunlight consultant and the applicant’s
representatives then provided the following information in response to
questions from Members:
 There were 87 flats in Arne House. Officers had inspected three
flats, and the applicant had inspected eight. There had also been
considerable external observations from the deck access. Officers
were confident of the layout and the uses of each room.
 A full floorplan for the southern third of Arne House had been
obtained from the Lambeth Archives. For other parts of Arne
House, estate agents’ floorplans and other sources had been used.
 The use of ‘secondary’ bedroom did not denote the importance of
the room, but referred to the room being smaller than the other
bedroom and facing towards the application site. Residents could
choose to sleep in the ‘secondary’ bedroom if they wished.
 Appendix D to the report showed the daylight review. The second
and third floors had been sampled and largely met all target criteria.
 If solar panels were on the southern end of Arne House, there
would be no impact. If they were on the northern or middle thirds,
there would be some reduction in sunlight received in the
afternoons, with a greater effect in winter. However, there would
not be a major effect on the level of light the panels would receive.
 The existing VSC levels were low. Therefore a relatively small
change in term of percentage points would have a greater
proportional change.

Page 16

























The playspace would meet BRE guidance on daylight and sunlight.
Average Daylight Factor was an absolute, not a comparable test,
but was acceptable to use as a supplementary reference.
There was no legal definition of a small kitchen, but practically it
was less likely that a small kitchen would be used as living space
compared to a larger kitchen.
The treatment of the land between the site and Jameson House
and Kennedy House was indicative at present and would be
secured by the S106 Agreement.
Access to the on-site public realm was likely to be open, with no
gate. A gate on Vauxhall Walk would be replaced.
There was no direct overlooking to Block C so privacy screening
was not necessary. Screening would only be used on the first to
the fourth floors, as these directly faced the offices on Vauxhall
Walk. There would be no screening for the playspace.
The mix of hard and soft landscaping would be secured by
condition. There would be a larger amount of hard landscaping on
the ground floor public realm as this was an access route. On the
podium level there would be approximately 40% soft landscaping
and 60% hard landscaping.
Final designs of the playspace would be secured by condition. The
playspace was aimed at younger children and would be designed in
line with national standards. Although softer surfaces would be
used in the playspace, it would still be considered hard
landscaping.
Use of the ground floor public realm, and any restrictions, would be
up to the management of the development, including the use of
skateboards. The management plan for the community use could
be amended to include the public realm area. There would be no
security guards on the site.
Trees would be planted along the public realm to provide space to
stop and relax. Planting the trees further apart would ensure that
they thrived. The species choice would be secured by condition,
but would be chosen based on what species would thrive in such
an environment.
The workspace would be flexible and could support a range of
uses. It would be aimed at small- and medium-sized businesses
including start-ups.
The maximum number of jobs that could be provided was 1,000,
but this would depend on the type of businesses and the
configuration of the workspace. The 2008 London Plan provided
guidance on calculating the number of created jobs, with each job
requiring 10-14m2.
The applicant had spoken to providers of serviced offices, which
tended to use space more densely, with each job needing 6-7m2.
Based on this denser usage, there would be up to 1,000 jobs
provided.
Officers considered there to be no reasons why the existing
businesses on Vauxhall Walk would not be able to stay in the same
location as they would remain serviceable.
The Council was currently consulting on an affordable workspace
policy, but this could be given very little weight given the early stage
of policy development. This was why no affordable workspace
policy was included in the development.
The D1 usage would not be restricted to church use, although the
applicant was in discussion with the church on the existing site.

Page 17



Any change of use from D1 would require planning permission, so
officers did not consider an Article 4 directive to be necessary.
The Greater London Authority (GLA) was strongly supportive of this
scheme and the previously refused scheme. Concerns raised at
the first consultation had been addressed.

The Committee considered points raised by speakers and information
provided by officers in conjunction with the report before making the
following observations:
 Members raised concerns around the D1 community use, the public
realm space and particularly the impacts on daylight and sunlight.
 It was difficult to fully assess the impact on neighbouring buildings
as the uses of rooms in all flats was not known. Members
expressed unease around the use of ‘primary’ and ‘secondary’
bedrooms. The development would only exacerbate already low
levels of light.
 Some Members felt that the stated benefits did not overcome the
harm of the development.
 The provision of affordable housing in line with policy requirements
was positive.
 There were minimal changes to some areas of the development
from the previously refused scheme.
 Some issues raised by objectors and Members could be overcome
through the use of conditions.
 The design was reflective of the industrial vernacular of the area
and was of a high quality.
 The attempt to move the bulk of the building from Block C to Block
A had been partially successful. However, this removed the
stepping down effect from Hayman’s Point that had originally been
envisioned.
Following Members’ discussion of the application, the Assistant Director,
Planning, Transport and Development provided the following information:
 Although there were provisions to move outside the D1 use, the
space was not large so would not have considerable impact. It
would however be possible to place a condition limiting the use of
the space.
 Members could strengthen the public access and management of
the ground floor public realm.
 Officers and the applicant had used a variety of sources to establish
the uses of rooms in Arne House, but without accessing each flat it
was not possible to be certain of the uses. Members should
consider typical use, and the layout of the larger rooms facing away
from the site suggested that typically residents would use these
rooms as living rooms and bedrooms.
 There would be an increase in commercial floorspace, and at a
higher density than the light industrial space currently on the site.
 The GLA’s position was that kitchens smaller than 13m2 were not
classified as habitable rooms.
 The height of the scheme had been considered appropriate in the
previously refused application, and the maximum height had not
changed.
The Legal Officer told the Committee that while each application had to be
considered on its own merits, previous reasons for refusal could be taken
into account to ensure consistency. The Committee was not bound by the

Page 18
previous decision but it was capable of being a material planning
consideration.
It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Kind, and
RESOLVED, by five votes to one
1. To REFUSE planning permission against officers’
recommendations for the following reasons:
i)
The proposed development, by reason of its scale and
massing and proximity to neighbouring residential
properties, would have a detrimental impact on the
residential amenity of the occupiers of Jameson House,
Vauxhall Walk and Kennedy House, Glasshouse Walk; and
would adversely impact on the amenity of residential
occupiers in Arne House, Worgan Street and 79 Vauxhall
Walk in terms of sunlight and daylight. As such, the proposal
would be contrary to Policies Q2 (iv) and Q26 (vi) of the
Lambeth Local Plan (2015) and Policy 7.7(D) (a) of the
London Plan (2016).
2. In the event that there is a subsequent appeal, to delegate authority
to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and Development,
having regard to the heads of terms set out in the report and PAC
minutes, to negotiate and complete a document containing
obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 in order to meet the requirement of the Planning
Inspector.

4.

SURREY COUNTY CRICKET CLUB, KENNINGTON OVAL (OVAL)
18/01799/FUL
Case No. 18/01799/FUL (agenda item 4, page 101 of the agenda pack,
page 5 of the addendum and page 2 of the second addendum).
The Planning Officer gave a presentation which included a summary of the
report and subsequent addenda that had been published on Friday 09
November and the day of the meeting. Members were advised of the key
material planning issues for consideration which included the demolition of
the existing Lock Laker stand and the erection of a three tier spectator
stand and linked four storey buildings for a concourse, club shop, ticket
office and hospitality, the net increase of 2,303 seats, the relationship with
heritage assets, the application history of the site and proposed changes to
the footpath which were reserved by condition. Members were shown
images of the site and its context, proposed floorplans and views,
comparisons between the application and previously approved but
unimplemented schemes and the proposed materials. Members viewed
samples of the proposed materials with the Conservation and Design
Officer and were advised that the final choice of materials was reserved
under condition.
At 22:00 the Committee elected to proceed with the meeting for a
maximum of a further 45 minutes in order to conclude the remaining
matters of business.
The applicant then provided the following information in support of the
application:

Page 19



This was the third application for the site. The applicant was a
long-time occupier of the site and wanted broad support for the
application, having conducted discussions and consultations.
The application would improve facilities on match days with more
toilets and catering, and non-match day events through the
provision of space for conferences. The applicant hosted 1,500
non-match day events per year.

Officers and the applicant then provided the following information in
response to questions from Members:
 Construction traffic would enter the site from the south, while traffic
for the gasholder site would enter from the northeast.
 Kennington Oval was closed on major match days to ensure
pedestrian safety.
 The cycle hire docking station was adjacent to the site and would
be retained. Six Sheffield stands would be provided, but given the
low modal share for cycling on match days, more cycle parking was
not considered necessary.
 The lift shaft would be higher than the rest of the building to enable
access to the upper tier of the stand. It was set back from the
building line by seven metres and the contrasting style would make
it a feature. The signage shown on the images was indicative and
was not part of the application.
 Issues around cyclists’ access on match days would have to be
addressed separately to the application, as it was part of the safety
management plan. However, an informative could be added to ask
the applicant to consider these issues.
 Condition 9 required a Construction and Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP), which could control the movement of
large vehicles. Given consent had been granted at the gasholder
site, it would be expected that the CEMP for this application would
consider the movements related to both sites.
 There were no on-site parking spaces.
 The details of the improvements for pedestrians had not yet been
finalised and would be subject to a S278 application. Two options
were being considered: a raised crossing and widening the footway.
 The finish of the materials was guaranteed for a minimum of 25
years, as a warranty would not be given for a longer period. The
materials would not need to be replaced after 25 years.
 The use of the mesh element would provide space between the
proposal and the existing pavilion, and would give prominence to
the pavilion.
 The final choice of materials was secured by condition, and officers
could work to ensure the closest match to Portland stone possible.
 The application would achieve a 19,4% carbon reduction, which the
Council’s sustainability consultant had advised was the highest
possible. A cash in lieu payment of approximately £30,000 would
be made to offset the shortfall.
 Policy EN4 required non-residential schemes to meet BREEAM
‘Excellent’ standards. This application did not quite meet this
standard, but was higher than the minimum for ‘Very good’.
The Committee considered points raised by speakers and information
provided by officers in conjunction with the report before making the
following observations:
 Officers should aspire to improve the BREEAM rating.

Page 20



The impact of construction vehicles on cyclists, pedestrians and
local schools needed to be considered. The roads surrounding the
site were narrow, with tight corners.
The mesh provided a difference in appearance that was difficult to
appreciate out of context. Officers should pay particular attention to
the mesh, especially given the significance of the façade of the
pavilion.

It was MOVED by Councillor Wilcox, SECONDED by Councillor Simpson,
and
RESOLVED, unanimously
1.

To APPROVE planning permission subject to a Section 106
Agreement, any direction as may be received from referral to the
Health and Safety Executive and the conditions as outlined in the
officer’s report and published addenda and the following:
i. An additional informative requesting that the Management Plan
take into account pedestrian and cyclist safety, particularly at
the junction of Harleyford Street and Kennington Oval.
ii. An additional informative requesting that the Construction and
Environmental Management Plan have regard to safety of local
schools and the development of the gasholder site.

2.

To delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in the report;
and
b. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out
in the report pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

3. In the event that the Section 106 Agreement is not completed within
3 months of committee, delegated authority is given to the Assistant
Director of Planning, Transport and Development to refuse planning
permission for failure to enter into a section 106 agreement for the
mitigating contributions identified in the report and the PAC
minutes.
CLOSE OF MEETING
The meeting ended at 10.45 pm
CHAIR
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE
Tuesday 4 December 2018
Date of Despatch: Wednesday 21 November 2018
Contact for Enquiries: Maria Burton
Tel: 020 7926 8703
Fax: (020) 7926 2361
E-mail: MBurton2@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 21

Agenda Item 3

Page 22
ADDRESS: Zennor Road Industrial Estate
Zennor Road
London
SW12 0PS
Application Number: 18/03142/FUL Case Officer: Ms Emily Leighton
Ward: Thornton
Date Received: 23.07.2018
Proposal: The installation of an over-cladding roofing system to a number of the
industrial units which form part of Zennor Road Industrial Estate to improve thermal
performance and aesthetics Unit 1 - 28.
Applicant:
Agent:
Mr Alessio Lopiccolo
Mr Alex Feaver
GVA
65 Gresham Street
London

RECOMMENDATION
1. Resolve to grant planning permission, subject to conditions.
2. Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning, Transport and
Development to finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this
report including such refinements, amendments, additions and/or
deletions as the Director of Planning, Transport and Development
considers reasonably necessary.

SITE DESIGNATIONS
Relevant site designations:
Key Industrial and Business Area

Zennor Road Estate & Adjoining Sites KIBA

LAND USE DETAILS
Site area (ha):

11,432sqm (1.14Ha)

NON-RESIDENTIAL DETAILS

Existing
Proposed

Use Class

Use Description

B1/B2/B8
B1/B2/B8

Industrial estate
Industrial estate

Floorspace (m2)
(Gross Internal Area)
6367.8
6367.8

Page 23
PARKING
Car Parking Spaces
(General)
Resi
Existing
Proposed

Commercial

N/A
N/A

Visito
r

Car Parking Spaces
(Disabled)
Resi

Commercial

N/A
N/A

Visitor

% of
EVCP

Bike
Spaces

Motorcycle
Spaces

Page 24
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
The application seeks full planning permission for the installation of an over-cladding roofing
system to a number of the industrial units which form part of Zennor Road Industrial Estate
to improve thermal performance and aesthetics Unit 1 - 28. The application has been fully
assessed against national, regional and local policies and officers are of the view that the
application is in general compliance with the relevant policies. The proposal would not result
in any harm to the character or appearance of the surrounding area, including the nearby
La Retrait Conservation Area and would not result in any detrimental impact to the amenity
of surrounding properties. The proposed re-roofing and alteration to the appearance of the
industrial units would be acceptable, subject to the proposed conditions set out in the report.

Page 25

OFFICER REPORT
Reason for referral to PAC: The application is reported to the Planning Applications
Committee in accordance with (1)(iii) of the Committee’s terms of reference as it
relates to a major application due to the site area exceeding 1 hectare.

1
1.1

THE APPLICATION SITE
The application site is the Zennor Road Industrial Estate located at the junction of
Cavendish Road and Weir Road and is situated within the larger Zennor Road
Estate and Adjoining Sites KIBA. The surrounding area is mainly residential with
buildings typically two and three-storeys in height.

1.2

Zennor Road lies at the centre of the site and provides the main pedestrian and
vehicular access from Weir Road. Zennor Road Industrial Estate is made up of
28 single-storey units, laid out in a U-shaped formation fronting onto Zennor
Road. The use of the 28 units are a mixture of storage and light industrial uses.
Unit elevations are faced in a pale white/grey brick with fibre cement seesaw roof
above. Principal elevations and unit entrances face onto Zennor Road and a
series of blank elevations (rear elevations) front onto Cavendish Road.
Cavendish Road also forms the boundary for the London Borough of
Wandsworth.

1.3

The application site is not located within a Conservation Area, however the La
Retrait Conservation Area (CA36) lies north of the site. No statutory listed or locally
listed buildings are located within the vicinity of the site.

2
2.1

THE SURROUNDING AREA
The closest residential properties to the application site are those located on the
opposite sides of Cavendish Road (292, 274a and 274b Cavendish Road), 1-17
Ranmere Street, 102 Ormley Road. The closest residential property is 102
Ormley Road, measuring 13.93m from the boundary of the application site to the
flank wall of the residential property.

2.2

To the north of the site is Weir Road. On the opposite side of Weir Road, the La
Retrait Conservation Area encompasses 1 A and 1B Weir Road (approximately
36.7m from the application site) and 1-8 Charlwood Mansions (approximately
39m from the application site). The buildings located within this area of the La
Retrait Conservation Area are not listed.

2.3

To the east of the application site are industrial properties (2-12 Weir Road and
the properties within the Grange Mills Estate) all encompassed within the Zennor
Road and Adjacent Sites KIBA.

Page 26
2.4

To the south of the site is the Henry Cavendish Primary School, which runs along
the entire boundary of the application site.

3
3.1

SITE PHOTOGRAPHS
View of the site from the Weir Road Entrance:

3.2

View of the flank elevation and flashings of the industrial units along the
Cavendish Road elevation:

Page 27

3.3

Front elevation of a typical unit within the Zennor Road Industrial Estate:

3.4

Existing roof structure showing the valleys and the windows in the vertical face.
Note that the windows on the vertical face are not uniform in size and location on
each unit.

Page 28
4

PROPOSAL

5
5.1

Summary of the Proposal
The applicant is proposing the installation of an over-cladding roofing system to a
number of the industrial units (units 4-28) which form part of Zennor Road
Industrial Estate to improve thermal performance and alter the aesthetics of Units
1 - 28.

6
6.1

Detail of the Proposal
The applicant is proposing to install an overcladding roofing system to Units 4-28
of the Zennor Road Industrial Estate. The overcladding is to be constructed of
Tata Trisobuild over-roofing system. The system comprises the following:
Top-hat stubs;
Vapour control layer;
A spacer system;
And insulation layer;
A Tata Colour coat pre-finished steel external weathering profile.






6.2

The over cladding will result in the overall height of the units increasing by
250mm as can be seen in Figure 1 and Figure 2 below.

Figure 1: Section showing thickness of existing roofing.

Figure 2: Section showing proposed over roofing to sit atop the existing roofing
of the industrial units.

Page 29

Figure 3: Existing elevations showing the existing roofing to the industrial units.

Figure 4: Proposed elevations following the over roofing of the industrial units.
6.3

No works are proposed internally to the units and as such the proposal will not
result in a change or increase to the floor space.

6.4

The applicant is proposing to replace the existing windows that are located in the
vertical face of the roof profile as seen at paragraph 3.4 and Figures 5 and 6
below. It is noted that the location and size of the windows varies on each unit.

Figure 5: Existing vertical roof face.

Page 30

Figure 6: Proposed vertical roof face.
6.5

The applicant is proposing to undertake the works over 4 phases, beginning with
the units that are currently vacant. The phases are set out in the coloured
diagram below. Phase 1 – yellow, Phase 2 – green, Phase 3 – orange, Phase 4
– pink.

Figure 7: Proposed phase plan for the over roofing.

Page 31
7
7.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
Deemed Permission for Development – The erection of twenty-nine single storey
units to comprise 10,000 sq ft of industrial and 30,000 sq. ft. of commercial
floorspace on the land abounded by Cavendish Road, Weir Road, and the rear
boundary of Zennor Road, Lambeth. Permitted 24.09.1973.

7.2

Deemed Permission for Development – Erection of 28 single storey units to
comprise 65,000 sq ft of commercial/industrial floorspace on land bounded by
Cavendish Road, Weir Road, and the rear boundary of 1-85 (odd) Zennor Road,
Lambeth. Permitted 09.09.1976.

7.3

Deemed Permission for Development – Use for light industrial and warehousing
purposes. Permitted 07.07.1978.

7.4

DC/92/3088/LSA/23390 – Alterations and light industrial (B1) use of unit 1 for the
manufacture of pharmaceutical products as an extension to the existing use at
units 2 and 3. Application permitted 24.06.1992.

7.5

01/03177/FUL - Change of use from storage to provide of 8 rehearsal studios.
Application permitted 22.01.2002.

7.6

03/02212/FUL - Renewal of permission 01/03177/FUL to allow use as rehearsal
studios on a permanent basis. Application permitted 29.10.2003.

7.7

10/03485/INFOR - Partial demolition of the Zennor Road Industrial Estate site
and erection of a warehouse building for use as a builders merchant (Class B8)
with associated new access road, service yard and customer parking (48
spaces), 5 of the existing business units (Nos. 24-28) will be retained in their
current use and provided with an independent service yard. It is noted that there
is no record of a planning permission being submitted on this basis.

8
8.1

CONSULTATIONS
Statutory External Consultees
EHST Noise Pollution
Comments received and incorporated within the report
Regulatory Services
No objection to the proposal. Any windows to be replaced should have the same
acoustic performance as the existing windows which can be secured via
condition. The submitted asbestos surveys indicate that there is a presence of
low-risk material. No conditions have been suggested with respect to the
asbestos. A Construction and Environmental Management Plan has been
recommended via pre-commencement condition.

Page 32
Flooding - SUDS
No objection – proposal will have negligible impact on surface water flood risk
and management.
Planning Policy
No policy advice on the proposal.
Sustainability Team On Air Quality
No objection to the proposal.
Transport Lambeth
No objection to the proposal subject to a condition for a construction
management plan.
Conservation & Urban Design
No objection to the proposal subject to conditions.
London Borough of Wandsworth
No objection.
Bioregional
Support the proposal.
8.2

Other Consultees
No responses were received from any community/amenity groups.

8.3

Adjoining owners/occupiers

8.3.1

Public consultation was undertaken in accordance with statutory and Council
requirements. 27 letters were sent to neighbouring properties on 16.10.2018. The
formal consultation period ended 08.11.2018.

8.3.2

Following the initial consultation period, it was noted that Henry Cavendish
Primary School had not been notified. A consultation letter was sent out on
12.11.2018, noting that consultation would end on 03.12.2018. Should a
representation be made during this time or before the committee, this will be
addressed through addendums.

8.3.3

No representations have been received during the consultation period. Should
any comments or objections be received following the completion of this report,
these will be addressed through addendums.

Page 33

9

POLICIES

9.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
planning decisions to be made in accordance with the development plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan in Lambeth is
the London Plan (2016, consolidated with alterations since 2011) and the
Lambeth Local Plan (September 2015).

9.2

The new Draft London Plan was published on 1 December 2017 (updated
August 2018) for consultation and will eventually supersede the current 2016
consolidated London Plan once the final version is published (anticipated Autumn
2019). The Draft London Plan is a material consideration in planning decisions.
Officers consider that this should be afforded very limited weight at this stage.
The Lambeth Local Plan is currently under partial review to ensure it complies
with amendments to changes in the NPPF and London Plan. The Local Plan
review is timetabled to follow the programme for the Draft London Plan.
Consultation for the Draft Revised Local Plan commenced on 22nd October 2017.
At this time the amendments to the Local Plan do not carry any weight.

9.3

The latest National Planning Policy Framework was published in 2018. This
document sets out the Government’s planning policies for England including the
presumption in favour of sustainable development and is a material consideration
in the determination of all applications.

9.4

The current planning application has been considered against all relevant
national, regional and local planning policies as well as any relevant guidance. A
full list of relevant policies and guidance has been set out in Appendix 3 to this
report.

Page 34
ASSESSMENT
10
10.1

Land Use
The application site concerns the Zennor Road Industrial Estate which is located
within the wider Zennor Road Estate and Adjoining Sites KIBA. The proposal will
not result in a change of use to the land use of the units within the Zennor Road
Industrial Estate, nor will it increase or decrease the floor area of these units. As
such, the proposal would accord with Policy ED1 of the Lambeth Local Plan
(2105) which requires development within KIBAs to be uses that provide for, or
are ancillary to, the needs of the KIBA.

10.2

It is further noted that the application was notified to the Planning Policy Team
who had no objection to the scope of works proposed to the KIBA within this
proposal.

11

Design and Conservation

11.1

The beginning of the Agenda Pack contains a summary of the legislative and
national policy context for the assessment of the impact of a development
proposal on the historic environment and its heritage assets. This is in addition
to Lambeth Local Plan and London Plan policies. The assessment that follows
has been made within this context.

11.2

Scale, massing, layout and appearance

11.2.1

The proposal is to over clad the existing fibre cement roof with a new metal roof.
The new roof would be ‘Trisobuild’ by TATA Steel; profiled steel sheets in
Goosewing grey which would increase the overall thickness of the roof by
approximately 250mm.

11.2.2

The principle of over cladding the roof with a metal roof is acceptable. The Urban
Design Officer has reviewed drawings PR-01 Rev A1 and PR-02 Rev 02 which
were received 19.11.2018. The increase in height and proposed materials are
acceptable. The officer has requested that a condition securing the details of
materials is added to the decision notice. This is acceptable and would accord with
the principles of Policies Q2, Q8 and Q11 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

11.2.3

The existing windows located within the vertical face of the roof profile are to be
replaced where needed. It is noted that the position of the windows varies in each
unit. The replacement of the windows is acceptable and would improve the
aesthetics of the units.

11.2.4

Officers consider that the proposed alterations would result in enhancements to
the units in accordance with Policies Q2, Q11 and Q22 of the Lambeth Local Plan
(2015) and paragraphs 190, 192 and 193 of the NPPF (2018).

Page 35
11.3

Impact on the Conservation Area

11.3.1

The La Retrait Conservation Area (CA36) was first designated on 29 March 1982.
Its principle objective was to protect the mainly mid Nineteenth Century buildings
of the La Retrait Convent and Roman Catholic Girls’ School, a number of villas and
cottages dating from the same early Victorian era fronting Cavendish Road and
Weir Road and also the Weir Maternity Hospital which was opened in 1913 with
an extension built in 1931. Whilst the Convent and Girls School have remained in
use to this day, the Weir Maternity Hospital closed in 1977 and consent to demolish
all of the original Edwardian hospital buildings was granted soon after the
designation of the Conservation Area, in 1984. The boundary of the Conservation
Area was further altered on 22 February 1999 to remove the buildings within Molly
Huggins Close. The Conservation Area does not contain any locally listed or
statutory listed buildings.

Figure 8: Location of Zennor Road Industrial Estate (blue hatched) in relation to La Retraite
Conservation Area (outlined in purple).
11.3.2

The closest building within the La Retrait Conservation Area is located
approximately 35m from Unit 28. Due to the separation distance and the nature of
the proposed works, the Design Officer considers that the proposed alterations to
the buildings would not harm the setting of the La Retrait Conservation Area.
Officers agree with this view. As such, the proposal accords with Policy Q22 of the
Lambeth Local Plan (2015) and paragraphs 190, 192 and 193 of the NPPF (2018).

Page 36
12

Amenity for Neighbouring Occupiers

12.1

Daylight, Sunlight and Overshadowing

12.1.1

The beginning of the Agenda Pack contains broad contextual overview of the
assessment framework within which BRE compliant sunlight and daylight studies
are undertaken. This includes an explanation of the key terms and targets
contained within the BRE guidance. The following assessment has been made in
the context of this information.

12.1.2

The application site is bounded by Cavendish Road and Weir Road, which are
the locations of the nearest residential properties (approximately 13.93m
separation distance). The increase in height of 250mm to the industrial units will
not result in a loss of daylight, sunlight or overshadowing to the nearest
residential properties. Furthermore, the increase in height will not result in a loss
of daylight, sunlight or overshadowing to the adjacent Henry Cavendish Primary
School to the south, nor to the adjacent industrial buildings from 2-16 Weir Road.

12.2

Privacy and Outlook

12.2.1

The increase in height of the buildings will not impact on the privacy or outlook of
adjacent properties. It is noted that the applicant is retaining the existing windows
to the units (unless they are vacant), which are located within the roof valleys as
seen in paragraph 3.4 of this report. The windows are all located within the
vertical face of the roof and are directed toward Weir Road. Should the units be
vacant at the time of refurbishment, the applicant is proposing to replace the
windows. Due to their location in the roof and a separation distance of
approximately 36m from the closest residential properties on Weir Road, the
replacement and refurbishment of any windows would not result in a loss of
outlook or privacy to the occupiers of 1 A and 1B Weir Road and 1-8 Charlwood
Mansions.

12.3

Noise and Vibration

12.3.1

The Council’s Regulatory Services Environmental Health team have noted that
should the applicant wish to replace the existing windows, details of these should
be submitted to show that they are at least of similar acoustic performance to the
old roof structure. A condition has been recommended to deal with the
consideration of noise impacts from the replacement of windows within the roof. It
is noted that the existing windows in the units are substandard and missing
glazing panels. Any window replacement would result in a higher standard of
window than those currently at the site and it is therefore deemed that the
acoustic performance condition is not necessary in this instance. The
replacement of existing windows at Zennor Road Industrial Estate would not
result in an increase in noise levels over and above what is already experienced
at the site.

Page 37

12.4

Overall, the proposal would not result in significant impacts to the amenity of
adjacent occupiers, in particular to the residential properties on Cavendish Road
and Weir Road. As such, the proposal accords with Policy Q2 of the Lambeth
Local Plan (2015).

13

Transport

13.1

Policies T6 and T7 of the Local Plan seek to prevent development from having an
unacceptable impact on the operation and safety of the local transport network.

13.2

The site has a PTAL score of 5 which is ‘very good’. The site is not located within
a CPZ and is an area with high levels of access to public transport. The applicant
is not proposing any car parking spaces as part of the development. The applicants
have noted in their Design and Access Statement that the vehicle and pedestrian
access to the industrial estate will not change.

13.3

The Transport Officer has concerns about how the construction works will impact
the existing users of the Zennor Road Industrial Estate in terms of details of the
programme, number of workers and size of vehicles envisaged for each phase of
work.

13.4

A condition has been proposed to submit a Construction Management Plan. This
is acceptable and would help to mitigate the impacts of the proposal on the
occupiers of the Zennor Road Industrial Estate units and would ensure that the
proposal would accord with Policy T6 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

14

Sustainable Design and Construction

14.1

BREAAM
Policy EN4(b)(ii) of the Lambeth Local Plan states that all major non-residential
refurbishment of existing buildings and conversions over 500m 2 floorspace
should meet at least BREEAM Non-Domestic Refurbishment ‘Excellent’ unless it
is demonstrated that it is not technically feasible or viable to do so, in which case
proposal should demonstrate a ‘Very Good’ rating with a minimum score of 63
percent.

14.1.1

The applicant is proposing to overclad the roof of units with a gross floorspace of
approximately 6367.8sqm. The applicants have provided a BREEAM cover letter
dated 2nd November 2018 which states the following:
A BREEAM Refurbishment and Fit Out - 2014 ‘Excellent’ rating requires a score
above 70% and the achievement of mandatory credits covering areas such as
commissioning of building services and the creation of a building user guide –
both of which are activities that are outside the scope of over cladding a roof.
Furthermore as the scheme is to be phased, at best case four individual
BREEAM assessments would be required and at worst case a BREEAM
assessment may be required for each individual industrial unit – numbering 24 in
total.

Page 38
It is my view as a previous BREEAM assessor, that it will not be technically
feasible to achieve the lowest BREEAM certification possible of a BREEAM
rating of a ‘Pass’ for each phase of the development and that achieving a
BREEAM rating of ‘Excellent’ is both technically and economically unviable given
the scope of works are for the over-cladding of the current roof and do not entail
any works to the internal areas of the individual units or the external grounds.
14.1.2

The application documents, including the BREEAM cover letter, have been
reviewed by the Councils external Sustainability Consultants who have advised
that they support the proposal as it would improve the energy efficiency of the
industrial units. The Consultants did not request any further information on the
matter, nor did they propose any conditions. As such, the proposal is accords
with the principles of Policy EN4 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

14.2

Asbestos

14.2.1

Due to the nature of the existing buildings, the applicant has undertaken full
refurbishment and demolition surveys on Units 7 & 15. Given the uniformity of the
units within the Estate and the information provided within the reports, the units
would appear to have low-level risk of asbestos containing materials and these
would be present in all of the units within the Estate.

14.2.2

The submitted reports and application documents have been reviewed by the
Councils Regulatory Services Environmental Health team. The officers noted that
as the buildings represent a commercial workplace the asbestos will be managed
through the HSE workplace regime and consider there to be no requirement for
removal or other controls apart from the control of work place exposure. No
conditions have been proposed in relation to asbestos. As such, the proposal
would accord with Policy EN4(e) of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

15

Other Environmental Matters

15.1

Flood Risk

15.1.1

The application site is located within Flood Zone 1. Lambeth’s Flood Risk officers
have assessed the proposal. Officers have stated that the proposal will have a
negligible impact on surface water flood risk and management at the site due to
the nature of the proposed works. As such, the proposal would accord with the
principles of Policy EN5 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

15.2

Air Quality

15.2.1

The application has been assessed by the Councils Air Quality team. Comments
were received stating that there was no objections to the proposal. Due to the
application being classed as a major due to the site size, a condition with regard
to the NRMM will be added to the decision notice should the application be
granted.

Page 39
16

Employment and Training

16.1

Due to the size of the site, the proposal triggers Employment and Skills Planning
Obligations as set out in the SPD. Due to the minor nature of the development, it
is considered that in this instance it would be excessive to require the applicant to
enter into a Section 106 agreement to secure financial contributions on this
basis.

17

Planning Obligations and CIL

17.1

Due to the nature of the proposed works, the proposal would not trigger any CIL
levy or S106 contributions.

18

CONCLUSION

18.1

The proposal will result in improved thermal efficiency and waterproofing to the
existing industrial units. The proposal would not result in an unacceptable level of
overlooking, loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight to adjacent properties. The
proposal will not impact on the surrounding amenity nor would it harm the nearby
La Retraite Conservation Area. Subject to the conditions set out below, the
proposed development would be in general accordance with the London Plan
(2015) and the Lambeth Local Plan (2015).

19

EQUALITY DUTY AND HUMAN RIGHTS

19.1

In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty the council must have due regard to
the need to eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, as set
out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In making this recommendation,
regard has been given to the Public Sector Equality Duty and the relevant
protected characteristics (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual orientation).

19.2

In line with the Human Rights Act 1998, it is unlawful for a public authority to act
in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right, as per the European
Convention on Human Rights. The human rights impact have been considered,
with particular reference to Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection of property),
Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and Article 14 (Prohibition of
discrimination) of the Convention.

Page 40
19.3

The Human Rights Act 1998 does not impair the right of the state to make
decisions and enforce laws as deemed necessary in the public interest. The
recommendation is considered appropriate in upholding the council's adopted
and emerging policies and is not outweighed by any engaged rights.

20

RECOMMENDATION

20.1

Resolve to grant conditional planning permission.

20.2

Agree to delegate authority to the Director of Planning, Transport and
Development to finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report
including such refinements, amendments, additions and/or deletions as the
Director of Planning, Transport and Development considers reasonably necessary.

21
1

CONDITIONS
The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning from the date of this decision notice.
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 91(1)(a) of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.

2

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed in this notice:
Application Form; R1-047-01-A; Phase Plan; BREEAM Cover Letter 02.11.2018;
TATA Steel Details 10/07/2018; Unit 7 Asbestos Survey 24/07/2018; Unit 15
Asbestos Survey 19/07/2018; Flood Risk Assessment; Planning Information
Sheet; PR-02 A2; PR-01 Rev A A1; EX-01 Rev A A1; EX-02 A2; Email 19.11.2018;
Email 20.11.2018; Design and Access Statement
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3

The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Construction and
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP shall include details of the
following relevant measures:
a) An introduction consisting of construction phase environmental management plan,
definitions and abbreviations and project description and location;
b) A description of management responsibilities;
c) A description of the construction programme which identifies activities likely to
cause high levels of noise or dust;
d) Site working hours and a named person for residents to contact;
e) Detailed Site logistics arrangements;
f) Advance notification of road closures;
g) Details regarding parking, deliveries, and storage;
h) Details regarding dust and noise mitigation measures to be deployed including
identification of sensitive receptors;

Page 41
i)

Details of measures to prevent the deposit of mud and debris on the public
highway;
j) Construction Logistics Plan (CLP), defining the timings and various activities to
take place during the different phases of the construction periods.
k) Details of the hours of works and other measures to mitigate the impact of
construction on the amenity of the area and safety of the highway network; and
l) Communication procedures with the LBL, the local community and notifying
neighbours regarding key construction issues – newsletters, fliers etc.
The construction shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the details and
measures approved in the CEMP for the related phase, unless the written consent
of the Local Planning Authority is received for any variation.
Reason: Development must not commence before this condition is discharged to
ensure minimal nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities
of adjoining occupiers and of the area generally, and to avoid unnecessary hazard
and obstruction to the public highway (Policies EN4, EN7, T8 and Q2 of the
Lambeth Local Plan (2015) and Policy 7.19 of The London Plan (2016)).
4

Prior to the commencement of the works hereby permitted, a schedule and details
of all materials to be used in the external elevations, shall be submitted and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall not be
carried out other than in accordance with the approved materials unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory
(Policies Q2, Q7, Q8 and Q22 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan
2015).

5

No non-road mobile machinery (NRMM) shall be used on the site unless it is
compliant with the NRMM Low Emission Zone requirements (or any superseding
requirements) and until it has been registered for use on the site on the NRMM
register (or any superseding register).
Reason: To ensure that air quality is not adversely affected by the development in
line with London Plan Policy 7.14 and the Mayor’s SPG: The Control of Dust and
Emissions During Construction and Demolition.

INFORMATIVES
1)

This decision letter does not convey an approval or consent which may be required
under any enactment, by-law, order or regulation, other than Section 57 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2)

Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Building Regulations, and related
legislation which must be complied with to the satisfaction of the Council's Building
Control Officer.

3)

Your attention is drawn to the provisions of The Party Wall Act 1996 in relation to
the rights of adjoining owners regarding party walls etc. These rights are a matter

Page 42
for civil enforcement and you may wish to consult a surveyor or architect.
4)

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the requirements of the Control
of Pollution Act 1974 concerning construction site noise and in this respect you are
advised to contact the Council's Environmental Health Division.

5)

You are advised of the necessity to consult the Principal Highways Engineer of the
Highways team on drw@lambeth.gov.uk in order to obtain necessary prior
approval for undertaking any works within the Public Highway including Scaffold,
Temporary/Permanent Crossovers, Oversailing/Undersailing of the Highway,
Drainage/Sewer Connections and Repairs on the Highways, Hoarding,
Excavations, Temporary Full/Part Road Closures, Craneage Licenses etc. You are
advised to contact the Highways team at the earliest possible opportunity.

6)

NRMM Informative: For information on the NRMM Low Emission Zone
requirements and to register NRMM, please visit http://nrmm.london/

Page 43
APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Draft Decision Notice

Page 44

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47
Appendix 2: List of Consultees (Statutory and Other Consultees)
List Of Internal Consultations, Statutory Bodies And Local Amenity Groups Consulted.








Regeneration Team Brixton, Clapham Areas
Clapham Park Tenant Resident Association
Streatham Society
Building Control
Development Control Enforcement Team
Telford Park Residents Association
Telferscot Radbourne Community Group

List of Neighbours Consulted





























Units 16 And 17 Grange Mills Weir Road London SW12 0NE
8A Weir Road London SW12 0GT
Units 12 And 13 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
2 - 6 Weir Road London SW12 0NA
8 Weir Road London SW12 0NA
Units 1 And 2 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Units 20 And 21 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 8 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 7 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Units 4 To 6 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Units 27 To 28 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Adjacent To Unit 15 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Units 24 To 25 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 19 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 11 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 26 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 23 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 16 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 10 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 14 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 9 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 3 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 22 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 18 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
Unit 15 Zennor Road London SW12 0PS
10 - 12 Weir Road London SW12 0NA
Unit 15 Grange Mills Weir Road London SW12 0NE
Henry Cavendish Primary School Balham Hydethorpe Road London SW12 0JA

Page 48
Appendix 3: List of relevant policies in London Plan, Lambeth Local Plan. Reference
to SPGs, SPD and other relevant guidance
London Plan (2016) policies:
Policy 1.1: Delivering the vision and objectives for London
Policy 4.4: Managing industrial Land and premises
Policy 5.3: Sustainable Design and Construction
Policy 5.12: Flood Risk Management
Policy 5.18: Construction, Excavation and demolition waste
Policy 5.19: Hazardous Waste
Policy 5.22: Hazardous Substances and Installations
Policy 6.3: Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
Policy 6.13: Parking
Policy 7.4: Local Character
Policy 7.6: Architecture
Policy 7.8: Heritage assets and archaeology
Policy 7.14: Improving Air Quality

Lambeth Local Plan (2015) policies:
D1 Delivery and monitoring
D2 Presumption in favour of sustainable development
D4 Planning obligations
ED1 Key Industrial and Business Areas (KIBAs)
T6 Assessing impacts of development on transport capacity
T7 Parking
T8 Servicing
EN4 Sustainable design and construction
EN5 Flood risk
EN6 Sustainable drainage systems and water management
EN7 Sustainable waste management
Q1 Inclusive environments
Q2 Amenity
Q3 Community safety
Q5 Local distinctiveness
Q6 Urban design: public realm
Q8 Design quality: construction detailing
Q11 Building alterations and extensions
Q22 Conservation areas
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) & Other Relevant Documents:
Lambeth
Building Alterations and Extensions SPD (2015)
Employment and Skills SPD (2018)
London Plan Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG)
The control of dust and emissions during construction and demolition (July 2014)
Sustainable Design and Construction (April 2014)

Page 49
Appendix 4: Other relevant Plans and Photos
Existing elevations:

Page 50
Existing Sections:

Proposed Elevations:

Page 51
Proposed Sections:

Over roof profile:

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 53

Agenda Item 4

Page 54
ADDRESS:

Tesco Stores, 275 Kennington Lane And 145-149 Vauxhall Street
London SE11
Application Number: 18/02597/EIAFUL
Case Officer: Jeffrey Holt
Ward: Oval
Date Received: 21 June 2018
Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site to provide a mixed-use
development comprising the erection of 3 new buildings (Plot A,B,C) ranging from 4-17 storeys to
provide 571 residential units (Class C3), a replacement Tesco store of 4,655sqm (including sales
area/back of house and car parking), 2,638sqm of Class B1 office, 1,159sqm of flexible commercial
floorspace (Class A1-A3, B1), 62 retail and 24 disabled residential car parking spaces; with
associated cycle parking and landscaping/public realm improvements along Cutlers Way and
Phoenix Street.
Applicant:
Berkeley Homes (Central London) Ltd

Agent:
Grant Leggett
Boyer Planning
2nd Floor, 24 Southwark Bridge Road
London SE1 9HF

RECOMMENDATION
1. Resolve to grant conditional planning permission subject to the completion of an agreement
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 containing the planning
obligations listed in this report and any direction as may be received following further
referral to the Mayor of London and the Secretary of State.
2. Agree to delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and
Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report, addendums and/or
PAC minutes; and
b. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in this report,
addendums and/or PAC minutes pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
3. In the event that the committee resolves to refuse planning permission and there is a
subsequent appeal, delegated authority is given to the Assistant Director of Planning,
Transport and Development, having regard to the heads of terms set out in this report and
PAC minutes, to negotiate and complete a document containing obligations pursuant to
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in order to meet the requirement of
the Planning Inspector.
4. In the event that the Section 106 Agreement is not completed within three months of
committee, delegated authority is given to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and
Development to refuse planning permission for failure to enter into a section 106 agreement
for the mitigating contributions identified in this report and the PAC minutes.

SITE DESIGNATIONS
Relevant site designations:
Adjacent to Conservation Area - CA8 : Kennington Conservation Area
Environment Agency Flood Zone 3

Page 55
HSE Consultation Zone - Oval Gasholders HSE Consultation Zone
Protected Vistas - Primrose Hill Summit To The Palace Of Westminster - 4A.2
Protected Local View – Brixton Panoramic and Norwood Park towards the City
Area of Open Space Deficiency: District; regional; Local, small, pocket;
Transport for London Road Network
Groundwater Source Protection Zone

LAND USE DETAILS
Site area (ha):

1.36

NON-RESIDENTIAL DETAILS

Existing
Proposed

Use Class

Use Description

A1
B1a
A1
B1a
A1/A2/A3/B1

Food store
Office
Food store
Office
Flexible commercial

Floorspace (m2)
(Gross Internal Area)
3,309 (1,365sqm)
1,126
4,655 (1,715sqm sales area)
2,638
1,159

RESIDENTIAL DETAILS
Residential
Type

No. of bedrooms per unit

Studio
Existing

Affordable
Private/Market
Total

Proposed
On-Site

Affordable
Rented
Social Rented
Intermediate
(Shared
ownership)
Private/Market
Total

Proposed
Off-Site

37
37

Total
Habitable
Rooms

1

2

3

4

Total

32
26

34
26

49
6

115
58

362
154

188
246

145
205

28
83

398
571

960
1,476

Affordable
Rented
Social Rented
Intermediate
Private/Market
Total
Amount (£)

Payment in Lieu of Affordable
Housing
Review Mechanism

Details/Trigger
Review triggered if scheme is not
implemented within two years of vacant
permission.

Page 56

ACCESSIBILITY

M4(2) Units
M4(3) Units

Number of C3
Units
514
57

NON-CONVENTIONAL RESIDENTIAL & VISITOR ACCOMMODATION

Existing

Proposed

Existing
Proposed

Bedrooms/Units

Floorspace (sq.m)

Bedrooms

Floorspace (sq.m)

Bedrooms

Floorspace (sq.m)

Bedrooms

Floorspace (sq.m)

Hotel Bedrooms
Serviced
Apartments/Aparthotel units
Hotel Bedrooms
Serviced
Apartments/Aparthotel units
Student
Accommodation
Student
Accommodation

Existing
Proposed

C2
C2

Existing
Proposed

SG Hostel
SG Hostel

Page 57
PARKING DETAILS
Car Parking Spaces (general)

Existing
Proposed

Resi

Retail

0
0

210
57

Comme
rcial
0
0

Car Parking Spaces (Disabled)

Visitor

Resi

0
2

0
24
(w/ 33
off-site)

Ret
ail
8
5

Comme
rcial
0
0

%
EVCP

Bike
Space
s

Motorcycle
Spaces

0
20%
for res
10%
for
retail

24
962

0
0

Visitor
0
0

Page 58
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

i.

Berkeley Homes (Central London) Ltd submitted a planning application in June 2018 for the
comprehensive redevelopment of the Tesco store at 275 Kennington Lane and the adjacent Axis Europe
office building. The site is located in the north of the Borough and is 1.36 hectares in area. Both the
Tesco store and Axis buildings are two-storeys high and much of the site is used for car parking and
servicing.

ii.

Surrounding development is varied with a mix of residential, business, retail and other commercial.
Residential properties adjoin the site to the north and to the south is the Oval Gas Works site, which
received consent for comprehensive redevelopment in August 2018. The site has no listed buildings but
Kennington Conservation area and a number of listed buildings are to the north and east. The site
benefits from excellent public transport accessibility.

iii.

The proposed development would be laid out as three buildings: Plots A, B and C. Plot A would contain
the replacement Tesco store on the ground floor with customer parking behind. Flexible commercial
(A1/A2/A3/B1) space would also be provided as well as a B1a office on part of the first and second floors.
Above would be a podium with flats arranged around it. Plot A would be between nine and 17 storeys.
Plot B would be on the eastern side of the site with flexible commercial spaces and residential blue
Badge parking on the ground floors and residential above arranged around a podium courtyard. Plot B
would be four to 16 storeys in height. Plot C would be in the south-eastern corner of the site and would
be 10 storeys. It would be entirely residential. Plot C would also have connect to the basement of the
Oval Gas Works development to provide access to an additional 33 Blue Badge parking spaces.

iv.

The application follows extensive pre-application discussions, including discussions for the
redevelopment of the wider area under the Oval and Kennington Development Area (OAKDA)
Masterplan. The development is in compliance with the Development Plan. The proposed retail and office
uses would provide employment and not harm nearby town centres. The development would provide
much needed housing of an acceptable quality, including a high level of affordable housing, at a density
that makes optimum use of the site without being overdevelopment. At 35 per cent with a tenure split of
70:30 social rented to intermediate the level of affordable housing meets the Mayor’s threshold for the
Fast Track approach, which waives the requirement for a viability assessment and a late stage review.

v.

The design of the development is logical and of high quality. It responds positively to its context while
also securing the optimum development potential of the site. The heights of the buildings are acceptable
and would not harm strategic or protected local views. There would be less than substantial harm to the
setting of nearby listed buildings and the Kennington Conservation area. This harm would be outweighed
by the scheme’s public benefits. A significant amount of public realm would be provided along with
landscaping and trees to support biodiversity.

vi.

The development would have an acceptable impact on the highway and transport network. Full provision
of Blue Badge parking would be provided on-site and on the neighbouring Oval Gas Works site. Full
cycle parking would also be provided and servicing would take place on-site. The impact on public
transport would be acceptable and a contribution towards increased bus capacity would be secured.

Page 59
vii.

The development would have an acceptable overall impact on neighbouring residential amenity. There is
an impact on daylight and sunlight for some neighbouring properties, but the impact would not affect the
entirety of these dwellings. The impact would be due to the effects of developing a currently open site
and commensurate to an urban area. There are isolated instances of close proximity to neighbouring
properties but overlooking would be prevented through careful design.

viii.

The development would meet technical requirements in respect of sustainability, flood risk mitigation,
wind conditions, waste and recycling, water infrastructure and land decontamination. The application is
accompanied by an Environmental Statement which has been reviewed and found compliant with
relevant regulations.

ix.

Planning permission would be subject to a s106 legal agreement securing 35 per cent affordable housing
and a suite of other appropriate obligations to mitigate the impact of the scheme. In addition the
development would be liable for a community infrastructure levy of approximately £5.1m.

x.

Public consultation was undertaken before and after submission of the application. 33 objections, 3
comments in support and one neutral comment were received in response to the formal planning
consultation. The points raised are addressed in this report.

xi.

The proposed development has been assessed against the Development Plan and all other material
considerations, including national planning policy. Officers consider that subject to appropriate conditions
and s106 legal agreement the planning application should be approved.

xii.

The proposed development is an application of potential strategic importance to London and as such is
referable to the Mayor of London pursuant to the Town and Country Planning (Mayor of London) Order
2008. The GLA has issued its stage 1 consultation response, and the officer recommendation contained
in this report acknowledges the need to refer the application to the Mayor for his final decision (Stage 2
referral). The application is also referable to the Secretary of State under the provisions of the Town and
Country Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2009 as it is an application for development outside
town centres where the floorspace of retail, leisure or offices uses is 5,000sqm or more. The application
would be referred following receipt of the Mayor’s Stage 2 response.

Page 60
OFFICER REPORT
Reason for referral to PAC: The application is reported to the Planning Applications Committee in accordance
with the following clauses of the Terms of Reference:

(1)(i)(a) The provision of dwelling houses to be provided is 10 or more
(1)(i)(b) The development is for the provision of dwelling houses on a site having an area of 0.5 hectare or more
(1)(ii) The provision of a building or buildings where the floor space to be created including changes of use,
by the development is 1,000 square metres or more;
(1)(iii) Development carried out on a site having an area of 1 hectare or more

1

THE APPLICATION SITE

1.1

The site is located on the south side of Kennington Lane and contains a large free standing Tesco
supermarket and associated surface level parking. It also includes a two-storey office building at its western
edge. The site is level and has two accesses: customer vehicle access is from Kennington Lane and
deliveries and servicing are from Vauxhall Street. The Tesco building is single storey internally but has a
height equivalent to two-storeys. It is of modern construction.

2

THE SURROUNDING AREA

2.1

Development in the surrounding area is mixed in use, scale and character. To the north is a petrol filling
station, two to four-storey commercial buildings and two to three-storey terrace houses and blocks of flats up
to height of 11 storeys. To the east along Kennington Lane are three and four-storey terrace houses. To the
east across Montford Place is a vacant site used by Transport for London (TfL) as a worksite for the Northern
Line Extension. To the south east is a six-storey gin distillery. Immediately to the south is the Oval Gas
Works. Two linked gas holders and one submerged gas holder sit closest to the application site. These are
locally listed but planning permission has been given to demolish these and comprehensively redevelop the
site. To the southwest is a three-storey office building and to the west is a smaller two-storey office building
and a two-storey self-storage building.

2.2

Kennington Lane is part of the TfL road network and the site has excellent access to public transport (PTAL
6b) due to the proximity of Oval, Kennington and Vauxhall stations as well as bus routes along Kennington
Lane. The site is not in a designated town centre but Kennington Lane local centre is to the west and
Kennington Cross local centre is to the east. The Montford Place - Beefeater/Oval Gas Works Key Industrial
and Business Area (KIBA) surrounds the site to the east, south and west.

2.3

The site is not in a conservation area and does not contain any listed buildings however the Kennington
conservation area is immediately to the east and there are listed buildings further along Kennington Lane. On
the neighbouring Oval Gas Works site is a listed gasholder structure. The site sits within London View
Management Framework (LVMF) View 4A.2 Primrose Hill to Palace of Westminster and two local views:
Brixton Panoramic Local View (Brockwell Park to the City) and Norwood Park Local View north-north-east to
the City.

2.4

Like much of the north of borough, the site is in Flood Risk Zone 3.

Page 61
3

SITE PHOTOGRAPHS
Fig. 1 Entrance to Tesco store

Fig. 2 Axis office building

Fig. 3 View from Montford
Place

4

PROPOSAL

4.1

Summary of the Proposal

4.1.1

Permission is sought for the demolition of all buildings on site and the erection of three buildings four to 17
storeys in height to provide 571 dwellings, new Tesco store (4,655sqm external area), 2,638sqm of B1 office,
1,159sqm of flexible commercial space (A1/A2/A3/B1) with 62 retail and 24 Blue Badge parking spaces. 33
additional Blue Badge spaces would be provided in the basement of the Oval Gas Works development,
secured by s106 legal agreement.

4.2

Detail of the Proposal

4.2.1

The development would be laid out as three buildings referred to as Plots A, B and C (see image below).

Page 62
Fig. 4 – Site layout

Plot A

4.2.2

Plot A is located on the western side of the site. It would contain the new Tesco Store with customer parking
(A1), flexible commercial (A1/A2/A3/B1), office (B1) and residential (C3). The Tesco store and its servicing
and parking would occupy most of the ground floor with smaller flexible commercial uses occupying the
north-west and south-east corners of the ground floor. The office use would be on the first and second floors
but would have two ground floor entrances. The floors above would be in a courtyard arrangement with the
central space provided for amenity. Plot A would range in height from nine storeys on Kennington Lane, rising
to 11 at the corner of Vauxhall Street and 17 storeys in its south-eastern corner.

Plot B

4.2.3

Plot B is located at the eastern side of the site. It would be a ‘U’ shaped building in a courtyard arrangement
with the central area used for amenity space. The height of Plot B varies. Adjacent to the terrace it would be
five storeys high and step up to ten and 16 storeys towards the rear. The ground floor would be used mostly
for retail and commercial uses as well as parking, servicing and access. The upper floors would be
residential.

Plot C

4.2.4

Plot C is a single rectangular building that is intended to complete the courtyard arrangement of Plot 4 of the
Oval Gas Works development. It would be 10 storeys in height and entirely residential.

Page 63
Public realm

4.2.5

In between these buildings would be publicly accessible spaces that would have a number of functions.
Running east-west along the southern edge of the site would be Phoenix Street that would connect Vauxhall
Street to Montford Place providing vehicle and pedestrian access to this development as well as to Oval Gas
Works. The public realm would be designed so that the border between these two sites is completely
integrated and seamless should it be completed.

4.2.6

Running north-south between Plots A and B would be Cutlers Way which provides vehicle access to the
Tesco customer car park and pedestrian access into the site. It would connect to Gasholder Place, a new
central Plaza at the junction with Phoenix Street, which would then connect to the pedestrian route running
through Oval Gas Works. Cutlers way would also provide a small park and playspace.

Access and servicing

4.2.7

Vehicles using the Tesco customer parking (62 spaces) would enter and exit the site via Cutlers Way, off
Kennington Lane. Access to the 24 residential Blue Badge parking spaces in Plot B would be from Montford
Place. Visitor car parking would be provided by two spaces along Phoenix Street. There would also be a car
club bay on Phoenix Street.

4.2.8

Two delivery bays for both residential and commercial use would be provided on Phoenix Street, one for Plot
A and one for Plots B and C. Refuse vehicles would collect refuse from two points along Phoenix Street: for
Plot A it would be near the south-west corner of the building, for Plots B and C it would be the delivery bay
mentioned above. The delivery bays would also be used to serve commercial uses in the Oval Gas Works
development.

4.2.9

For Tesco, lorries and other delivery vehicles would enter the site off Vauxhall Street, where they do
currently, then reverse into the covered service yard behind the Tesco store. Vehicles would then exit the
service yard in forward gear and continue along Phoenix Street to exit onto Montford Place and continue to
Kennington Lane.

4.3

Amendments

4.3.1

The applicant amended the customer parking layout for the Tesco store to provide motorcycle and cargo
cycle parking and to remove two car parking bays. Due to the minor nature of the amendments it was not
considered necessary to re-consult.

4.4

Planning Performance Agreement

4.4.1

Lambeth entered into Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) with the applicant on 19 January 2018 to
provide pre-application planning advice. The proposal was presented to the Strategic Panel on 28 March
2018 and to the Technical Briefing on 29 October 2018.

5

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1

The existing Tesco store received outline consent on 7 November 1997 (ref: 95/01362/PLANAP) and detailed
proposals were approved on 1 February 1999 (ref: 98/00140/REM).

Page 64
5.2

An environmental impact assessment (EIA) scoping opinion was issued on 6 March 2018 for an EIA for the
proposed development (ref: 17/06015/EIASCP). The EIA submitted with this application was informed by the
scoping opinion.

5.3

On the neighbouring Oval Gas Works site consent was granted 23 August 2018 (ref: 17/05772/EIAFUL) for
the following:
Demolition of existing buildings and structures including temporary disassembly of listed gas holder
no.1, demolition of locally-listed gas holders 4 and 5, redevelopment to provide a mixed-use
development comprising re-erection of restored gas-holder no.1, erection of new buildings ranging
from 4-18 storeys to provide 738 residential units (Class C3), 10,160sqm of Class B1 office and
Class B1 shared working space incorporating ancillary cafe and space for community use, 800sqm
for waste management use, 148sqm of D1 community space, the provision of a new publically
accessible open space, new pedestrian and vehicle routes, accesses and amenity areas, basement
level car park with integral servicing areas, provision of new gas governor and substation, and other
associated works of de-contamination.

6

CONSULTATIONS

6.1

Statutory External Consultees
Officer responses are in brackets [ - ]
Greater London Authority
Acceptable subject to the following:


Visually permeable glazing on ground floor commercial units [condition 15 added]



10 per cent wheelchair adaptable units provided [condition 17 added]



Noise insulation for properties adjacent to Pilgrim pub [condition 32 and informative added]



Improved drainage strategy [condition 53 added]



10 per cent active and 10 per cent passive electric vehicle charging points retain parking spaces



20 per cent active and 80 per cent passive electric vehicle charging points to residential parking
[condition 55 added]



Delivery and service plan [condition 58 added]



Construction logistics plan [condition 60 added]



Car parking scheme to achieve 10 per cent Blue Badge parking [s106 obligation secured]



Early stage viability review [s106 obligation secured]



Rent levels no greater than 40 per cent of income for intermediate units [s106 obligation secured]



Contribution towards off-site play space [s106 obligation secured]



Carbon offset contribution [s106 obligation secured]



£90,000 towards route 36 bus capacity [s106 obligation secured]



Provision of 28 space cycle hire dock if not delivered as part of Oval Gas Works development
[s106 obligation secured]



Re-location of cycle hire dock on Kennington Lane [s106 obligation secured]



Junction improvement to Kennington Lane and Cutlers way [s106 obligation secured]



Junction improvement to Montford Place/Kennington Lane and Vauxhall Street/Kennington Lane
if not delivered as part of Oval Gas Works development [s106 obligation secured]

Page 65


Fire statement [Informative added]

Transport for London
No objection subject to conditions and s106 obligations:


Delivery and service plan [condition 58 added]



Construction logistics plan [condition 60 added]



£90,000 towards route 36 bus capacity [s106 obligation secured]



Provision of 28 space cycle hire dock if not delivered as part of Oval Gas Works development [s106
obligation secured]



Re-location of cycle hire dock on Kennington Lane [s106 obligation secured]



Junction improvement to Kennington Lane and Cutlers way [s106 obligation secured]



Junction improvement to Montford Place/Kennington Lane and Vauxhall Street/Kennington Lane if
not delivered as part of Oval Gas Works development [s106 obligation secured]



Pavement and carriageway works to Kennington Lane [s106 obligation secured]

Historic England - Archaeology
No objection subject to conditions:


Stage 1 written scheme of investigation to be submitted [condition 64 added]



Stage 2 written scheme of investigation to be submitted if archaeological assets identified in Stage 1
[condition 64 added]



Written schemes must be prepared by suitably qualified practice [Informative added]



Advice on investigation method given [Informative added]

Health and Safety Executive
No objection subject to a suitable Grampian-style condition preventing occupation until the hazardous
substances consent (HSC) for the gasholder station has been revoked. [condition 67 added]

Development Control Department Thames Water
No objection subject to condition:


Scheme of water network upgrades [condition 65 added]



Advice given regarding fat traps in drainage systems [Informative added]



Advice given regarding sewer infrastructure [Informative added]



Advice given regarding underground water assets [Informative added]



Advice given regarding proximity to Thames water mains [Informative added]



Advice given regarding petrol/oil interceptors in drainage systems [Informative added]

Natural England
Generic comments provided, please refer to standing advice or the council’s own ecology services.

London Borough of Southwark
No objection but contributions should be secured towards:

Page 66


Increasing bus frequency on Kennington Lane (No. 196); add sufficient bus shelters and information
systems (countdown systems) at bus stop on Kennington Lane and Newington Butts [TfL identified the
required improvement to be an increase in capacity on Route 36 bus. £90,000 secured towards this]



Road safety measures requested along Kennington Lane between junctions with Vauxhall Street and
Kennington Park Road/Newington Butts [The development would result in fewer vehicle movements
along Kennington Lane, providing a road safety benefit. No mitigation is necessary]

London Borough of Wandsworth
No objection

6.2

Other Consultees

Oval Liberal Democrats


Inadequate consultation period - [formal consultation took place between July and August and September
and October however comments are accepted right up to the date of the planning committee. See 6.3.1.]



Confusion over the relationship and boundaries between this site and Oval Gas Works - [The submitted
plans show the boundary to this site and the Design and Access Statement explains the relationship with
the Oval Gas Works site. See 4.2.5]



Excessive height - [The height is appropriate to the site and causes less than substantial harm to heritage
assets, which is outweighed by the scheme’s public benefits. See section 8.3]



Out of keeping with local area - [The massing and façade design responds to that of the surrounding
area. See section 8.3]



Few benefits for local community - [Public benefits include affordable housing, new commercial and
employment space, new public realm and circulation routes. See 8.3.5]

Vauxhall Gardens Estate and Tenant’s Association


Object to a smaller Tesco store - [the replacement store would perform the same function as the existing
store but more efficiently. See 8.2.19]

6.3

Adjoining owners/occupiers

6.3.1

A site notice was displayed from 6 July 2018 to 6 August 2018 and the application was advertised in the local
paper on 6 July 2018. Following amendments to the scheme, the development was re-consulted upon for a
30 day period commencing on 21 September 2018, with the overall period (including the press notice)
expiring on 28 October 2018. A third consultation was undertaken on 1 November 2018 to clarify the site
address to make it clear that the Axis office building is included. A site notice was erected on 2 November
2018 and an advertisement was placed in the local paper on the same day. The formal consultation period
ended 23 November 2018 but comments received up to the day of the planning committee meeting are
accepted.

6.3.2

Thirty two representations received during the consultation period. Two were in support, 29 were in objection
and one was neutral. A summary of the concerns raised is set out below:
Summary of objections
Amenity

Response

Page 67
Excessive overshadowing, particularly for
251-261 Kennington Lane

Overlooking from podium amenity space at
Plot B
Harm to outlook
Increased air pollution

Unacceptable wind conditions between
Plots A and B

Increased security risk to 251-261
Kennington Lane

Residential quality
No on-site playspace for 12+ year olds.
Kennington Park is too far and requires
crossing a busy road

Insufficient daylight

Transport
Construction traffic would harm highway
safety, particularly pedestrian and cyclist
safety on Vauxhall Street

The development should be car free

Increased congestion and on-street
parking demand

Loss of light would not affect entirety of the
dwellings with front facing aspect
unaffected. The impact would be due to the
effects of developing a currently open site
and commensurate to an urban area. See
section 8.5
Landscaping and boundary treatment would
minimise overlooking. See section 8.5
The buildings are stepped back as they rise
in height to reduce the impact on outlook
The development would be ‘air quality
neutral’ and result in a reduction in vehicle
trips. The energy centre and boilers would
comply with GLA emissions standards. See
section 8.12
Wind conditions between Plots A and B are
assessed in the environmental statement
and tree planting has been identified as
appropriate mitigation. See section 8.12.
Boundary to the rear of these properties
would have a buffer gap that would be
closed with 3m high gates and accessible
only for maintenance and cleaning. It has
been designed in consultation with the
Metropolitan Police. See section 8.6

148sqm of playspace for 12+ year olds
would be provided on site with the rest of
the provision at Kennington Park or
Vauxhall Pleasure Gardens. Both are
approximately 500m walk away. Funding
towards new cycle route along Bowling
Green Street would be secured to improve
access to the park. Vauxhall Pleasure
Gardens provides an alternative with
smaller roads to cross. See section 8.4.
96 per cent of all rooms would have an
acceptable level of daylight. See section
8.4.

Construction traffic would be managed by a
construction logistics plan (CLP) secured by
condition. A single CLP is intended to cover
both this development and adjacent Oval
Gas Works under consideration under ref:
18/04063/DET. See section 8.8.
Only Blue Badge parking is provided for the
residential element. 62 spaces are provided
for the Tesco store, which is a 70 per cent
reduction from existing car parking
provision. There would be a reduction in
vehicle traffic. See section 8.8.
Parking spaces on site would be reduced by
70 per cent thereby reducing vehicle trips to

Page 68
the site. On-street parking is controlled and
residents and businesses would be
restricted from obtained parking permits.
See section 8.8.
Design
Excessive height and massing

Harm to setting of conservation area

Harm to setting of listed buildings

Poor external appearance

Inappropriate materials

Public realm
Insufficient public realm

Landscaping would be overshadowed

Phoenix Street could not be used as
amenity space due to service traffic
running along it

Streetscape improvements to Montford
Place should be secured

Height and massing is focussed towards the
centre, away from sensitive neighbouring
development. The development would not
affect strategic or protected views. See
section 8.3.
There would be ‘less than substantial’ harm
to the Kennington Conservation, which
would be outweighed by the public benefits
of the scheme. See section 8.3.
There would be ‘less than substantial’ harm
Listed buildings on Kennington Lane, which
would be outweighed by the public benefits
of the scheme. See section 8.3.
The design of the exterior is calm and
unfussy and with robust materials
appropriate to a residential area. See
section 8.3.
The main material is brick in order to be
robust and sympathetic to nearby
development. See section 8.3.
New publicly accessible routes through the
site would be provided along with a pocket
park and central plaza. It would connect with
the larger public realm to be provided on the
Oval Gas Work site. See section 4.2.
The podium courtyards to Plot A and Plot B
would receive direct sunlight for at least four
hours at the summer solstice. Most of the
public realm between the blocks would
receive sunlight for four or more hours of
sunlight at the summer solstice. The area
that receives the least is the area outside
the entrance to the Tesco car park, which
does not have an amenity function. The roof
terraces would receive ample sunlight. See
section 8.4.
Phoenix Street would be a circulation route
that would not be relied upon to provide
amenity space but would be designed and
landscaped to provide a pedestrian-friendly
and attractive street scene. See section 8.7.
Improvements to Montford Place would be
secured including:
- Improved greenery
- New paving and kerbs
- Cycle storage hangar
- Reduction in cluttered street
furniture
See section 9.

Page 69
Additional trees should be provided

Land Use
Replacement store should not be smaller

The proposal would result in an increase in
trees on site. The number of trees is has
been maximised given the footprint and
layout of the buildings. See section 8.7.

The replacement Tesco store would benefit
from space efficiencies and be designed to
continue to support weekly bulk shopping.
See section 8.2.

Spaces for small businesses, studios and
workshops should be provided

Small flexible commercial units are
proposed which could be used for such
purposes. See section 4.2.

Excessive density

The density would exceed target values but
the development would optimise the use of
a highly accessible site, be of high quality
design and would not exhibit symptoms of
overdevelopment. See section 8.4.
The site is not in industrial use and there
would be no loss of industrial land.

Loss of industrial land

Insufficient affordable housing

35 per cent affordable housing with a tenure
split of 70:30 social rent to shared
ownership. This meets the Mayor’s
threshold and no viability assessment is
required to demonstrate further provision.
See section 8.2.

Affordable housing would be provided offsite

All affordable housing would be provided
on-site. See section 8.2.

No community use provided

There is no policy requirement for a
community use on this site and demand can
be met by existing facilities. A space for
community use would be provided on the
Oval Gas Works site should an additional
GP surgery or other community use be
required in future. See sections 8.10 and
8.11.

Socio-economic
Loss of employment from reduction in
Tesco store size

Other
Contrary to masterplan in respect of
heights

No assessment against/contrary to
emerging neighbourhood plan

There would be a net loss of 45 jobs from
due to the smaller Tesco store but there
would be an estimated gain of at least 160
new jobs due to the new office use and
flexible commercial spaces. Existing Tesco
employees would be redeployed to
elsewhere if required.
The development is in line with the revised
masterplan. The increased height were
required to support the provision of 35 per
cent affordable housing. See section 8.3
The neighbourhood plan for the area is at a
very early stage of development and cannot
be given any weight. See section 7.

Page 70
Consultation took place over summer
break

Consultation took place first in July, October
then in November. See section 6.

Page 71
7

POLICIES

7.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning decisions to be made in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The development
plan in Lambeth is the London Plan (2016, consolidated with alterations since 2011) and the Lambeth Local
Plan (September 2015).

7.2

The new Draft London Plan was published on 1 December 2017 (updated August 2018) for consultation and
will eventually supersede the current 2016 consolidated London Plan once the final version is published
(anticipated Autumn 2019). The Draft London Plan is a material consideration in planning decisions. Officers
consider that this should be afforded very limited weight at this stage.

7.3

The Lambeth Local Plan is currently under partial review to ensure it complies with amendments to changes
in the NPPF and London Plan. The Local Plan review is timetabled to follow the programme for the Draft
London Plan, revisions are being consulted on. At this time the amendments to the Local Plan do not carry
any weight.

7.4

The latest National Planning Policy Framework was published in 2018. This document sets out the
Government’s planning policies for England including the presumption in favour of sustainable development
and is a material consideration in the determination of all applications.

7.5

The current planning application has been considered against all relevant national, regional and local
planning policies as well as any relevant guidance. A full list of relevant policies and guidance has been set
out in Appendix 3 to this report.

7.6

The Kennington Oval and Vauxhall Forum (KOVF) have prepared a draft neighbourhood plan that would
include this site in its area. KOVF have undertaken their consultation on the draft but have not yet submitted
the draft plan or consultation statement to the council for review. As the plan undergoes the council’s formal
consultation and proceeds through the examination process, further weight can be given to it however at this
stage the no weight can be given to the draft plan.

8

ASSESSMENT

8.1

Background

8.1.1

The application site is located within the Oval and Kennington Development Area (OAKDA). The OAKDA was
created after it was confirmed that the Oval gas works would be decommissioned thereby opening up an
opportunity to comprehensively redevelop the site and remove its hazardous substances designation.
Removal of this designation would also allow for redevelopment of nearby sites as that would no longer be
restricted by the ‘blast zone’ set by the Health and Safety Executive. Consequently, a number of sites were
identified for potential redevelopment and Berkeley Group, in consultation with the council, developed the
OAKDA masterplan.

8.1.2

The masterplan was substantially completed in May 2016. It’s vision is to:

Page 72
“…reclaim a large brownfield site and integrate it back into the Kennington and Oval neighbourhoods.
The Masterplan aspires to enhance and respect the distinctive character of the local area and to
create a sustainable mixed use development that will provide jobs and homes in well-designed
buildings, set in high quality public space.”

8.1.3

It sought to deliver up to 1,430 jobs, 1,250 homes, new public realm and the refurbishment of Gas Holder 1.
Furthermore, in August 2017, the Mayor of London issued new guidance setting out the ‘Threshold Approach’
to affordable housing and viability, stating that schemes achieving 35 per cent on-site provision would be
subject to a financial appraisal. It became evident that achieving 35 per cent affordable housing on-site in
accordance with the council’s required tenure split would require more homes and commercial space to be
provided to make the scheme viable. Achieving this threshold figure required an increase in height of some
buildings across the masterplan area but would increase job provision to 1,670 and the number of homes to
1,500. An addendum to the masterplan was prepared in November 2017 to reflect this.

8.1.4

In December 2017, the masterplan and the addendum were put before the Cabinet Member for Planning,
Regeneration and Jobs. He noted that the masterplan had the following principles:


Comprehensive re-development of the Masterplan area for mixed use;



Creation of a substantial number of jobs and enterprise opportunities, including a landmark building
designed to offer flexible employment space and support for employment and training opportunities;



New homes including a range of dwelling types and affordable housing in accordance with the
Mayor’s 35 per cent threshold approach as set out in his Affordable Housing and Viability SPG
(August 2017), including Lambeth’s required Local Plan affordable housing tenure split of 70 per cent
social/affordable rent and 30 per cent intermediate affordable housing;



Flexible community space that responds to identified community needs;



An area of land to be identified and safeguarded for waste management use, as a contribution to
meeting the borough’s strategic London Plan waste apportionment;



Integration into the local neighbourhood, allowing for permeability and good connectivity to the
existing residential areas surrounding the site, the nearby Kennington local centre, and the emerging
district centre at Vauxhall;



The creation of public open space, good quality public realm, green infrastructure and routes which
prioritise pedestrians and cyclists;



Acknowledgement of the site’s industrial past and heritage assets through design;



Retention of the frame of listed gasholder no.1, with refurbishment and conversion to bring it into
residential use; and



A sustainable development which contributes to the borough’s waste reduction targets and adheres
to London Plan and Lambeth Local Plan policies on car and cycle parking, servicing vehicle access,
sustainable design and construction and zero carbon homes.

8.1.5

The Cabinet Member confirmed his support for the above principles. The masterplan now forms part of the
evidence base for the review of the current Local Plan.

8.1.6

The application to redevelop Oval Gas Works was granted planning permission on 23 August 2018.

Fig. 5

Masterplan layout

Page 73

The role of the masterplan in determining planning applications
8.1.7

The masterplan sets a vision for the comprehensive development of the site but it is not a planning brief and
does not stand to be adopted by the council as a planning document. Planning legislation requires planning
applications to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise. The Development Plan in Lambeth currently comprises the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 and
the London Plan 2016 (consolidated with alterations since 2011).

8.1.8

When dealing with the current planning application the decision-maker will be required to determine it on the
basis of what is proposed in the application, and on its planning merits. It will be for the decision maker to
decide what any material considerations are and how much weight they think should be attached to those
considerations.

8.1.9

A masterplan which has received in principle support from the council would be capable of being taken into
account as part of the process of reviewing planning policy. As such, as a contextual document the OAKDA
masterplan and addendum can be taken as a material consideration when determining a planning
application. It is for members to decide what weight to give to the masterplan.

8.1.10 This report assesses the proposal against the Development Plan taking into account all material
considerations, including the OAKDA masterplan. Where relevant, the proposal will be compared to the aims
and objectives of the masterplan.

8.2

Land Use

8.2.1

The application proposes a mixed-use development consisting of 571 residential units, replacement Tesco
store of 4,655sqm, 2,638sqm of Class B1 Office and 1,159sqm of flexible commercial floorspace (Class
A1/A2/A3, B1). The principle of the development and the proposed uses are assessed against relevant
planning policy below.

Presumption in favour of sustainable development

Page 74
8.2.2

Para 11 of the NPPF sets a presumption in favour of sustainable development and this is reflected in Local
Plan Policy D2 and the other policies in the Plan. The development would be a mixed used development on
previously developed (brownfield) land. This would comply with paras 117 and 118a of the NPPF and LP
Policy 2.9. The proposal would also be in compliance with LLP Policy PN8, which is specific to Kennington
and Oval, as it would support the role of this area as an important residential and employment area.

Residential (C3)

8.2.3

The proposed development includes 571 residential units. New housing is supported by LP Policy 3.3 and
LLP Policy H1. LP Policy 3.7A relates to large residential development and states that they should be
encouraged in areas of high public transport accessibility, which is the case for this development. The
development would also support the role of Kennington and Oval as an important residential and employment
area as sought by Policy PN8.

8.2.4

The proposed development would be in accordance with these housing policies as well as the objectives of
the OAKDA masterplan.

Affordable housing

8.2.5

The application proposes 35 per cent affordable housing by habitable room with a tenure split of
approximately 70/30 social rent to intermediate, provided as shared ownership.

Total habitable rooms

Affordable habitable rooms

Percentage of total

1,476

516

35% (34.95% rounded)

Affordable/social Rent

8.2.6

Intermediate

Hab. Rooms

Percentage

Hab. Rooms

362

70.2%

154

Percentage
29.8%

The council’s Development Viability SPD (October 2017) states that viability appraisals will not be required
for applications that meet the criteria for the Mayor’s ‘Fast Track route’. The Fast Track route was established
in August 2017 when the Mayor published new guidance that sets a new ‘Threshold Approach’ to viability.
Under the Affordable Housing and Viability Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 2017, an application
will not be required to submit a viability assessment if it provides 35 per cent affordable housing by habitable
rooms. Furthermore, it would not be subject to review mechanism if an agreed level of progress takes place.

8.2.7

To qualify for the Fast Track Route an application must satisfy the following criteria:


deliver at least 35 per cent affordable housing on-site without public subsidy;



is consistent with the relevant tenure split and meet other obligations and requirements to the
satisfaction of the LPA and the Mayor where relevant; and



has sought to increase the level of affordable housing beyond 35 per cent by accessing grant.

Page 75
8.2.8

The applicant has sought to increase the level of affordable housing through grant. The applicant reviewed
the prospectus ‘Homes for Londoners: Affordable Homes Programme 2016-2021’ which contains provisions
for a ‘Developer-led route’ to secure grant funding for the provision of affordable housing above what is viable
to provide with no subsidy. At the grant rate per additional unit available (£28,000 per unit) it would still not be
possible to provide any additional affordable housing as the remaining costs could not be supported by the
scheme.

8.2.9

The proposed development provides 35 per cent affordable housing with a tenure split that is in accordance
with LLP Policy H2 and the applicant has sought grant funding. The development therefore complies with the
Mayor’s ‘Fast Track Route’ and as such does not require a financial viability assessment.

8.2.10 To incentivise delivery, an Early Stage Viability Review will be triggered if the scheme is not implemented is
not made within two years of the permission being granted or as agreed with the Local Planning Authority.
This would be secured in the s106 agreement.

Dwelling Mix

8.2.11 LLP Policy H4 of the local Plan seeks the provision of a mix of dwelling sizes and type in order to meet
current and future housing needs. For affordable housing the preferred mix is:


1-bedroom units: not more than 20%



2-bedroom units: 20-50%



3-bedroom units: 40%

8.2.12 The proposed affordable mix is as follows:

All affordable units
Unit type

Amount

% mix

1-bed

58

33%

2-bed

60

35%

3-bed

55

32%

Total

173

100%

8.2.13 Although the affordable dwelling mix as a whole does not accord with the preferred mix, when understood by
tenure, the dwelling mix for social rent, which is the housing type of greatest need in the borough, is much
more closely aligned to the preferred mix. The provision of 3-bedroom family units, which is of the highest
need, exceeds the target set out in the policy. This is shown in the table below:

Social rented
Unit type

Amount

% mix

Target

1-bed

32

28%

20%

2-bed

34

29%

20-50%

3-bed

49

43%

40%

Total

115

100%

8.2.14 The dwelling mix for the intermediate element is shown below:

Page 76
Intermediate
Unit type

Amount

% mix

1-bed

26

45%

2-bed

26

45%

3-bed

6

10%

Total

58

100%

8.2.15 The proposed mix does not align with the preferred mix but this is a reflection of limits on affordability for
intermediate units in a high value location and the priority given to providing larger social rented units. This
mix is considered to be acceptable.

8.2.16 For market units, a balanced mix, including the provision of family size accommodation, should be provided.
The proposed market housing mix is as follows:
Unit type

Amount

% mix

Studio

37

9%

1-bed

188

47%

2-bed

145

37%

3-bed

28

7%

Total

398

100%

8.2.17 The proposed mix includes an acceptable level of family housing and is considered to be acceptable.

Residential conclusion

8.2.18 The proposed residential element is acceptable in principle and would provide an acceptable mix of market
and affordable units at different sizes.
Retail
8.2.19 The application proposes the demolition of the existing Tesco store and its replacement with a new Tesco
store as well as a number of flexible commercial spaces that could be used as A1 retail. The existing Tesco
store has a gross internal area of 3,335sqm and net sales area 1,715sqm. The proposed replacement store
would have a gross internal area of 4,655sqm with a sales floorspace of 1,365sqm, which is 350sqm less
than the existing store. The reduction in sales floorspace is a reflection of changes to shopping habits where
shopping is undertaken more regularly and there is less reliance upon a large weekly shop. Combined with
improved efficiencies in store layout, design and back of house and servicing, the amount of floorspace
required can be reduced. However it is designed to continue to meet the requirements of weekly bulk shops.
The store is intended to perform the same function it does now and this would be reflected in the retention of
the ‘Tesco’ branding rather than a ‘Metro’ or other branding.
8.2.20 The floorspace figures above show an increase in overall internal area (4,655sqm compared to 3,335sqm)
but a reduction in sales floorspace thereby indicating a large increase in back of house area. This is due to
the new customer parking (approximately 1,860sqm) being providing internally and therefore being included
in the back of house area figure. Whereas the existing car parking is external and is not counted. The back of

Page 77
house areas, excluding parking is approximately 1,617sqm for the existing store and approximately 1,428sqm
for the proposed store.
8.2.21 In addition to the replacement Tesco, 1,159sqm of flexible commercial space is also proposed that could be
used for A1/A2/A3 and B1 use. If all of this space were to be used for A1, it would provide approximately
812sqm of sales floorspace, based on a typical 70:30 ratio between sales floorspace and back of house
space.
8.2.22 LP Policy 4.7 states that retail development should be focused on sites within town centres, or if no in-centre
sites are available, on sites on the edges of centres that are, or can be, well integrated with the existing
centre and public transport. Similarly, LLP Policy ED6 states that proposals for town centre uses (such as
retail) that are in edge of centre or out of centre locations will be assessed against the sequential test set out
in the NPPF.
8.2.23 The sequential test is set out under para 86 of the NPPF and states that main town centre uses, such as
retail, should be located in town centres, then in edge of centre locations; and only if suitable sites are not
available (or expected to become available within a reasonable period) should out of centre sites be
considered.
8.2.24 The applicant has submitted a retail impact assessment which applied the sequential test. The sequential test
is based on the net additional retail sales floorspace to be provided. The application proposes a reduction in
retail floorspace of the Tesco store by 350sqm however the addition of up to 812sqm of sales floorspace on
the flexible commercial units means that there is the potential for up to 462sqm net additional retail
floorspace. However, it is more likely that not all of the additional space would be used for retail. If half of the
new flexible commercial space was used for retail, the overall amount of retail floorspace would be similar to
the existing Tesco store.
8.2.25 In any case, this additional retail floorspace triggers the sequential test. However, the test must be applied to
the whole proposed development, that is, the proposed development cannot be disaggregated into separate
land use elements in order that the component parts be fitted onto smaller sites. The sequential test is a real
world test and the identification of any alternative sites must be commercially realistic and not unduly alter the
nature of the overall development proposed. In terms of availability, the policy expects that alternative sites
should be available within a reasonable time period – no definitive timeline is given – but typically availability
has been considered as immediate i.e. at the time the sequential test was being carried out. The retail impact
assessment found that there are no other sites that are large enough (approximately 1.36ha) to
accommodate the proposed mix of uses. The vacant sites available in the nearby centres are all small units
between 40-165sqm in area.

8.2.26 Para 89 of the NPPF also states that when assessing applications for retail development outside of town
centres local planning authorities should require an impact assessment if the development is over a
proportionate, locally set floorspace threshold. If there is no locally set threshold a default threshold of
2,500sqm would apply. The assessment should include:


the impact of the proposal on existing, committed and planned public and private investment in a
centre or centres in the catchment area of the proposal; and

Page 78


the impact of the proposal on town centre vitality and viability, including local consumer choice and
trade in the town centre and the wider retail catchment (as applicable to the scale and nature of the
scheme).

8.2.27 Where an application fails to satisfy the sequential test or is likely to have significant adverse impact on the
above consideration, it should be refused.

8.2.28 The submitted retail assessment considers the above points. It estimates the potential turnover of the
proposed development and assesses the potential for impact on trade on nearby centres.

8.2.29 The estimated turnover of the existing Tesco store is £20.616m and the combined turnover of the
replacement Tesco plus the new retail space is £20.034m. This shows that the estimated turnover of the new
development would be very similar to the existing store. Consequently, there would be little potential for
diversion of trade away from existing centres.

8.2.30 As the projected turnover of the new development would be similar to existing, it would not require more
residents in its catchment area to be commercially viable. However, the proposed development includes 571
residential units and it is estimated that this would bring £11.9m more household spending to the area. This is
likely to be spent in the new development with the potential to spill over to nearby centres. It should be noted
that 738 units have been consented at Oval Gas Works. This would bring an additional £15.4m more in
household spending in the area. This means that the new development would both support the new retail
provision and increase potential spending at existing nearby local centres. The additional spending of
employees working in the office element of this development as well as the much larger office at Oval Gas
Works has not been calculated but it follows that their spending would further support the retail elements of
the proposed development.

8.2.31 The impact on existing nearby centres is therefore likely to be low. It should be noted that these existing
centres (Kennington Lane, Kennington Cross, Kennington Park Road and Oval Local Centres) have been
trading alongside the existing Tesco for 18 years and have continued to be successful. The relatively small
net increase in retail sales floorspace of 462sqm, the projected level of turnover and the increase in local
spending capacity indicates that the development would have an acceptable retail impact.
A2 Use

8.2.32 The flexible commercial spaces could be used as A2 uses which include financial services such as banks,
professional services and estate agents and employment agencies. LLP Policy ED9 refers to A2 uses and
limits their number and concentration in order to mitigate the negative impacts that betting shops and pay day
loan shops can have on town centres. However, since April 2015, these uses have been removed from the
A2 use class and are now ‘sui generis’. As such, the A2 uses that could occupy the development are not
considered to bring risk of harm to amenity.

8.2.33 In reference to the sequential test and impact on local retail, the test and assessment discussed earlier were
undertaken on the ‘worst case scenario’ assumption that all of the flexible commercial space would be used
as retail. If some of it was to be used as A2, this would reduce the retail sales floor area and result in a lower
retail impact.

Page 79
8.2.34 The principle of A2 use is therefore acceptable.
A3 Use
8.2.35 The flexible commercial units could also be used as A3 restaurant uses. LLP Policy ED7 states that such
uses should be located in town centres or in the Central Activities Zone. The proposed development is
outside of these areas however as a town centre use it is subject to the sequential test in the same way retail
uses are. It has been demonstrated earlier that the development would meet the sequential test. Should
permission be granted, conditions would be applied to manage impacts from noise, operating hours and
servicing as required by Policy ED7. The principle of this use is therefore acceptable.

B1a Office use

8.2.36 The site includes a two-storey building known as the Axis Building, which contains 1,126sqm of B1 office
space. It is proposed to demolish this building as part of the development. The replacement development
includes 2,638sqm of B1a office space in Plot A. Plot A would also have 460sqm of flexible commercial
space that could be used as B1 business space (as well as A1/A2/A3). Plot B would also have 700sqm of
potential office space. The uplift in employment space is supported by LLP Policy ED2.
8.2.37 The proposed office in Plot A would be a ‘large office’ under LLP Policy ED3 as it would be larger than
1,000sqm. Such offices are acceptable in areas of good public transport accessibility where the PTAL is 4 or
more. The site’s PTAL is 6b.
8.2.38 The proposed large office would provide suitable premises for a larger business and the varied ground floor
offices would be suitable for smaller businesses in compliance with LP Policies 4.1a1 and 4.2A. The
development would also support the role of Kennington and Oval as an important residential and employment
area as sought by Policy PN8.
8.2.39 Although office uses are supported by the Local Plan, they are also town centre uses and Policy ED6(d)
requires the application of the sequential test as the site is not in town centre. The test was applied in
reference to the retail element of the scheme but as explained earlier, alternative sites must be able to
accommodate the development as a whole. No sites in or adjacent to a town centre were found and it was
concluded that the development passes the sequential test.

Conclusion

8.2.40 The proposed development is therefore acceptable in principle.
8.3

Design and Conservation

8.3.1

The beginning of the Agenda Pack contains a summary of the legislative and national policy context for the
assessment of the impact of a development proposal on the historic environment and its heritage assets.
This is in addition to Lambeth Local Plan and London Plan policies. The assessment that follows has been
made within this context.

Layout

Page 80
8.3.2

The development would be laid out in three plots: Plot A would be on the west side of the site at the junction
of Kennington Lane and Vauxhall Street; Plot B would be on the east side with a small frontage onto on
Kennington Lane and a larger frontage onto Montford Place. Plot C would be in the south-eastern corner of
the site also facing onto Montford Place.

8.3.3

The plots are laid out so that a new pedestrian and vehicle circulation route would be provided along the
bottom of the site running east-west. This would be known as Phoenix Street and would be fully publicly
accessible. Should both this development and the consented Oval Gas Works development be completed,
both sites would be seamlessly integrated along Phoenix Street. Another publicly accessible route would be
created between Plots A and B, running north-south. This would be known as Cutlers way and it would
provide vehicle access to the Tesco customer carpark and pedestrians and cyclist access further south.
Cutlers Way would stop at Phoenix Street but in the event that the Oval Gas Works site is completed, the
intersection would be converted into a new plaza called Gasholder Place and then connect to the new northsouth pedestrian route in Oval Gas Works. This would create a continuous pedestrian link between
Kennington Lane and Kennington Oval.

8.3.4

The replacement of a low-rise food store and a large open car park with development with a strong urban
character is considered beneficial as the existing development is not characteristic of Lambeth’s tight urban
grain. The layout of the proposed blocks is logical and responds to existing building lines, creates strong
street frontages and access routes thereby improving permeability. The layout embodies the aspirations of
the OAKDA masterplan and is acceptable.
Height and massing

8.3.5

The height and massing of the development varies across the site in response to site’s context and
constraints and to provide an optimum level of development.

8.3.6

Plot A has a courtyard arrangement with all floors above ground level arranged as a perimeter block
surrounding a podium amenity area. The height varies across the block. On Kennington Lane the building is
nine-storeys for most of its frontage before stepping up to 11 stories at the junction with Vauxhall Street. This
plot is set away from the conservation area and away from any adjoining sensitive development.
Consequently, officers consider these proposed heights to be acceptable. The southern side of Plot A facing
onto Phoenix Street is more varied. It is five and ten storeys towards Vauxhall Street, steps down to nine then
upwards to 12 and 17 storeys before stepping down to 12 again as it rounds the corner. The heights reflect
the strategy set out in the OAKDA masterplan where height is focused on the centre of the masterplan area
where it is furthest away from lower scale surrounding development and nearby conservation areas.
Fig. 5 – Plot A massing

Page 81

8.3.7

Plot B has a greater variance in height due to its context. Plot B has a small frontage on Kennington Lane
and is adjacent to a Georgian terrace which is within the conservation area. Consequently the height here
would be limited to a sympathetic four-storeys. As the block extends back into the site along Cutlers way it
rises to six storeys with the highest floor set back. At the corner where it addresses both Cutlers Way and
Phoenix Street the building rises to 16 storeys reflecting the OAKDA height strategy. Heading towards
Montford place height drops to seven storeys to provide a gap then rises to ten storeys where it faces onto
the street. Although the Kennington Conservation Area begins on the opposite side of Montford Place, the
site opposite is undeveloped and is being used by TfL as a worksite. Further south is the six storey gin
distillery. Consequently, officers consider this interface with the Kennington Conservation to be less sensitive
to height. The maximum of ten storeys is therefore considered acceptable. Future development of the TfL
worksite will provide an opportunity to complete the transition into the conservation area. As Plot B extends
north towards the Pilgrim Pub is steps down to eight then five storeys thereby creating a logical transition to
the smaller scale of the pub and nearby terraces.

Fig. 6 – Plot B massing

Page 82

8.3.8

Due to the irregular site boundary Plot C is located on a spur that extends south along Montford Place and
into the Oval Gas Works site. As such it is designed as a simple rectangular block that would connect with
Plot 4 of the Oval Gas Works development and complete its courtyard arrangement. It would be 10 storeys to
match the height of this neighbouring plot. This height is considered is acceptable for the same reasons it is
acceptable for Plot B.
Fig. 7 – Massing of Plot C with Oval Gas Works development

8.3.9

Officers consider the proposed height and massing to be acceptable having regard to the requirements of
Policies Q5, Q6 and Q7. It would be sensitive to adjacent development while also making the most of an
opportunity afforded by a large site to create its own urban context that optimises development potential.

Page 83
8.3.10 The impact of the massing on views and heritage assets is discussed later in this report.

Materials and detailed design

8.3.11 The overall approach to the elevations and materials is to break up the perception of mass to respond to local
context and to reflect the uses within each building.

8.3.12 Plot A has a long elevation along Kennington Lane and it is broken up by separating the plot into distinct
elements. The Tesco store is one element. The store would be clearly visible on the ground floor and the
floors above would be broken up into vertical bays, each with an angled projection. Prominent columns would
emphasise verticality and prevent the Tesco store from appearing as a single horizontal mass. The
uppermost floor is set back and would have a recessed angular design to reduce its size. White and buff brick
would be the main materials with light bronze cladding used for the top floor and various accent elements.
The design of the western section of this elevation is simpler and reflects the commercial uses on the ground
floor. This element would be distinguished from the Tesco store by greater use of Bronze metal cladding.

Fig. 8 – Visualisation of view from Kennington Lane

8.3.13 This treatment of white and buff brick punctuated by brick and bronze metal recess would continue around
the corner to Vauxhall Street. On Phoenix Street the office use on the lower floors use would be expressed a
light bronze metal box. Extensive glazing and a prominent entrance would create an active frontage. The
tallest element of Plot A would have the same treatment as the rest of the block but the top three floors would
have a different brick pattern and bronze metal spandrels (the section between one window and the window
below). This would distinguish the top three floors and give the building a clear ‘top’. The internal courtyard
elevations would be treated more simply with light buff or off-white render. This is to maximise the brightness
of the courtyard.

Page 84

Fig. 9 – Visualisation of Plot A from Phoenix Street showing bronze treatment to office element

8.3.14 Plot B continues the above approach of breaking up the massing but has some distinctive elements. The
corner building which faces on Kennington Lane has a bull nose corner, which is a reference to similar
features in Kennington. This bull nose would also ease the transition to the neighbouring terrace. The corner
building would also be in red brick to mirror the red brick used at the Pilgrim Pub. Together these two
buildings would bookend the existing terrace on Kennington Lane. The bookending concept would continue
across the rest of Plot B as each corner element would be in red brick. The intervening sections would share
the same palette as Plot A of white and buff brick and bronze metal clad elements.

Page 85
Fig. 10 – Visualisation of Plot B from Cutler’s Way

8.3.15 As with Plot A, the tallest element of Plot B would have bronze metal clad spandrel at the top three floors in
order to distinguish them from the lower floors and give the building a ‘top’.

8.3.16 Plot C is designed to integrate with Plot 4 of Oval Gas Works and therefore would have the same materials
and detailed design. It would have grey brick on the ground floor with buff brick above.
8.3.17 Officers support the proposed approach to the elevations and materials. The strong brick treatment and calm
aesthetic tempers the buildings’ massing and visual impact. Subject to conditions securing details of
construction and materials, the proposal would be in compliance with Policies Q5, Q6, Q7 and Q8.
Views
8.3.18 Strategic views are those identified in the LVMF designated by the Mayor of London. The application site is
lies within the background or ‘wider setting consultation area’ of View 4A.2, Primrose Hill to the Palace of
Westminster. Due to the distance the development, it would not be discernible in this view. There would be
no impact.

8.3.19 LLP Policy Q25 identifies a number of protected local views. The application site is in the Brixton Panoramic
View looking north from Brockwell Park (View (i) under Policy Q25) and the view from Norwood Park to the
City (View (ii)) however due to the distance from these viewpoints the development would not be discernible.
The site also falls within the viewing cone of the landmark silhouette of the Vauxhall Cross Building (MI6)
viewed from Millbank (View (xvii)) however it is not visible in this view and there would be no impact.
8.3.20 In addition to the above strategic and protected local views, 17 other views from within the local area were
assessed using photographs and superimposed wireline drawings or fully rendered images of the completed
development.

Page 86
8.3.21 From the west, the development would be highly visible along Kennington Lane. The side elevation of Plot A
would be visible behind the Big Yellow Storage building but would appear as a series of buildings rather than
a single slab. Its presence results in a more strongly defined streetscape and is not considered to cause
harm. It is likely that the Big Yellow Storage building would be developed in future, which would further
strengthen the streetscape.
Fig. 11 – Visualisation of view on Kennington Lane looking east

8.3.22 From the north the development would be visible in views from within the Vauxhall Gardens Estate. Plot A
would form a strong frontage to Kennington Lane and the taller elements would form a backdrop. The
buildings would not appear dominant as they would remain lower than the foreground buildings of the estate
and would not detract from its character. Gasholder 1 would be visible between the two taller elements.
8.3.23 From the east on Kennington Lane, before it curves away, the development would be highly visible (Fig. 12).
It would create a strong clear frontage on Kennington and would rise up to the left up to its maximum height.
The smaller red brick corner building would also be in view. The buildings would be seen as part of a varied
townscape backdrop formed by this development and the estate opposite. The visibility of the taller elements
would be localised to the edge of the conservation area where there is a noticeable change in townscape
character. The impact on this view is neutral.
Fig. 12 – Visualisation of view from Kennington Lane looking east.

Page 87

8.3.24 Further east the development would be visible above the roof line of the Grade II listed terrace at 231-245
Kennington Lane (Fig. 13). The visibility is partly obscured by the tree cover but would remain visible in the
background, particularly during winter. As discussed above, the proposal marks the transition out of the
conservation area and taller buildings in the backdrop of smaller scale buildings is typical of inner London.
The view would be a kinetic view and would shift as one moves west along Kennington Lane. This is
considered to cause ‘less than substantial harm’.

Fig. 13 – Visualisation of view from Kennington Lane looking south-west (Oval Gas Works development
outlined behind).

Page 88

8.3.25 Further north-east along Kennington Lane the impact lessens and the development would sit unobtrusively in
the backdrop. In views from Kennington Cross, Gasholder 1 would remain visible.
8.3.26 The development would be visible in the backdrop of views from Kennington Green and would sit well within
an existing multi-layered backdrop. From the eastern end of Montford Place the development would be visible
behind and to the right of the distillery. Together with the gas holder, the distillery establishes a sense of
scale which can accommodate the proposed development.
8.3.27 From the south-east along Kennington Oval the development would be visible through the frame of
Gasholder 1 but if the Oval Gas Works development comes forward the proposal would not be visible.

8.3.28 Two views from Oval Cricket Ground were taken. In both, the development would form part of the backdrop
to Gasholder 1 and be seen as distinct elements in the townscape. Gas holder 1 would remain prominent in
this view. If the Oval Gas Works development comes forward, the proposal would be almost completely
concealed.

8.3.29 Further south the development would be barely visible from Fentiman Road and completely concealed in the
view from Vauxhall Park. From Vauxhall Pleasure Gardens, Plot A would be visible in the far distance above
the existing skyline but the impact would be minor. Finally, from Kennington Park, the development would not
be visible.

Views conclusion
8.3.30 The proposed development would not affect any identified strategic or locally protected view but would be
visible in a number of local key views. Where it is visible, the development is either subordinate to or separate
from existing development or presents a strong street frontage to replace the existing low level development.
Overall, the impact on the townscape is considered acceptable.

Impact on designated heritage assets

Page 89
8.3.31 When assessing the impact on heritage assets, the first step is for the decision-maker to consider each of the
designated heritage assets (referred to hereafter simply as “heritage assets”) which would be affected by the
proposed development in turn and assess whether the proposed development would result in any harm to the
heritage asset.
8.3.32 The decision of the Court of Appeal in Barnwell Manor confirms that the assessment of the degree of harm to
the heritage asset is a matter for the planning judgement of the decision-maker.
8.3.33 However, where the decision-maker concludes that there would be some harm to the heritage asset, in
deciding whether that harm would be outweighed by the advantages of the proposed development (in the
course of undertaking the analysis required by s.38(6) PCPA 2004) the decision-maker is not free to give the
harm such weight as the decision-maker thinks appropriate. Rather, Barnwell Manor establishes that a
finding of harm to a heritage asset is a consideration to which the decision-maker must give considerable
importance and weight in carrying out the balancing exercise.
8.3.34 There is therefore a “strong presumption” against granting planning permission for development which would
harm a heritage asset. In the Forge Field case the High Court explained that the presumption is a statutory
one. It is not irrebuttable. It can be outweighed by material considerations powerful enough to do so. But a
local planning authority can only properly strike the balance between harm to a heritage asset on the one
hand and planning benefits on the other if it is conscious of the statutory presumption in favour of
preservation and if it demonstrably applies that presumption to the proposal it is considering.
8.3.35 The case-law also establishes that even where the harm identified is less than substantial (i.e. falls within
paragraph 134 of the NPPF), that harm must still be given considerable importance and weight.
8.3.36 Where more than one heritage asset would be harmed by the proposed development, the decision-maker
also needs to ensure that when the balancing exercise in undertaken, the cumulative effect of those several
harms to individual assets is properly considered. Historic England does not suggest that the cumulative
effect of the individual instances of harm identified amounts to substantial harm and officers do not consider
that the total harm (i.e. the cumulative effect of the several instances of harm identified) amounts to
substantial harm. Looking at the position as a whole, it is plain that there are a number of adverse impacts on
heritage features which individually and cumulatively result in less than substantial harm. However, less than
substantial harm does not mean insignificant harm. Considerable importance and weight must be attached to
each of the harms identified and to their cumulative effect.
8.3.37 What follows is an officer assessment of the extent of harm which would result from the proposed
development to the scoped heritage assets provided by the applicant as part of its submission. This includes
Conservation Areas, and neighbouring Listed Buildings. Both an individual assessment against each heritage
asset as well a cumulative assessment is provided. This is then followed by an assessment of the heritage
benefits of the proposals.
Impact on heritage assets: Conservation areas
8.3.38 The application site is not in a conservation area but Kennington Conservation Area is immediately to the
east thereby placing it within the setting of that conservation area. The development would be most visible
from Kennington Lane, Montford Place and Kennington Green. Officers have had regard to the Kennington
Conservation Area Statement in their assessment.

Page 90
8.3.39 As discussed above, the development would be visible behind buildings on Kennington Lane. These
buildings are identified in the conservation area statement as ‘imposing’ 19 th century building making a
positive contribution to the character of the conservation area. Although the proposed buildings would be
visible, their contrasting form would cause only less than substantial harm. Tall buildings appearing above
building lines are not uncommon in central London, particularly in areas of change and the proposal’s calm
aesthetic reduces their prominence. The view is also a kinetic view in that it shifts as one moves westward
towards the boundary of the conservation area. The development would be less visible from Montford Place
and Kennington Green (noteworthy view identified in the Kennington Conservation Area Statement) and
would sit acceptably within the backdrop of views toward the site. There would be a small ‘less than
substantial’ harm to the conservation area.
8.3.40 Vauxhall Conservation area lies further to the west and the western end of Kennington Lane and identified in
its conservation area statement, is a key historic route within the conservation area. Views eastward along
Kennington Lane would terminate at the proposed development. The conservation area statement describes
Kennington Lane as a narrow street and with a strong sense of enclosure softened by a number of mature
trees. The proposed development would be distant beyond the trees and step away in height. As such, it
would not have an adverse impact on the setting of these qualities of Kennington Lane.. There would be no
harm to the Vauxhall Conservation Area.

Impact on heritage assets: Listed Buildings

8.3.41 There are no listed buildings on the application site. The nearest listed buildings are 231 to 245 Kennington
Lane to the east which is a terrace of houses noted for their Georgian style and substantial size. The
proposed development would be visible behind these properties as one moves westward towards the
conservation area boundary. The road is tree lined and the listed buildings terminate the view due to the bend
in the road. The new development would step up away from the edge of the conservation area and the brick
treatment and calm aesthetic of the proposed buildings reduces their presence. Although, the new
development is visible it is a matter of judgement as to whether their visibility is harmful. Officers consider
that having new development visible in the backdrop of listed buildings is characteristic of London and that
the proposed buildings would not be dominant or contrasting in unsympathetic way. One mitigating factor is
that the adverse impact is a momentary one in a kinetic experience as one travels westward along
Kennington Lane. Given the council’s statutory obligation to pay ‘special regard’ to preserve the setting of
listed buildings officers consider that there is a small degree of harm to their setting resulting in ‘less than
substantial’ harm.

8.3.42 Grade II listed terrace houses are also present on Montford Place and on Kennington Green. The proposed
development would be visible in the background to these properties but would form part of an already multilayered backdrop that is dominated by the gin distillery. There would be no harm to their setting.

8.3.43 Gasholder 1 to the south is Grade II listed. There is planning consent to build within and adjacent to the
gasholder and if that development is completed, the setting of the gasholder would be entirely defined by that
development. However, until then, the proposed development would form part of its setting. Officers consider
that the proposed buildings are sufficiently distant and distinct from the gasholder to not detract from its
setting. There would be no harm.

Page 91
Impact on heritage assets: Locally Listed Buildings/Structures and Archaeological Priority Area
8.3.44 Locally Listed Buildings are ‘non-designated heritage assets’ under the NPPF. Para. 197 of the NPPF states
that the effect of an application on the significance of non-designated heritage asset should be taken into
account in determining the application. In addition LLP Policy Q23 seeks to retain, preserve, protect,
safeguard and where desirable, enhance non-designated heritage assets.

8.3.45 The nearest local listed buildings are Gasholders 4 and 5 immediately to the south. They are a conjoined pair
of gasholders and have architectural interest due to their scale, form and geometry as well as the Neoclassical design detailing and cast quality. Although they are of architectural interest, these gasholders were
not statutory listed with Gasholder 1 and have a Certificate of Immunity from Listing. Planning permission to
demolish these gasholders has been given as part of the Oval Gas Works development. However, until that
development is completed, the proposal would form part of their setting. Although it would be nearby, the
development would not detract from their architectural interest. Their scale, form and geometry would remain.
There would be no harm.
8.3.46 To the south-east is the gin distillery and 1 & 5 Montford Place. The Gin Distillery is a large industrial building
and the development would be in keeping with its scale. Its domed tower and facades would all remain visible
on the streetscene. As for Montford Place, the development would only be visible in wider views from
Kennington Green. The setting to these two properties is dominated by the gin distillery. There would be no
harm.
8.3.47 Kennington Green is a Protected London Square which means it benefits from the London Squares Act 1931
banning building work on such squares. Protected squares are treated as non-designated heritage assets. As
discussed earlier, the development would form part of multi-layered back drop that is dominated by the gin
distillery when viewed from the green. There would be no harm.
8.3.48 Non-designated heritage assets also include archaeological assets and the same policy approach applies.
Policy 7.8 of the London Plan emphasises that the conservation of archaeological interest is a material
consideration in the planning process. LLP Policy Q23 requires proper investigation and recording of
archaeological remains.

8.3.49 The application has been reviewed by the Greater London Archaeology Advisory Service (GLAAS) and no
objection is held subject to conditions securing a scheme of investigation and recording for potential
archaeological assets on the site.
Impact upon heritage assets: Summary
8.3.50 The impact of the development on designated heritage assets has been assessed and the results are
summarised in the table below.

Designated Heritage Asset

Level of harm

231-245 Kennington Lane

Less than substantial

3 and 7-25 Montford Place

None

346-366 Kennington Road (on Kennington

None

Green)
Gasholder 1

None

Page 92
Kennington Conservation Area

Less than substantial

Vauxhall Conservation Area

None

Non-designated Heritage Asset

Level of harm

Gasholders 4 and 5

None

Gin distillery

None

1 & 5 Montford Place

None

Kennington Green

None

Archaeology

None

8.3.51 Individually, there are instances of less than substantial harm. Cumulatively, it is considered that the level of
harm is still less than substantial. As per para. 196 of the NPPF, where a development would lead to less
than substantial harm, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal, including
securing its optimum viable use.

8.3.52 The public benefits of the scheme are summarised below:


571 new homes of which 35 per cent would be for affordable housing;



3,798sqm of new commercial floorspace;



Up to 160 new jobs and a package of employment and training opportunities secured via s106;



Replacement Tesco store with greatly reduced car parking;



New public realm providing new pedestrian and cycle routes;



Improved street frontages and public realm on Kennington Lane and Montford Place.

8.3.53 Officers have had special regard to the desirability of preserving the listed building or its setting or any
features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses as well as to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. Officers have identified that
the development would result in ‘less than substantial harm’ and have had regard to the statutory
presumption against granting planning permission for development which would harm a heritage asset.
Mindful of this presumption and the considerable importance and weight that is given to any harm, officers
consider that the cumulative ‘less than substantial harm’ would be outweighed by the public benefits of the
scheme.

Tall Buildings

8.3.54 LP Policy 7.7 relates to tall buildings and states that they should not have an unacceptably harmful impact on
their surroundings. This approach is continued in LLP Policy Q26. These policies require consideration of a
number of factors, all of which have been considered in the above assessments.

8.4

Standard of residential accommodation
Housing and Development Density

8.4.1

The density of the proposed development would be 1,392 habitable rooms per hectare (hr/ha) or 419 units
per hectare (u/ha). Table 3.2 of the London Plan sets out target density ranges according to urban context,
public transport accessibility and unit size. For a site in an urban context with a high PTAL (6b) and average

Page 93
unit size of less than 3 habitable rooms per unit, the target density range is 200-700 habitable room per
hectare (hr/ha) or 70-260 units per hectare (u/ha).

8.4.2

Although the density is beyond the upper limit of the target range, the London Plan and Housing SPG confirm
that it is not appropriate to apply Table 3.2 mechanistically and that higher densities can be acceptable where
local context, design, residential quality and transport capacity are properly considered. The proposed
development is considered to both appropriately account for the local context while also creating its own; is of
a high quality design and is located where public transport accessibility is highest (6b). These matters are
discussed in more detail later in this report but the proposed development is not considered to exhibit
symptoms of overdevelopment and is therefore of an acceptable density having regard to LP Policy 3.4 and
LLP Policy H1.
Layout and access

8.4.3

All units meet the minimum space requirements set out in the National Space Standards and provide
adequate room sizes, storage space and floor to ceiling height (2.5m).
Accessible, Adaptable and Wheelchair Housing Provision

8.4.4

The development includes 57 units that would meet Part M4(3) of the Building Regulations, classified as
wheelchair adaptable units. This constitutes 10 per cent of the total number of dwellings in line with London
Plan standards. All of these units are would be provided in Plots B and C as these plots have easiest access
to the Blue Badge 24 parking spaces provided on the ground floor of Plot B. 33 further Blue Badge spaces
would be provided in the basement of Oval Gas Works so that a space is available for each wheelchair unit.
This would be secured by s106. Of the 57 wheelchair units, 28 are for market sale (equal to 7 per cent of total
market housing) and 29 are provided as affordable housing (equal to 16.8 per cent of affordable units). All
wheelchair units have level access from the point of entry to the building and are served by two lifts. The
communal spaces and new public realm would also be wheelchair accessible.
Privacy

8.4.5

The courtyard arrangement of Plots A and B means that some flats would be facing each other. However, in
both instances the courtyards are at least 24m wide, which is sufficient to avoid a sense of overlooking. The
relationship with properties outside of the site is discussed in section 8.5.
Outlook and Aspect

8.4.6

The number of dual, ‘semi-dual’, single aspect and north facing single aspect units for each plot is set out in
the table below. Dual aspect units are considered to be those that benefit from two different elevations.
‘Semi-dual’ aspect units are those that have a single elevation but have the benefit of a projection at least two
metres deep to provide an additional aspect. This projection would have a full height glazed door with access
to a balcony. Single aspect units have a single elevation and no projection.

Breakdown of dual, semi-dual and single aspect units.
Plot

Dual aspect

‘Semi-dual’

Single aspect

Single aspect and
North facing

A

134

202

8

0

39%

59%

2%

0%

Page 94
B

C

Total

8.4.7

111

60

3

0

64%

34%

2%

0%

39

14

0

0

74%

26%

0%

0%

284

276

11

0

50%

48%

2%

0%

The table shows that the total number of full dual aspect dwellings is 50 per cent. The provision of these units
is welcomed.

8.4.8

Only two per cent of dwellings are single aspect and do not have a projection to provide an alternative
aspect. There are eight of these in Plot A and they are located in the north-west corner of the courtyard.
Although providing an inset balcony would provide an alternative aspect to make them ‘semi-dual’, a
projecting balcony, would receive more direct sunlight due to their particular corner position. This is
considered acceptable. Plot B has three single aspect flats. One of these is a ground floor one-bedroom flat
which faces east onto Montford Place. It does not have a projecting element with inset balcony, which would
make it ‘semi-dual’, as it was considered more appropriate to have a full width external patio given its ground
floor position. The other two single aspect units are located on the fifth floor and face west. They are single
aspect as they do not have a projecting element to provide an alternative aspect. This is due to their setback
‘penthouse’ position on the fifth floor. However, they would benefit from a wide roof terrace. Given their
particular designs, the single aspect units are considered acceptable.

8.4.9

48 per cent of the dwellings would be ‘semi-dual’. They would face one direction but have a projecting
element providing an alternative aspect. The projecting element would have openable glazing to provide a
degree of cross-ventilation, a view towards a different direction and additional sunlight where they face east,
south or west. 48 semi-dual units have their main aspect to the north. 14 of these are within the courtyard to
Plot A but have been designed with a shallower depth to increase sunlight penetration into living areas. Their
openable windows and balcony doors have also been placed at opposite ends of the flat in order to maximise
cross ventilation. 34 units face onto Kennington Lane. They are all one-bedroom units and 20 of these have
been designed with an angled bay window to provide a wider aspect and better light penetration than a
conventional semi-dual unit. The remaining 14 are located at the north-western corner which is already at a
slight angle. The number of semi-dual units is a result of the limited number of cores that can reach the
ground floor of the building due to the presence of the Tesco store. However the above design features
acceptable mitigate the constraints of a north facing semi-dual aspect unit.

8.4.10 On balance, the number of dual aspect units is considered acceptable.
Daylight and sunlight
8.4.11 The proposed dwellings have been tested for their expected level of daylight. This has been measured based
on Average Daylight Factor (ADF) and skyline visibility using the No Sky Line (NSL) test.

8.4.12 ADF is a measure of diffuse daylight within a room and accounts for factors such as window quantity and
size, room size, reflectance of walls, type of glazing and number of windows. Kitchens should achieve 2 per
cent ADF, 1.5 per cent for living rooms and 1 per cent for bedrooms. NSL also measures daylight but simply

Page 95
measures the portion of a room that can receive direct skylight compared to those that cannot. The area of a
room that does not receive direct skylight should not exceed 20 per cent.
8.4.13 1,410 out of 1,518 habitable rooms (93 per cent) would meet or exceed the BRE recommendation for ADF.
41 rooms would not meet the recommended percentage by only 0.1-0.2 percent so can be considered to be
only marginally below. Eight kitchen/living/dining rooms would not achieve the recommended 2 per cent for
kitchens but would achieve the 1.5 per cent recommended for living rooms. Given the open plan nature of
these spaces, officers consider these acceptable. This means that 96 per cent of rooms have achieved
acceptable level of ADF. Of the remaining 59 rooms, 44 are bedrooms, nine are open plan
living/kitchen/dining areas and six are living rooms.
8.4.14 The living rooms and living/kitchen/dining areas seeing lower daylight levels are located within areas that face
onto other development façades or into the courtyards at Plots A and B. Some are also located behind or
beneath a balcony. It should also be noted that all of these rooms falling short of recommendation for living
areas (1.5 per cent ADF) see at least 1 per cent ADF, which is the minimum recommended for bedrooms.
8.4.15 Although there are 44 bedrooms that would not meet the target figure for ADF, this is only a small portion of
the 946 bedrooms in the development. In addition, the development has been designed to prioritise daylight
to living areas, resulting in a higher number of bedrooms compared to living areas not meeting the target
figure.
8.4.16 In terms of sunlight, 229 of the 352 (67 per cent) windows that would face within 90 degrees due south (in
order to receive sunlight) would be well sunlit through the year exceeding the BRE recommendations for
APSH. In addition, 234 out of the 359 (67 per cent) tested living areas also exceed the recommended
sunlight hours in winter time. The occurrence of low sunlight availability in some of the tested rooms is due to
the provision of balconies that obstruct the direct access to sunlight, or to the room’s location on the lowest
floors. However, the occupants will still have access to sunlight through the use of the balconies which will be
well sunlit, especially in the summer months.
8.4.17 The levels of daylight and sunlight are considered acceptable given the urban context and optimal use of the
site.
Noise and Vibration
8.4.18 The proposed dwellings would be exposed to noise from road traffic and potentially from activities at the
Pilgrim public house. All dwellings would be required to have appropriate noise and vibration attenuation
measures with particular attention given to those near the Tesco service yard and those near the Pilgrim
public house. This would ensure acceptable amenity to the new dwellings and the continued operation of the
Pilgrim. This would be secured by condition 32.
Residential Amenity and Play Space
8.4.19 All dwellings would have a balcony or terrace compliant with the Housing SPG. For a development of this
size, LP Policy H5 requires the provision of a total of 5,760sqm of private and communal amenity space. The
proposed development provides a total of 7,584sqm of private and communal amenity space. However, this
must be understood plot by plot as access to each plot’s amenity space would be restricted to residents of
that plot.

Page 96
8.4.20 Plot A would require 3,490sqm of private and communal space. In addition to the 2,177sqm of private
balconies and terraces, it would have a 1,438sqm podium level courtyard and three rooftop amenity spaces
providing a further 1,201sqm. This results in a total of 4,816sqm, exceeding the minimum requirement. The
roof terraces would receive ample direct sunlight. The BRE guidance states that an at least half of an amenity
space should receive two or more hours of sunlight on the spring equinox (21 March). The roof terraces
would each receive direct sunlight to between 82 and 98 per cent of their area. The courtyard would not
receive direct sunlight on 21 March but around the summer solstice (21 June) just over half would receive
more than four hours of direct sunlight. The northern half of the podium would receive the most sunlight and
the landscaping has been designed with a ‘sun walk’ that provides opportunities for seating and play in these
sunlit areas.
8.4.21 Plot B would require 1,749sqm of private and communal space and provides 2,123sqm consisting of
1,068sqm of private balconies and terraces, 241sqm roof gardens and a 814sqm courtyard. The largest of
the three roof terraces, which is located at the southern end of the building, will receive direct sunlight to 83
per cent of its area on 21 March. The two smaller roof terraces would not receive direct sunlight at this time
but on 21 June the roof terrace on west side of the building will receive at least four hours of sunlight and the
roof terrace on the east will receive at least eight hours. The courtyard will not receive direct sunlight on 21
March and but would be sunlit around the summer solstice.
8.4.22 Finally, Plot C would require 580sqm. 305sqm of private amenity spaces plus a 315sqm roof garden would
together provide 620sqm, exceeding the minimum requirement. The roof terrace would be largely
unobstructed to sunlight and would be lit for eight or more hours each day between 21 March and 21
September.
8.4.23 The proposed development includes a sufficient amount of amenity space and residents of each block would
have access to a sunlit communal space throughout the year. The development is in compliance with Policy
H5.
8.4.24 Using the methodology in the Mayor’s SPG Providing for Children and Young People’s Play and Informal
Recreation, the residents would need access to 1,700sqm of playspace of which 770sqm would be for 0-5
year olds, 570sqm for 5-11 year olds and 360sqm for 12+ year olds.
8.4.25 770sqm of playspace for 0-5 year olds and 570sqm of space for 5-11 year olds is provided in various
locations throughout the scheme, both in private communal areas and as part of the new public realm.
148sqm of playspace is provided on-site for 12+ year old children with the remaining requirement of 212sqm
to be provided off-site in local parks. Kennington Park and Vauxhall Pleasure Gardens are both
approximately a 500m walk away, well within the maximum 800m walking distance set out in the Mayor’s
guidance. A financial contribution towards these parks would be secured under the s106.
8.4.26 Playspace would be provided in each courtyard of Plots A and B to serve their respective residents. Plot C
would have access to a pocket park on Cutlers Way that would provide play spaces for 0-11 year olds. The
pocket park would be 80m away, which is within the 100m maximum walking distance set out in the Mayor’s
guidance. There would be an opportunity for Plot C to also have immediate access to the courtyard of Plot 4
of the Oval Gas Works development, to provide additional play beyond that required by the standards. This is
due to the Oval Gas Works play area being 55sqm larger than required by the standards. Providing this
access this would be possible as both sites are in the applicant’s ownership. This access would be secured
through the s106 agreement.

Page 97
8.4.27 Under 5s would have natural and incidental or ‘play on the way’ features on Cutlers Way and more formalised
play equipment in the courtyards. Children aged 5-11 will have more challenging play equipment and 12+
year old children will have casual play and hang out opportunities on-site and access to other facilities at
Kennington Park and Vauxhall Pleasure Gardens. Kennington Park has an existing playground for children
up to the age of 14, fitness equipment, skate bowl and free facilities for football, cricket, table tennis and
basketball. Vauxhall Pleasure Gardens has a free to use combined basketball court/football pitch.
8.4.28 The proposed playspace is in accordance with LP Policy 3.6 and LLP Policy H5.
8.5

Amenity for Neighbouring Occupiers
Daylight and Sunlight

8.5.1

The beginning of the Agenda Pack contains broad contextual overview of the assessment framework within
which BRE compliant sunlight and daylight studies are undertaken. This includes an explanation of the key
terms and targets contained within the BRE guidance. The following assessment has been made in the
context of this information.

8.5.2

The application is accompanied by a daylight and sunlight report which was independently reviewed by a
consultant appointed by the council. It should be noted that the BRE guidance sets a benchmark of 27 per
cent for VSC however this figure is derived from a low density suburban housing model and can be
impractical to apply to existing dense urban areas. In densely built up areas retained VSC values of 18 per
cent can be considered more appropriate. Where VSC drops below 10 per cent, direct daylight from the sky
will be poor.

8.5.3

The following residential properties would experience a noticeable change:


Eccles Court, 260 Kennington Lane



251-255 Kennington Lane



257-261 Kennington Lane



The Pilgrim (247 Kennington Lane)



Waylett House

Eccles Court
8.5.4

Eccles Court is to the north of the application site at the junction of Vauxhall Street and Kennington Lane. It
is a three storey residential property with windows to the front and rear. The front windows, which face south
towards the application site, were assessed. Of the 24 windows assessed (including the side facing panels
of the bay windows), seven would experience a ‘major adverse’ impact on VSC due to reductions from
existing to proposed VSC exceeding 40 per cent. However, for only two of these windows would retained
values of VSC fall below 18 per cent. One of these windows serves a living room but would retain a VSC of
17.3 per cent, just below 18 per cent. The other window is a bedroom window with a retained value of 16.6
per cent. Bedrooms are considered to be less sensitive but the retained value is not far below the 18 per
cent.

8.5.5

All rooms would retain NSL values of more than 50 per cent, which means that the majority of the room
would receive direct skylight.

Page 98
8.5.6

The applicant also undertook an assessment of ADF, which can be a more precise assessment as it takes
into account window size, glazing type, room surface area and wall reflectance. This assessment found that
all rooms would meet BRE targets for ADF. Furthermore, all rooms would meet BRE targets for sunlight.

8.5.7

Officers consider that the impact on Eccles Court would be acceptable.

257-261 Kennington Lane
8.5.8

257-261 Kennington Lane is a terrace of three houses, some of which have converted into flats (Fig. 14
below). The properties are located to the immediate north of the application site so their rear windows would
be affected by the development. Of the 20 windows assessed at no. 257, two would experience reductions
in greater VSC greater than 40 per cent and would have new VSC values of less than 18 per cent (13.3 and
15 per cent respectively). The use of these rooms is unknown. However, if they are assumed to be living
rooms, which are more sensitive, these rooms would still have good daylight distribution as more than 89
per cent of these rooms would receive direct skylight as measured as NSL. These two windows would pass
the sunlight test during summer but not in winter. As there is a lower expectation of sunlight in winter officers
consider the impact on these two windows to be acceptable.

Page 99
Fig. 14 – 257-267 Kennington Lane are the three properties on the left

8.5.9

At no. 259, 15 windows were assessed and five would have reductions of more than 40 per cent and have
new VSC values less than 18 per cent. Two of these are living rooms, two are bedrooms and one is of
unknown use. The room that is of unknown use would have no change to its NSL so would still receive
adequate daylight. The other rooms would experience noticeable impacts on daylight and sunlight but they
each serve separate flats so each dwelling would still receive adequate amenity from its other rooms that
would not be affected. Of the windows that are affected, the greatest impact would be on a basement and a
ground floor window but it should be noted that these are already affected by an existing mature tree in the
rear garden. Although the development would result in material impacts to the rear of this building, officers
consider that on balance the impact is acceptable given the need to optimise development of the application
site and the benefits that the development would bring.

8.5.10 No. 261 Kennington Lane is a four storey terrace house. 14 windows were assessed and four windows
would experience reductions greater than 40 per cent and have new VSC values of less than 18 per cent.
One of these windows is a lower ground floor kitchen, which would experience a material impact. Another is
a first floor living room that would still retain a NSL of more than 50 per cent so would still have an adequate
distribution. The other two affected windows are bedrooms which both would have NSL around 50 per cent
(48.6 and 56.7 per cent respectively). As such, they too would have adequate daylight distribution. These
bedrooms would also have a good level of sunlight throughout the year due to their APSH being more than
25 per cent. This property is a house and although the rear facing windows be affected, the dwelling as a
whole would still have good amenity due to the well-lit front facing rooms.

251-255 Kennington Lane

8.5.11 251-255 Kennington Lane is another short terrace of three residential properties, some of which have been
converted into flats or maisonettes. At no. 251, four windows were assessed and three of them would
experience reductions of more than 40 per cent and have retained VSC values of less than 18 per cent. One
of these, a living room, is just below at 17.4 per cent. One other is a kitchen with 13.3 per cent. Both of these
rooms would retain NSL values of more than 50 per cent which means the majority of the room would still
have access to direct skylight. The third room is a lower ground floor bedroom with a VSC of 9.8 per cent

Page 100
and NSL of 31.8 per cent. Under the BRE guidance, bedrooms are considered to be less sensitive and the
dwelling benefits from a front facing reception room which would not be significantly affected. The upper
floors are a single maisonette and it would continue to benefit from multiple rooms with a well-lit front aspect.
Finally, all except the bedroom would exceed the 25 per cent benchmark for sunlight hours across the year.
The bedroom would achieve 21 per cent.
Fig. 15 – 251-255 Kennington Lane

8.5.12 No. 253 is a similar property to no. 251. Three rear facing windows serving habitable rooms were assessed.
The lower ground and upper ground floor window would both experience reductions in excess of 40 per cent
with a retained VSC value of 11.2 and 16.8 per cent respectively. The upper ground floor window is a living
room and retain an NSL of over 50 per cent meaning that the majority of the room would have direct skylight.
The lower ground floor window is a bedroom with an NSL of 39.7. As discussed above, BRE guidance states
that bedrooms are treated as being less sensitive to lower daylight. The dwelling would still benefit from welllit front facing rooms. The bedroom would have 23 per cent APSH, just under the 25 per cent benchmark for
sunlight. The other two rooms would both exceed 25 per cent APSH across the year meaning that they would
receive an acceptable level of sunlight.

8.5.13 At no. 255, seven windows were assessed and five would have reductions of greater than 40 per cent and
retained VSC values of less than 18 per cent. These seven windows serve five rooms and four of these
rooms would retain NSL values of 50 per cent so the majority of their area would have direct access to
skylight. The room that does not have more than 50 per cent NSL is a lower ground floor kitchen/diner room.
This room would experience a material impact on daylight but the main living space is front facing and would
be unaffected.
8.5.14 An additional assessment was undertaken to determine what impact on daylight there would be if the flats
closest to no. 251 Kennington Lane were removed to reduce the building volume. No. 251 was chosen as it
would have closest relationship to the proposed development and most likely to benefit. The flats removed
are four flats over the first to fourth floors of Plot B south of no. 251. The results of the cutaway exercise
revealed that it would have a negligible effect. VSC values would improve by 0.1 per cent and NSL values by

Page 101
0.2 per cent but this would not be perceptible. The impact on the other properties in the terrace would be
even less as they are further away. Achieving noticeable improvements would require drastic cut backs to
Plot B that would entail a significant reduction of units and undermine the viability of the development.
8.5.15 In Appendix 4, the retained values for all affected windows at 251-261 Kennington Lane are provided in a
table.

Pilgrim public house

8.5.16 247 Kennington Lane is the Pilgrim public house. It has ancillary staff accommodation on the first and second
floors. Of the seven windows assessed, none would experience a reduction in VSC greater than 40 per cent.
Two windows would have retained VSC values of less than 18 per cent. One of these windows would have
an NSL of 47 per cent, just marginally below the 50 per cent target for NSL meaning that it would still receive
daylight. The other window would retain 37.9 per cent NSL. Although this window would experience a
material impact, it serves transitory accommodation for staff so it is considered to be less sensitive. Both
rooms would have sunlight hours around the 25 per cent target across the year (22 and 28 per cent
respectively) so would continue to receive a reasonable level of sunlight.

8.5.17 The majority of the rooms would continue to receive good daylight. The impact on the Pilgrim is considered to
be acceptable.
Waylett House

8.5.18 Waylett House is an eleven story block of flats located north of the site on the opposite side of Kennington
Lane. 258 windows serving 86 rooms were assessed. 18 would experience a ‘major’ reduction of 40 per cent
or more and have a retained VSC value of less than 18 per cent. The building has a grid of projecting
balconies that already limit sky visibility. In such cases, small changes in sky visibility can cause large
percentage reductions. In order to understand this impact, the BRE advise that a second assessment is
undertaken with balconies removed. Under that assessment, all windows would meet the BRE target values
for daylight and sunlight, which means that it is the presence of balconies rather than the design of the
proposal that is causing the impact.

Sunlight on amenity areas

8.5.19 An assessment was undertaken on the impact the development would have on sunlight reaching nearby
residential gardens. The BRE benchmark is 50 per cent of a garden receiving more than two hours of direct
sunlight on the 21st of March (the Spring Equinox). Currently, the private gardens to 251-255 do not meet the
BRE benchmark. This would continue if the proposed development was completed as there would be a
reduction from around a third of the garden receiving two hours of sunlight to no areas of the garden meeting
this test. 247 (The Pilgrim Pub) and 257 to 261 Kennington Lane would not achieve this benchmark whereas
they do under the current situation. However, during the summer solstice, 247 to 255 would not be affected
until 5pm. For 259 and 261, the gardens would be affected from 2pm.

8.5.20 As described above, 251-255 would experience a material impact on their garden which must be balanced
against the planning benefits of the scheme. For other nearby properties, officers consider that during the

Page 102
warmer months when they are most likely to be used, the private amenity areas of the nearest residential
properties would receive an adequate amount of sunlight. The impact on sunlight is therefore considered
acceptable on balance.
Impact on Oval Gas Works

8.5.21 Although not constructed, the Oval Gas Works development has received consent and the proposed
development would have an impact on some of its dwellings. 684 rooms at Oval Gas Works were assessed
as they would face the development and 85 would experience a more than marginal impact. These are 34
living rooms, 44 bedrooms and 7 living/kitchen/dining rooms.

8.5.22 Although 85 rooms would be affected, this would be only a small portion of the 684 rooms that would face the
development (about 12 per cent), and a very small portion of the rooms across the whole Oval Gas Works
development.
8.5.23 As the Tesco development is north of Oval Gas Works, there would be no impact on sunlight.

Daylight and sunlight conclusion

8.5.24 The proposed development would result in material impacts on a number of residential properties.
Reductions would be noticeable, particularly given that much of the site is open car park, a situation generally
uncommon in central London. However, retained values of VSC, NSL and ADF are acceptable in the majority
of cases. Where the impact is greater, the dwellings that those affected rooms are a part of would continue to
benefit from daylight reaching other parts of the dwelling. The impact on daylight and sunlight must be
weighed against the planning benefits of the scheme, which are material considerations. Officers consider
that on balance the impact on daylight and sunlight is acceptable.

Privacy and outlook

8.5.25 The nearest residential properties are those to the north along Kennington Lane. Plot B has been designed
to minimise the number of windows within 18m of a neighbouring facing window. Where there are windows,
such as those that face toward the Pilgrim public house, they would be obscure glazed and non-openable.
They would be secondary windows to provide additional diffuse light to the flats. Where there are balconies
that would have a side aspect to neighbouring properties, they would have a full height side screen.

8.5.26 On plan, the projecting rear returns of 251 to 255 Kennington Lane appear to be within 18m of the balcony
and rear facing windows of Plot B. However, these are lower ground floor rear returns and their view towards
Plot B would be at an upwards angle and obscured by the boundary treatment and hedging at the rear of
Plot B’s landscaped podium. Despite this, the balcony side screens and obscure glazing would be secured
by condition on the north facing side of Plot B. Obscure glazing would also be secured for an east facing
window in Plot B that would be near to no. 261 Kennington Lane. This window would only serve a communal
corridor.
8.5.27 The southern side of Plot A would be close to Plot 3 of the Oval Gas Works development. At the narrowest
point it would be 13.8m away and up to 17.7m away. However, these distances would be from the office
element of Plot A – the residential elements would be on setback floors above so that they would be more

Page 103
than 20m away from the residential elements of Plot 3 at Oval Gas Works. There would be no harmful
overlooking.
8.5.28 The change from an open car park to the proposed development would change the outlook from the rear of
the properties on Kennington Lane. Any development four or more storeys in height would occupy a
horizontal view from these properties. However, the massing has been stepped to avoid a wall effect. The
part of Plot B nearest to 249 Kennington Lane is five storeys, then steps up to eight storeys after 8m then
up to 10 storeys 10m beyond that. The distance between the 10 storey element and no. 253, which would
be directly north would be 33m. On the western side, 261 would have face a staggered building line size
storeys in height before rising to 16 storeys. The distance to the 16 storey element would be 38m. No. 259
would have a similar view. No. 257 would face a seven storey element that is 35m away. These distances
to the higher elements are considered to mitigate any harmful sense of enclosure. Although Plot B would be
clearly visible, this is not amount to harm and the building form that steps upwards as the separation distance
increases provides a logical transition that avoids the appearance of a stark contrast.

Noise and Vibration

8.5.29 LP Policy 7.15 states that development proposals should avoid significant adverse noise impacts on health
and quality of life as a result of new development. LLP Policy Q2 requires development to reduce the adverse
the impact of noise.
8.5.30 The submitted Environmental Assessment assessed the impact from noise and vibration during demolition,
construction and operation of the proposed development.

8.5.31 Demolition and construction would be subject to a construction management plan that would set out a suite
of mitigation measures to reduce the impact on neighbouring properties. However, there would be instances
where demolition and construction of Plot B would have a moderate to major impact on 255-261 Kennington
Lane but these would temporary and only for short periods within the overall programme. Affected
neighbours would be informed and given advance notice of the works so that disruption is managed
appropriately.
8.5.32 Once operational, all fixed plant would be fitted with attenuation and acoustic screening to limit noise
emission. These would be secured by condition.

Conclusion

8.5.33 Overall the proposed development, subject to appropriate mitigation, would have a minor impact on
residential amenity in terms of daylight and sunlight, privacy, noise and vibration.
8.6

Designing Out Crime

8.6.1

The layout and design of the scheme maximises passive surveillance and active frontages to contribute to
the perception of safety. The applicant has engaged with the Metropolitan Police who have advised the
following measures be implemented:


Audio/visual control for block entrances



Roller shutters to Tesco car park to restrict access out of hours



Roller shutters to the Tesco delivery yard which will be closed when not in use

Page 104


The recessed entrance to Block B required for wind mitigation would be gated at night to prevent
anti-social behaviour



The 1.5m wide buffer strip between Block B and properties on Kennington Lane will be gated with 3m
high gates and accessed for maintenance only.

8.6.2

The Metropolitan Police are satisfied with the proposal subject to conditions requiring a Secured by Design
application with certification achieved prior to occupation.

8.6.3

The Metropolitan Police Counter Terrorism Advisers had no comments on the proposal.

8.6.4

Subject to the above conditions, the proposed development would be in compliance with LP Policies 7.3 and
7.13 and LP Policy Q3.

8.7

Trees and Landscaping

8.7.1

The site currently has 25 trees which were planted when the existing Tesco store was developed. These
consist of three Category B (moderate quality), 19 Category C (low quality) and three Category U (poor
quality) trees. There are also two Category B trees on the pavement on Kennington Lane in front of the Tesco
store. As the site would be comprehensively redeveloped, these trees would be removed. The replacement
development would include 28 new trees so there would be no net loss. 11 of these would be along Phoenix
Street, 10 would be on Cutler’s Way and two at the front of the site adjacent to 261 Kennington Lane. The
two trees on Kennington Lane in front of the existing Tesco store would be replaced by five new trees. Their
removal is required in order to accommodate the building line of the new development. The proposed tree
planting would retain the number of trees on-site and improve species diversity. The trees that would be
located on Kennington Lane would contribute to its existing leafy character. Officers consider the proposed
tree planting to be acceptable.

Landscaping

8.7.2

Hard and soft landscaping is proposed for the new public routes through the site along Phoenix Street and
Cutlers Way. Phoenix Street would be mostly hard paved to reflect its function as both a vehicle and
pedestrian route but there would be areas of low-level flowering or herbaceous planting at its eastern end as
well as rain gardens to absorb rainwater and assist in drainage. Hard paving would consist mostly of natural
stone with tarmac proposed for parts of Phoenix Street. Cutlers Way would be hard paved at its northern end
to provide vehicle access to the Tesco store but the southern end would be soft landscaped in order to create
a pocket park.

8.7.3

The private communal areas for residents would have a mixture of lawn, herbaceous planting and woodland
planting surrounded by areas of permeable paving.

8.7.4

The overall layout of the landscaping and the design approach set out in the application is considered
acceptable. Conditions would be imposed to secure more detailed plans, a planting plan, maintenance
schedule and detailed horticultural management plan. The planting plan would be closely scrutinised to
ensure that the species are appropriate and will establish and that all year interest is maintained.

Landscaping and public realm on Kennington Lane

Page 105
8.7.5

The layout of the revised Tesco store and its reduced car park allows greater site efficiency but would require
the building line to be brought forward on Kennington Lane. The distance varies between 2.9m and 3.22m but
adjacent to Vauxhall Street and the entrance to the car park the building line would move back 2.14m and 1m
respectively.

8.7.6

In order to provide a footway that would comply with the Mayor’s Healthy Streets objectives, the kerb line
would be brought forward to ensure a sufficient width of clear footway. This width would vary between 2.8m
to 5.77m. However the overall width of the pavement would be up to 7.2m to allow for tree planting,
landscaping, retention of the bus stop and the cycle hire dock. The new layout would provide a clearer and
more direct footway. To offset the loss of two existing street trees, five replacement trees would be planted.

8.7.7

The narrowing of the carriageway would be achieved by partially ‘straightening out’ the current layby for the
adjacent bus stop. At its widest point, the width of carriageway converted to footway would be 2.08m. It would
then taper off (see Figure 16 below). This design was developed in consultation with TfL, who control this
road. The remaining carriageway would be wider enough to implement cycle lane in each direction in future.
Fig. 16 – Alterations to carriageway on Kennington Lane

8.7.8

The footway on Vauxhall Street at the junction with Kennington Lane will increase in width by up 1.6m. This
corner would also benefit from an active frontage provided by a new commercial unit. The pedestrian
environment here would be an improvement over the existing.

Living roofs

8.7.9

2,924sqm of brown roof is proposed across Plots A and B. Such roofs would improve visual amenity, add to
biodiversity habitat, reduce water run-off and reduce heat transfer. Their exact details would be secured by
condition.

Integration with Oval Gas Works Development

8.7.10 The landscaping scheme is designed to allow for the future integration with the development of the Oval Gas
Works site. Should both developments be completed, the boundary treatment would be removed and
Phoenix Street would be completed with the landscaping integrated using matching materials. This will open
up both site to full north-south pedestrian and cycle access between Kennington Lane and Kennington Oval.

Page 106
This integration would be secured by s106.

Boundary Treatments

8.7.11 Boundary treatments would be limited to the boundary with existing properties on Kennington Lane and the
boundary with the Oval Gas Works site. As discussed above, the wall to the Oval Gas Works site would be
removed if both developments are completed. The wall with properties on Kennington Lane would be
retained. The rear wall of Plot B would bet set back at least 1.5m from this existing wall so that access from
the neighbouring properties would not be required to construct the building. Residents and other occupiers of
the development would not have access to the buffer area or be able to access a position to deposit litter or
other objects into it. Access would be restricted by 3m high gates at both ends and would only be entered for
maintenance and cleaning. This boundary treatment was developed in consultation with the Metropolitan
Police was deemed to be secure and appropriate to the site.

Conclusion

8.7.12 The proposed development would provide new public realm and the landscaping approach is acceptable
subject to appropriate conditions.

8.8

Transport

Site context

8.8.1

The application site has its main frontage onto Kennington Lane (A3204), a busy thoroughfare that is part of
TfL’s strategic road network. The site also fronts onto Vauxhall Street and Montford Place, which are much
quieter in comparison. Vauxhall Street is one way (southbound) and Montford Place two-way but is gated at
its southern end preventing access through to Kennington Green and beyond. The site benefits from
excellent Public Transport Accessibility (PTAL 6b). The local pedestrian environment is generally good and
the site would be highly accessible to pedestrians. Cyclists have the benefit of a segregated contraflow cycle
lane on Vauxhall Street as part of the Quietway network and there is an existing cycle superhighway on
Kennington Park Road.

8.8.2

The site currently has 218 parking spaces for Tesco store customers of which seven are Blue Badge spaces.

Sustainable travel

8.8.3

The application site is large and impermeable. The proposed development would provide a new east-west
pedestrian route between Vauxhall Street and Kennington Lane. It would also integrate with the Oval Gas
Works development to create a new north-south route between Kennington Lane and Kennington Oval.
These routes would be pedestrian friendly with pedestrian-priority landscaping and design. They would also
benefit from passive surveillance and active frontages. Public access to these routes would be secured in the
s106 agreement. Improvements to Montford Place would also be secured to rationalise footway obstructions
(such as bollards), refresh the paving and improve planting in accordance with the Mayor’s Healthy Streets
objectives. With these measures, the proposed development would encourage more journeys to be made on
foot.

Page 107
8.8.4

The cycle Quietway on Vauxhall Street is expected to be the main cycle route near the site. Routes through
the site would remain as pedestrian priority. These routes would be used by children on cycles and cyclists
who live or work at the development.

8.8.5

The development would provide 962 cycle spaces plus 14 short-stay spaces for residential use. 26 spaces
would be provided for the office and commercial elements with 34 external short stay spaces. The Tesco
store would have eight long stay spaces and 21 short stay spaces plus three cargo cycle spaces. All longstay spaces would be provided internally of which 10 per cent would be Sheffield Stands. The remainder
would be two-tier cycle racks. All short stay spaces would be provided as external Sheffield Stands. This level
of provision is compliant with current London Plan standards.

8.8.6

The cycle parking for Plot A would be provided at first floor level. There would be a dedicated cycle lift of the
required size as well as a stair with a cycle wheel ramp for those happy to use it.

8.8.7

A new cycle hire dock would be provided as part of the Oval Gas Works development and it is intended to
serve this development as well. However, the dock would also be secured under the s106 agreement to this
development should Oval Gas Works not come forward.

8.8.8

Contributions would also be secured towards the provision and improvement of cycle infrastructure along
Bowling Green Street and Kennington Oval. A new cycle hangar would be provided on Montford Place.

8.8.9

Electric vehicle charging points would be provided in both the Tesco customer and residential parking
spaces. Of the customer parking, 10 per cent would be active provision and fast charging and 10 percent
would be passive. Of the residential parking, 20 per cent would be active and 20 per cent would be passive.
Car parking & servicing

8.8.10 For the residential element, no parking is provided apart from 24 Blue Badge spaces and 33 Blue Badge
spaces in the basement of the Oval Gas Works development. This is in compliance with London and local
policy seeking car free developments in areas with high public transport accessibility. The Blue Badge spaces
in the Oval Gas Works basement would be secured by s106 obligation.

8.8.11 57 Wheelchair units would be provided. This is 10 per cent of the total number of dwellings. So the proposed
24 Blue Badge spaces on site and the 33 at Oval Gas Works would equal 10 per cent Blue Badge provision.
This would be secured via condition/s106 agreement.

8.8.12 62 spaces would be provided for the Tesco store (54 standard, five Blue Badge and three parent and child
spaces spaces) as well as two motorcycle spaces. Parking would be limited to 90 minutes to encourage
short stay parking only. Under the current London Plan, the maximum parking standards for retail in a PTAL 6
area is one space per 45-30 sqm. For a store with 1,365sqm of sales floor area, this would be 30 spaces.
However, the London Plan also recommends that in PTAL 6 ‘central’ areas, no customer parking is provided.
As discussed earlier, the proposed 62 spaces is substantial reduction from the existing 218 spaces (a 70 per
cent reduction). So although the development would not be car free, it would result in significantly reduced
vehicle trips compared to the existing situation.

Page 108
8.8.13 The level of customer parking would be reviewed following occupation and if there is a drop in demand, the
number of customer parking spaces would be reduced (to no fewer than 50 spaces) and the space given
over to another use to be agreed, such as additional cycle parking. This would be secured by s106
agreement.

8.8.14 No parking would be provided for the office or flexible commercial uses apart from two Blue Badge spaces in
the basement of the Oval Gas Works development, to be secured through s106 agreement. Two general
purpose visitor spaces would be provided on Phoenix Street near the entrance of the office in Plot A. Should
both this scheme and OGW come forward, there would be space to provide an additional three visitor
spaces. A car club bay would also be provided at the eastern end of Phoenix Street.
Waste and Recycling

8.8.15 Waste and recycling storage is provided within each plot. In Plot A three refuse stores would be provided for
residents. The on site management would transfer refuse from these stores to a central store located on the
ground floor where it would be compacted and readied for collection. The refuse collection vehicle would park
in a dedicated space at the western end of Phoenix Street that would be out of the way of passing traffic and
Tesco service vehicles. A similar system would operate at Plot B; refuse would be transferred from smaller
refuse stores to a larger central store where it would be compacted and then collected. The collection point
would be a loading bay on Phoenix Street. Refuse from Plot C would also be collected from this point.

8.8.16 The proposed waste and recycling scheme has been assessed by Veolia and found acceptable. Details of
refuse store design and a management strategy would be secured by conditions. The development would be
in compliance with LP Policy 5.17 and LLP Policy Q12.
Network impacts
8.8.17 LP Policy 6.3 and LLP Policy T6 require that impacts on transport capacity and the transport network are fully
assessed, including the impact on highway safety.

8.8.18 The submitted transport assessment models the predicted impact on the transport network. For the purposes
of the assessment, the proposed flexible commercial spaces (A1-A3/B1) were treated as B1 office as this
would be a worst case scenario in transport impact terms. A1-A3 use class would have a large proportion of
linked and pass-by trips.

8.8.19 The assessment found that the majority of trips generated in relation to the residential and office/commercial
uses would be undertaken by sustainable means (walking, cycling and public transport) with only around 6
per cent of trips expected to be by car or motorcycle.
8.8.20 The existing Tesco store would be replaced with a similar size store but the car parking would be reduced
from 218 spaces to 62 spaces, a 70 per cent reduction. With a reduction in on-site spaces, it is likely that the
number of vehicles trips will decrease and there would be an improvement over the existing situation. The
local streets are all within a controlled parking zone so there is little risk of overspill parking.

8.8.21 The impact that the additional travel and service trips generated by the development would have on nearby
junctions was modelled according to industry standard methods and it was found that the junctions would

Page 109
continue to work within capacity and that the change in traffic flows would be accommodated on the local
network. The analysis also accounted for the impacts of all committed major developments nearby including
Oval Gas Works.
8.8.22 As was agreed at Oval Gas Works, the number of trips generated by the level of residential parking would be
monitored and the applicant would be required to make financial contributions towards sustainable transport
provision should monitoring show that the number of these trips exceeds that predicted in the Transport
Assessment.
Public Transport
8.8.23 Given the site’s high PTAL and access to range of public transport services, TfL have confirmed that the
development is unlikely to have a significant adverse impact on Underground or bus services subject to a
financial contribution towards additional bus capacity. This would be secured by s106 agreement.

Demolition and construction impacts

8.8.24 A construction logistics plan (CLP) has been developed for both this development and the Oval Gas Works
development as they are likely to be constructed together if permission be granted for this application. The
CLP responds to concerns to about pedestrian and cyclist safety by minimising the use of as much as
Vauxhall Street as possible. During the first phase of development, when demolition and remediation would
take place, primary access and egress would be from Montford Place. For the rest of the development
programme, access would be via Vauxhall Street with egress onto Montford Place. The access on Vauxhall
Street would be the existing service access to the Tesco store, which would have been demolished following
the first phase. This would minimise the distance that construction vehicles would have to travel along
Vauxhall Street.

8.8.25 To maximise pedestrian and cyclist safety, the eastern side of Vauxhall Street would be hoarded off for the
duration of the project. Traffic marshals would monitor and control the site accesses.

8.8.26 The CLP has been submitted to discharge a condition attached to the Oval Gas Works planning permission
(ref: 18/04063/DET). As it is pending consideration, it cannot be relied upon in support of this application.
Consequently, a condition requiring the submission of the CLP would still be necessary if permission is
granted.

Mitigation

8.8.27 The following measures would be secured to mitigate the transport impacts of the proposal:


Delivery and servicing management plan



Construction Logistics Plan



Car Parking Management Plan



Electric Vehicle Charing Points



Parking permit free designation for residential



Parking permit free designation for non-residential uses



Provision of car club bay

Page 110


Three years free car club membership for residents



Free cycle hire membership for 12 months for residents



Residential and Workplace travel plans plus monitoring cost



Contribution towards bus capacity of £90,000



Legible London signage scheme contribution



Revised access to Kennington Lane to be secured by s278 agreement



Financial contributions in the event that number of car trips generated exceeds that predicted in the
Transport Assessment



Improvements to Bowling Green Street cycling route £40,000



Improvement to Vauxhall Street and Kennington Oval cycleway junction £40,000



Improvements to Montford Place

8.8.28 Subject to the above measures being secured, the proposal development would have an acceptable impact
on the network and would encourage travel by sustainable means. The development would be in compliance
with LP Policies 6.3, 6.9, 6.10 and 6.13 and LLP policies T1, T2, T3, T4, T6, T7 and T8.
8.9

Sustainable Design and Construction

8.9.1

The applicant has submitted a sustainability and energy statement setting out how the proposal would comply
with planning policies which seek to minimise carbon dioxide emissions and otherwise reduce the impact on
the environment.

Residential
8.9.2

The residential element of the development would achieve a 46.9 per cent reduction over a baseline
equivalent development compliant with the 2013 Building Regulations. This would be achieved by highly
insulated and air tight residential units with heat recovering mechanical ventilation. Windows would still be
openable to increase ventilation if desired. All dwellings would be connected to a site wide heat network
powered by a combined heat and power (CHP) network. The CHP plant would be located in the energy
centre on the first floor of Plot A. The energy centre would also power the heat network for the neighbouring
Oval Gas Works development. This would avoid the need for two energy centres and allow for greater
efficiencies. The CHP would provide 75 per cent of the heat over the year with peak loads served by
communal gas boilers. Connection to an existing heat network was explored but the nearest existing network
is the VNEB heat network, the operator of which could not commit to securing a connection. It is also too far
away and would require a connection across the railway which would be difficult to install. Finally, 560sqm of
solar PV would be provided across the development. Together these measures would achieve savings in
excess of the 35 per cent required by LP Policy 5.2. The use of a decentralised heat network would be in
compliance with LP Policies 5.5 and 5.6.

Carbon offsetting

8.9.3

The London Plan requires residential development to achieve 100 per cent reduction (zero carbon) through
carbon offsetting. The residential development achieves an on-site reduction of 46.9 per cent leaving 53.1 per
cent to be offset. This is equivalent to 346.6 tonnes of CO 2. The carbon offset contribution is set at £1,800 per
tonne of CO2 resulting a contribution of £623,880. This would be secured by s106 agreement.

Tesco

Page 111
8.9.4

The Tesco store would be highly insulated and air tight with heat recovery installed in the ventilation systems.
Energy efficient LED lighting would also be used. These ‘Be Lean’ measures would result in a 34.2 per cent
improvement over the 2013 building regulations baseline.

8.9.5

The store would not be connected to the communal heat network. Heating demands for a food store are very
low and the use of high efficiency air source heat pumps would be more appropriate. With the addition of
solar PV, the food store would achieve an overall carbon reduction of 35 per cent, in compliance with London
Plan policy.

Commercial units

8.9.6

The office and retail units would be well insulated and air tight with heat recovering ventilation. Low energy
LED lighting would be installed with smart controls to adapt to natural lighting conditions. These commercial
units would also connect to the communal heating network and the benefit of the solar PV, the overall saving
would be 35.2 per cent for the office and 35 per cent for the flexible retail units, in compliance with London
Plan policy.

BREEAM

8.9.7

The non-residential elements are designed to achieve ‘Very Good’ rating. There are practical difficulties in
achieving excellent where the units are to provide as ‘shell only’. This is because one particular credit
required for ‘Excellent’ known as Ene01 involves a detailed specification for the final fit out, which is difficult to
be certain of at this stage. However, all but one of the mandatory credits required for the ‘Excellent’ rating
would be achieved. The council’s independent sustainability consultants are satisfied with this approach and
the development would be in compliance with LLP Policy EN4(b)(i).

Overheating and Cooling

8.9.8

Dwellings at risk of overheating would benefit from solar control glazing which reduces solar gain; mechanical
ventilation; natural ventilation afforded by windows and external shading from balconies. Active cooling is not
required to achieve comfortable temperatures. Solar control glazing would also be installed in the nonresidential elements. The development would be in compliance with LP Policy 5.9.

Water use

8.9.9

The residential element would include a series of water saving measures to achieve the above target
including low-flush toilets, low-flow taps and showers, maximum bath capacities, managed water pressures
and water meters. A condition would be imposed requiring further details of this to ensure that the 105L per
person per day target under LP Policy 5.15 is reached.

8.9.10 Non-residential water use would be reduced through the use of water efficient fixtures and fittings in line with
BREEAM requirements.
Materials

Page 112
8.9.11 A condition would be imposed requiring details of sustainable sourcing of products and materials.

8.10

Community Health

8.10.1 The proposed housing meets relevant space, design and energy standards and would be warm, dry and
safe. Residents would have access to new and existing public realm and social infrastructure and would not
suffer from noise or exposure to poor air quality.

8.10.2 The development would deliver housing in a highly accessible location and would encourage walking and
cycling. Contributions would be make towards providing a cycle hire station and free membership for a limited
time. Travel plans would also be secured to encourage travel by more healthy means.

8.10.3 The socio-economic assessment contained in the Environmental Statement assessed the availability of GPs
and the impact that the development would have on demand. Officers engaged with Lambeth’s Public Health
service and the Lambeth Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) in developing the masterplan and assessing
the impact on GP provision. This assessment for the masterplan informed the environmental statement that
supports this application. The GP practices referred to are all in operation with no plans for closure.
8.10.4 The development would have an estimated 1,029 residents generating a need for 0.57 of GP based on the
Healthy Urban Development Unit’s (HUDU) recommendation of 1,800 patients per GP. There are ten
surgeries located within a 1.2km radius of the site and the currently there are 1,839 patients for GP, which is
above the HUDU recommendation. Of the five GP practices that have the application site in their catchment
area and would therefore be obliged to accept patients, the ratio is 2,169 patients for GP. Consequently,
there is no current capacity for the additional residents. Additional GP capacity is funded through the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). It should be noted that the neighbouring Oval Gas Works development
includes a 147sqm D1 space that could be occupied by a GP practice.
8.10.5 The Oval Gas Works development would generate a need for 0.73 of a GP. Combined with the Tesco
development, the additional demand would be 1.3 GPs. This could be provided in the D1 space at Oval Gas
Works.
8.10.6 The proposed development would be in compliance with LP Policy 3.2.

8.11

Education

8.11.1 The socio-economic assessment in the environmental statement concludes that within 1.2km of the site there
are currently 620 surplus primary school places, which would be sufficient to accommodate the additional
estimated 60 primary school age children arising from the development as well as the 79 children estimated
from the Oval Gas Works development. For secondary schools, there are 201 surplus secondary school
places within 1.2km of the site however many secondary pupils are also able to travel further than this. This
surplus is sufficient to accommodate the 46 secondary school age children arising from the development as
well as the 55 children from the Oval Gas Works development. There would be no significant impact on
school places.

Page 113
8.12

Other Environmental Matters
Flood Risk

8.12.1 The site is within Flood Risk Zone 3a (high) which means that there is a 1 per cent or greater annual
probability of river flooding or 0.5 per cent annual probability of sea flooding. However, the actual risk is
lowered significantly due to the presence of the Thames Tidal Defences. In this risk zone, all development
must satisfy the sequential test for development set out in the NPPF and ‘more vulnerable’ uses, such as
residential, must meet the Exception Test. For the Exception Test to be passed:


it must be demonstrated that the development provides wider sustainability benefits to the community
that outweigh flood risk, informed by a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment where one has been
prepared; and



a site-specific flood risk assessment must demonstrate that the development will be safe for its
lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its users, without increasing food risk elsewhere, and,
where possible, will reduce food risk overall.

8.12.2 In respect of the first point, the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community. It
would redevelop a site that is current dominated by parking to provide 571 new homes of which 35 per cent
would be affordable, new employment and commercial space, improved public realm and new publicly
accessible routes through the site. Officers consider these benefits outweigh the flood risk.

8.12.3 For the second point, the submitted flood risk assessment demonstrates that development would be safe for
its lifetime. All bedrooms would be above the relevant flood level (between 3.8 and 4.2m AOD) and units
would have a clear means of escape during a flood event. The submission of a Flood Evacuation Plan would
be secured by a condition and the applicant would be advised to subscribe to the Environment Agency’s
Flood Warning Service. The risk of flooding from drainage infrastructure and surface water is low. The risk of
increasing flood risk elsewhere would be mitigated with an appropriate drainage strategy, discussed below.
8.12.4 The proposed development meets the above exception test.
Sustainable Drainage
8.12.5 The existing site has a surface water drainage system but with no attenuation of flows so all surface water
drains immediately into the sewer. With the new development, the aim is reduce flows to 5L/s, which is the
lowest flow that can be practically achieved. This would be done by using two below ground attenuation tanks
that would hold surface water and release it at the controlled rate of 5L/s. These tanks would have a
combined volume of 662m3 which would be sufficient for a 1 in 30 year rain event. An additional 800m3
would be needed to handle a 1 in 100 year flood event and the applicant has demonstrated that this
additional capacity could be provided in additional attenuation tanks, within the sub-base material under
permeable paving and within soft landscaping. Lawn, woodland and herbaceous planting as well as a rain
garden would provide further attenuation. A condition would be applied requiring the submission of an
updated detailed drainage strategy that would confirm the above features so that the development can
respond to a 1 in 100 year event.

Air Quality

Page 114
8.12.6 The whole Borough is within an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and in such areas developments
should be at least ‘air quality neutral’ and not lead to further deterioration of existing poor quality. The impact
on air quality during demolition/construction and operation are discussed below.

8.12.7 The estimated transport and buildings emissions for this developed would be below the benchmark levels set
by the GLA. As such, it could be considered to be ‘air quality neutral’. A condition would be applied requiring
the CHP and boiler systems to be compliant with GLA emission standards.
Demolition and construction

8.12.8 As the development consists of demolition, earthworks and construction and the sensitivity of nearby
receptors (residential and non-residential buildings), the development has a high risk of impacting on air
quality without appropriate mitigation. Accordingly, a full Air Quality and Dust Management Plan (AQDMP)
would be required by condition and it would need to follow the guidance for high risk sites set out in the
Control of Dust and Emissions During Construction and Demolition SPG (2014). In addition, automatic
continuous PM10 monitoring and compliance of non-road mobile machinery with emissions regulations would
be required by conditions.

8.12.9 The proposed development would be in compliance LP Policy 7.14.

Wind and Microclimate

8.12.10 A model of the proposed development was wind-tunnel tested in order to assess the resulting wind conditions
and the impact on pedestrian comfort. The testing did not include trees or landscaping so that scenario tested
would be the worst case scenario. The study found that across the majority of the site, wind conditions would
be suitable for sitting and standing without the need for mitigation measures. Mitigation would be required in
some particular locations. Tree planting would be required near a ground floor entrance to Plot B off Cutlers
Way and solid side screens or balustrades would be required on the corner balconies on Plot A to achieve
the target comfort levels. A condition would be applied securing these details should permission be granted.

8.12.11 Wind conditions for a scenario which includes the Oval Gas Works development were also tested and it was
found that conditions would still be acceptable. The wind test also demonstrated that there would be no
significant impact on wind conditions for surrounding development.

8.12.12 The development would be in compliance with LP Polices 7.7 and LLP Policy Q26.
Solar Glare

8.12.13 Due to the dominance of non-reflective materials on the exterior of the development there would be little risk
of harmful solar glare.

Ecology and Biodiversity

8.12.14 The existing site has very little ecological value and its development with the delivery of new landscaping
provides an opportunity to support biodiversity. Conditions would secure detailed landscaping plans,
schedules and maintenance details and these would need to incorporate species and landscaping features

Page 115
that benefit biodiversity. Conditions would also require the submission of details of the living roofs. Subject to
these conditions, the development would contribute positively to the biodiversity objectives of LP Policies
7.19 and LLP Policy EN1.

Water Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure

8.12.15 Thames Water have advised that additional infrastructure would be required to reinforce the water supply to
this development and recommended a condition be attached to secure this. Several informatives have also
been recommended to provide advice regarding the protection of underground water and sewer
infrastructure. Subject to this condition and these informatives the development would be in compliance with
LP Policy 5.14.

Contaminated Land

8.12.16 The applicant carried out a preliminary risk assessment for ground contamination and it found the site to be at
low risk. However, a condition would be imposed to deal with any eventuality that contamination is found
which has not been anticipated. Subject to this condition, the risk of contamination arising from this
development is low and the development would be in compliance with LP policy 5.21.

8.13

Employment and Training

8.13.1 The development is estimated to support up to 160 net additional permanent jobs (accounting for the existing
jobs in the Tesco store). During demolition, construction and thereafter existing Tesco staff would be
deployed to the temporary and permanent stores or offered hours elsewhere locally. The demolition and
construction phase would also generate up to 196 full time equivalent jobs directly and 157 jobs indirectly
through the supply chain and through additional spending by the workforce.

8.13.2 Lambeth seeks to maximise local employment opportunities and help address skills deficits in the local
population. Accordingly, the s106 legal agreement would secured an Employment and Skills Plan (ESP)
developed in accordance with the Employment and Skills SPD (Feb 2018) with the following key
requirements:


Reasonable endeavours to secure 25 per cent of jobs created by the development during
construction and first 2 years of end-use occupation for local residents



Engagement with local school and colleges to promote the skills and qualifications needed for
employment in the commercial sectors of the end-use occupiers in place during the first two
years of the development

8.13.3 The Employment and Skills SPD also seeks a monetary contribution to help support those sections of the
Lambeth workforce that are furthest from employment, having been out of work for a long period of time
and/or having low levels of skills. The financial contributions will be used by the council to fund training and
support to enable access to newly created employment opportunities arising from development for those who
may struggle to access the opportunities without extra support, in particular the long-term unemployed and
young people. The contribution is calculated according to a formula set out in the draft SPD:

Page 116
Residential element: £6,500 for every 10 units = £370,500

Commercial element:
New floor area/floor area per employee (based on HCA employment densities)
X
25 per cent of Lambeth residents expected to be employed as part of total workforce
X
17.8 per cent of Lambeth residents with qualifications equivalent to or less than NVQ1 requiring training
and /or support
X
£6,500 average cost for Lambeth unemployed resident in terms of support and training to obtain access
to a skilled job

8.13.4 For this development the contribution would be £370,500 (residential) plus £58,695.50 (office) and
£25,787.75 (flexible commercial – assumed B1) totalling to £454,983.25. However, Berkeley have
established employment programmes and the capacity to deliver on some objectives using their in house
programmes rather than contribute financially towards the council doing so. As such, the council’s Economic
Inclusion service have agreed that some of the employment and skills plan would be delivered by Berkeley
in-house as an in-kind contribution. The value of this in-kind contribution is £209,738.40. Accordingly the
financial contribution sought in the s106 would be £245,244.85.
9

Planning Obligations and CIL

9.1

The LLP Policy D4 and Annex 10 sets out the Council’s policy in relation to seeking planning obligations and
the charging approaches for various types of obligation. For contributions that are not covered by Annex 10,
the Council’s approach to calculating contributions is guided by the Development Viability SPD (adopted
2017) and the Employment and Skills SPD (adopted 2018).

9.2

The planning obligations that are proposed are considered necessary to make the development acceptable in
planning terms, are directly related to the development and are fairly and reasonably related in kind and in
scale to the development. They are therefore compliant with the requirements of Regulation 122 of the
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010.

9.3

The proposed obligations to be secured through the S106 Agreement are as follows:
Item
Affordable housing

Details
236 units of affordable housing with the following mix:
Social rent:
32 x 1-bed
34 x 2-bed
49 x 3-bed
Rent levels would be in accordance with Lambeth’s Tenancy Strategy.
These are based on Local Housing Allowance (LHA) levels for one and
two bed units and Social Target Rents (STR) for three bed units
Shared Ownership:
26 x 1-bed
26 x 2-bed

Page 117
6 x 3-bed
Overall monthly cost to be no greater than 40 per cent of local income
Non-implementation
viability review

A viability review will be required if commencement of foundation and
piling works does not occur within two years of obtaining full vacant
possession of the site. If the review shows improved viability, an
additional affordable housing payment would be made up to a
maximum equivalent to 40 per cent by habitable room.

Wheelchair units

10 per cent of units to be wheelchair adaptable in accordance with
Building Regulations M4(3)

Employment and Skills

Employment skills plan:
 Reasonable endeavours to secure 25 per cent of jobs created
by the development during construction and first 2 years of
end-use occupation for local residents


Engagement with local school and colleges to promote the
skills and qualifications needed for employment in the
commercial sectors of the end-use occupiers in place
during the first two years of the development

Supporting local
enterprise
Transport

Financial contribution of £245,244.85
Seek to secure a 20 per cent minimum of the total value of all contracts
locally


Parking permit free designation for residential uses



Parking permit free designation for non-residential uses



Provision of car club bay



Three years free car club membership for residents



Free cycle hire membership for 12 months for residents



Residential and Workplace travel plans plus monitoring cost



Contribution towards bus capacity of £90,000



Legible London signage scheme contribution of £25,000
secured if Oval Gas Works is not implemented



Revised access to Kennington Lane to be secured by s278
agreement



Junction improvement to Kennington Lane and Cutlers way to
be secured by s278 agreement



Junction improvement to Montford Place/Kennington Lane and
Vauxhall Street/Kennington Lane to be secured by s278
agreement



Provision of 28 space cycle hire dock if Oval Gas Works not
implemented



Re-location of cycle hire dock on Kennington Lane



Improvements to Montford Place




£3,000 to provide cycle hangar on Montford Place
Contribution to Durham Street crossing



Improvements to Bowling Green Street cycling route £40,000



Improvement to Kennington Oval Cycle Route £40,000

Page 118


Financial contributions in the event that number of car trips
generated exceeds that predicted in the Transport Assessment
(as per Oval Gas Works)
-

Payment up to £197,043

-

Monitoring over 5 years with payment of £49,261 due after
2, 3, 4 and 5 year if trips exceed TA predictions



Monitoring of use of Tesco car park and reduction in spaces if
demand is lower than anticipated (to no fewer than 50 spaces
unless otherwise agreed)

Off-site Playspace

Financial contribution of £20,988 towards playspace provision at local
parks
Public art - £40,000

Public Art
Access to public realm

New public realm would be secured for public access in accordance
with an agreed public realm phasing strategy.
The public realm would be required to be integrated with the Oval Gas
Works site when that development comes forward.

Carbon offset

Payment of £623,880 to achieve equivalent of Zero Carbon for
residential element

Legal and monitoring

The cost of monitoring of the implementation of the s106 agreement
would be met by a financial contribution.

costs

The developer shall pay the reasonable and proper legal and
monitoring costs of the Council associated with negotiation and
enforcement of the section 106 agreement.
Access to amenity

Residents of Plot C to be given access to communal amenity space at
Plot 4 of OGW

space at OGW Plot 4
Provision of off-site Blue
Badge parking
Item
Affordable housing

33 Blue Badge spaces to be provided at Oval Gas Works site from
implementation

Details
236 units of affordable housing with the following mix:
Social rent:
32 x 1-bed
34 x 2-bed
49 x 3-bed
Rent levels would be in accordance with Lambeth’s Tenancy
Strategy. These are based on Local Housing Allowance (LHA) levels
for one and two bed units and Social Target Rents (STR) for three
bed units
Shared Ownership:
26 x 1-bed
26 x 2-bed
6 x 3-bed
Overall monthly cost to be no greater than 40 per cent of local
income

Page 119
Phasing to be agreed.

Nonimplementation
viability review

A viability review will be required if commencement of foundation and
piling works does not occur within two years of obtaining full vacant
possession of the site. If the review shows improved viability, an
additional affordable housing payment would be made up to a
maximum equivalent to 40 per cent by habitable room.

Wheelchair units

10 per cent of units to be wheelchair adaptable in accordance with
Building Regulations M4(3)

Employment and
Skills

Employment skills plan:
 Reasonable endeavours to secure 25 per cent of jobs
created by the development during construction and first 2
years of end-use occupation for local residents


Engagement with local school and colleges to promote
the skills and qualifications needed for employment in the
commercial sectors of the end-use occupiers in place
during the first two years of the development

Supporting local
enterprise
Transport

Financial contribution of £245,244.85
Seek to secure a 20 per cent minimum of the total value of all
contracts locally


Parking permit free designation for residential uses



Parking permit free designation for non-residential uses



Provision of car club bay



Three years free car club membership for residents



Free cycle hire membership for 12 months for residents



Residential and Workplace travel plans plus monitoring cost



Contribution towards bus capacity of £90,000



Legible London signage scheme contribution of £25,000
secured if Oval Gas Works is not implemented



Revised access to Kennington Lane to be secured by s278
agreement



Junction improvement to Kennington Lane and Cutlers way
to be secured by s278 agreement



Junction improvement to Montford Place/Kennington Lane
and Vauxhall Street/Kennington Lane to be secured by s278
agreement



Provision of 28 space cycle hire dock if Oval Gas Works not
implemented



Re-location of cycle hire dock on Kennington Lane



Improvements to Montford Place
-

Improved green estate in according to Health Streets
objective

Page 120
-

De-paving part of carriage way south of vehicular
entrance to Beefeaters site

-

Modular paving appropriate to the conservation area

-

Granite kerbs to match existing

-

Rationalisation of signage and bollards




£3,000 to provide cycle hangar on Montford Place
Contribution to Durham Street crossing



Improvements to Bowling Green Street cycling route £40,000



Improvement to Kennington Oval Cycle Route £40,000



Financial contributions in the event that number of car trips
generated exceeds that predicted in the Transport
Assessment (as per Oval Gas Works)
-

Payment up to £197,043

-

Monitoring over 5 years with payment of £49,261 due
after 2, 3, 4 and 5 year if trips exceed TA predictions



Monitoring and amendment to Tesco and Temporary Tesco
car parks
-

Survey after 1, 3 and 5 years

-

Survey to include in and out movements and dwell times
to assess parking utilisation and accumulation

-

Survey to be undertaken during opening hours on a
Thursday and Saturday

-

If surveys show weakened demand for parking space,
the excess parking space(s) must be removed and
replace with a use to be agreed with the LPA

Off-site Playspace
Public Art
Access to public
realm

No more than 12 spaces removed

Financial contribution of £20,988 towards playspace provision at local
parks
Public art - £40,000
New public realm would be secured for public access in accordance
with an agreed public realm phasing strategy.
The public realm would be required to be integrated with the Oval
Gas Works site when that development comes forward.

Carbon offset

Payment of £623,880 to achieve equivalent of Zero Carbon for
residential element

Legal and

The cost of monitoring of the implementation of the s106 agreement
would be met by a contribution of £56,406

monitoring costs

The developer shall pay the reasonable and proper legal and
monitoring costs of the Council associated with negotiation and
enforcement of the section 106 agreement.

Page 121
Access to amenity
space at OGW

Residents of Plot C to be given access to communal amenity space
at Plot 4 of OGW

Plot 4
Provision of off-site
Blue Badge

33 Blue Badge spaces to be provided at Oval Gas Works site from
implementation

parking
9.4

If the application is approved and the development is implemented, a liability to pay the Lambeth Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will arise.

9.5

The Lambeth CIL contribution is estimated, on the basis of information supplied with the planning application,
to be £5,115,176.58 assuming CIL relief is applied to the affordable housing elements. Expenditure of the
majority of a future CIL receipt will be applied towards Borough infrastructure needs as contained in the
published CIL Regulation 123 List, which defines what CIL may be spent on. 25 per cent of the CIL receipt
will be applied towards local neighbourhood spend, in the North Lambeth Local Investment Plan (CLIP) area
in which the development is located. Local neighbourhood funding from CIL may be applied to infrastructure
needs in line with the CIL Regulation 123 List, or to anything else that is concerned with addressing the
demands that the development places on an area.

Allocation of CIL monies to particular infrastructure projects is not a matter for consideration in the
determination of planning applications. Separate governance arrangements are being put in place for
Borough Infrastructure needs, and locally through the Cooperative Local Investment Plan initiative.
10

CONCLUSION

10.1

The application proposes to redevelop the existing Tesco store and adjacent Axis Europe office buildings to
provide 571 residential units (Class C3), a replacement Tesco store of 4,655sqm (including sales area/back
of house and car parking), 2,638sqm of Class B1 office, 1,159sqm of flexible commercial floorspace (Class
A1-A3, B1), 62 retail and 24 on-site disabled residential car parking spaces; with associated cycle parking
and landscaping/public realm improvements along Cutlers Way and Phoenix Street.

10.2

The development is in compliance with the Development Plan. The proposed retail and office uses would
provide employment and not harm nearby town centres. The development would provide much needed
housing of an acceptable quality, including a high level of affordable housing, at a density that makes
optimum use of the site without exhibiting symptoms of overdevelopment. The level of affordable housing
meets the Mayor’s threshold for the Fast Track approach, which waives the requirement for a viability
assessment.

10.3

The layout and design of the development is logical and of high quality. It responds positively to its context
while also securing the optimum development potential of the site. The heights of the buildings are
acceptable and would not harm strategic or protected local views.

10.4

Officers have had special regard to the desirability of preserving the listed building or its setting or any
features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses as well as to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. Officers have identified that
the development would result in ‘less than substantial harm’ and have had regard to the statutory

Page 122
presumption against granting planning permission for development which would harm a heritage asset.
Mindful of this presumption and the considerable importance and weight that is given to any harm, officers
consider that the cumulative ‘less than substantial harm’ would be outweighed by the public benefits of the
scheme.

10.5

The development would have an acceptable impact on the highway and transport network. Full provision of
Blue Badge parking would be provided on-site and on the neighbouring Oval Gas Works site. Full cycle
parking would also be provided and servicing would take place on-site. The impact on public transport would
be acceptable and a contribution towards increased bus capacity would be secured.

10.6

The development would have an acceptable overall impact on neighbouring residential amenity. There is an
impact on daylight and sunlight for some neighbouring properties, but the impact would affect the rear of
these dwellings only and leaving the rest of the dwelling unaffected. The impact would be due to the effects of
developing a currently open site and commensurate to an urban area. There are isolated instances of close
proximity to neighbouring properties but overlooking would be prevented through careful design.

10.7

The development would meet technical requirements in respect of sustainability, flood risk mitigation, wind
conditions, waste and recycling, water infrastructure and land decontamination. The application is
accompanied by an Environmental Statement which has been reviewed and found compliant with relevant
regulations.

10.8

Planning permission would be subject to a s106 legal agreement securing 35 per cent affordable housing and
suite of other appropriate obligations to mitigate the impact of the scheme. In addition the development
would be liable for a community infrastructure levy of approximately £5.1m.

10.9

Public consultation was undertaken before and after submission of the application. 28 objections, 2
comments in support and one neutral comment were received in response to the formal planning
consultation. The points raised are addressed in this report.

10.10

The proposed development has been assessed against the Development Plan and all other material
considerations, including national planning policy. Officers consider that subject to appropriate conditions
and s106 legal agreement the planning application should be approved.

11

PROCEDURAL MATTERS

11.1

The application is referable to the Mayor under the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Mayor of
London) Order 2008. The application has been referred to the Mayor at ‘Stage 1’. Before Lambeth can issue
a decision on this application it will need to refer the application again to the Mayor at Stage 2; at which point
the Mayor will have the opportunity to elect to become determining authority, direct refusal, or allow Lambeth
to proceed and issue the decision in line with its resolution.

11.2

The application is also referable to the Secretary of State under the provisions of the Town and Country
Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2009 as it is an application for development outside town centres

Page 123
where the floorspace of retail, leisure or offices uses is 5,000sqm or more. The application would be referred
following receipt of the Mayor’s Stage 2 response.

12

EQUALITY DUTY AND HUMAN RIGHTS

12.1

In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty the council must have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In
making this recommendation, regard has been given to the Public Sector Equality Duty and the relevant
protected characteristics (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex, and sexual orientation).

12.2

In line with the Human Rights Act 1998, it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a way which is
incompatible with a Convention right, as per the European Convention on Human Rights. The human rights
impact have been considered, with particular reference to Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection of
property), Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) of
the Convention.

12.3

The Human Rights Act 1998 does not impair the right of the state to make decisions and enforce laws as
deemed necessary in the public interest. The recommendation is considered appropriate in upholding the
council's adopted and emerging policies and is not outweighed by any engaged rights.

13

RECOMMENDATION

1. Resolve to grant conditional planning permission subject to the completion of an agreement under Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 containing the planning obligations listed in this report and
any direction as may be received following further referral to the Mayor of London and the Secretary of State.

2. Agree to delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and Development to:

c.

Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report, addendums and/or PAC minutes; and

d. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in this report, addendums and/or
PAC minutes pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

3. In the event that the committee resolves to refuse planning permission and there is a subsequent appeal,
delegated authority is given to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and Development, having regard
to the heads of terms set out in this report and PAC minutes, to negotiate and complete a document
containing obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in order to meet
the requirement of the Planning Inspector.

4. In the event that the Section 106 Agreement is not completed within three months of committee, delegated
authority is given to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and Development to refuse planning
permission for failure to enter into a section 106 agreement for the mitigating contributions identified in this
report and the PAC minutes.

Page 124

Page 125
APPENDICES
Appendix 1:Draft Decision Notice

Page 126
Your Ref:
Our Ref: 18/02597/EIAFUL

1 Berkeley Homes (Central London Ltd)
1.1 c/o Mr Grant Leggett
2nd Floor, 24 Southwark Bridge Road
London
SE1 9HF

21st November 2018

DRAFT DECISION NOTICE
1.1.1

Dear Berkeley Homes (Central London Ltd)

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990.
PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
The London Borough of Lambeth hereby permits under the above mentioned Acts and associated orders the
development referred to in the schedule set out below subject to any conditions imposed therein and in
accordance with the plans submitted, save in so far as may otherwise be required by the said conditions.
In accordance with the statutory provisions your attention is drawn to the statement of Applicant’s Rights and
General Information attached.
Application Number: 18/02597/EIAFUL
21.11.2018

Date of Application: 21.06.2018

Date of Decision:

Proposed Development At: Tesco Stores, 275 Kennington Lane And 145-149 Vauxhall Street London SE11
For: Demolition of existing building and redevelopment of the site to provide a mixed-use development comprising
the erection of 3 new buildings (Plot A,B,C) ranging from 4-17 storeys to provide 571 residential units (Class C3), a
replacement Tesco store of 4,655sqm (including sales area/back of house and car parking), 2,638sqm of Class B1
office, 1,159sqm of flexible commercial floorspace (Class A1-A3, B1), 64 retail and 24 disabled residential car
parking spaces; with associated cycle parking and landscaping/public realm improvements along Cutlers Way and
Phoenix Street.
This application is accompanied by an Environmental Statement (ES) which is available for inspection with the
planning application documents. Paper and CD copies of the Environmental Statement may be purchased from
Ramboll, 240 Blackfriars Road, London, SE1 8NW (tel: 0207 808 1420).
RECONSULTATION DUE TO CLARIFIED SITE ADDRESS

1.1.2

Approved Plans

TK_GRID_PL 001 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 010 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 020 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 021 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 022 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 023 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 100 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 105 REV

Lambeth Planning
PO Box 734

Telephone 020 7926 1180
Facsimile 020 7926 1171

Page 127
Winchester
SO23 5DG

www.lambeth.gov.uk
planning@lambeth.gov.uk
PEEIAZ

Page 128
P1;TK_GRID_PL 120 REV P2; TK_GRID_PL 121 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 122 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 123 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 124 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 125 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 128 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 129 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 130 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 131 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 132 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 133 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 134 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 137 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 140 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 141 REV
P2;TK_GRID_PL 142 REV P2; TK_GRID_PL 144 REV P2;TK_GRID_PL 145 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 146 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 147 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 148 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 149 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 150 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 151 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 153 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 156 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 160 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 161 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 165 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 170 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 300 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 301 REV P2; TK_GRID_PL 302 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 303 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 304 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 305 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 311 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 312 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 313 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 314 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 315 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 316 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 317 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 318 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 319 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 320 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 321 REV
P2;TK_GRID_PL 322 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 323 REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 324 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 325 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 326 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 327 REV P2;TK_GRID_PL 328 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 331 REV
P1;TK_GRID_PL 332 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 333REV P1;TK_GRID_PL 334 REV P1; TK_GRID_PL 335 REV
P1;Covering letter; Design and Access statement;Landscape Design and Access Statement;Planning
Statement;Affordable Housing Statement;Daylight and Sunlight statement June 2018;Daylight and sunlight:
amenity within the site reportSeptember 2018;Energy Statement June 2018;Environmental Statement: Nontechnical summary June 2018;Environmental Statement Volume 1;Environmental Statement Volume
2;Environmental Statement Vol. 3A: Technical Appendices;Environmental Statement Vol. 3B: Transport
Assessment;Heritage Statement;Retail Impact assessment June 2018;Retail Impact assessment Supplementary
Note;Statement of Community Involvement June 2018Sustainability Statement June 2018;Response to LBL
Energy and Sustainability comments August2018; Be Green calculations;Letter re: Environmental Statement
Review 04.09.2018;APSH shortfalls received 05.09.2018;Email from Asa Plant 11.09.2018;251 Kennington Lane
daylight/sunlight results;Overshadowing assessment 251 Kennington Lane Sept 2018;Cutlers Way Public Realm
Clarification September 2018;Kennington Lane Southern Footway Improvements - Update Oct 2Response to GLA
Energy Comments Sept 2018;Kennington Lane Public Realm Clarification October 2018.Pedestrian Impact
Comparison October 2018

1
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (As Amended).
2
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved plans listed in
this decision notice, other than where those details are altered pursuant to the requirements of the conditions of this
planning permission.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3
Prior the commencement of development, a phasing plan for the development hereby approved shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plan.
Reason: In order to secure the proper implementation of the development. This is required prior to commencement
to ensure that the phasing for all works, including initial demolition, is properly considered.
4

The foodstore shall be made available for occupation at the same time as the residential elements in the same plot.

Reason: To ensure that the benefits of the commercial elements are provided as early as possible (Policy ED2 of
the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
5

The foodstore hereby permitted shall have a sales floor area of no more than 1,365sqm.

Reason: In order to manage the impact on the nearby town centres (Policy ED6 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
6
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as
amended) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that order with or without modification) the B1(a) uses hereby permitted
shall not change use to C3 residential without the prior written permission of the local planning authority.

Page 129
Reason: To safeguard the employment floorspace provided by the development (Policies ED1 and ED2 of the
Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
7
The food store hereby permitted shall not be open to customers other than between 0700 and 2200 Mondays
to Saturdays and 0730 and 1700 Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of adjoining
occupiers or of the area generally. (Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policies Q2).
8
The foodstore customer car park shall be closed to the public and secured other than between the hours of 0700 to
2300 Mondays to Saturdays and 0730 to 1800 Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining premises or of the area generally. (Lambeth Local Plan 2015
Policies Q2).
9
Other than for operational purposes associated with the store, when the customer carpark is closed it shall not be
used for any purpose.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining premises or of the area generally. (Lambeth Local Plan 2015
Policies Q2).
10
The flexible commercial units (A1/A2/A3 and B1) hereby permitted shall not operate other than between 0730
and 2300 each day.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of adjoining
occupiers or of the area generally. (Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policies Q2).
11
The communal roof terraces hereby approved shall not be used between the hours of 2300 and 0600 the following
day, Monday to Sunday.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of nearby residents (Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan).
12
The foodstore hereby permitted shall not commence until a customer management plan has been submitted and
approved in writing by the local planning authority for each proposed use. This should include but not be limited to, hours of
operation, management responsibilities during all operating hours, measures to control noise from live and amplified music
(including the screening of sporting events and public-address systems) and minimising the effects of patrons coming and
going from the building will be prevented from causing nuisance for people in the area. The use hereby permitted shall
thereafter be operated in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of nearby residents (Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan).
13
Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved drawings, prior to the commencement of above podium level
works, construction drawings (including sections at 1:10 scale of all external elements of the new structures (including rain
water goods, soffits, copings, ledges, reveals and balcony screens where required) shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and
retained permanently thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory (policies Q2, Q7 and Q8 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)). This is required pre-commencement to ensure that the entire
development is carried out in accordance with the approved details.
14
Prior to the commencement of the relevant part of the development hereby permitted, the following details of the
materials to be used in the external elevations of that part of the development shall be provided to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The development hereby permitted shall be thereafter built in accordance with the approved
details. The following details are required:
a) a technical specification schedule of the materials
b) a sample panel to be provided on site
c) a photographic record of the sample panels, taken on site at midday
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory (Policies Q2, Q7 and Q8 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan 2015).

Page 130
15
Prior to installation of glazing to each of the ground floor commercial units, details of the proposed glazing shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in
accordance with the approved details and retained permanently thereafter.
Reason: In order to secure active frontages for the commercial units (Policy ED6 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
16
The lowest 800mm (or to a height above this deemed suitable for the design of the window) of all full height, street
facing bedroom windows on the ground, first and second floors (where not behind a balcony) shall be obscured or fritted
glazing.
Reason: In order to maintain an orderly appearance. (Policies Q2 and Q8 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
17
At least 90 per cent of the residential flats hereby permitted shall be designed so that they meet building regulation
M4 (2) - 'accessible and adaptable dwellings' and at least 10 per cent of the residential flats hereby permitted shall be
designed so that they meet building regulation M4 (3) 'Wheelchair user dwellings'.
Reason: To secure appropriate access to housing for disabled people, in accordance with Policy 3.5 of the London
Plan (2016).
18

All communal spaces and entrances to buildings shall be fully wheelchair accessible.

Reason: To ensure the development is accessible to all users. (London Plan 2016 Policy 7.2 and Lambeth Local
Plan 2015 Policy Q1).
19
Prior to the commencement of above ground construction works, an application for Secured by Design
Certification shall be made for the development hereby approved.
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory attention is given to security and community safety (Policy Q3 of the Lambeth
Local Plan (2015)). This is required pre-commencement to ensure that construction work does not prejudice the
achievement of Secured by Design certification.
20
Prior to final occupation, evidence of the development having achieved Secure by Design certification shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory attention is given to security and community safety (Policy Q3 of the Lambeth
Local Plan (2015)).
21
Prior to the commencement of the relevant part of the development hereby permitted, a soft and hard landscaping
scheme including tree planting, and play equipment, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The development hereby permitted shall be thereafter carried out in accordance with the approved details within 6
months of the date of occupation. All tree, shrub and hedge planting included within the above specification shall accord with
BS3936:1992, BS4043:1989 and BS4428:1989 (or subsequent superseding equivalent) and current Arboricultural best
practice. The submitted details are expected to include the following:
a) The quantity, size, species, position and the proposed time of planting of all trees and shrubs to be planted
b) Justification for the chosen species;
c) An indication of how they integrate with the proposal in the long term with regard to their mature size and
anticipated routine maintenance and protection.
d) Specification of which shrubs and hedges to be planted that are intended to achieve a significant size and presence
in the landscape.
e) Details of all materials to be used
Reason: In order to introduce high quality soft landscaping in and around the site in the interests of the ecological
value of the site and to ensure a satisfactory landscaping of the site in the interests of visual amenity (Lambeth
Local Plan Policy Q9). This is required pre-commencement to ensure that no construction takes place which could
prejudice the implementation of an acceptable landscaping scheme.
22
All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first
planting and seeding season following the occupation of the development hereby permitted or the substantial completion of
the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees, hedgerows or shrubs forming part of the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of five years from the occupation or substantial completion of the development die, are removed or
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species,
unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Page 131
Reasons: In order to introduce high quality soft landscaping in and around the site in the interests of the ecological
value of the site and to ensure a satisfactory landscaping of the site in the interests of visual amenity (Lambeth
Local Plan Policy Q9).
23
Prior to the implementation of the landscaping scheme, a horticultural management plan shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan shall set out how the planting will be managed for a minimum
of five years to ensure full and successful establishment of plants and trees. The plans shall identify all areas that will be under
communal management and clearly specify that properly qualified horticulturists will be contracted to manage the site. The
planting shall be thereafter managed in accordance with the approved management plan.
Reason: In order to ensure the long term successful establishment of the planting in the interests of ecology and
visual amenity (Lambeth Local Plan Policy Q9).
24
Prior to occupation of each plot, a lighting scheme must be submitted for the approval of the Local Planning
Authority in accordance with the Institute of Lighting Professional's Guidance notes for the reduction of obstructive light.
The scheme must be designed by a suitably qualified person in accordance with the recommendations for environmental zone
E3 in the ILP document "Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light GN01:2011. The development shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details and retained and properly maintained thereafter.
Reason: To protect the amenities of adjoining occupiers and the surrounding area (policy Q2 of the London
Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015).
25
Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved drawings, prior to the commencement of above ground
construction work, details of all boundary treatments shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and retained and properly
maintained thereafter.
Reason: To secure an acceptable boundary treatment in the interests of visual amenity (Lambeth Local Plan 2015
Policy Q15). This is required pre-commencement to ensure that construction does not take place in a way
prejudices the implementation of an acceptable scheme of boundary treatment.
26
No above podium level construction works shall take place until full details of an extensive brown roof which shall
be compliant with GRO Green Roof Code 2011 has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority prior to the implementation of the relevant part of the development hereby approved. The submission must
provide/comprise the following information:
a.
Details on materials used in the design, construction and installation of the brown roof based on the Green Roof
Code and the use of biodiversity based extensive/semi-intensive soils;
b.
Details on substrate and plants used in the brown roof, based on a commercial brick-based aggregate or equivalent
with a varied substrate depth of 80 -150mm planted with 50% locally native herbs/wildflowers in addition to a variety of
sedum species;
c.
Details on additional features to the proposed brown roof, such as areas of bare shingle, areas of sand for burrowing
invertebrates and individual logs or log piles.
d.
An ecological management and maintenance plan including landscape features and a cross section of the brown roof.
The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the details approved, shall be maintained as such
thereafter and no alterations to the approved scheme shall be permitted without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. Evidence that the brown roof has been installed in accordance with the details above
should be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority prior to first occupation.
Reason: In order to promote biodiversity and rainwater attenuation on the site. (Policy 5.11 of the London Plan
(2016) and Policy EN4 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
27
Prior to the occupation of the development, an Estate Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby permitted shall thereafter be managed and maintained in
accordance with the Management Plan. The submitted details will include details of how the development will be managed
including security, cleaning and maintenance regimes and the co-ordination of refuse, deliveries, removal and access for
trades people.
Reason: To ensure that the development is maintained properly in the interest of safety and residential amenity
(Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policies Q2 and Q3).

Page 132
28
The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Construction and Environmental Management
Plan (CEMP) for each phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP
shall include details of the following relevant measures:
i. An introduction consisting of construction phase environmental management plan, definitions and abbreviations and
project description and location;
ii. A description of management responsibilities;
iii. A description of the construction programme which identifies activities likely to cause high levels of noise or dust;
iv. Site working hours and a named person for residents to contact;
v. Detailed Site logistics arrangements;
vi. Details regarding parking, deliveries, and storage;
vii. Details of an air quality and dust management plan;
viii. Details noise mitigation measures to be deployed including identification of sensitive receptors and ongoing
monitoring;
ix. Details of the hours of works and other measures to mitigate the impact of construction on the amenity of the area and
safety of the highway network; and
x. Communication procedures with the LBL and local community regarding key construction issues - newsletters, fliers etc.
The construction shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the details and measures approved in the
CEMP for the related phase, unless the written consent of the Local Planning Authority is received for any
variation.
Reason: To ensure minimal nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of adjoining
occupiers and of the area generally, and to avoid unnecessary hazard and obstruction to the public highway
(Policies EN4 (Sustainable Design and Construction), EN7 (Sustainable Waste Management) & T8 (Servicing) Lambeth Local Plan 2015). This is required prior to commencement to ensure that all stages of demolition and
construction are carried out in an acceptable manner.
29
Prior to the commencement of building works above podium level, of the relevant part of the development, full
details (including elevational drawings) and a tabulated Schedule of any proposed internal and external plant equipment and
trunking, including building services plant, ventilation and filtration equipment and commercial kitchen exhaust ducting /
ventilation, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All flues, ducting and other
equipment shall be installed in accordance with the approved details prior to the use commencing on site and shall thereafter
be maintained in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of future residential
occupiers or of the area generally (Policy Q2 (Amenity) - Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
30
The operation of any building services plant, shall not commence until an assessment of the acoustic impact
arising from the operation of all internally and externally located plant for each plot has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority.
The assessment of the acoustic impact shall be undertaken in accordance with BS 4142: 2014 (or subsequent
superseding equivalent) and current best practice, and shall include a scheme of attenuation measures to ensure
the rating level of noise emitted from the proposed building services plant is 5db less than background.
31
The use hereby permitted, or the operation of any building services plant, shall not commence until a post- installation
noise assessment has been carried out to confirm compliance with the noise criteria. The scheme shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details and attenuation measures, and they shall be permanently retained and maintained in
working order for the duration of the use and their operation.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of future residential
occupiers or of the area generally (Policy Q2 (Amenity) - Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
32
Prior to the commencement of above ground construction works for each phase, a scheme of noise and vibration
attenuation shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall achieve the
habitable and commercial room standards as detailed in BS8233:2014 with no relaxation for exceptional circumstances and
must include details of post construction validation. The submitted details must demonstrate how the residential units in Plot B
that are adjacent to the Pilgrim Public House, 247 Kennington Lane, SE11 5QU would be adequately protected from noise
disturbance from that public house. The approved noise and vibration attenuation measures shall thereafter be retained and
maintained in working order for the duration of the use in accordance with the approved details.

Page 133
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of future occupiers
(Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
33
Prior to the commencement of above ground construction works for each phase, a scheme of measures to ensure that
all residential units have access to amenity space within the development where noise levels do not exceed 55dB LAEQ(16
hour) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of post
construction validation. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and a separate
validation report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 3 months prior to occupation.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of future occupiers
(Policy Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
34
Prior to the commencement of above ground construction works a scheme of mitigation of the impact of the
development hereby permitted on local wind microclimate shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The scheme shall ensure that all external spaces achieve the relevant standards set out in the Lawson Comfort
Criteria, allowing for cumulative development and including mitigation of any identified off-site impacts. The scheme of
mitigation shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and mitigation measures, and they shall be fully
installed prior to occupation and permanently retained and maintained for the duration of the use and their operation.
Reason: To protect the amenities of future residential occupiers and the surrounding area (Policy Q2 of the
Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
35
Any variation to the layout or built form of the development shall be accompanied by a revised Wind
Microclimate Assessment which details any additional identified adverse wind
microclimate impacts. Any additional steps required to mitigate these impacts shall be detailed and implemented,
as necessary. The revised assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority and the
details as approved shall thereafter be permanently retained.
Reason: To protect the amenities of future residential occupiers and the surrounding area (Policy Q2 of the
Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
36
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then no further
development shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Local Planning
Authority for, a remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected contamination will be dealt with.
Reason: To safeguard future users or occupiers of this site and the wider environment from irreversible risks
(Policies 5.21 of the London Plan (2015) and EN4 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
37
Noise from any source of amplified sound, speech or music shall not exceed the background noise level L90B(A)
15 minutes, when measured from outside the building.
Reason: To protect the amenities of future residential occupiers and the surrounding area (Policies 7 and 29 of
Lambeth's Unitary Development Plan and Policy S2 of Lambeth's Core strategy).
38
Prior to above ground construction works, full details of the CHP district heating network, including but not limited
to feasibility work, demand/supply calculations, futureproofing, thermal stores, network schematic, plant rooms and pipe
sizes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved plan.
Reason: In order to secure the most suitable and efficient way to create and distribute heat in the interests of
reducing carbon emissions (London Plan 2016 Policies 5.2 and 5.6 and Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policies EN3
and EN4). This is required prior to commencement to ensure that development is not carried out in a way which
prejudices the heating network.
39
Prior to commencement of above ground works, the Site Waste Management Plan should be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Authority demonstrating fully how construction waste will be minimised and recycling of
materials will be prioritised with construction waste not exceeding 13.3 cubic metres of waste per 100 square metre.
Reason: In order to minimise waste and disposal to landfill in the interest of sustainable development (Policy EN7
Lambeth Local Plan Lambeth Local Plan 2015). These details are required prior to commencement as they have
implications for the demolition and construction phases of the development.

Page 134
40
Three months following occupation of the building, a report shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority outlining all efforts made to procure locally and minimise the environmental impact of procurement
(referring to the BRE's Green Guide to Specification where relevant) for all significant building materials and elements.
Reason: In order to secure the highest environmental performance of the development. (London Plan 2016 Policy
5.3 and Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy EN4).
41
Prior to first occupation of each plot evidence (schedule of fittings and manufacturer's literature) should be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing to show that the development has been constructed in
accordance with the approved internal water use calculations.
Reason: In order to encourage sustainable use of water. (London Plan 2016 Policy 5.15 and Lambeth Local Plan
2015 Policy EN4)
42
Prior to above ground construction works, a Design stage BREEAM 2014 Shell Only assessment showing how the
development achieves at least 63% and Very Good must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: In order to improve environmental performance (Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy EN4). This is required
pre-commencement to ensure that development is not carried out in a way which prejudices the achievement of
the required BREEAM standards.
43
Within six months after occupation of the relevant part of the development, a Post-construction stage BREEAM
2014 Shell Only assessment showing how the development achieves at least 63% and Very Good must be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to improve environmental performance (Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy EN4).
44
Prior to above ground construction works, full Design Stage calculations and block compliance sheets undertaken
using the National Calculation Method demonstrating how carbon emissions have been minimised in line with the approved
energy strategy for the residential element must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the development makes the fullest contribution to the reduction in carbon emissions (London
Plan 2016 Policy 5.2 and Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy EN4). This is required pre-commencement to ensure
that development is not carried out in a way which prejudices achievement of the relevant energy standards.
45
Prior to above ground construction works, full Design Stage calculations and block compliance sheets undertaken
using the National Calculation Method demonstrating how carbon emissions have been minimised in line with the approved
energy strategy for the non-residential element must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the development makes the fullest contribution to the reduction in carbon emissions (London
Plan 2016 Policy 5.2 and Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy EN4). This is required pre-commencement to ensure
that development is not carried out in a way which does not prejudice achievement of the relevant energy
standards
46
Within three months of final occupation of the residential element, evidence (e.g. photographs, installation contracts
and as-built certificates under the National Calculation Method) must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and
approved in writing to show that the development has been constructed in accordance with approved Energy Strategy.
Reason: To ensure the development makes the fullest contribution to the reduction in carbon emissions (London
Plan 2016 Policy 5.2 and Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy EN4).
47
Within three months of final occupation of the residential element, evidence (e.g. photographs, installation contracts
and as-built certificates under the National Calculation Method) must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and
approved in writing to show that the development has been constructed in accordance with approved Energy Strategy.
Reason: To ensure the development makes the fullest contribution to the reduction in carbon emissions (London
Plan 2016 Policy 5.2 and Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy EN4).

Page 135
48
Prior to above podium level construction works, plans, elevations and sections of the roof showing the
photovoltaic array should be submitted for approval to the Local Planning Authority showing how the required quantity of
PV will be accommodated, along with a full BRUKL Design stage assessment showing the same quantity of PV and
demonstrating at least a 35% reduction in emissions across all sustainability measures. The photovoltaic array shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details and retained and properly maintained permanently thereafter.
Reason: To ensure the development makes the fullest contribution to the reduction in carbon emissions (Policy
EN4 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015 and Policy 5.2 of the London Plan 2016). This is required precommencement to ensure that development is not carried out in a way which prejudices achievement of the
required amount of Solar PV generation.
49
No development shall commence until an Air Quality and Dust Management Plan (AQDMP) is submitted to and
approved and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The AQDMP must follow the guidance for High Risk sites
mitigation measures set out in Appendix 7 of the Control of Dust and Emissions during Construction and Demolition SPG
2014 and both 'highly recommended' and 'desirable' measures shall be included unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority. The AQDMP can form part of the Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP).The
AQDMP shall include the following for each relevant phase of work (demolition, earthworks, construction and trackout):
a) A summary of work to be carried out;
b) Proposed haul routes, location of site equipment including supply of water for damping down, source of water, drainage
and enclosed areas to prevent contaminated water leaving the site;
c) Inventory and timetable of all dust and NOx air pollutant generating activities;
d) List of all dust and emission control methods to be employed and how they relate to the Air Quality (Dust) Risk
Assessment;
e) Details of any fuel stored on-site;
f) Details of a trained and responsible person on-site for air quality (with knowledge of pollution monitoring and control
methods, and vehicle emissions);
g) Summary of monitoring protocols and agreed procedure of notification to the local authority; and
h) A log book for action taken in response to incidents or dust-causing episodes and the mitigation measure taken to remedy
any harm caused, and measures employed to prevent a similar incident reoccurring.
No demolition or development shall commence until all necessary pre-commencement measures described in the
AQDMP have been put in place and set out on site. The demolition and development shall thereafter be carried out
and monitored in accordance with the details and measures approved in the AQDMP.
Reason: In order to mitigate the impact on air quality Development must not commence before this condition is
discharged to manage and mitigate the impact of the development on the air quality and dust emissions in the area
and London as a whole, and to avoid irreversible and unacceptable damage to the environment (London Plan
policies 5.3 and 7.14, and the London Plan SPGs for Sustainable Design and Construction and Control of Dust and
Emissions during Construction and Demolition).
50
Baseline monitoring of PM10 shall commence at least three months before the commencement of the development
and thereafter monitoring shall continue throughout demolition and construction. Details of the equipment to be used, its
positioning, additional mitigation trigger levels and alert system shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of baseline monitoring. The monitoring shall be undertaken in accordance
with the approved details.
Reason: In order to mitigate the impact on air quality (London Plan 2016 Policy 7.14). This is required precommencement to ensure that no demolition or construction takes place without proper consideration of air quality
impacts.
51
No demolition or development shall commence until all non-road mobile machinery (NRMM) to be used at the
demolition and construction phases on site has been registered at 'https://nrmm.london/user-nrmm/register' and that all
registered NRMM is compliant with the NRMM Low Emission Zone requirements.
Reason: To ensure that air quality is not adversely affected by the development (Policy 7.14 of the London Plan
(2016)). Registration of all non-road mobile machinery is required prior to commencement as they must be
registered before they are used for any demolition or construction work to ensure they do not adversely affect air
quality.
52
Prior to installation, the proposed Combined Heat and Power (CHP) plant and gas boiler system must meet the
emission standards set out in the GLA's Sustainable Design and Construction Supplementary Planning Guidance 2014 (or
its later versions). Full details of the proposed CHP plant and gas boiler system, as well as stack locations, height,
dispersion rate and impact assessment on neighbouring existing and future receptors

Page 136
should be submitted to the Council for approval. Details of the proposed CHP should be provided using Combined
Heat and Power System information request form.
Reason: To ensure that air quality is not adversely affected by the development (Policy 7.14 of the London Plan
(2016)).
53
No construction shall commence until a detailed drainage scheme designed with regard to the drainage hierarchy set
out in the London Plan, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage scheme
shall be implemented and maintained in accordance with the approved details and retained permanently thereafter. No
discharge of foul or surface water from the site shall be accepted into the public system until the drainage works referred to in
the strategy have been completed. No drainage systems for the infiltration of surface water drainage into the ground are
permitted other than with the express written consent of the Local Planning Authority. The drainage scheme shall include:
a.
The final surface water drainage design to scale, showing all connections, SuDS and water storage details for the
entire site
b.
Details of how the scheme achieves betterment compared to the existing peak surface water runoff rates from the
site
c.
Details of a rainwater harvest system
d.
Details of how trees and planters will be located to maximise betterment
e.
Any offsite consents required, such as agreed surface water discharge consents from Thames Water Utilities
f.
A maintenance and management plan for the proposed drainage scheme
Reason: To manage the water environment of the development and mitigate the impact on flood risk, water quality,
habitat and amenity value (Policies EN5 and EN6 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015) and Policy 5.13 of the London
Plan (2016)). This is required pre-commencement to ensure that construction work does not prejudice the
implementation of an appropriate drainage strategy.
54
Prior to the occupation of the development, a flood evacuation plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The flood evacuation plan shall be implemented during the use of the development hereby
approved.
Reason: In order to mitigate the impact of a flood event on users of the development (London Plan Policy 5.12 and
Lambeth Local Plan Policy 2015 EN5).
55
20 per cent of all residential parking spaces shall be fitted with active electric vehicle charging points and 80 per
cent shall be fitted with passive electric vehicle charging points.
Reason: In order to encourage the uptake of electric vehicles to reduce local emissions (London Plan 2016 Policy
6.13).
56
10 per cent of all food store customer parking spaces shall be fitted with active electric vehicle charging points
and 10 per cent shall be fitted with passive electric vehicle charging points.
Reason: In order to encourage the uptake of electric vehicles to reduce local emissions (London Plan 2016 Policy
6.13).
57
Prior to commencement of above ground construction works for each plot and notwithstanding the details shown on
the approved drawings, details of cycle parking for each plot shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and full accordance with the approve details. The cycle parking for
each plot shall be made available for use prior to first occupation of that plot.
Reason: To provide acceptable cycle parking in order to encourage sustainable means of transport (London Plan
2016 Policy 6.9 and Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy T3).
58
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, a deliveries and servicing management plan for all uses
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The submitted details must include the
following:
a) frequency of deliveries to the site;
b) frequency of other servicing vehicles such as refuse collections;
c) dimensions of delivery and servicing vehicles;
d) proposed loading and delivery locations; and
e) a strategy to manage vehicles servicing the site.

Page 137
The development hereby permitted shall thereafter be operated in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To avoid obstruction of the surrounding streets and limit the effects of the increase in travel movements
within the locality as well as safeguarding public safety and the amenity of the surrounding area (policies T1, T6,
T8 and Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
59
Vehicles shall only service the site between the hours of 0700 and 2300 hours Mondays to Saturdays and 0800 to
1800 hours on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Reason: To protect residential amenity (Policies T8 and Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
60
The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) for each phase has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority for each phase. The CLP shall include details of
parking, deliveries and storage and confirm that the developer will join the VNEB construction working group.
The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the details and measures approved in the CLP
for the related phase, unless the written consent of the Local Planning Authority is received for any variation.
Reason: To avoid unnecessary hazard and obstruction to the public highway (Policies EN4 (Sustainable Design
and Construction), EN7 (Sustainable Waste Management) & T8 (Servicing) - Lambeth Local Plan 2015). This is
required pre-commencement to ensure that the entire development is not carried out in a way which causes harm
to the transport network.
61
Prior to occupation of the development, full details of a car parking management strategy for the management of
parking within the development, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Operation of the
carpark shall thereafter be carried out solely in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority and Transport for London may be satisfied as to the effects of
the scheme on the adjacent road network so as to avoid hazard or obstruction to the public highway (Policy T7 of
the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.)
62
Prior to the commencement of above ground construction, design and construction details of the refuse storage areas
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details and retained permanently thereafter.
Reason: To ensure suitable provision for the users of the development, to encourage the sustainable management
of waste and to safeguard the visual amenities of the area (Policy Q12 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015)). This is
required pre-commencement to ensure that development is not carried out in a way which prejudices the provision
of acceptable refuse stores.
63
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, a Waste Management Strategy shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development hereby permitted shall be built in accordance with the
approved details and shall thereafter be retained solely for its designated use. The use hereby permitted shall thereafter be
operated in accordance with the approved Waste Management Strategy.
Reason: To ensure suitable provision for the occupiers of the development, to encourage the sustainable
management of waste and to safeguard the visual amenities of the area (Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy Q12).
64
No development other than demolition to ground level shall take place until a stage 1 written scheme of
investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included
within the WSI, no demolition or development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed WSI, and the
programme and methodology of site evaluation and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the
agreed works.
A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme and methodology of site investigation and
recording and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works
B. The programme for post-investigation assessment and The planning application lies in an area of
archaeological interest.
If heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by stage 1 then for those parts of the site which have
archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing.
For land that is included within the stage 2 WSI, no demolition/development shall take place other than in
accordance with the agreed stage 2 WSI which shall include:

Page 138
A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme and methodology of site investigation and
recording and the nomination of a competent person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works
B. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis, publication & dissemination and deposition
of resulting material. This part of the condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in accordance
with the programme set out in the stage 2 WSI.
Reason: Heritage assets of archaeological interest may survive on the site. The planning authority wishes to
secure the provision of appropriate archaeological investigation, including the publication of results, in accordance
with Section 12 of the NPPF, London Plan 2016 Policy 7.8 and Lambeth Local Plan Policy Q23. This is required
pre-commencement to ensure that construction work does not harm existing archaeological assets.
65

No properties shall be occupied until confirmation has been provided that either:

- all water network upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows from the development have been
completed; or
- a housing and infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed with Thames Water to allow additional properties to be occupied.
Where a housing and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with the
agreed housing and infrastructure phasing plan.
Reason - The development may lead to no / low water pressure and network reinforcement works are anticipated
to be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity is made available to accommodate additional demand anticipated
from the new development (Policy 5.15 of the London Plan 2016).
66
No piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the depth and type of piling to be undertaken
and the methodology by which such piling will be carried out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for
damage to subsurface water infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority in consultation with Thames Water. Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the
terms of the approved piling method statement.
Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground water utility infrastructure. Piling has the
potential to impact on local underground water utility infrastructure.
67
No part of the development shall be occupied until all hazardous substances consents for Kennington Gasholder
Station have been revoked in accordance with the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990, as amended, and written
confirmation of the necessary revocations have been issued by the London Borough of Lambeth as the Hazardous
Substances Authority.
Reason: In the interests of health and safety, it is necessary to ensure that the adjoining gas infrastructure will not
present a risk to safety.

1.1.3

Notes to Applicants:

In dealing with this application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National Planning Policy
Framework (2012) to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner. The council has made available
on its website the policies and guidance provided by Lambeth Local Plan (2015) and its supplementary planning
documents. We also offer a full pre-application advice service in order to ensure that the applicant has every
opportunity to submit an application that’s likely to be considered acceptable.

1.
This decision letter does not convey an approval or consent which may be required under any enactment, by-law,
order or regulation, other than Section 57 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2.
Your attention is drawn to the requirements of the Building Regulations, and related legislation which must be
complied with to the satisfaction of the Council's Building Control Officer.
3.
Your attention is drawn to the provisions of The Party Wall Act 1996 in relation to the rights of adjoining owners
regarding party walls etc. These rights are a matter for civil enforcement and you may wish to consult a surveyor or architect.
4.
Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the requirements of the Control of Pollution Act 1974
concerning construction site noise and in this respect you are advised to contact the Council's Environmental Health
Division.

Page 139
5.
You are advised of the necessity to consult the Principal Highways Engineer of the Highways team in order to obtain
necessary prior approval for undertaking any works within the Public Highway including Scaffold, Temporary/Permanent
Crossovers, Oversailing/Undersailing of the Highway, Drainage/Sewer Connections and Repairs on the Highways, Hoarding,
Excavations, Temporary Full/Part Road Closures, Craneage Licenses etc. Please to go to http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/businessservices-rates-and- licensing/licence-applications/highways- licences-guide.
6.
Informative: For information on the NRMM Low Emission Zone requirements please visit
'http://nrmm.london/nrmm''
7.

Owners, operators and occupants should register with Flood Warnings Direct.

8.
Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat trap on all catering establishments. We
further recommend, in line with best practice for the disposal of Fats, Oils and Grease, the collection of waste oil by a
contractor, particularly to recycle for the production of bio diesel. Failure to implement these recommendations may result
in this and other properties suffering blocked drains, sewage flooding and pollution to local watercourses.
9.
There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. If you are planning significant work near our sewers,
it's important that you minimize the risk of damage. Thames Water will need to check that your development doesn't reduce
capacity, limit repair or maintenance activities, or inhibit the services Thames Water provide in any other way. The applicant
is advised to read Thames Water's guide working near or diverting our pipes.
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-development/Working-near-or- diverting-ourpipes.
10.
The proposed development is located within 15m of Thames Waters underground assets, as such the
development could cause the assets to fail if appropriate measures are not taken. Please read Thames Water's guide
'working near our assets' to ensure your workings are in line with the necessary processes you need to follow if you are
considering working above or near Thames Water pipes or other structures.
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-development/Working-near-or- divertingour-pipes. Should you require further information please contact Thames Water. Email:
developer.services@thameswater.co.uk
11.
There are water mains crossing or close to your development. Thames Water do NOT permit the building over or
construction within 3m of water mains. If you are planning significant works near our mains (within 3m) Thames Water will
need to check that your development doesn't reduce capacity, limit repair or maintenance activities during and after
construction, or inhibit the services we provide in any other way. The applicant is advised to read the Thames Water guide
working near or diverting our pipes: https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-yourdevelopment/Working-near-or- diverting-our-pipes .
12.
Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted in all car parking/washing/repair
facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol / oil interceptors could result in oil-polluted discharges entering
local watercourses.
13.
Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a suitably qualified professionally
accredited archaeological practice in accordance with Historic England's Guidelines for Archaeological Projects in Greater
London. This condition is exempt from deemed discharge under schedule 6 of The Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.
14.
It is recommended that the on-going archaeological interest can be secured by a two-stage condition. The first stage
will encompass a trial trench evaluation of the eastern portion of the site. The mitigation second stage of the condition will
include as a minimum a programme of pro-active observation and recording within the western portion of the site. The
possible need for a mitigation stage for the eastern area can only be determined at the conclusion of the evaluation and the
submission of the results as a report. Further information on archaeology and planning in Greater London including
Archaeological Priority Areas is available on the Historic England website.
15.
The applicant is advised to submit a fire statement produced by a third party, suitably qualified assessor for
consideration by the Local Planning Authority.
16.
In applying to discharge condition 32, the applicant should demonstrate particular regard to the Agent of Change
Principle with respect to the established Pilgrim Public House, 247 Kennington Lane, SE11 5QU. The development should be
designed to ensure that this established noise generating use remains viable and potential noise impacts are fully mitigated.

Page 140

1.2

Yours sincerely

Rob Bristow
Assistant Director Planning, Transport & Development

1.3

Growth, Planning and Employment

Directorate Date printed: 21st November

2018

Page 141
1.3.1

INFORMATION FOR APPLICANTS GRANTED PLANNING PERMISSION SUBJECT
TO CONDITIONS, OR WHERE PERMISSION HAS BEEN REFUSED.

General Information
This permission is subject to due compliance with any local Acts, regulations, building by-laws and
general statutory provisions in force in the area and nothing herein shall be regarded as dispensing with
such compliance or be deemed to be a consent by the Council thereunder.
Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Building Regulations 1985 and related legislation which
must be complied with to the satisfaction of the Council’s Building Control Officer, Phoenix House, 10
Wandsworth Road, SW8.
The Council’s permission does not modify or affect any personal or restrictive covenants, easements, etc.,
applying to or affecting the land or the rights of any person entitled to the benefits thereof.
STATEMENT OF APPLICANT’S RIGHTS ARISING FROM THE REFUSAL OF PLANNING
PERMISSION OR FROM THE GRANT OF PERMISSION SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS.

1.3.2

Appeals to the Secretary of State

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the local planning authority to refuse permission or
approval for the proposed development or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions, he may
appeal to the Secretary of State in accordance with Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 within six months from the date of this notice. Appeals must be made on a form which is obtainable
from The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/13 Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol
BS1 6PN. Alternatively an Appeal form can be downloaded from their website at
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate. The Secretary of State has power to allow
longer period for the giving of a notice of appeal but he will not normally be prepared to exercise this
power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal. The
Secretary of State is not required to entertain an appeal if it appears to him that permission for the
proposed development could not have been granted by the local planning authority, or could not have
been so granted otherwise than subject to the conditions imposed by them, having regard to the statutory
requirements, to the provisions of the development order, and to any directions given under the order.

1.3.3

Purchase Notice

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the local planning
authority or by the Secretary of State for the Environment, and the owner of the land claims that the land
has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of
reasonable beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted,
he may serve on the London Borough of Lambeth a purchase notice requiring that Council to purchase his
interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Section 137 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.

1.3.4

Compensation

In certain circumstances, a claim may be made against the local planning authority for compensation,
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State for the
Environment on appeal or on a reference of the application to him. The circumstances in which such
compensation is payable are set out in Section 120 and related provision of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

Page 142
Appendix 2: List of consultees (statutory and Other Consultees)
External Consultees
Veolia Waste (Lambeth waste contractor)
Greater London Authority
Transport for London
Environment Agency
Highways Agency
Historic England
Historic England - Archaeology
Health and Safety Executive
London Borough of Southwark
London Borough of Wandsworth
Development Control Department Thames Water
L.F.C.D Authority (London Fire Brigade)
Natural England
Secured by Design (Metropolitan Police)

Other external bodies
Oval Liberal Democrats
Victorian Society
Georgian Group
Greater London Industrial Archaeology Society (GLIAS)
Save Britain’s Heritage
Kennington Park Road Residents Association and Neighbourhood Watch (KPRRANW)
Oval & Kennington Residents Association (OAKRA)
Cleaver Square, Cleaver Street and Bowden Street Residents' Association
Kennington Oval Community Action Group
Friends Of Kennington Park
Kennington Oval & Vauxhall Forum
Heart Of Kennington Residents' Association
Friends Of Lambeth High Street Rec
Friends of Vauxhall Spring Gardens
Friends Of Kennington Park
The Vauxhall Society
Vauxhall Neighbourhood Housing Forum
Kennington Association Planning Forum
Regents Bridge Gardens Ltd
Ashmole Estate Tenants Association
Ashmole Tenants Assoc
Bonnington Square Residents

Page 143
Fentiman Road & Richbourne Terrace Residents Association
Harleyford Court Tenants Association
Hanover Gardens Association
Hanover Gardens Residents Association
Oval Mansions
Vauxhall Gardens Estate Resident and Tenant Association
Vauxhall One Business Improvement Districts

Page 144
Appendix 3: List of materially relevant policies in London Plan, Lambeth Local Plan. Reference to
SPGs, SPD and other relevant guidance
National Planning Policy Framework 2018
National Planning Practice Guidance
The London Plan (2016) (‘LP’)

2.9

Inner London

3.1

Ensuring Equal Life Chances for All

3.2

Improving Health and Addressing Health Inequalities

3.3

Increasing Housing Supply

3.4

Optimising Housing Potential

3.5

Quality and Design of Housing Developments

3.6

Children and Young People’s Play and Informal Space

3.7

Large Residential Developments

3.8

Housing Choice

3.9

Mixed and Balanced Communities

3.10

Definition of Affordable Housing

3.11

Affordable Housing Targets

3.12

Negotiating Affordable Housing on Individual Private Residential and Mixed Use Schemes

3.13

Affordable housing thresholds

4.1

Developing London’s Economy

4.2

Offices

4.3

Mixed Use Development and Offices

4.7

Retail and Town Centre Development

4.8

Supporting a successful and diverse retail sector and related facilities and services

4.9

Small Shops

4.11

Encouraging a Connected Economy

4.12

Improving Opportunities for All

5.1

Climate Change Mitigation

5.2

Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

5.3

Sustainable Design and Construction

5.4A Electricity and Gas Supply
5.5

Decentralised Energy networks

5.6

Decentralised Energy in development proposals

6.7

Renewable Energy

5.9

Overheating and Cooling

5.10

Urban Greening

5.11

Green Roofs and Development Site Environs

5.12

Flood Risk Management

5.13

Sustainable Drainage

Page 145
5.14

Water Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure

5.15

Water Use and Supplies

5.17

Waste Capacity

5.21

Contaminated Land

5.22

Hazardous Substances Installations

6.3

Assessing Effects of Development on Transport

6.9

Cycling

6.10

Walking

6.13

Parking

7.1

Lifetime Neighbourhoods

7.2

An Inclusive Environment

7.3

Designing out Crime

7.4

Local Character

7.5

Public Realm

7.6

Architecture

7.7

Location and Design of Tall and Large Buildings

7.8

Heritage Assets and Archaeology

7.12

Implementing the London View Management Framework

7.13

Safety, Security and Resilience To Emergency

7.14

Improving Air Quality

7.15

Reducing and Managing Noise, Improving and Enhancing the Environment and Promoting
Appropriate Soundscapes

7.18

Protecting Open Spaces and Addressing Deficiency

7.19

Biodiversity and Access to Nature

8.2

Planning Obligations

8.3

Community Infrastructure Levy

Lambeth Local Plan (2015) (‘LLP’)
D2

Presumption in favour of sustainable development

D4

Planning obligations

H1

Maximising housing growth

H2

Delivering affordable housing

H4

Housing mix in new developments

H5

Housing standards

ED3

Large offices (greater than 1,000m 2)

ED6

Town centres

ED7

Evening economy and food and drink uses

ED9

A2 Uses

ED10

Local centres and dispersed local shops

ED14

Employment and training

T1

Sustainable travel

Page 146
T2

Walking

T3

Cycling

T4

Public transport infrastructure

T6

Assessing impacts of development on transport capacity and infrastructure

T7

Parking

T8

Servicing

EN1

Open space and biodiversity

EN3

Decentralised energy

EN4

Sustainable design and construction

EN5

Flood risk

EN6

Sustainable drainage systems and water management

EN7

Sustainable waste management

Q1

Inclusive Environments

Q2

Amenity

Q3

Community Safety

Q4

Public Art

Q5

Local Distinctiveness

Q6

Urban design: public realm

Q7

Urban design: new development

Q8

Design quality: construction detailing

Q9

Landscaping

Q10

Trees

Q12

Refuse/recycling storage

Q13

Cycle storage

Q15

Boundary treatments

Q16

Shop fronts

Q20

Statutory listed buildings

Q21

Registered parks and gardens

Q22

Conservation areas

Q23

Undesignated heritage assets: local heritage list

Q25

Views

Q26

Tall and large buildings

PN8

Kennington/Oval

Other Guidance
London Plan Guidance (SPG)
Affordable Housing and Viability SPG (August 2017)
Housing SPG (March 2016)
Social Infrastructure (May 2015)
Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment (October 2014)
The control of dust and emissions during construction and demolition (July 2014)

Page 147
Town Centres (July 2014)
Shaping Neighbourhoods: Character and Context (June 2014)
Shaping Neighbourhoods: Play and Informal Recreation (2012)
Sustainable Design and Construction (April 2014)
London View Management Framework (March 2012)
Transport Strategy (March 2018)

Lambeth Guidance
Development Viability SPD (2017)
Refuse & Recycling Storage Design Guide
Waste Storage and Collection Requirements - Technical Specification
Air Quality Planning Guidance Notes
Employment and Skills SPD (February 2018)

Page 148
Appendix 4: Other relevant Plans and Photos
Parking layout

Servicing access

Material continuity across OAKDA site

Page 149

Podium amenity space

Page 150

Rooftop amenity space

Ground floor uses: Tesco (red), Flexible commercial (orange), office access (yellow)

Page 151

Page 152

Appendix 5: Retained VSC, NSC and APSH values for affected windows in nearest Kennington
properties
Window

Room Use

251 Kennington Lane
1
Kitchen
2
Bedroom
3
Living Room
4
Kitchen
253 Kennington Lane
1
Bedroom
2
Living Room
3
Kitchen
255 Kennington Lane
1
Living Room
2
Living Room
3
Kitchen
4
Kitchen
5
Bedroom
6
Kitchen
7
Bedroom
257 Kennington Lane
1
Bedroom
2
Bedroom
3
Living/kitchen/dining
4
Living/kitchen/dining
5
Living/kitchen/dining
6
Living/kitchen/dining
7
Unknown
8
Bedroom
9
Living/kitchen/dining
10
Living/kitchen/dining
11
Living/kitchen/dining
12
Living/kitchen/dining
13
Unknown
14
Bedroom
15
Living/kitchen/dining
16
Living/kitchen/dining
17
Living/kitchen/dining
18
Bedroom
19
Living/kitchen/dining
20
Living/kitchen/dining
259 Kennington Lane
1
Bedroom
2
Bedroom
3
Bedroom
4
Living
5
Living
6
Living
7
Living

VSC
(%)

NSL (%)

APSH
(%)

APSH Winter
only (%)

13.3
9.8
17.4
19.8

59.7
31.8
59
67.5

32
21
50
58

2
0
4
7

11.2
16.8
18.7

39.7
59.2
73.7

23
50
53

1
6
6

10.4
11.8
8.4
13.1
16.3
18.2
19.9

32
(same room)
74.1
(same room)
57.7
84.8
55.1

23
21
13
34
47
48
55

0
0
1
1
4
3
6

19.4
13.1
32.1
29.6
20.2
13.1
13.3
15.6
33.9
15.4
31.4
28.4
15
20.2
34.9
35
20.2
27.5
36
27.8

48.5
54.9
98.3
(same room)
(same room)
(same room)
91.9
68.2
99
(same room)
(same room)
(same room)
89.6
77.5
99.6
(same room)
(same room)
92.5
96
(same room)

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
33
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
34
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
2
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
2
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a
n/a

30.6
15.7
14.6
6.7
33.4
28.5
26.5

98.5
(same room)
(same room)
16.2
98.1
(same room)
(same room)

n/a
n/a
n/a
9
n/a
n/a
n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
0
n/a
n/a
n/a

Page 153
8
Living
9
Bedroom
10
Bedroom
11
Bedroom
12
Bedroom
13
Bedroom
14
Bedroom
15
Unknown
261 Kennington Lane
1
Bedroom
2
Bedroom
3
Bedroom
4
Kitchen
5
Living
6
Living
7
Living
8
Living
9
Bedroom

9.8
34.4
34.2
12.7
35.4
35.3
16.3
11.1

59.5
98.3
(same room)
52.6
98.1
(same room)
63.9
93.4

17
n/a
n/a
24
n/a
n/a
38
24

0
n/a
n/a
0
n/a
n/a
4
3

30.6
16.9
22.1
5.4
32.5
22.7
28.8
10.4
32.5

98.2
(same room)
(same room)
16.7
97.5
(same room)
(same room)
53.5
98.5

n/a
n/a
n/a
6
n/a
n/a
n/a
22
n/a

n/a
n/a
n/a
0
n/a
n/a
n/a
2
n/a

Note:
The BRE target value for Vertical Sky Component (VSC) is 27 per cent but for urban areas 18 per cent can
be considered acceptable. The target value for No Sky Line (NSL) is 50 per cent, which means that at least
half the room would receive direct skylight. For Annual Probable Sunlight Hours (APSH), the target is 25 per
cent and for winter periods only it is 5 per cent. Those values which fall below the above thresholds are
highlighted.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 155

Agenda Item 5

Page 156

ADDRESS:

Tesco Stores, 275 Kennington Lane And 145-149 Vauxhall Street
London SE11
Application Number: 18/02598/FUL
Case Officer: Jeffrey Holt
Ward: Oval
Date Received: 21 June 2018
Proposal: Erection of temporary Tesco store on the existing Tesco car park site, comprising
1,435sqm GEA (including 943sqm of net sales retail floorspace), 63 car parking spaces, service
yard, associated cage marshalling and trolley shelter for a duration of 30 months.
Applicant: Berkeley Homes (Central London)
Ltd

Agent: Grant Leggett
Boyer Planning
2nd Floor, 24 Southwark Bridge Road
London SE1 9HF

RECOMMENDATION
1. Resolve to grant conditional planning permission.
2. Agree to delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and
Development to:
a. Finalise the recommended conditions as set out in this report, addendums and/or
PAC minutes; and
b. Negotiate, agree and finalise the planning obligations as set out in this report,
addendums and/or PAC minutes pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

SITE DESIGNATIONS
Relevant site designations:
Adjacent to Conservation Area - CA8 : Kennington Conservation Area
Environment Agency Flood Zone 3
HSE Consultation Zone - Oval Gasholders HSE Consultation Zone
Protected Vistas - Primrose Hill Summit To The Palace Of Westminster - 4A.2
Protected Local View – Brixton Panoramic and Norwood Park towards the City
Area of Open Space Deficiency: District; regional; Local, small, pocket;
Transport for London Road Network
Groundwater Source Protection Zone

LAND USE DETAILS
Site area (ha):

1.36

NON-RESIDENTIAL DETAILS

Existing
Proposed

Use Class

Use Description

A1
A1

Food store
Food store

Floorspace (m2)
(Gross Internal Area)
3,309
1,394

RESIDENTIAL DETAILS
Residential
Type

No. of bedrooms per unit

Total

Page 157
Habitable
Rooms
Studio
Existing

Proposed
On-Site

Proposed
Off-Site

Affordable
Private/Market
Total
Affordable
Rented
Social Rented
Intermediate
Private/Market
Total

1

2

3

4

Total

N/A

N/A

Affordable
Rented
Social Rented
Intermediate
Private/Market
Total

N/A

Amount (£)
Payment in Lieu of
Affordable Housing
Review Mechanism

N/A
Details/Trigger
N/A

ACCESSIBILITY
Number of C3
Units
-

M4(2) Units
M4(3) Units

NON-CONVENTIONAL RESIDENTIAL & VISITOR ACCOMMODATION

Existing

Proposed

Existing
Proposed

Existing
Proposed

Bedrooms/Units

Floorspace (sq.m)

Bedrooms

Floorspace (sq.m)

Bedrooms

Floorspace (sq.m)

Bedrooms

Floorspace (sq.m)

Hotel Bedrooms
Serviced
Apartments/Aparthotel units
Hotel Bedrooms
Serviced
Apartments/Aparthotel units
Student
Accommodation
Student
Accommodation
C2
C2

Page 158
Existing
Proposed

SG Hostel
SG Hostel

PARKING DETAILS

Existing
Proposed

Car Parking Spaces (general)

Car Parking Spaces
(Disabled)

% of
EVCP

Bike
Spaces

Motorcycle
Spaces

Retail
210
58*

Retail
8
5

0
0

24
30

0
0

*Including five parent and child spaces.

Page 159
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
i.

Berkeley Homes (Central London) Ltd submitted a planning application in June 2018 for the erection of a
temporary Tesco store on the existing Tesco car park. The store would be 1,435sqm GEA (including
943sqm of net sales retail floorspace) and have 63 car parking spaces, service yard and associated cage
marshalling and trolley shelter for a duration of 30 months.

ii.

The site is on the south side of Kennington Lane. Surrounding development is varied with a mix of
residential, business, retail and other commercial. Residential properties adjoin the site to the north and
to the south is the Oval Gas Works site, which received consent for comprehensive redevelopment in
August 2018. The site has no listed buildings but a number of listed buildings and Kennington
Conservation area are to the north and east. The site benefits from excellent public transport
accessibility.

iii.

The temporary store is required as the existing store is planned for redevelopment (see planning ref:
18/02597/EIAFUL) and Tesco intend to maintain trading throughout the development programme. The
temporary store would be located at the eastern end of the car park and would be a mostly single storey
building with a limited two storey element to the rear. Customer access and would continue to be from
Kennington Lane and servicing would be in via Vauxhall Street and out via Montford Place.

iv.

The store would be acceptable in principle given the presence of the existing store on site and also pass
the sequential test as there are no sites available alternative sites in existing town centres. The layout of
the store is logical and its pre-fabricated modular design would be acceptable. Given its small size and
temporary nature it would have a limited impact on the surrounding area and have no impact on heritage
assets. There would also be no harm to residential amenity due to noise, overlooking or overshadowing.

v.

The temporary store would have lower transport impact than the existing store. It would also meet
technical requirements in respect of sustainability, flood risk mitigation and waste and recycling.

vi.

Planning permission would be subject to conditions including a requirement to remove the store following
expiration of the 30 month permission period. No community infrastructure levy would be liable due to the
temporary nature of the store.

vii.

Public consultation was undertaken and no objections were received.

viii.

The proposed development has been assessed against the Development Plan and all other material
considerations, including national planning policy. Officers consider that subject to appropriate conditions
that the planning application should be approved.

Page 160
OFFICER REPORT
Reason for referral to PAC: The application is reported to the Planning Applications Committee in
accordance with (1)(ii) of the Committee’s terms of reference as it relates to a major application for the
provision of a building where the floor space to be created is 1,000 square metres or more.
1

THE APPLICATION SITE

1.1

The site is located on the south side of Kennington Lane and accommodates a large free standing Tesco
supermarket and associated surface level parking. It also includes a two-storey office building at its western
edge. The site has two vehicle accesses: customer vehicle access is from Kennington Lane and deliveries
and servicing are from Vauxhall Street. The Tesco building is single storey but has a height equivalent to twostoreys. It is of modern construction.

2

THE SURROUNDING AREA

2.1

Development in the surrounding area is mixed in use, scale and character. To the north is a petrol filling
station, two- to four-storey commercial buildings and two- to three-storey terrace houses and blocks of flats
up to a maximum of 11 storeys high. To the east along Kennington Lane are three- and four-storey terrace
houses. To the east across Montford Place is a vacant site used by Transport for London (TfL) as a worksite
for the Northern Line Extension. To the south-east is a six-storey gin distillery. Immediately to the south is the
Oval Gas Works site where there are two linked gas holders and one submerged gas holder adjacent to the
site. These are locally listed but planning permission has been given to demolish these and comprehensively
redevelop the site. To the southwest is a three-storey office building and to the west is a two-storey selfstorage building.

2.2

Kennington Lane is part of the TfL road network and the site has excellent access to public transport (PTAL
6b) due to the proximity of Oval, Kennington and Vauxhall stations as well as bus routes along Kennington
Lane. The site is not in a designated town centre but Kennington Lane local centre is the west and
Kennington Cross local centre is to the east. The site is bordered by the Montford Place - Beefeater/Oval Gas
Works Key Industrial and Business Area on its eastern, southern and western sides.

2.3

The site is not in a conservation area and does not contain any listed buildings, however the Kennington
conservation area is immediately to the east and there are listed buildings further along Kennington Lane. On
the neighbouring Oval Gas Works site is a listed gasholder structure. The site sits within London View
Management Framework (LVMF) View 4A.2 Primrose Hill to Palace of Westminster and two local views:
Brixton Panoramic Local View (Brockwell Park to the City) and Norwood Park Local View north-north-east to
the City.

2.4

The site is in Flood Risk Zone 3.

3

SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

Page 161
Fig. 1 Entrance to existing
Tesco store

Fig. 2 View from Montford
Place

4

PROPOSAL

4.1

Summary of the Proposal

4.1.1

Permission is sought for the erection of a temporary Tesco store on the existing Tesco car park site
comprising 1,435sqm GEA (including 943sqm of net sales retail floorspace), 63 car parking spaces, service
yard, associated cage marshalling and trolley shelter for a duration of 30 months.

4.2

Detail of the Proposal

4.2.1

The store would be located at the eastern end of the site where the existing customer parking is located. The
car park would be reconfigured to provide 63 spaces, which would include five Blue Badge spaces and five
parent and child spaces. Access would continue to be from Kennington Lane.

4.2.2

The temporary store would be constructed using a pre-fabricated modular system that would be raised on a
low platform to allow for services to be installed underneath. The building would be mostly single storey (max.
height 4.5m) but the back-of-house area running along the southern edge of the building would be two storey
(max. height 7.75m).

4.2.3

Service vehicles would enter the site from Vauxhall Street and proceed along a new access road that would
exit onto Montford Place. The service yard for the store would be adjacent to this access road.

Page 162
4.2.4

Although the store would be smaller than the existing, it would be merchandised so that it can support a
weekly bulk shop in the same way as the existing store.

Fig.3 – 3D image of proposed temporary store

4.3

Planning Performance Agreement

4.3.1

Lambeth entered into Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) with the applicant on 19 January 2018 to
provide pre-application planning advice. The proposal was presented to the Strategic Panel on 28 March
2018 and to the Technical Briefing on 29 October 2018.

5

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1

The existing Tesco store received outline consent on 7 November 1997 (ref: 95/01362/PLANAP) and
subsequent details were approved 1 February 1999 (ref: 98/00140/REM).

5.2

An application for the permanent redevelopment of the existing Tesco store was submitted alongside this
application. The proposal is for the following:

Demolition of existing building and redevelopment of the site to provide a mixed-use development
comprising the erection of 3 new buildings (Plot A,B,C) ranging from 4-17 storeys to provide 571
residential units (Class C3), a replacement Tesco store of 4,655sqm (including sales area/back of
house and car parking), 2,638sqm of Class B1 office, 1,159sqm of flexible commercial floorspace
(Class A1-A3, B1), 64 retail and 24 disabled residential car parking spaces; with associated cycle
parking and landscaping/public realm improvements along Cutlers Way and Phoenix Street (ref:
18/02597/EIAFUL).

5.3

The main redevelopment of the Tesco site was is environmental impact assessment (EIA) development
under the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The
environmental statement (ES) that accompanied the planning application considered the development as
whole, including the provision of a temporary store.

Page 163
5.4

The rest of the site’s history consists of various works and minor developments related to the Tesco store.

6

CONSULTATIONS

6.1

Statutory External Consultees
Transport for London
No objection subject to conditions and informatives


Construction Logistics Plan [condition 7 added]



Highway works to Kennington Lane required by s278 agreement [highway works are not required for
temporary store but required for the main store and would be secured under that application]



Reminder of need to comply with Traffic Management Act 2004 [Informative added]



Section 172 application required for any hoarding [Informative added]



Kennington Lane is subject to charges under TfL Lane Rental Scheme [Informative added]

Historic England - Archaeology
No objection

Health and Safety Executive
No objection subject to Grampian-style condition preventing occupation until the hazardous substances
consent (HSC) for the gasholder station has been revoked. [condition 21 added]

Development Control Department Thames Water
No objection


Advice given regarding waste water [Informative added]



Advice given regarding underground water assets [Informative added]



Advice given regarding water pressure [Informative added]



Advice given regard petrol/oil interceptors [Informative added]

Secured by Design (Metropolitan Police)
No objection subject to conditions:


6.2

Details of windows and doors, CCTV and staff security arrangements [condition 6 added]

Other Consultees
No responses received.

6.3

Adjoining owners/occupiers

6.3.1

A site notice was displayed from 6 July 2018 to 6 August 2018 and the application was advertised in the local
paper on 6 July 2018. A second consultation was undertaken on 1 November 2018 to clarify the site address
to make it clear that the Axis office building is included. A site notice was erected on 2 November 2018 and
an advertisement was placed in the local paper on the same day. The formal consultation period ended 23
November 2018 but comments received up to the day of the planning committee meeting are accepted.

Page 164
6.3.2

551 letters were sent and two objections were received however the comments raised were in relation to the
main Tesco redevelopment and not the temporary store.

7

POLICIES

7.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning decisions to be made in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The development
plan in Lambeth is the London Plan (LP) (2016, consolidated with alterations since 2011) and the Lambeth
Local Plan (LLP) (September 2015).

7.2

The new Draft London Plan was published on 1 December 2017 (updated August 2018) for consultation and
will eventually supersede the current 2016 consolidation London Plan once the final version is published
(anticipated Autumn 2019). The Draft London Plan is a material consideration in planning decisions. Officers
consider that this should be afforded very limited weight at this stage.

7.3

The Lambeth Local Plan is currently under partial review to ensure it complies with amendments to changes
in the NPPF and London Plan. The Local Plan review is timetabled to follow the programme for the Draft
London Plan, revisions will be consulted upon in October 2018. At this time the amendments to the Local
Plan do not carry any weight.

7.4

The latest National Planning Policy Framework was published in 2018. This document sets out the
Government’s planning policies for England including the presumption in favour of sustainable development
and is a material consideration in the determination of all applications.

7.5

The current planning application has been considered against all relevant national, regional and local
planning policies as well as any relevant guidance. A full list of relevant policies and guidance has been set
out in Appendix 3 to this report.

8

ASSESSMENT

8.1

Background

8.1.1

The requirement for a temporary Tesco store is due to the proposed redevelopment of the existing Tesco
store. Tesco are committed to maintaining a trading store on this site throughout the development programme
so a temporary store would be required for up to 30 months as the existing store is demolished and the
replacement constructed.

8.1.2

The redevelopment of the Tesco site would deliver the following if approved:


Replacement Tesco store



571 homes including 35 per cent affordable



2,638sqm B1a office space



1,159sqm flexible commercial space



New public realm and access routes

Page 165
8.1.3

The application is currently under consideration under planning ref: 18/02597/EIAFUL. The development
forms part of the wide Oval and Kennington Development Area (OAKDA) masterplan. The background of the
Tesco scheme and how it relates to the masterplan is set out in the officer’s report for that application.

8.2

Land Use

8.2.1

The proposal is for a retail use for temporary period of 30 months. The gross external floor area would be
1,435sqm with a net sales area of 943sqm.

8.2.2

Para 11 of the NPPF sets a presumption in favour of sustainable development and this is reflected in Local
Plan Policy D2 and the other policies in the Plan. The development would be a mixed used development on
previously developed (brownfield) land. This would comply with paras 117 and 118a of the NPPF and LP
Policy 2.9.

8.2.3

The proposed retail use would be outside of a town centre. LP Policy 4.7 states that retail development
should be focused on sites within town centres, or if no in-centre sites are available, on sites on the edges of
centres that are, or can be, well integrated with the existing centre and public transport. Similarly, LLP Policy
ED6 states that proposals for town centre uses (such as retail) that are in edge of centre or out of centre
location will be assessed against the sequential test set out in the NPPF.

8.2.4

The sequential test is set out under para 86 of the NPPF and states that main town centre uses, such as
retail, should be located in town centres, then in edge of centre locations. Only if suitable sites are not
available (or expected to become available within a reasonable period) should out of centre sites be
considered.

8.2.5

The applicant submitted a retail impact assessment which assessed the permanent Tesco development
against the sequential test. In accordance with established case law, the test was applied against the whole
development and not just the individual retail element. When undertaking the sequential test, the assessment
must be based on what is proposed and not on a different hypothetical development and cannot be based on
a development that would not be commercially viable or suitable for the applicant’s commercial requirements.
The assessment found that there are no other sites that are large enough (approximately 1.36ha) to
accommodate the proposed replacement development and located in or adjacent to an existing town centre.

8.2.6

An assessment was also undertaken to determine whether the permanent replacement Tesco would have
significant adverse impact on town centre vitality and viability, in accordance with para 89 of the NPPF. It
found that the estimated turnover of the new development would be very similar to the existing Tesco store:
£20.616m existing vs £20.034m proposed. Consequently, there would be little potential for diversion of trade
away from existing centres.

8.2.7

The above analysis relates to the new permanent store. As the temporary store is smaller than both the
existing and replacement store, it would have even less of an impact on existing town centres. Consequently,
officers consider that the temporary store passes the sequential test and would have no harmful impact on
town centre vitality and viability in accordance with LP Policy 4.7 and LLP Policy ED6.

8.3

Design and Conservation

8.3.1

The beginning of the Agenda Pack contains a summary of the legislative and national policy context for the
assessment of the impact of a development proposal on the historic environment and its heritage assets.

Page 166
This is in addition to Lambeth Local Plan and London Plan policies. The assessment that follows has been
made within this context.
Layout and massing
8.3.2

The temporary store would have a rectangular footprint and would be located at the eastern end of the site
where there is currently customer parking. The layout is determined by the need retain an element of
customer parking that can be accessed from Kennington Lane and to allow the store to be serviced from the
south using the new service road running along the southern edge of the site. The customer entrance would
be at the northern end of the building to minimise the walking distance from Kennington Lane. The layout is
logical and would use the available space efficiently.

8.3.3

The building would be mostly single storey except for a narrow two storey element running along the southern
edge of the site. This element would be for back-of-house operations. The massing is simple and functional
and is sufficiently low scale to avoid any harmful impact on the townscape. The building would also be too low
to affect any strategic or protected local view.

Material and detailed design

8.3.4

The proposed store would be of a prefabricated modular construction. Full height glazing would be provided
to the entrance corner of the building while the other elevations would consist of white panels with grey fascia
for the front of house area and grey panel and white fascia for the back of house area. The proposed
materials are a reflection of the prefabricated construction of the building and are acceptable given the
development’s temporary nature.

8.3.5

The proposed development is of acceptable in design terms subject to conditions securing details of materials
and construction.

Impact on heritage assets

8.3.6

When assessing the impact on heritage assets, the first step is for the decision-maker to consider each of the
designated heritage assets (referred to hereafter simply as “heritage assets”) which would be affected by the
proposed development in turn and assess whether the proposed development would result in any harm to the
heritage asset.

8.3.7

The decision of the Court of Appeal in Barnwell Manor confirms that the assessment of the degree of harm to
the heritage asset is a matter for the planning judgement of the decision-maker.

8.3.8

However, where the decision-maker concludes that there would be some harm to the heritage asset, in
deciding whether that harm would be outweighed by the advantages of the proposed development (in the
course of undertaking the analysis required by s.38(6) PCPA 2004) the decision-maker is not free to give the
harm such weight as the decision-maker thinks appropriate. Rather, Barnwell Manor establishes that a
finding of harm to a heritage asset is a consideration to which the decision-maker must give considerable
importance and weight in carrying out the balancing exercise.

8.3.9

There is therefore a “strong presumption” against granting planning permission for development which would
harm a heritage asset. In the Forge Field case the High Court explained that the presumption is a statutory
one. It is not irrebuttable. It can be outweighed by material considerations powerful enough to do so. But a

Page 167
local planning authority can only properly strike the balance between harm to a heritage asset on the one
hand and planning benefits on the other if it is conscious of the statutory presumption in favour of
preservation and if it demonstrably applies that presumption to the proposal it is considering.
8.3.10 The case-law also establishes that even where the harm identified is less than substantial (i.e. falls within
paragraph 134 of the NPPF), that harm must still be given considerable importance and weight.
8.3.11 Where more than one heritage asset would be harmed by the proposed development, the decision-maker
also needs to ensure that when the balancing exercise in undertaken, the cumulative effect of those several
harms to individual assets is properly considered. Historic England does not suggest that the cumulative
effect of the individual instances of harm identified amounts to substantial harm and officers do not consider
that the total harm (i.e. the cumulative effect of the several instances of harm identified) amounts to
substantial harm. Looking at the position as a whole, it is plain that there are a number of adverse impacts on
heritage features which individually and cumulatively result in less than substantial harm. However, less than
substantial harm does not mean insignificant harm. Considerable importance and weight must be attached to
each of the harms identified and to their cumulative effect.
8.3.12 What follows is an officer assessment of the extent of harm which would result from the proposed
development to the scoped heritage assets provided by the applicant as part of its submission. This includes
Conservation Areas, and neighbouring Listed Buildings. Both an individual assessment against each heritage
asset as well a cumulative assessment is provided. This is then followed by an assessment of the heritage
benefits of the proposals.

Impact on heritage assets: Conservation Areas

8.3.13 Kennington Conservation Area is immediately to the east of the site on the opposite side of Montford Place.
The site opposite is currently TfL’s worksite for the Northern Line Extension. The proposed temporary store
would be visible on Montford Place but would not detract from the existing character of the TfL site. The
materials of the temporary store would not be in keeping with the wider conservation area but the harm would
be ‘less than substantial’, temporary and outweighed by the public benefits of maintaining an operational
store on this site. There would be no permanent harm.

Impact on heritage assets: Listed Buildings

8.3.14 The nearest listed buildings are the Grade II listed Georgian terrace properties at 231-245 Kennington Lane.
The proposed temporary store would only be visible in the background to this terrace when standing at the
junction with Montford Place but would appear be subordinate to them. The materials of the temporary store
would not be in keeping but the harm would be ‘less than substantial’, temporary and outweighed by the
benefits of maintaining an operational store on this site. There would be no permanent harm.

8.3.15 Gasholder 1 on the Oval gasworks site is also Grade II listed but the proposed store would be sufficiently far
away to avoid any significant impact on its setting.
Non-Designated Heritage Assets – Locally Listed Buildings

Page 168
8.3.16 Locally Listed Buildings are ‘non-designated heritage assets’ under the NPPF. Para. 197 of the NPPF states
that the effect of an application on the significance of non-designated heritage asset should be taken into
account in determining the application. In addition LLP Policy Q23 seeks to retain, preserve, protect,
safeguard and where desirable, enhance non-designated heritage assets.

8.3.17 Gas holders 2, 4 and 5 on the Oval Gas Works site and the nearby Gin Distillery are locally listed but given
the store’s temporary nature there would be no residual harm to the setting of these heritage assets.

8.3.18 Kennington Green is a Protected London Square and for this reason it is treated as non-designated heritage
asset. The temporary store would not be visible from the square and there would be no harm.

8.3.19 Non-designated heritage assets also include archaeological assets and the same policy approach applies.
The application has been reviewed by the Greater London Archaeology Advisory Service (GLAAS) and there
is no objection. The temporary would sit on stilts on the existing tarmac surface. There would be no
excavation and therefore no risk to archaeological assets.
Impact upon heritage assets: Summary
8.3.20 Officers have had special regard to the desirability of preserving the listed building or its setting or any
features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses as well as to the desirability of
preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area. Officers have identified that
the development would result in a temporary ‘less than substantial harm’ and have had regard to the statutory
presumption against granting planning permission for development which would harm a heritage asset.
Mindful of this presumption and the considerable importance and weight that is given to any harm, officers
consider that the temporary ‘less than substantial harm’ would be outweighed by the public benefits of the
scheme.

8.4

Amenity for Neighbouring Occupiers
Daylight and Sunlight

8.4.1

The beginning of the Agenda Pack contains a broad contextual overview of the assessment framework within
which BRE compliant sunlight and daylight studies are undertaken. This includes an explanation of the key
terms and targets contained within the BRE guidance. The following assessment has been made in the
context of this information.

8.4.2

The nearest residential properties are those to the north on Kennington Lane. The proposed building would
be 4.5m in height and over 11m away from the rear boundary of these properties. With these dimensions the
temporary store would not exceed a 25 degree upward angle measured from the bottom of the nearest
window. Under the BRE guidance, such a situation would not cause a detrimental effect on daylight and no
further analysis is necessary.

8.4.3

The temporary store would be two storeys at its southern end but there are no residential properties near
enough to be affected.

Privacy

Page 169
8.4.4

The proposed store would have full height glazing on the north-west corner but it would be more than 18m
away from the nearest rear facing windows on properties on Kennington Lane. Furthermore the glazing would
be at ground floor level and views would be blocked by the existing boundary wall and landscaping. There are
windows on the two-storey element but they are not near enough to another residential property to cause
overlooking.

Outlook

8.4.5

Due to the limited height of the proposed store there would be no significant impact on outlook for
neighbouring properties.

Noise and Vibration

Construction

8.4.6

The storey would be constructed from pre-fabricated modular units that would sit on stilts so construction
noise would be not be significantly adverse. A construction environmental management plan would be
secured by condition which would include mitigation measures to minimise noise disturbance using the best
practicable means.

Operation
8.4.7

When operational the potential for noise disturbance would arise from servicing, plant noise and customers
coming to and going from the store. The level of servicing activity would be no greater than the existing store
but a servicing management plan would be secured which would ensure that it is undertaken in a way that
minimises noise (such as requiring idling drivers to switch off engines). The permitted servicing hours of the
existing store, which are between 07:00 and 23:00 Monday to Saturday and 08:00 and 18:00 Sundays and
Bank Holidays, would also be imposed for the temporary store.

8.4.8

Plant equipment would be required to meet industry standard noise restrictions. Conditions would be imposed
requiring a noise assessment and a post installation assessment to ensure the plant is in compliance. Finally,
a customer management plan would be required by condition to secure measures to minimise the risk of
noise disturbance to neighbouring properties from customers using the store.

8.4.9

Subject to these conditions the proposal would cause no harm to amenity due to noise.

8.4.10 The proposed development would not cause significant harm to residential amenity in compliance with LLP
Policy Q2.
8.5

Designing Out Crime

8.5.1

The store would have standard security measures such as security staff and CCTV. The Metropolitan Police
have no objection to the proposed development subject to approval of details of windows, doors, CCTV and
staff security arrangements.

Page 170
8.6

Trees and Landscaping

8.6.1

Elements of the existing landscaping on site would be retained. This would include the planted bed at the
entrance to the site on Kennington Lane and part of the planted strip running along the site’s northern
boundary. The landscaping would remain in place until the store is dismantled and the permanent
redevelopment of the site progresses. This is acceptable given the scale and temporary nature of the
development.

8.7

Transport

8.7.1

Site context

8.7.2

The application site has its main frontage onto Kennington Lane (A3204), a busy thoroughfare that is part of
TfL’s strategic road network. The site also fronts onto Vauxhall Street and Montford Place, which are much
quieter in comparison. Vauxhall Street is one way (southbound) and Montford Place two-way but is gated at
its southern end preventing access through to Kennington Green and beyond. The site benefits from
excellent Public Transport Accessibility (PTAL 6b). The local pedestrian environment is generally good and
the site would be highly accessible to pedestrians. Cyclists have the benefit of a segregated contraflow cycle
lane on Vauxhall Street as part of the Quietway network and there is an existing cycle superhighway on
Kennington Park Road.

8.7.3

The site currently has 218 parking spaces for Tesco store customers of which eight are Blue Badge spaces.

8.7.4

Sustainable travel

8.7.5

The temporary store would have 22 cycle parking spaces for visitors and these would be provided as
Sheffield Stands. Eight staff cycle spaces would be also be provided as Sheffield stands and in secure
shelter.

8.7.6

Pedestrian access to the store would be via separate footway from Kennington Lane. There route to the store
would be separated from traffic with no crossings required. Walking conditions would be acceptable in
compliance with LP Policy 6.10 and LLP Policy T2.

8.7.7

Car parking & servicing

8.7.8

63 car parking spaces would be provided. Five of these would be for Blue Badge holders and five would be
parent and child spaces. The amount of parking would be a significant reduction from the existing 218 spaces
provided on site (71 per cent reduction). Although the development would not be car free, the impact on the
network would be less than the current Tesco store.

8.7.9

Servicing would be from Vauxhall Street using a new access road that exits onto Montford Place. This access
road would also carry construction traffic for the main Tesco development. The loading bay to the temporary
Tesco is designed so that construction traffic can pass when a vehicle is loading and unloading at the
temporary store. All servicing would take place within the site boundary and all traffic would enter and leave
the site in forward gear. A detailed delivery and servicing plan would be required by condition and servicing
hours would be restricted to the same hours as the existing store: 07:00 to 23:00 Monday to Saturday and
08:00 to 18:00 Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Page 171
8.7.10 Waste and recycling collection would be handled by a contractor and would take place in the service yard.

8.7.11 The proposed servicing arrangements are acceptable and in compliance with LLP Policy T8.

8.7.12 Network impacts
Construction
8.7.13 A construction logistics plan (CLP) has been developed for both this development, the permanent Tesco
development and the Oval Gas Works development as they are likely to be constructed together if permission
is granted for all three. The CLP responds to concerns about pedestrian and cyclist safety by minimising the
use of Vauxhall Street as much as possible. During the first phase of development, when demolition and
remediation would take place, primary access and egress would be from Montford Place. For the rest of the
development programme, most access would be via Vauxhall Street with egress onto Montford Place. The
main access on Vauxhall Street would be via the existing service access to the Tesco store, which would
have been demolished following the first phase. This would minimise the distance that construction vehicles
would need to travel along Vauxhall Street. The existing cycle lane would remain open and traffic marshals
would monitor and control the site accesses and manage pedestrian and cyclist so that there are no conflicts.
8.7.14 The CLP has been submitted to discharge a condition attached to the Oval Gas Works planning permission
(ref: 18/04063/DET) and is still pending. Consequently, a condition requiring the submission of the CLP would
still be necessary if permission is granted.

Operation

8.7.15 The temporary store would generate fewer vehicle trips due to its reduced size compared to the existing store
and the reduction in customer parking. There would be no harm to the transport network during operation.

Mitigation

8.7.16 The following measures would be secured to mitigate the transport impacts of the proposal:


Delivery and servicing management plan



Limiting servicing hours



Construction Logistics Plan

8.8

Sustainable Design and Construction

8.8.1

The proposed store would be a prefabricated modular building erected for only a temporary period.
Consequently, it was agreed that requiring the building to conform to the BREEAM criteria would not be
proportionate to the scale and nature of the building. However, the store would still achieve 35.2 per cent
carbon emission savings compared to a 2013 Building Regulations baseline building. It would achieve this by
using highly efficient materials, mechanical ventilation with heat recovery, low energy lighting and energy
efficient air source heat pumps. Food stores have relatively low heat and hot water demand so the use of a
combined heat power plant (CHP) would not be appropriate. Furthermore, connecting to a district heat
network was not considered practical given the temporary nature of the building.

Page 172
8.8.2

As the building would be a prefabricated modular construction, its components are designed to be re-used so
following dismantling of the food store there would not be significant construction waste.

8.8.3

The proposed development would comply LP Policies 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, 5.5 and 5.6 as well as LLP Policies EN3
and EN4.

8.9

Other Environmental Matters

8.9.1

Flood Risk

8.9.2

The site is within Flood Risk Zone 3a (high) which means that there is a 1 per cent or greater annual
probability of river flooding or 0.5 per cent annual probability of sea flooding. Retail uses are classified as
‘less vulnerable’ are permissible in Flood Risk Zone 3a according to the NPPF. Although the site is in Flood
Risk Zone 3a the actual risk is lowered significantly due to the presence of the Thames Tidal Defences. Even
in the unlikely event that the tidal defences are breached the site is not predicted to flood. The site is at low
risk of flooding by surface water (i.e. flooding from rain and sewer discharge) however the floor level of the
food store would be raised and there would be very little risk of harm.

8.9.3

The site is currently served by an existing surface water drainage network, which is to be retained for the
duration of the temporary store’s use. Consequently, there would be no increase in surface water runoff.

8.9.4

The proposed development would not be exposed to unacceptable flood risk nor would it increase the risk of
flooding elsewhere in compliance with LP Policy 5.12 and LLP Policy EN5.

Wind
8.9.5

Due to the low height of the building there would be no significant change to local wind conditions.
Air Quality

8.9.6

Due to the reduced amount of customer parking, there would be fewer vehicle trips and therefore a reduction
in transport related emissions. In addition, the energy efficiency of the building as discussed earlier would
result in a reduction in NOx emissions due to reduced use of boilers.

8.9.7

Air quality impacts arising from the construction phases would be mitigated with an air quality and dust
management plan to be secured by condition.

8.9.8

The development would be in compliance with LP Policy 7.14.
Water quality and wastewater infrastructure

8.9.9

The development would have no impact on water quality or wastewater infrastructure. Thames Water have
recommend a number of informatives to ensure that existing infrastructure is protected. These would be
added to the permission should it be granted.

8.10

Ecology and diversity

8.10.1 The site currently has little ecological value and this would not change with the proposed temporary store. As
the development would be temporary it would not be appropriate to require ecological enhancements but it
should be noted that the permanent redevelopment of the site would include such features.

Page 173
8.10.2 Land contamination
8.10.3 The temporary store would be erected on stilts on the existing car park. There would be no significant
earthworks so any risk from contamination would be low. However, a condition would be applied to ensure an
appropriate response should any contamination be found.
8.11

Employment and Training

8.11.1 When the existing store is closed, Tesco intend for at least half of the existing staff be retained in the
temporary store with the remainder offered hours locally elsewhere. As this would be a temporary situation, it
is not considered appropriate to require an employment and skills plan for the temporary store. The
permanent Tesco store would have an Employment and Skills Plan should it be approved.
9

Planning Obligations and CIL

9.1

The LLP Policy D4 and Annex 10 sets out the Council’s policy in relation to seeking planning obligations and
the charging approaches for various types of obligation. For contributions that are not covered by Annex 10,
the Council’s approach to calculating contributions is guided by the Development Viability SPD (adopted
2017) and the Employment and Skills SPD (adopted 2018).

9.2

Due to the temporary nature of the store and its lower impact than the existing store, no s106 obligations are
considered necessary to make the development acceptable. The permanent development would be
supported by a range of planning obligations to mitigate its permanent impacts. Highway works required to
enable the development would be secured by s278 agreement but this would required by a planning
condition.

CIL

9.3

As the proposed development is temporary it would not be liable for the Community Infrastructure Levy.

10

CONCLUSION

10.1

The temporary store is required as the existing store is planned for redevelopment (see planning ref:
18/02597/EIAFUL) and Tesco intend to maintain trading throughout the development programme.

10.2

The store would be acceptable in principle having regard to the existing store on site and the sequential test.
The layout of the store is logical and its design follows that of other temporary stores present in London and
would be constructed using pre-fabricated modular components. Given its small size and temporary nature it
would have a limited impact on the surrounding area and no impact on heritage assets. There would be no
harm to residential amenity.

10.3

The development would meet technical requirements in respect of sustainability, flood risk mitigation and
waste and recycling.

Page 174
10.4

Planning permission would be subject to conditions including a requirement to remove the store following
expiration of the 30 month permission period. No community infrastructure levy would be liable due to the
temporary nature of the store.

10.5

Public consultation was undertaken and no objections were received.

10.6

The proposed development has been assessed against the Development Plan and all other material
considerations, including national planning policy. Officers consider that subject to appropriate conditions
that the planning application should be approved.

11

EQUALITY DUTY AND HUMAN RIGHTS

11.1

In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty the council must have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In
making this recommendation, regard has been given to the Public Sector Equality Duty and the relevant
protected characteristics (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex, and sexual orientation).

11.2

In line with the Human Rights Act 1998, it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a way which is
incompatible with a Convention right, as per the European Convention on Human Rights. The human rights
impact have been considered, with particular reference to Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection of
property), Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) of
the Convention.

11.3

The Human Rights Act 1998 does not impair the right of the state to make decisions and enforce laws as
deemed necessary in the public interest. The recommendation is considered appropriate in upholding the
council's adopted and emerging policies and is not outweighed by any engaged rights.

12

RECOMMENDATION

12.1

Grant permission subject to conditions.

Page 175
APPENDICES
Appendix 1:Draft Decision Notice

Page 176
Your Ref:
Our Ref: 18/02598/FUL

1 Berkeley Homes (Central London) Ltd
1.1 c/o Mr Grant Leggett
2nd Floor, 24 Southwark Bridge Road
London
SE1 9HF

21st November 2018

DRAFT DECISION NOTICE
1.1.1

Dear Berkeley Homes (Central London) Ltd

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990.
PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
The London Borough of Lambeth hereby permits under the above mentioned Acts and associated orders the
development referred to in the schedule set out below subject to any conditions imposed therein and in
accordance with the plans submitted, save in so far as may otherwise be required by the said conditions.
In accordance with the statutory provisions your attention is drawn to the statement of Applicant’s Rights and
General Information attached.
Application Number: 18/02598/FUL

Date of Application: 21.06.2018

Date of Decision: 21.11.2018

Proposed Development At: Tesco Stores, 275 Kennington Lane And 145-149 Vauxhall Street London SE11
For: Erection of temporary Tesco store on the existing Tesco car park site, comprising 1,435sqm GEA (including
943sqm of net sales retail floorspace), 63 car parking spaces, service yard, associated cage marshalling and
trolley shelter for a duration of 30 months. RECONSULTATION DUE TO CLARIFIED SITE ADDRESS.

1.1.2

Approved Plans

TK_GRID_PL 001 REV1; TK_GRID_PL 010 REV1;TK_GRID_PL 020 REV1; TK_GRID_PL 021
REV1;TK_GRID_PL 022 REV1; TK_GRID_PL 023 REV1;TK_GRID_PL 105 REV1; 7361-PL01 REV B;7361-PL02
REV A; 7361-PL03; 7361-PL04;Cover letter; Design Concept; Design and Access statement;Planning Statement;
Transport Assessment;Energy Statement; Flood Risk Assessment;Noise Impact Assessment; Retail Impact
Assessment;Email from Asa Plant 11.09.2018.

1.1.3

Conditions

1
The development to which this decision relates is on a temporary basis only. The store shall be in operation for
duration of 30 months only from the date of this decision notice and all associated structures shall be removed from the site
within 36 months from the date on the decision notice.

Lambeth Planning
PO Box 734
Winchester

Telephone 020 7926 1180
Facsimile 020 7926 1171
www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 177
SO23 5DG

planning@lambeth.gov.uk
PEFULZ

Page 178
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
2
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved plans listed in
this decision notice, other than where those details are altered pursuant to the requirements of the conditions of this
planning permission.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3
Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved drawings, prior to the commencement of above ground works,
construction drawings (including sections at 1:10 scale of all external elements of the new structures) shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details and retained permanently thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory (policies Q2, Q7 and Q8 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)). This is required pre-commencement to ensure that the entire
development is carried out in accordance with the approved details.
4
Prior to the commencement of the relevant part of the development hereby permitted, the following details of the
materials to be used in the external elevations of that part of the development shall be provided to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The development hereby permitted shall be thereafter built in accordance with the approved
details. The following details are required:
a) a technical specification schedule of the materials including colour scheme
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the building is satisfactory (Policies Q2, Q7 and Q8 of the
London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
5
Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved drawings, prior to the commencement of above ground
construction work, details of all boundary treatments shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and retained and properly
maintained thereafter.
Reason: To secure an acceptable boundary treatment in the interests of visual amenity (Lambeth Local Plan 2015
Policy Q15). This is required pre-commencement to ensure that construction does not take place in a way
prejudices the implementation of an acceptable scheme of boundary treatment.
6
Prior to occupation of the development, details of the following shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Security features of all doors and windows
CCTV
Security arrangements for staff areas and handling of money

The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory attention is given to security and community safety (Policy Q3 of the Lambeth
Local Plan (2015)). This is required pre-commencement to ensure that construction work does not prejudice the
achievement of Secured by Design certification.
7
The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) for each phase has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority for each phase. The CLP shall include details of
parking, deliveries and storage and confirm that the developer will join the VNEB construction working group.
The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the details and measures approved in the CLP
for the related phase, unless the written consent of the Local Planning Authority is received for any variation.
Reason: To avoid unnecessary hazard and obstruction to the public highway (Policies EN4 (Sustainable Design
and Construction), EN7 (Sustainable Waste Management) & T8 (Servicing) - Lambeth Local Plan 2015). This is
required pre-commencement to ensure that the entire development is not carried out in a way which causes harm
to the transport network.

Page 179
8
If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site then no further
development shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the Local Planning
Authority for, a remediation strategy detailing how this unsuspected contamination will be dealt with. The remediation strategy
shall thereafter implemented prior to any further development being carried out.
Reason: To safeguard future users or occupiers of this site and the wider environment from irreversible risks
(Policies 5.21 of the London Plan (2015) and EN4 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
9
The operation of any building services plant, shall not commence until an assessment of the acoustic impact
arising from the operation of all internally and externally located plant for each plot has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority.
The assessment of the acoustic impact shall be undertaken in accordance with BS 4142: 2014 (or subsequent
superseding equivalent) and current best practice, and shall include a scheme of attenuation measures to ensure
the rating level of noise emitted from the proposed building services plant is 5db less than background.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of future residential
occupiers or of the area generally (Policy Q2 (Amenity) - Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
10
The use hereby permitted, or the operation of any building services plant, shall not commence until a post- installation
noise assessment has been carried out to confirm compliance with the noise criteria. The scheme shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details and attenuation measures, and they shall be permanently retained and maintained in
working order for the duration of the use and their operation.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of future residential
occupiers or of the area generally (Policy Q2 (Amenity) - Lambeth Local Plan 2015).
11
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, a deliveries and servicing management plan for all uses
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The submitted details must include the
following:
a) frequency of deliveries to the site;
b) frequency of other servicing vehicles such as refuse collections;
c) dimensions of delivery and servicing vehicles;
d) proposed loading and delivery locations; and
e) a strategy to manage vehicles servicing the site.
The development hereby permitted shall thereafter be operated in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To avoid obstruction of the surrounding streets and limit the effects of the increase in travel movements
within the locality as well as safeguarding public safety and the amenity of the surrounding area (policies T1, T6
and T8 of the London Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015)).
12
Vehicles shall only service the site between the hours of 0700 and 2300 hours Mondays to Saturdays and 0800 to
1800 hours on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Reason: To protect residential amenity (Policies T8 and Q2 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015).

13
The temporary store hereby permitted shall not commence until a customer management plan has been submitted and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. This should include but not be limited to, hours of operation, management
responsibilities during all operating hours, measures to control noise from live and amplified music (including the screening of
sporting events and public-address systems) and minimising the effects of patrons coming and going from the building will be
prevented from causing nuisance for people in the area. The use hereby permitted shall thereafter be operated in accordance
with the approved details.
Reason: To protect the amenities of adjoining occupiers and the surrounding area (policy Q2 of the London
Borough of Lambeth Local Plan (2015).
14
Prior to occupation of the development, full details of a car parking management strategy for the management of
parking within the development, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Operation of the
carpark shall thereafter be carried out solely in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority and Transport for London may be satisfied as to the effects of
the scheme on the adjacent road network so as to avoid hazard or obstruction to the public highway (Policy T7 of
the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.)

Page 180
15
The food store hereby permitted shall not be open to customers other than between 0730 and 2200 Mondays
to Saturdays and 0730 and 1700 Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Reason: To ensure that no nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of adjoining
occupiers or of the area generally. (Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policies Q2).
16
The foodstore customer car park shall be closed to the public and secured other than between the hours of 0730 to
2300 Mondays to Saturdays and 0730 to 1800 Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining premises or of the area generally. (Lambeth Local Plan 2015
Policies Q2).
17
Other than for operational purposes associated with the store, when the customer carpark is closed it shall not be
used for any purpose.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining premises or of the area generally. (Lambeth Local Plan 2015
Policies Q2).
18
Prior to commencement of construction works for each plot and notwithstanding the details shown on the approved
drawings, details of cycle parking associated with the temporary store shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and full accordance with the approve details. The cycle
parking for each plot shall be made available for use prior to first occupation of that plot.
Reason: To provide acceptable cycle parking in order to encourage sustainable means of transport (London Plan
2016 Policy 6.9 and Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy T3).
19
Prior to first occupation of the development As Built SBEM calculations as an output of the National Calculation
Method should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority demonstrating that the development
has been built in accordance with the approved Energy Statement and achieved a 35% reduction in carbon emissions over
that required by Part L of the Building Regulations 2013.
Reason: To ensure the development makes the fullest contribution to the reduction in carbon emissions (London
Plan 2016 Policy 5.2 and Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy EN4).
20
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, a Waste Management Strategy shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development hereby permitted shall be built in accordance with the
approved details and shall thereafter be retained solely for its designated use. The use hereby permitted shall thereafter be
operated in accordance with the approved Waste Management Strategy.
Reason: To ensure suitable provision for the occupiers of the development, to encourage the sustainable
management of waste and to safeguard the visual amenities of the area (Lambeth Local Plan 2015 Policy Q12).
21
Prior to the commencement of above ground construction, design and construction details of the refuse storage areas
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details and retained permanently thereafter.
Reason: To ensure suitable provision for the users of the development, to encourage the sustainable management
of waste and to safeguard the visual amenities of the area (Policy Q12 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015)). This is
required pre-commencement to ensure that development is not carried out in a way which prejudices the provision
of acceptable refuse stores.
22
No part of the development shall be occupied until all hazardous substances consents for Kennington Gasholder
Station have been revoked in accordance with the Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990, as amended, and written
confirmation of the necessary revocations have been issued by the London Borough of Lambeth as the Hazardous
Substances Authority.
Reason: In the interests of health and safety, it is necessary to ensure that the adjoining gas infrastructure will not
present a risk to safety.

1.1.4

Notes to Applicants:

In dealing with this application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National Planning Policy
Framework (2012) to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner. The council has made available
on its website the policies and guidance provided by Lambeth Local Plan (2015) and its supplementary planning

Page 181
documents. We also offer a full pre-application advice service in order to ensure that the applicant has every
opportunity to submit an application that’s likely to be considered acceptable.

1.
This decision letter does not convey an approval or consent which may be required under any enactment, by-law,
order or regulation, other than Section 57 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
2.
Your attention is drawn to the requirements of the Building Regulations, and related legislation which must be
complied with to the satisfaction of the Council's Building Control Officer.
3.
Your attention is drawn to the provisions of The Party Wall Act 1996 in relation to the rights of adjoining owners
regarding party walls etc. These rights are a matter for civil enforcement and you may wish to consult a surveyor or architect.
4.
Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the requirements of the Control of Pollution Act 1974
concerning construction site noise and in this respect you are advised to contact the Council's Environmental Health
Division.
5.
You are advised of the necessity to consult the Principal Highways Engineer of the Highways team in order to obtain
necessary prior approval for undertaking any works within the Public Highway including Scaffold, Temporary/Permanent
Crossovers, Oversailing/Undersailing of the Highway, Drainage/Sewer Connections and Repairs on the Highways, Hoarding,
Excavations, Temporary Full/Part Road Closures, Craneage Licenses etc. Please to go to http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/businessservices-rates-and- licensing/licence-applications/highways- licences-guide.
6.
Informative: For information on the NRMM Low Emission Zone requirements please visit
'http://nrmm.london/nrmm''
7.

Owners, operators and occupants should register with Flood Warnings Direct.

8.
Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat trap on all catering establishments. We
further recommend, in line with best practice for the disposal of Fats, Oils and Grease, the collection of waste oil by a
contractor, particularly to recycle for the production of bio diesel. Failure to implement these recommendations may result
in this and other properties suffering blocked drains, sewage flooding and pollution to local watercourses.
9.
There are public sewers crossing or close to your development. If you are planning significant work near our sewers,
it's important that you minimize the risk of damage. Thames Water will need to check that your development doesn't reduce
capacity, limit repair or maintenance activities, or inhibit the services Thames Water provide in any other way. The applicant
is advised to read Thames Water's guide working near or diverting our pipes.
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-development/Working-near-or- diverting-ourpipes.
10.
The proposed development is located within 15m of Thames Waters underground assets, as such the
development could cause the assets to fail if appropriate measures are not taken. Please read Thames Water's guide
'working near our assets' to ensure your workings are in line with the necessary processes you need to follow if you are
considering working above or near Thames Water pipes or other structures.
https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-your-development/Working-near-or- divertingour-pipes. Should you require further information please contact Thames Water. Email:
developer.services@thameswater.co.uk
11.
There are water mains crossing or close to your development. Thames Water do NOT permit the building over or
construction within 3m of water mains. If you are planning significant works near our mains (within 3m) Thames Water will
need to check that your development doesn't reduce capacity, limit repair or maintenance activities during and after
construction, or inhibit the services we provide in any other way. The applicant is advised to read the Thames Water guide
working near or diverting our pipes: https://developers.thameswater.co.uk/Developing-a-large-site/Planning-yourdevelopment/Working-near-or- diverting-our-pipes .
12.
Thames Water would recommend that petrol / oil interceptors be fitted in all car parking/washing/repair
facilities. Failure to enforce the effective use of petrol / oil interceptors could result in oil-polluted discharges entering
local watercourses.

Page 182
13.
The developer and their representatives are reminded that they are still subject to the requirements of the Traffic
Management Act 2004. Formal notifications and approval may be needed for both the permanent highway scheme and any
temporary highway works required during the construction phase.
14.
Any hoarding on the TLRN would be subject to a separate Section 172 licence application under the Highways Act
1980, to the Asset Operations Team at TfL. Please note that a minimum footway clearance of 1.5m will be required to
maintain the safe movement of pedestrians.
15.
Please note that Kennington Lane is subject to charges under TfL's Lane Rental scheme, for more
information please see: https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/urban-planning-and-construction/lane-rental-scheme

1.2

Yours sincerely

Rob Bristow
Assistant Director Planning, Transport & Development

1.3

Growth, Planning and Employment

Directorate Date printed: 21st November

2018

Page 183
1.3.1

INFORMATION FOR APPLICANTS GRANTED PLANNING PERMISSION SUBJECT
TO CONDITIONS, OR WHERE PERMISSION HAS BEEN REFUSED.

General Information
This permission is subject to due compliance with any local Acts, regulations, building by-laws and
general statutory provisions in force in the area and nothing herein shall be regarded as dispensing with
such compliance or be deemed to be a consent by the Council thereunder.
Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Building Regulations 1985 and related legislation which
must be complied with to the satisfaction of the Council’s Building Control Officer, Phoenix House, 10
Wandsworth Road, SW8.
The Council’s permission does not modify or affect any personal or restrictive covenants, easements, etc.,
applying to or affecting the land or the rights of any person entitled to the benefits thereof.
STATEMENT OF APPLICANT’S RIGHTS ARISING FROM THE REFUSAL OF PLANNING
PERMISSION OR FROM THE GRANT OF PERMISSION SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS.

1.3.2

Appeals to the Secretary of State

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the local planning authority to refuse permission or
approval for the proposed development or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions, he may
appeal to the Secretary of State in accordance with Section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 within six months from the date of this notice. Appeals must be made on a form which is obtainable
from The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/13 Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay, Bristol
BS1 6PN. Alternatively an Appeal form can be downloaded from their website at
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate. The Secretary of State has power to allow
longer period for the giving of a notice of appeal but he will not normally be prepared to exercise this
power unless there are special circumstances which excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal. The
Secretary of State is not required to entertain an appeal if it appears to him that permission for the
proposed development could not have been granted by the local planning authority, or could not have
been so granted otherwise than subject to the conditions imposed by them, having regard to the statutory
requirements, to the provisions of the development order, and to any directions given under the order.

1.3.3

Purchase Notice

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the local planning
authority or by the Secretary of State for the Environment, and the owner of the land claims that the land
has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of
reasonable beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted,
he may serve on the London Borough of Lambeth a purchase notice requiring that Council to purchase his
interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Section 137 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.

1.3.4

Compensation

In certain circumstances, a claim may be made against the local planning authority for compensation,
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State for the
Environment on appeal or on a reference of the application to him. The circumstances in which such
compensation is payable are set out in Section 120 and related provision of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

Page 184
Appendix 2: List of consultees (statutory and Other Consultees)
Statutory consultees
Transport for London
Environment Agency
Historic England - Archaeology
Health and Safety Executive
Development Control Department Thames Water
Secured by Design (Metropolitan Police)
Historic England
London Borough of Wandsworth
London Borough of Southwark
L.F.C.D Authority
Natural England
Highways Agency
Communities & Local Government

Other consultees
Victorian Society
Georgian Group
Greater London Industrial Archaeology Society (GLIAS)
Save Britain’s Heritage
Kennington Park Road Residents Association and Neighbourhood Watch (KPRRANW)
Oval & Kennington Residents Association (OAKRA)
Cleaver Square, Cleaver Street and Bowden Street Residents' Association
Kennington Oval Community Action Group
Friends Of Kennington Park
Kennington Oval & Vauxhall Forum
Heart Of Kennington Residents' Association
Friends Of Lambeth High Street Rec
Friends of Vauxhall Spring Gardens
Friends Of Kennington Park
The Vauxhall Society
Vauxhall Neighbourhood Housing Forum
Kennington Association Planning Forum
Regents Bridge Gardens Ltd
Ashmole Estate Tenants Association
Ashmole Tenants Assoc
Bonnington Square Residents
Fentiman Road & Richbourne Terrace Residents Association
Harleyford Court Tenants Association

Page 185
Hanover Gardens Association
Hanover Gardens Residents Association
Oval Mansions
Vauxhall Gardens Estate Resident and Tenant Association
Vauxhall One Business Improvement Districts

Page 186
Appendix 3: List of materially relevant policies in London Plan, Lambeth Local Plan. Reference to
SPGs, SPD and other relevant guidance
National Planning Policy Framework 2018
National Planning Practice Guidance
London Plan 2016
2.9 Inner London
4.7 Retail and Town Centre Development
4.12 Improving Opportunities for All
5.1
Climate Change Mitigation
5.2
Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
5.3
Sustainable Design and Construction
5.5
Decentralised Energy networks
5.6
Decentralised Energy in development proposals
5.7
Renewable Energy
5.9
Overheating and Cooling
5.10 Urban Greening
5.11 Green Roofs and Development Site Environs
5.12 Flood Risk Management
5.13 Sustainable Drainage
5.14 Water Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure
5.15 Water Use and Supplies
5.17 Waste Capacity
5.21 Contaminated Land
5.22 Hazardous Substances Installations
6.3
Assessing Effects of Development on Transport Capacity
6.9
Cycling
6.10 Walking
6.13 Parking
7.1
Lifetime Neighbourhoods
7.2
An Inclusive Environment
7.3
Designing Out Crime
7.4
Local Character
7.5
Public Realm
7.6
Architecture
7.8
Heritage Assets and Archaeology
7.12 Implementing the London View Management Framework
7.13 Safety, security and resilience to emergency
7.14 Improving Air Quality
7.15 Reducing Noise and Enhancing Soundscapes
7.19 Biodiversity and Access to Nature
8.2
Planning Obligations
8.3
Community Infrastructure
Lambeth Local Plan 2015
D2
D4
ED6
ED14

Presumption in favour of sustainable development
Planning obligations
Town centres
Employment and training

Page 187
T1
T2
T3
T4
T6
T7
T8
EN1
EN3
EN4
EN5
EN6
EN7
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q5
Q6
Q7
Q8
Q9
Q10
Q12
Q13
Q15
Q16
Q20
Q21
Q22
Q23
Q25
PN8

Sustainable travel
Walking
Cycling
Public transport infrastructure
Assessing impacts of development on transport capacity and infrastructure
Parking
Servicing
Open space and biodiversity
Decentralised energy
Sustainable design and construction
Flood risk
Sustainable drainage systems and water management
Sustainable waste management
Inclusive Environments
Amenity
Community Safety
Local Distinctiveness
Urban design: public realm
Urban design: new development
Design quality: construction detailing
Landscaping
Trees
Refuse/recycling storage
Cycle storage
Boundary treatments
Shop fronts
Statutory listed buildings
Registered parks and gardens
Conservation areas
Undesignated heritage assets: local heritage list
Views
Kennington/Oval

London Plan Guidance
Accessible London: Achieving an Inclusive Environment (October 2014)
The control of dust and emissions during construction and demolition (July 2014)
Town Centres (July 2014)
Shaping Neighbourhoods: Character and Context (June 2014)
Sustainable Design and Construction (April 2014)
London View Management Framework (March 2012)
Transport Strategy (March 2018)

Lambeth Guidance
Refuse & Recycling Storage Design Guide
Waste Storage and Collection Requirements - Technical Specification
Air Quality Planning Guidance Notes
Employment and Skills SPD (February 2018)

Page 188
Appendix 4: Other relevant Plans and Photos
Proposed ground and first floor plans

Proposed elevations

Page 189

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 191

Agenda Item 6

ADDRESS:
Gasholder Station, Kennington Oval, London, SE11 5SG
Application Number: 18/04063/DET
Case Officer: Jeffrey Holt
Ward: Oval
Date Received: 21.09.2018
Proposal:

Page 192
Approval of details pursuant to 15 (Construction Logistics Plan), 52 (Dismantling and Construction
Method Statement) Parts (a) to (c) and (e) to (h) and 53 (Construction Environmental Management
Plan) of Planning Permission ref: 17/05772/EIAFUL (Demolition of existing buildings and
structures including temporary disassembly of listed gas holder no.1, demolition of locally-listed gas
holders 4 and 5, redevelopment to provide a mixed-use development comprising re-erection of
restored gas-holder no.1, erection of new buildings ranging from 4-18 storeys to provide 738
residential units (Class C3), 10,160sqm of Class B1 office and Class B1 shared working space
incorporating ancillary cafe and space for community use, 800sqm for waste management use,
148sqm of D1 community space, the provision of a new publically accessible open space, new
pedestrian and vehicle routes, accesses and amenity areas, basement level car park with integral
servicing areas, provision of new gas governor and substation, and other associated works of decontamination. The proposed development is a departure from Policy ED1 of the Lambeth Local
Plan (2015) granted 23.08.2019.
Applicant: Berkeley Homes (Central London)
Ltd

Agent:
Miss Lisa Shannon
Boyer Planning
2nd Floor, 24 Southwark Bridge Road
London
SE1 9HF

RECOMMENDATION
1. Resolve to grant approval of details pursuant to Conditions 15, part (f) of Condition 52 and
part (v) of Condition 53 of Planning Permission ref: 17/05772/EIAFUL.
2. Agree to delegate authority to the Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and
Development to determine Condition 52 parts (a) to (c) and Condition 53 parts (i) to (iv) and
(vi) to (x) of Planning Permission ref: 17/05772/EIAFUL.

SITE DESIGNATIONS
Relevant site designations:
Adjacent to Conservation Area - CA8 : Kennington Conservation Area
Environment Agency Flood Zone 3
HSE Consultation Zone - Oval Gasholders HSE Consultation Zone
Key Industrial and Business Area - Montford Place Key Industrial And Business Area
Listed Building – Gas Holder 1
Locally Listed Building - Gas Holders 2, 4 and 5
Protected Vistas - Primrose Hill Summit To The Palace Of Westminster - 4A.2
Area of Open Space Deficiency: District; regional; Local, small, pocket;

LAND USE DETAILS
Site area (ha):

2

NON-RESIDENTIAL DETAILS
Use Class
Existing
Proposed

Use Description

Floorspace (m2)
(Gross Internal Area)
N/A

Page 193
RESIDENTIAL DETAILS
Residential
Type

No. of bedrooms per unit

Studio

1

2

3

Total
Habitable
Rooms

4 Total
N/A

Existing

Affordable
Private/Market
Total

Proposed
On-Site

Affordable
Rented
Social Rented
Intermediate
Private/Market
Total

N/A

Proposed
Off-Site

Affordable
Rented
Social Rented
Intermediate
Private/Market
Total

N/A

Amount (£)
Payment in Lieu of
Affordable Housing
Review Mechanism

Details/Trigger
-

ACCESSIBILITY
Number of C3
Units
-

M4(2) Units
M4(3) Units

NON-CONVENTIONAL RESIDENTIAL & VISITOR ACCOMMODATION

Existing

Proposed

Existing
Proposed

Existing

Bedrooms/Units

Floorspace (sq.m)
N/A

Bedrooms

Floorspace (sq.m)
N/A

Bedrooms

Floorspace (sq.m)
N/A

Hotel Bedrooms
Serviced
Apartments/Aparthotel units
Hotel Bedrooms
Serviced
Apartments/Aparthotel units
Student
Accommodation
Student
Accommodation
C2

Page 194
Proposed

C2

Existing
Proposed

SG Hostel
SG Hostel

Bedrooms

Floorspace (sq.m)
N/A

PARKING DETAILS
Car Parking Spaces (general)

Car Parking Spaces
(Disabled)
N/A

Existing
Proposed

% of
EVCP

Bike
Spaces

Motorcycle
Spaces

Page 195
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

i.

Planning permission was granted on 23 August 2018 for the redevelopment of the Oval Gas Works Site
to provide 738 homes, 10,160sqm of office and co-working space, Use Class D1 and waste management
space and new public ream. In resolving to grant permission, the Planning Applications Committee (PAC)
required the conditions relating to construction methods to be reported to PAC in the interests of
protecting pedestrian and cyclist safety. Accordingly, the applicant has sought to discharge condition 15,
52 (parts (a) to (c) and (e) to (h)) and condition 53 as these all require details of construction logistics.

ii.

The applicant has submitted a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) for Condition 15 and parts of Condition
52 and 53, a Dismantling and Construction Method Statement (DCMS) for Condition 52 and a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for Condition 53.

iii.

The site and nature of the development presents a number of constraints, however officers are satisfied
that the CLP minimises the number of vehicle movements on Vauxhall Street and the distance that
construction vehicles would need to travel along Vauxhall Street. The applicant proposes to use Montford
Place as much as possible.

iv.

For those movements that do use Vauxhall Street, pedestrian and cycle safety would be protected by
hoardings and traffic marshals. The existing cycle lane would remain open and converted to two way so
that cyclists would not need to share road space with construction traffic. Similar measures would be
implemented at Montford Place. In addition to these physical measures, management measures would
be put in place to manage the timing and frequency of deliveries to avoid excessive peak loading.

v.

The proposed CLP is acceptable and meets the requirements of Condition 15 as well as the logistics
requirements of conditions 52 and 53. Officers are satisfied that acceptable measures would be put in
place to protect pedestrian and cyclist safety.

vi.

The remaining elements of conditions 52 and 53 would be determined under delegated powers as they
do not relate to construction logistics and would not affect pedestrian and cyclist safety.

vii.

The CLP has been reviewed by the council’s specialist officers and found to be acceptable. Officers
recommend that conditions 15, 52 part (f) and condition 53 part (v) are discharged.

Page 196
OFFICER REPORT

Reason for referral to PAC: The application is reported to the Planning Applications Committee in
accordance with paragraph (4) of the Committee’s terms of reference as the Committee requested that this
application be reported to the Committee when determining the parent application (ref: 17/05772/EIAFUL).

1

THE APPLICATION SITE

1.1

The application site is the Oval Gas Works site owned by Scotia Gas Networks (SGN). It is a two hectare site
that has a frontage onto Vauxhall Street but is otherwise located behind existing development with narrow
accesses to Kennington Oval and Montford Place. The site has been a gas storage site since 1847, but due
to changes to gas technology, it is no longer required to store gas in gas holders. Accordingly the existing gas
holders have been taken out of service.

2

THE SURROUNDING AREA

2.1

The surrounding area is mixed in use and character. To the north is a large Tesco with car parking, which is
subject to a separate application for redevelopment. To the east is substation, gin distillery, terrace houses
and blocks of flats. Blocks of flats are also present to the south and southwest and to the west are
commercial properties. The local highway network varies. Kennington Lane is a busy thoroughfare that forms
part of the Transport for London strategic road network. Vauxhall Street is quieter and is one way southbound
connecting to Kennington Oval. Vauxhall Street has a one-way contraflow cycle lane. Montford Place is also
quieter. It is two way but gated at its southern end to restrict access to Kennington Road.

3

SITE PHOTOGRAPHS

Fig. 1 – Existing service entrance to Tesco
Site

Page 197
Fig. 2 – Existing access on Montford Place

Fig. 3 – Existing access on Montford Place

Page 198
4

PROPOSAL

4.1

Summary of the Proposal

4.1.1

The approval of details is sought pursuant to conditions 15 (Construction Logistics Plan), 52 (Dismantling and
Construction Method Statement) Parts (a) to (c) and (e) to (h) and 53 (Construction Environmental
Management Plan) of planning permission 17/05772/EIAFUL.

4.2

Detail of the Proposal

4.2.1

The conditions sought to be discharged are set out below:

4.2.2

Condition 15:

The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) for each
phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority for each phase. The CLP
shall include details of parking, deliveries and storage and confirm that the developer will join the VNEB
construction working group.

The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the details and measures approved in the
CLP for the related phase, unless the written consent of the Local Planning Authority is received for any
variation.

Reason: To avoid unnecessary hazard and obstruction to the public highway (Policies EN4 (Sustainable
Design and Construction), EN7 (Sustainable Waste Management) & T8 (Servicing) - Lambeth Local Plan
2015). This is required pre-commencement to ensure that the entire development is not carried out in a way
which causes harm to the transport network.

4.2.3

For the avoidance of doubt, this submission relates to all phases of the development.

4.2.4

Condition 52:

The development hereby approved shall not commence until a detailed dismantling and construction method
statement (DCMS) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. As a
minimum the method statement shall include detailed working methods and mitigation proposals for the
following key stages as identified in chapter 5 of the Environmental Impact Assessment:

a. Gasholder waste removal and Management
b. Gas holder dismantling
c. Remediation and earth works management
d. Gasholder erection
e. Detailed proposals to prevent migration of pollution through foundations, piling and other ground
penetrating construction methods.
f. Detailed Site logistics arrangements including details of parking, deliveries, and storage;

Page 199
g. Details of the hours of work and other measures to mitigate the impact of construction on the amenity of
the area and safety of the highway network; and
h. Communication procedures with the LBL and local community regarding key construction issues newsletters, fliers etc.

Reason: To ensure minimal nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of adjoining
occupiers and of the area generally, harm to the natural environment and to avoid unnecessary hazard and
obstruction to the public highway (Policies Q2, EN4, EN7 & T8 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015). This is
required prior to commencement to ensure that all stages of demolition and construction are carried out in an
acceptable manner.

4.2.5

All parts except part (d) of condition 52 are sought to be discharged under this application. The required
details for part (d) will be submitted for approval at a later date as they relate to the Listed Gasholder 1, which
has a number of other conditions that need to be discharged before part (d) can be approved.

4.2.6

Furthermore, only part (f) is put forward to the planning applications committee for approval as it is the only
part that relates solely to construction logistics and the impact on pedestrian and cyclist safety. The remaining
parts (excluding (d) discussed above) are requested to be determined by officers under delegated powers as
they do not relate to logistics and require further amendments before they can be considered acceptable.
Table 1 below summarises how each part of the conditions is sought to be approved.

4.2.7

Condition 53:

The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Construction and Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) for each phase has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The CEMP shall include details of the following relevant measures:

i. An introduction consisting of construction phase environmental management plan, definitions and
abbreviations and project description and location;
ii. A description of management responsibilities;
iii. A description of the construction programme which identifies activities likely to cause high levels of noise
or dust;
iv. Site working hours and a named person for residents to contact;
v. Detailed Site logistics arrangements;
vi. Details regarding parking, deliveries, and storage;
vii. Details of an air quality and dust management plan;
viii. Details noise mitigation measures to be deployed including identification of sensitive receptors and
ongoing monitoring;
ix. Details of the hours of works and other measures to mitigate the impact of construction on the amenity of
the area and safety of the highway network; and
x. Communication procedures with the LBL and local community regarding key construction issues newsletters, fliers etc.

Page 200
The construction shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the details and measures approved in the
CEMP for the related phase, unless the written consent of the Local Planning Authority is received for any
variation.

Reason: To ensure minimal nuisance or disturbance is caused to the detriment of the amenities of adjoining
occupiers and of the area generally, and to avoid unnecessary hazard and obstruction to the public highway
(Policies EN4 (Sustainable Design and Construction), EN7 (Sustainable Waste Management) & T8
(Servicing) - Lambeth Local Plan 2015). This is required prior to commencement to ensure that all stages of
demolition and construction are carried out in an acceptable manner.

4.2.8

Similar to Condition 52, only part (v) of Condition 53 is put forward to the planning applications committee for
approval as it is the only part that relates solely to construction logistics and the impact on pedestrian and
cyclist safety. The remaining parts are requested to be determined by officers under delegated powers as
they do not relate to logistics and require further amendments before they can be considered acceptable.
Table 1 below summarises how each part of each conditions is sought to be approved.
Table 1 – Summary of requested approval method for each condition

Approval method

Condition

PAC approval

Condition 15
Condition 52
f. Detailed Site logistics arrangements including details of parking,
deliveries, and storage;

Condition 53
v. Detailed Site logistics arrangements;

Delegated approval

Condition 52
a. Gasholder waste removal and Management
b. Gas holder dismantling
c. Remediation and earth works management
e. Detailed proposals to prevent migration of pollution through
foundations, piling and other ground penetrating construction
methods.
g. Details of the hours of work and other measures to mitigate the
impact of construction on the amenity of the area and safety of the
highway network; and
h. Communication procedures with the LBL and local community
regarding key construction issues - newsletters, fliers etc.

Condition 53
i. An introduction consisting of construction phase environmental
management plan, definitions and abbreviations and project
description and location;
ii. A description of management responsibilities;

Page 201
iii. A description of the construction programme which identifies
activities likely to cause high levels of noise or dust;
iv. Site working hours and a named person for residents to contact;
vi. Details regarding parking, deliveries, and storage;
vii. Details of an air quality and dust management plan;
viii. Details noise mitigation measures to be deployed including
identification of sensitive receptors and ongoing monitoring;
ix. Details of the hours of works and other measures to mitigate the
impact of construction on the amenity of the area and safety of the
highway network; and
x. Communication procedures with the LBL and local community
regarding key construction issues - newsletters, fliers etc.

Approval under

Condition 52

separate application

4.2.9

d. Gasholder erection

The applicant submitted the following documents:


Construction Logistics Plan



Dismantling and Construction Method Statement



Construction Environmental Management Plan

4.2.10 The Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) is submitted in direct response to Condition 15 but as both Conditions
52 and 53 also require details of site logistics, the CLP is also submitted to discharge that aspect of these
conditions. Both the submitted Dismantling and Construction Method Statement (DCMS) and Construction
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) require further amendments before they can be recommended for
approval. Consequently, they are not submitted to the planning applications committee for approval and are
requested to be determined under delegated powers, as explained earlier.

Construction Logistics Plan (CLP)

4.2.11 The proposed CLP covers both the Oval Gas Works and Tesco developments and presents a plan which
involves both being constructed together as this allows for more efficient use of space. Should the Tesco
development not go ahead, a revised CLP will need to be submitted for approval.

4.2.12 The construction programme is anticipated to take place from January 2019 to November 2027. The CLP set
divides this period into five phases. These are described below.

4.2.13 Phase 1 (Jan 2019 to June 2020) includes the demolition of the existing Tesco store, erection of the
temporary store, demolition of the gas holders, remediation and ground works. During this phase, Montford
Place would be the main ingress and egress using an existing access point to the north of the electricity
substation. There would be limited use of Vauxhall Street and Kennington Oval. Temporary parking
suspensions would be required on these streets when mobile cranes are delivered.

Page 202
Fig. 4 – Phase 1

4.2.14 Phase 2 (June 2020 – June 2021) is the construction of the basement and substructure. During this phase
primary ingress would be from Vauxhall Street using an access located where the existing Tesco service
entrance is (see Fig. 5 below). A layby would be constructed so that vehicles can turn off Vauxhall Street as
early as possible. The layby would be behind the hoarding line. A new access point would be created further
south along Vauxhall Street but would be used less frequently. Egress would be by Montford Place using the
existing vehicle access adjacent to the substation and a new access further north, which would become the
permanent exit to Phoenix Street. Parking suspensions would be required to facilitate these egress points.
There would be limited use of Kennington Oval as a secondary egress route when the main egress is
suspended to enable construction works in that area.
Fig. 5 – Phase 2

Page 203

4.2.15 Phase 3 (June 2021 to November 2023) is the construction of the façade and fit out of the development.
Ingress would be from Vauxhall Street and egress via Montford Place. Kennington Oval would be used an
alternative when the main route is suspended to enable construction works in that area.
Fig. 6 – Phase 3

4.2.16 Phase 4 (November 2023 to August 2025) would include works to the superstructure and the façade as well
as continued fit out. Vauxhall Street and Montford Place would continue to be the main ingress and egress

Page 204
points respectively. Due to the proximity of Tesco Plot B to the pavement, the footway would be hoarded off
for safety.
Fig. 7 – Phase 4

4.2.17 Phase 5 (August 2025 to November 2027) is the final phase and consists of the final substructure,
superstructure, façade and fit out works. Vauxhall Street and Montford Place would continue to be the main
ingress and egress points respectively.
Fig. 8 – Phase 5

Page 205

4.2.18 Throughout all phases Vauxhall Street would be carefully managed to minimise risk to pedestrians and
cyclists. The footway on the east side of the street would be closed and hoarded off to prevent pedestrians
crossing in front of the site accesses. In addition, a traffic marshal would be monitoring and controlling these
vehicle access points at all times. The existing cycle lane on the west side of the street would be converted to
two-way so that cyclists would not need to share road space with construction traffic. When necessary, a
traffic marshal would hold pedestrians and cyclists using physical barriers to ensure that there are no conflicts
with vehicles when entering or exiting the site.

4.2.19 Traffic marshals would also be assigned to Montford Place. Pedestrians and cyclists would be held when
necessary. The adjacent footway would remain open until Plot B of the Tesco development is constructed
due to the proximity of that building to the pavement.

4.3

Planning Performance Agreement

4.3.1

Lambeth entered into Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) with the applicant on 19 January 2018 to
provide pre-application planning advice. The proposal was presented to the Strategic Panel on 28 March
2018 and to the Technical Briefing on 29 October 2018.

5

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

5.1

The parent planning permission is 17/05772/EIAFUL which granted conditional consent on 23 August 2018.
The permission was for the following development:

Demolition of existing buildings and structures including temporary disassembly of listed gas holder
no.1, demolition of locally-listed gas holders 4 and 5, redevelopment to provide a mixed-use
development comprising re-erection of restored gas-holder no.1, erection of new buildings ranging
from 4-18 storeys to provide 738 residential units (Class C3), 10,160sqm of Class B1 office and
Class B1 shared working space incorporating ancillary cafe and space for community use, 800sqm
for waste management use, 148sqm of D1 community space, the provision of a new publically
accessible open space, new pedestrian and vehicle routes, accesses and amenity areas, basement
level car park with integral servicing areas, provision of new gas governor and substation, and other
associated works of de-contamination.

6

CONSULTATIONS

6.1

Statutory External Consultees

Transport for London
No objection subject to following:


Physical separation between cycle lane from carriageway [a physical barrier along Vauxhall
Street is now included]

Page 206
6.2

Other Consultees

None.

6.3

Adjoining owners/occupiers

6.3.1

A site notice was displayed from 5 October 2018 to 26 October 2018. The formal consultation period ended
26 October 2018.

6.3.2

No representations received during the consultation period.

7

POLICIES

7.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires planning decisions to be made in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The development
plan in Lambeth is the London Plan (2016, consolidated with alterations since 2011) and the Lambeth Local
Plan (September 2015).

7.2

The new Draft London Plan was published on 1 December 2017 (updated August 2018) for consultation and
will eventually supersede the current 2016 consolidation London Plan once the final version is published
(anticipated Autumn 2019). The Draft London Plan is a material consideration in planning decisions. Officers
consider that this should be afforded very limited weight at this stage.

7.3

The Lambeth Local Plan is currently under partial review to ensure it complies with amendments to changes
in the NPPF and London Plan. The Local Plan review is timetabled to follow the programme for the Draft
London Plan, revisions will be consulted upon in October 2018. At this time the amendments to the Local
Plan do not carry any weight.

7.4

The latest National Planning Policy Framework was published in 2018. This document sets out the
Government’s planning policies for England including the presumption in favour of sustainable development
and is a material consideration in the determination of all applications.

7.5

The current planning application has been considered against all relevant national, regional and local
planning policies as well as any relevant guidance. A full list of relevant policies and guidance has been set
out in Appendix 3 to this report.

8

ASSESSMENT

8.1

Background

Page 207
8.1.1

Planning permission was granted for the Oval Gas Works development on 23 August 2018 following a
resolution to approve by the Planning Applications Committee (PAC) on 12 June 2018. The PAC required
that the consideration of the construction management plan was referred back to the PAC on grounds of
needing to scrutinise the impact on the safety of pedestrians and cyclists. The information required to
discharge Conditions 15, 52 and 53 includes details of how construction vehicles would be managed so the
consideration of all three conditions has been referred to PAC.

8.1.2

As the impact on the safety of pedestrians and cyclists was the chief concern among committee members,
that aspect is the focus of this report.

8.2

Construction Logistics Plan for Conditions 15, 52 and 53

8.2.1

A CLP is a management tool that focusses specifically on construction supply chains and how their impact on
the highway network, including pedestrian and cyclist safety can be reduced. A CLP differs from a
Construction Management Plan (CMP) or Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) in that
CLPs are developed earlier in the planning process and focus specifically on logistics. The information and
planned measures identified in the CLP can also be included in the CMP or CEMP.

8.2.2

The proposed CLP covers both the consented Oval Gas Works (OGW) development and the pending Tesco
redevelopment. This is because if both developments are consented, they would be constructed concurrently.
The benefit of presenting this scenario is that it anticipates and responds to the cumulative impact of both
schemes and allows for the consideration of the ‘worst case’. Should the Tesco scheme not receive consent,
a revised CLP for just OGW would need to be submitted.

8.2.3

The site has a number of constraints which restrict the ways the site can be accessed by construction
vehicles. Use of Kennington Lane is constrained by the need to retain it for customer access to the temporary
Tesco store and the permanent replacement store. It would not be possible to use it for construction traffic.
This leaves Vauxhall Street, Montford Place and Kennington Oval as available access points. Based on this,
the applicant originally proposed all construction traffic for Tesco to enter from Vauxhall Street using the
existing Tesco service access and leaving the site via Montford Place. For OGW it was proposed that all
traffic would enter the site from a new access on Vauxhall Street opposite Brockwell House and exiting via
Montford Place or by Kennington Oval. This would have resulted in very heavy use of Vauxhall Street.

8.2.4

Following officer advice, the number of vehicles movements on Vauxhall Street and the distance vehicles
would travel along Vauxhall Street were both reduced. This was achieved by using Montford Place to a much
greater degree for both ingress and egress and by creating a new vehicle layby within the site boundaries so
that vehicles can come off Vauxhall Street much earlier. The entrance to the layby would be where the
existing Tesco service access is. Vehicles would enter at that point, wait and unload in the layby then exit the
site via Montford Place. This would minimise the distance and time that vehicles would be on Vauxhall Street.
There would be times when vehicles would enter the site using the a new access further down Vauxhall
Street or exit the site using Kennington Oval however these are limited to times when works are taking place
at the main ingress and egress points. Figure 9 below shows the proposed ingress and egress routes and
Table 1 shows the percentage distribution of movements across these routes.
Fig. 9 – Ingress and Egress routes

Page 208

Table 1 – Breakdown of movements by ingress/egress point
Ingress movements

Vauxhall Street North (green and yellow)

Total

%

Average

Average

per month

per day

30,427

61%

279

14

3,164

6%

29

1

Montford Place (purple)

16,597

33%

152

8

Total

50,188

460

23

Vauxhall Street South (dark blue)

Egress movements

Montford Place (red and light blue)

47,983

96%

440

22

Vauxhall Street (pink)

1,102

2%

10

1

Kennington Oval (grey)

1,102

2%

10

1

460

23

Total

8.2.5

50,188

Only 6 per cent of movements to the site would involve a journey down most of the length of Vauxhall Street.
On average this is one per day over the construction programme. More than half (61 per cent) of vehicle
movements would enter the site using the access at the upper end of Vauxhall Street with the rest entering
the site from Montford Place. Of the egress movements almost all (96 per cent) would leave the site via
Montford Place. On average, one per day would exit via Kennington Oval and Vauxhall Street.

Page 209
8.2.6

Although there would still be traffic using Vauxhall Street to access the site, a number of mitigation measures
are proposed to minimise the risk to pedestrian and cyclist safety. These are:


Hoarding off eastern footway to prevent pedestrians crossing in front of the site accesses



A traffic marshal would be stationed at each access to monitor and control vehicle movements



The existing protected cycle lane would be converted to two-way and when necessary, a traffic marshal
would hold pedestrians and cyclists using physical barriers to prevent conflicts with construction vehicles

Fig. 10 – Vauxhall Street traffic control measures

8.2.7

On Montford Place, similar measures would be implemented and nearby on-street parking would be
suspended to avoid conflicts. The adjacent footway would remain open until Plot B of the Tesco development
is constructed as the building is adjacent to the pavement.
Fig. 11 – Montford Place traffic control measures

Page 210

8.2.8

In addition to the above physical measures, the following management measures would be used:


Online delivery management to control deliveries and prevent multiple simultaneous deliveries to the
site. Each delivery would be assigned a pre-arranged delivery window.



Dedicated site logistics team to oversee all deliveries and vehicle movements



All construction traffic above 3.5t delivering goods must be compliant with Construction Logistics and
Community Safety (CLOCS) initiative and the Fleet Operator Recognition Scheme (FORS) silver level

8.2.9

CLOCS and FORS require measures to improve highway safety such as audible warning systems to warn
other road users of a vehicle’s left turn or reversing manoeuvre, vision aids to avoid blind spots, audible alerts
when a vehicle/cyclist is in a vehicle’s blind spot, driver safety training and warning signage on vehicles.
Details on vehicle types are provided in Appendix 4.

8.2.10 Deliveries would take place between 07:30 and 18:30 Monday to Friday and Saturday 07:30 to 13:30.

8.2.11 The applicant has also confirmed that they will liaise with the VNEB Construction Logistics Working Group to
encourage coordination between the major developments under construction.

8.2.12 Parking for site operatives would not be provided and existing parking restrictions would prevent parking on
local streets. The site is in Controlled Parking Zone K which operates Monday to Friday between 08:30 to
18:30 and Saturday 08:30 to 13:00. Consequently, site operatives would be required to use other means to
get to the site.

8.2.13 Staff welfare facilities would be provided on site with the main facility to be located along the Montford Place
frontage.

8.2.14 Local residents and business would be kept informed of ongoing works. This would include monthly
newsletters and meetings between the project team and local residents/businesses. The site manager would
be responsible for handling any queries and complaints in the first instance and unresolved matters would be
referred to the developer. At the same time, the contractors and developer would be open to enforcement
action from the Council should the CLP not be complied with. The applicant is also required under to make
good any damage caused to the highway by construction traffic.

8.2.15 The proposed logistics plan is considered to minimise the impact on Vauxhall Street to the most practical
degree and the proposed mitigation measures are considered appropriate to minimise the residual impact on
highway safety. The proposed CLP meets the requirements of condition 15 having regard to Policies EN4,
EN7 and T8 of the Lambeth Local Plan 2015.

9

CONCLUSION

9.1

The applicant has submitted a Construction Logistics Plan (CLP), Dismantling and Construction Method
Statement (DCMS) and Construction Environmental Management Plan in order to discharge conditions 15,

Page 211
52 (parts (a) to (c) and (e) to (h) and 53 of planning permission ref: 17/05772/EIAFUL for the redevelopment
of the Oval Gas Works.
9.2

The CLP has been put forward to the planning applications committee for approval in relation to Condition 15
and part (f) of Condition 52 and part (v) of Condition 53.

9.3

The site and nature of the development presents a number of constraints however officers are satisfied that
the CLP minimises the number of vehicle movements on Vauxhall Street and the distance that construction
vehicles would need to travel along Vauxhall Street. The applicant proposes to use Montford Place as much
as possible.

9.4

For those movements that do use Vauxhall Street, pedestrian and cycle safety would be protected by
hoardings and traffic marshals. The existing cycle lane would remain open and converted to two way so that
cyclists would not need to share road space with construction traffic. Similar measures would be implemented
at Montford Place. In addition to these physical measures, management measures would be put in place to
manage the timing and frequency of deliveries to avoid excessive peak loading.

9.5

The proposed CLP is acceptable and meets the requirements of Condition 15, and part (f) of Condition 52
and part (v) of Condition 53. No objections were received. The submitted DCMS and CEMP require further
amendments before they can be considered to be acceptable.

9.6

Consequently, officers recommend that the CLP is approved pursuant to condition 15, 52 part (f) and 53 part
(v) and that delegated authority is given to determine Condition 52 parts (a) to (c) and Condition 53 parts (i) to
(iv) and (vi) to (x).

10

EQUALITY DUTY AND HUMAN RIGHTS

In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty the council must have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, as set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. In
making this recommendation, regard has been given to the Public Sector Equality Duty and the relevant
protected characteristics (age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or
belief, sex, and sexual orientation).

In line with the Human Rights Act 1998, it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a way which is
incompatible with a Convention right, as per the European Convention on Human Rights. The human rights
impact have been considered, with particular reference to Article 1 of the First Protocol (Protection of
property), Article 8 (Right to respect for private and family life) and Article 14 (Prohibition of discrimination) of
the Convention.

The Human Rights Act 1998 does not impair the right of the state to make decisions and enforce laws as
deemed necessary in the public interest. The recommendation is considered appropriate in upholding the
council's adopted and emerging policies and is not outweighed by any engaged rights.

13

RECOMMENDATION

Page 212
Discharge conditions 15 (Construction Logistics Plan), 52 (Dismantling and Construction Method Statement)
Part (f) and 53 (Construction Environmental Management Plan) part (v) and delegate authority to the
Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and Development to determine Condition 52 parts (a) to (c) and
Condition 53 parts (i) to (iv) and (vi) to (x) of Planning Permission ref: 17/05772/EIAFUL.

Page 213
APPENDICES
Appendix 1:Draft Decision Notice

Page 214
Your Ref:
Our Ref: 18/04063/DET

1 Berkeley Homes (Central London) Ltd
1.1 c/o Miss Lisa Shannon
2nd Floor, 24 Southwark Bridge Road
London
SE1 9HF

21st November 2018

DRAFT DECISION NOTICE
1.1.1

Dear Berkeley Homes (Central London) Ltd

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990.
PERMISSION FOR DEVELOPMENT
The London Borough of Lambeth hereby permits under the above mentioned Acts and associated orders the
development referred to in the schedule set out below subject to any conditions imposed therein and in
accordance with the plans submitted, save in so far as may otherwise be required by the said conditions.
In accordance with the statutory provisions your attention is drawn to the statement of Applicant’s Rights and
General Information attached.
Application Number: 18/04063/DET

Date of Application: 21.09.2018

Date of Decision: 21.11.2018

Proposed Development At: Gasholder Station Kennington Oval London SE11 5SG
For: Approval of details pursuant to 15 (Construction Logistics Plan), 52 (Dismantling and Construction Method
Statement) Parts (a) to (c) and (e) to (h) and 53 (Construction Environmental Management Plan) of Planning
Permission ref: 17/05772/EIAFUL (Demolition of existing buildings and structures including temporary disassembly
of listed gas holder no.1, demolition of locally-listed gas holders 4 and 5, redevelopment to provide a mixed-use
development comprising re-erection of restored gas-holder no.1, erection of new buildings ranging from 4-18
storeys to provide 738 residential units (Class C3), 10,160sqm of Class B1 office and Class B1 shared working
space incorporating ancillary cafe and space for community use, 800sqm for waste management use, 148sqm of
D1 community space, the provision of a new publically accessible open space, new pedestrian and vehicle routes,
accesses and amenity areas, basement level car park with integral servicing areas, provision of new gas governor
and substation, and other associated works of de-contamination. The proposed development is a departure from
Policy ED1 of the Lambeth Local Plan (2015) granted 23.08.2019.
IF YOU WISH TO SEND COMMENTS PLEASE EMAIL : planning@lambeth.gov.uk quoting reference number
18/04063/DET.

1.1.2

Approved Plans

Construction Logistics Plan September 2018; Dismantling and Construction Method Statement;Construction
Environmental Management Plan.
Lambeth Planning
PO Box 734
Winchester
SO23 5DG

Telephone 020 7926 1180
Facsimile 020 7926 1171
www.lambeth.gov.uk
planning@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 215
PEDETZ

Page 216
1.1.3
1.

1.2

Notes to Applicants:
The applicant is advised that part (d) of Condition 52 remains to be discharged.

Yours sincerely

Rob Bristow
Assistant Director Planning, Transport & Development

1.3

Growth, Planning and Employment

Directorate Date printed: 21st November

2018

Page 217
1.3.1

INFORMATION FOR APPLICANTS GRANTED PLANNING PERMISSION SUBJECT
TO CONDITIONS, OR WHERE PERMISSION HAS BEEN REFUSED.

General Information
This permission is subject to due compliance with any local Acts, regulations, building by-laws and
general statutory provisions in force in the area and nothing herein shall be regarded as dispensing with
such compliance or be deemed to be a consent by the Council thereunder.
Your attention is drawn to the provisions of the Building Regulations 1985 and related legislation which
must be complied with to the satisfaction of the Council’s Building Control Officer, Phoenix House, 10
Wandsworth Road, SW8.
The Council’s permission does not modify or affect any personal or restrictive covenants, easements, etc.,
applying to or affecting the land or the rights of any person entitled to the benefits thereof.
STATEMENT OF APPLICANT’S RIGHTS ARISING FROM THE REFUSAL OF PLANNING
PERMISSION OR FROM THE GRANT OF PERMISSION SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS.

1.3.2

Appeals to the Secretary of State

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the local planning authority to refuse permission or approval
for the proposed development or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions, he may appeal to
the Secretary of State for the Environment in accordance with Section 78 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 within six months of the date of this notice. (Appeals must be made on a form which is
obtainable from the Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/13 Temple Quay House, 2 The Square, Temple Quay,
Bristol BS1 6PN. Alternatively an Appeal form can be downloaded from their website at
www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate or you can contact them by phoning 0303
444 5000. The Secretary of State has power to allow longer period for the giving of a notice of appeal but
he will not normally be prepared to exercise this power unless there are special circumstances which
excuse the delay in giving notice of appeal. The Secretary of State is not required to entertain an appeal if
it appears to him that permission for the proposed development could not have been granted by the local
planning authority, or could not have been so granted otherwise than subject to the conditions imposed by
them, having regard to the statutory requirements, to the provisions of the development order, and to any
directions given under the order.

1.3.3

Purchase Notice

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the local planning
authority or by the Secretary of State for the Environment, and the owner of the land claims that the land
has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of
reasonable beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted,
he may serve on the London Borough of Lambeth a purchase notice requiring that Council to purchase his
interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Section 137 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990.

1.3.4

Compensation

In certain circumstances, a claim may be made against the local planning authority for compensation,
where permission is refused or granted subject to conditions by the Secretary of State for the
Environment on appeal or on a reference of the application to him. The circumstances in which such
compensation is payable are set out in Section 120 and related provision of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

Page 218
Appendix 2: List of consultees (statutory and Other Consultees)

Georgian Group
Greater London Industrial Archaeology Society (GLIAS)
Save Britain’s Heritage
Kennington Park Road Residents Association and Neighbourhood Watch (KPRRANW)
Oval & Kennington Residents Association (OAKRA)
Cleaver Square, Cleaver Street and Bowden Street Residents' Association
Kennington Oval Community Action Group
Friends Of Kennington Park
Kennington Oval & Vauxhall Forum
Heart Of Kennington Residents' Association
Friends Of Lambeth High Street Rec
Friends of Vauxhall Spring Gardens
Friends Of Kennington Park
The Vauxhall Society
Vauxhall Neighbourhood Housing Forum
Kennington Association Planning Forum
Regents Bridge Gardens Ltd
Ashmole Estate Tenants Association
Ashmole Tenants Assoc
Bonnington Square Residents
Fentiman Road & Richbourne Terrace Residents Association
Harleyford Court Tenants Association
Hanover Gardens Association
Hanover Gardens Residents Association
Oval Mansions
Vauxhall Gardens Estate Resident and Tenant Association
Vauxhall One Business Improvement Districts

Page 219
Appendix 3: List of relevant policies in London Plan, Lambeth Local Plan. Reference to SPGs, SPD
and other relevant guidance
London Plan (2016)
Policy 6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
Policy 7.14 Improving Air Quality
Policy 7.15 Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic environment
Guidance and other documents
Construction Logistics Plan Guidance for Planners (2013)
The control of dust and emissions during construction and demolition (July 2014)
Mayor’s Transport Strategy (2018)

Lambeth Local Plan (2015)
Policy T2 Walking
Policy T3 Cycling
Policy T6 Assessing impacts of development on transport capacity and infrastructure
Policy T8 Servicing
Policy Q2 Amenity

Page 220
Appendix 4: Other relevant Plans and Photos
Proposed Hoarding on Vauxhall Street

New entrance on Vauxhall Street opposite Brockwell House

Page 221
Construction Vehicles

Swept paths for all access and egress points for an HGV of maximum legal size (16.5m long).
Kennington Lane and Vauxhall Street (north) – access only

Page 222

Vauxhall Street (South) – access and egress

Page 223

Montford Place (north) – egress only

Page 224

Montford Place (South) – access and egress

Page 225

Kennington Lane – left and right turn exits

Page 226

Kennington Oval

Page 227

This page is intentionally left blank

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/04/2018 AND 30/04/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

16/06944/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

524 To 532
Streatham High Road
London
SW16 3QF

Erection of single storey first floor rear extension
to provide 1x 1 bedroom flat with rear terrace.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

03.04.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the existing building and the surrounding area.
The Inspector noted that the appeal building is a two storey building with a recent mansard roof extension, and immediately to the rear, there are two storey properties with complex roof
forms and large prominent chimneys - creating a vibrant roofscape and skyline in the area. The Inspector considered that the proposed extension would result in an inelegant junction
with the existing angular gable of the appeal building and, would be exacerbated by the cornices of the existing building and the extension not being, either uniform or, continuous at
eaves level.

17/02808/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

262 Rosendale Road
London
SE24 9DL

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

09.04.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues to be: the effect of the development on the surrounding area, whether the proposed development would provide suitable living conditions for
future occupiers, levels of cycle storage provision and the impact of the development on the amenity of neighbouring properties.
The Inspector noted that the proposed dwellings failing to emulate their surroundings, resulting in noticeable disruption to the rhythm of the street. The proposed shop unit and flats
would retain a similar form but would be built up on the boundary and project forward of the building line, failing to respect surroundings. In addition, the Inspector noted that the
proposed houses on Hawarden Grove would lead to an awkward relationship with existing buildings and remove the existing gap between building groups.
The Inspector considered the proposed houses to have poor outlook and poor levels of direct sunlight attained. All proposed houses would have insufficient and poor quality external

1

Agenda Item 7

Redevelopment of the site involving demolition
of the existing buildings and the erection of a two
storey building plus roof-level accommodation
fronting onto Rosendale Road comprising a
ground floor retail unit with basement storage
and 3 self-contained flats on the upper floors,
and a terrace of 3 two storey dwellinghouses plus
roof-level accommodation fronting onto
Harwarden Grove together with provision of
cycle and refuse storage.

Page 229

The Inspector concluded that the proposed development would appear as an incongruous addition to the building that would not sit comfortably alongside either the host building or the
adjacent residential properties and went onto dismiss the appeal.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/04/2018 AND 30/04/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

amenity spaces, particularly when their family-size is taken into account. He therefore concluded that, external amenity space in front gardens should not be counted as it is of poor
quality.
The Inspector considered that cycle storage within basement areas, rear yard areas or front gardens would be contrived and potentially reduce amenity space. No evidence was provided
showing cycles could be stored within buildings without compromising living space or circulation space. However, he did conclude that the proposed development would not impact on
the living conditions of occupants in neighbouring properties.
The Inspector dismissed the appeal.

17/01761/FUL

90, 91, 92 And 93
Clapham Common
South Side
London
SW4 9DL

Excavation of existing basement to create 2 floor
levels for provision of 3 new duplex hotel rooms
and conversion of 4 existing hotel rooms into 3
duplex accommodation, together with
installation of 3 lightwells and 1 stairwell, plus
landscaping and provision of 4 cycle parking
racks. Amended description.

Delegated
Decision

Minded to Refuse
Permission

09.04.2018

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the Clapham Conservation Area, whether the proposed
development makes suitable provision for access by disabled persons; and, the effect of the proposed development on the infrastructure of the London Underground.
The Inspector noted that the overall effect of the proposal would not significantly alter the visual relationship between the appeal building, the main road or the Common. He considered
the new development maintains local distinctiveness; responds positively to the local context; preserves/enhances the character and appearance of conservation areas; and the proposed
basement extensions would be in keeping with the style, design and integrity of the host building and wider area. The Inspector therefore concluded that the proposal would not harm the
character and appearance of the Clapham Conservation Area.
The Inspector noted that the appellant had stated that the current internal layout of the hotel is such that, it would not be possible to provide full wheelchair access to all of the new
rooms without substantially altering the structure of the building, which would not be visible. In addition, the Inspector noted that, although the proposed accommodation is not
supported by any viability assessment, from the submitted drawings and from the site visit, he concluded that there was no reason not to accept this position. It was therefore concluded
that within this context, as three of the six new rooms proposed would be wheelchair accessible, the proposed development would make suitable provision for access by disabled persons.
The Inspector further noted that, whilst no precise engineering, piling and foundation details had been provided, TfL raised no objections in principle to the proposed development and
required that these matters be secured through the implementation of planning conditions.
The Inspector subsequently allowed the appeal subject to conditions.

2

Page 230

NonDetermination
- Conservation
Area

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/04/2018 AND 30/04/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

17/01497/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

20 Colmer Road
London
SW16 5JZ

Retention of the single storey ground floor rear
extension and retention of the trellis above the
boundary fence bordering Danbrook Road - Flat
B (retrospective)

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

03.04.2018

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: the effect of the development upon the living conditions of the occupiers of the neighbouring property at 22 Colmer Road,
with particular regard to light and outlook; and, the effect of the development on the character and appearance of the existing building and on the surrounding area.
The Inspector considered that the development does not cause harm to the living conditions of the occupiers of the neighbouring property at 22 Colmer Road, with particular regard to
light and outlook, thusly complying with the relevant requirements of Policy Q2 of the Local Plan 2015 and consistent with the requirements of the NPPF.
The Inspector also concluded that the development has no significant detrimental harm upon the the character and appearance of the area, complying with the relevant requirements of
Policies Q5, Q8 and Q11 of the Local Plan and the guidance in the SPD.

17/00939/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

345 Wandsworth
Road
London
SW8 2JH

Installation of new shopfront and alterations to
the rear, together with conversion of upper flat
to provide 3 self contained flats involving
extension to the rear at 1st and 2nd floor level
and erection of a mansard roof extension to
create a third floor with front, side and rear
dormers, along with other external alterations.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

19.04.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the host property, and whether it would preserve the
character or appearance of the Wandsworth Road Conservation Area; whether the proposal makes adequate provision for cycle storage; the effect of the proposal on the setting of the
Grade II listed buildings; and, the effect of the proposal on the outlook of neighbouring occupiers.
The Inspector noted that the proposed mansard roof extension would be clearly visible within the public domain and its incongruous appearance would be at odds with the surrounding
roofscape. The Inspector also noted that the rear extensions would fail to respect the original form and proportions of the building. The Inspector then concluded that the proposed
mansard roof extension would harm the original building form and design integrity of the host property, and would fail to preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the
Conservation Area.
The Inspector noted that the existing property did not benefit from any dedicated cycle storage and no information had been provided to demonstrate that there were other viable
alternatives, nor, had it been demonstrated that the removal of a car parking bay would be appropriate in this location. The Inspector concluded that the proposal failed to make
adequate provision for cycle storage.

3

Page 231

The Inspector went on to allow the appeal.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/04/2018 AND 30/04/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

The Inspector noted the proposed scheme would not extend significantly above the height of the adjacent listed buildings. Their strong architectural style of the castellated bays would
prevail. He concluded that the proposal would thusly preserve the setting of the Grade II listed buildings.
The Inspector noted that following changes to the depth of the rear extension at the appeal stage, it would subsequently not harm the amenity of neighbouring properties. However, he
concluded to dismiss the appeal.
17/01113/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

48 Leigham Avenue
London
SW16 2PZ

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

05.04.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

Page 232

Demolition of existing free-standing garage
structure and the single storey rear extension to
the existing property, plus removal of associated
hard standing and part removal of existing
boundary walls along Conifer Gardens. Erection
of a single storey dwellinghouse with basement
at the rear, including front and rear lightwells,
along with provision of 1 car parking,
refuse/recycling storage, cycle store, boundary
treatment and relocation of the existing
crossover with new entrance access via Conifer
Gardens.

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the area; and, whether or not the proposal would provide an
adequate standard of living accommodation for potential future occupiers, having particular regard to outlook.
The Inspector noted the proposal would introduce a single storey flat roof dwelling onto a prominent section of garden which provides an important visual break in the streetscene and
contributes positively to the character of the area. The Inspector considered that the size and siting of the scheme would appear contrived and out of place, exacerbated by its flat roof
design. It would sit uncomfortably in between the host property and the row of semi-detached houses and the important visual break in the streetscene would be lost. The Inspector
concluded that by reason of its size and siting on a prominent garden plot the proposal would be harmful to the character and appearance of the area.
The Inspector noted that the location of the proposed bedroom, at basement level, would result in limited outlook for future occupants however due to large room sizes and large
window sizes providing sky views, the standard of living within the bedrooms would be acceptable. However, the inspector concluded that the proposed scheme would be harmful to the
character and appearance of the area.
The Inspector subsequently dismissed the appeal.
17/01207/FUL

Refusal - Town

16 Clapham Park

Conversion the existing storage facility to the

4

Delegated

Refuse Permission

05.04.2018

Appeal

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/04/2018 AND 30/04/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Planning

Road
London
SW4 7BB

rear of 16 Clapham Park Road, into a one
bedroom self contained studio flat. The
conversion will consist also of a roof alteration,
going from the existing dual pitch to a flat roof
and external alterations including removal and
installation of windows and doors.

Decision

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: the effect of the proposal on the availability of floorspace for business, industrial and storage uses; whether or not the
proposal would provide an adequate standard of living accommodation for potential future occupiers: whether or not the proposal would provide a safe, suitable and inclusive pedestrian
access; and, whether or not the proposal would make adequate provision of sustainable design and construction measures.
The Inspector noted during the site inspection that, the building was used for storage of materials and noted that no information has been submitted to demonstrate that the floorspace
has been vacant and continuously marketed for a period of at least one year. The Inspector concluded that the proposal would reduce the availability of floorspace for business, industrial
and storage uses contrary to Local Plan Policy ED2.

He also considered that there would be sufficient room for vehicle and pedestrian access, and, noted that any potential vehicles parking here would be travelling at low speeds and
therefore would not compromise pedestrian safety. The Inspector concluded that, subject to appropriate lighting, the proposal would provide a safe, suitable and inclusive pedestrian
access.
The Inspector also considered that planning conditions could secure sustainable design and construction methods during the construction phase, however, he concluded to dismiss the
appeal.
17/01988/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

60 Woodleigh
Gardens
London
SW16 2SY

Hip to gable roof extension and erection of rear
dormer together with the installation of 3
rooflights to the front elevation, along with the
creation of 1 x 1 bed flat at second floor level

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

05.04.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues to be: the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the host property and the surrounding area; whether or not the proposal
would provide an adequate standard of living accommodation for potential future occupiers, having particular regard to private outdoor space, ceiling heights and storage; and, the effect
of the proposal on the living conditions of neighbouring residents, having particular regard to noise and disturbance.
The Inspector noted that by reason of its size, scale and design the proposal would unacceptably dominate and overwhelm the host property and would detract from the character and
appearance of the area. He considered that the proposal would unacceptably dominate or overwhelm the host building, the host building and not reinforce or sustain local

5

Page 233

The Inspector noted that Policy H5 refers to all residential units and does not exclude residential conversions. The Inspector noted the scheme would only be 3.6sqm larger than the
minimum recommended size for a one person flat. The Inspector then concluded that the scheme could not provide additional internal living space to offset the lack of provision of
private outdoor space and would fail to provide an adequate standard of living accommodation.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/04/2018 AND 30/04/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

distinctiveness.
The Inspector noted that the proposal would fail to provide an adequate standard of living accommodation for potential future occupiers by reason of its insufficient private outdoor
space, conflicting with Lambeth Local Plan Policy Q2. He considered that the proposal would not harm the living conditions of neighbouring residents, as a result of noise and disturbance.
The Inspector subsequently dismissed the appeal.
17/02484/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

1A Kay Road
London
SW9 9DF

Removal of a first floor front balcony for the
erection of a first floor front extension with the
installation of one rooflight, along with the
formation of a roof terrace involving the
installation of front timber and rear glazed
balustrades

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

05.04.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector noted that the proposed 1.8 metre opaque glazed screen would be positioned directly opposite the third floor windows to the rear addition of number 143, at a distance of
approximately 2.5 metres. He considered that the height would prevent the majority of direct overlooking from the proposed roof terrace to these windows and to those on the lower
floors. However, the third floor window on the main rear wall is at a higher level and, there would be views to this window over the top of the glazed balustrade of this window and a
similar window to the rear of number 145.
Although the opaque glazed balustrade would prevent direct overlooking, due to its height and proximity, it would severely restrict the outlook from these windows which currently look
over the flat roof of the appeal building. As a result of the proximity of the glazed balustrade, the Inspector considered that this would appear unduly oppressive to the occupiers of the
room these windows serve, which although not the principal living room is, nonetheless, a room in which people would spend significant periods of time. The combination of overlooking
and loss of outlook would therefore, be harmful to the living conditions of the occupiers of number 143 Landor Road. He noted that the opaque glazing may reduce the amount of daylight
received by the windows at number 145, however, due to the translucent nature of the material, the Inspector considered that this is unlikely to amount to a significant reduction.
The Inspector noted that the proposal would result in an existing first floor balcony on the front elevation of the building which has an overhanging canopy being enclosed and
incorporated into the first floor living area. He noted that the roof terrace would occupy a large part of the existing flat roof of the property and project forward of the building line. He
noted that there are similar features to other properties in the area and concluded that this would not cause harm to the appearance of the street or the appeal building, even though the
site is located near the Stockwell Green Conservation Area.
However, the Inspector dismissed the appeal as the proposed development would cause harm to the living conditions of the occupiers of no. 143 Landor Road.
17/04404/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

18 Larkhall Lane
London

Erection of a single storey side infill extension.

6

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

11.04.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

Page 234

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be the effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of the occupiers of the neighbouring property at 143 Landor
Road, with particular regard to sunlight and daylight and outlook; and character and appearance of the area.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/04/2018 AND 30/04/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

SW4 6SP
The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal are: the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the host property, and upon the designated heritage asset of
the Larkhall Conservation Area.
The Inspector noted that the proposal would create an almost continuous building line at the rear at ground floor level, with a very small set back from the extended rear return. He
considered that this would be excessive and result in a number of competing lines and forms at the rear of the building, thusly detracting from the traditional form of the building, in
particular detracting from the proportions and scale of the two storey and mono pitch rear return.
The Inspector concludes that the proposal would harm the character and appearance of the host property and not preserve the character and appearance of the the designated heritage
asset of the Larkhall Conservation Area, subsequently dismissing the appeal.

Dismissed

Mixed

Month total

2

8

0

Financial year to date

2

8

0

7

Page 235

Allowed

This page is intentionally left blank

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

16/05844/FUL

Nondetermination
- Town
Planning

37 Hainthorpe Road
London
SE27 0PL

Demolition of the existing building and erection
of a 2 storey building with lower ground floor and
loft space to provide 4 self-contained flats and
erection of a 2 storey dwelling house with lower
ground floor, together with the provision of
bin/cycle storage, landscaping and boundary
treatment with amenity spaces.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

22.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector noted that the Council issued a Decision Notice subsequent to the appeal being lodged against the failure of the Council to determine the application. Due to this, the
decision cannot be given full weight as the Council was not in a position to formally determine the application at that point. The Council submitted a Statement of Case during the appeal
process, which the Inspector has taken as the Council's formal position on the application, should they have been able to make a determination.

The Inspector disagreed with the Council in that, the proposed contemporary design and detached nature of the proposal would not reflect that existing in the surrounding area, as the
existing building is detached itself and is therefore uncharacteristic of its surroundings. Further, the Inspector concluded that the massing, lightwells, mansard roof and contemporary
materials would not harm the visual amenity and character of the surrounding area.

Page 237

The Inspector noted the Council’s Statement of Case, considering the main issues to be: the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the area, impact on
the living conditions of future and neighbouring occupiers, whether adequate provision for cycle storage has been made, and, whether the development has adequately address matters
related to flood risk.

The Inspector considered that there would be an acceptable impact in terms of Daylight and Sunlight attained by neighbouring properties; however the proposed first floor window and
second floor Juliet balcony would significantly overlook existing private amenity space to No. 1 Dodbrooke Road and would therefore be unacceptable in this respect.

The Inspector stated that cycle parking can be addressed through the implementation of planning conditions and should therefore not be used as a reason for refusal. Further, it was
considered that storage of cycles within a basement apartment would not result in an insurmountable obstacle to future occupiers. The Inspector stated that matters of waste and
recycling storage can be addressed via planning conditions also.
The Inspector stated that the information provided on the self-contained basement flat's flood risk is proportionate to the application and a fully detailed scheme of flood protection could
be submitted through the implementation of a planning condition.
The Inspector dismissed the appeal, concluding that the proposal would have an adverse impact upon the living conditions of neighbouring occupiers, their privacy and would fail to

1

Agenda Item 8

The Inspector noted that the proposed ‘Flat 4’ would fail to achieve the 50sqm requirement of the Nationally Described Space Standards (2015) and the London Plan Housing SPG
requirement. On the proposed external amenity space, he considered that the degree of overlooking which would occur from other flats within the complex, would be similar to that
experienced within suburban London and would not result in an adverse impact on the living conditions of future occupiers.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

15.05.2018

Appeal
Withdrawn

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

04.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

provide an appropriate minimum level of usable floorspace for all proposed units.
17/03391/VOC

Conditions Town Planning

British Film Institute
South Bank
London
SE1 8XT

Variation of conditions 6 (approved plans), 10
(maximum luminance levels) and 13 (no moving
images/text or special effects) of planning ref
16/05064/ADV (Display of 9 replacement
externally illuminated poster signs and 1
freestanding sign.) Granted on 18.11.2016.
Variation sought: Amendments to facilitate
advertisements with higher luminance levels, and
special effects in specified locations.

Appeal Withdrawn
17/01088/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

112-113
Lower Marsh
London
SE1 7AE

Erection of a two-storey roof-top extension at
rear first floor level to provide 2 flats.

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the Lower Marsh Conservation Area, living conditions, parking
availability and highway safety in the area, adequate provision for cycle, refuse and recycling storage and, adequate provision for energy efficiency.
The Inspector noted that the appeal site is located immediately to the south of Waterloo Station Approach Road within the Lower Marsh Conservation Area. Previous planning
applications were referenced, however, the Inspector considered that the proposed development would be incongruous in not having a street frontage, would represent a larger structure
from Station Approach Road and would infill and blur the boundaries between plots at Nos. 110 to 111 and Nos. 112 to 113, to the detriment of the historic rhythm of the street and views
in to the Conservation Area.
The Inspector acknowledged the proposed replacement of the acoustic fence with a building of approximately 6.2m in height. However, he considered that the additional storey would be
visually overbearing and considerably higher than the both the 2016 planning permission and the existing fence. He also stated that, outlook from the development would be
unacceptable, daylight and sunlight had not been assessed by either party and could therefore not be addressed. Though the Inspector considered that the proposal would provide
sufficient storage space, it would not provide an acceptable level of privacy for occupiers.
The Inspector noted that no parking spaces are proposed on the site to serve the proposed development, and, though there are no spaces for the existing flats on the site, there are good
local public transport links within easy walking distance. The Inspector noted the CPZ in the area and the Lower Marsh Street Market, which both restrict the availability of parking. He

2

Page 238

(1st revision of 17/00433/VOC)

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

therefore stated that the development must be demonstrated to be car-free and future occupiers would be unable to apply for parking permits, by way of a legal agreement. Therefore, in
the absence of an effective and enforceable planning obligation to ensure that the proposed development would not be occupied by people who hold a car parking permit, it was
concluded that the proposed development would cause harm to parking availability and highway safety in the area.
The Inspector noted that the proposed development would provide 8 spaces for cycle storage at first floor level, and concluded that this would be onerous and inconvenient, forcing
future occupiers to negotiate a flight of stairs with their bicycles. Similarly, the Inspector noted that the provision of refuse and recycling storage at first floor level, though immediately
convenient for the future occupiers of the proposed flats, considered that, the timber structure would not be robust enough to allow for adequate maintenance and cleaning and, to
inhibit the entry of vermin. Further to this, he stated that, the structure would unacceptably lie directly adjacent to 2 roof terraces for existing flats with potentially harmful effects in
terms of odour and outlook for these occupiers, as well as, the proposed location requiring the bins to be pulled through the building, via the stairs and through a number of doors to
reach the collection point.
The Inspector considered that, in terms of the proposed energy efficiency measures, as based on the information set out in the submitted Design and Access Statement and the
requirements of the Building Regulations, there was no fundamental conflict with Policy EN4 of the Local Plan, Policy 5.2 of the London Plan, and the SDCSPG and, subsequently concluded
that the proposed development would make adequate provision for energy efficiency.

17/02550/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

Food Kiosk Opposite
London Eye, The
Queen's Walk
London
SE1

Retrospective application for alterations to
existing shopfront, including; the replacement of
the existing window/counter aperture with new
double leaf frameless glazed sliding doors, the
installation of new timber cladding to match
existing, the reinstatement of metal plinth;
together with the change of use of the land to
the west of the kiosk for the siting of associated
tables and chairs.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

22.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: whether the development preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the South Bank Conservation Area, and,
the setting of the grade II* listed County Hall.
The Inspector noted the presence of the tables, chairs and barriers adding further to the level of visual intrusion caused by the development. He considered the prominent colour and
number of tables and chairs is magnified by the green mesh barriers. While they represent a reduction in the number of tables and chairs previously permitted and though may be
hardwearing and not cause a hazard to pedestrians, it was considered that the lesser amount of furniture in the form of tables, chairs and barriers still causes harm to the setting of
County Hall and the character and appearance of the SBCA due to the level of clutter it creates.
The Inspector noted despite the reinstatement of the metal plinth, the use of timber cladding, and reductions in glazing and lighting since previous applications, not only does it have
considerably more glazing than its neighbour when the glazed doors are closed, but it is much more obtrusive during opening hours. Due to the internal lighting and the green and white

3

Page 239

The Inspector subsequently dismissed the appeal.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

colour of the kiosk's interior, whilst relating to its corporate brand, the kiosk is considerably more visually intrusive than its neighbouring kiosk.
Furthermore, the Inspector considered the development more prominent and unsympathetic than the kiosk's previous appearance as Café Zen, as shown in the plans provided with the
appeal, and as Café Manga, as shown in the SBCAS. While the alterations could have resulted in the 2 kiosks being mirrored in their design, the alterations described instead result in the
paired kiosks being somewhat at odds with one another.
The Inspector dismissed the appeal.
17/00836/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

Acre House
10 - 16 Acre Lane
London
SW2 5SG

Erection of an additional storey to provide a fifth
floor creating two self-contained flats together
with the extension of the lift and stairs from the
fourth floor and creation of a private winter
garden to the front elevation

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

04.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The proposal was to erect an additional storey to create 2 additional self-contained residential units; 1x1-bed/2person and 1x2-bed 4 person. The appellant had sought to submit
amended plans in an attempt to address the reasons for refusal. However the Inspector referred to the procedural guidance on appeals and stated that the appeal process should not be
used to evolve a scheme. The appeal was therefore dealt with using the drawings assessed by the LPA.
The building on the application site, known as Acre House, was originally 4-storeys had previously been extended by way of an additional storey to provided additional residential units.
The Inspector acknowledged the setting of the application site noting the proximity of the Listed Town Hall and the adjacent CAs and observed that Acre House is highly visible in views
down Acre Lane in both directions and despite the additional fourth floor being set back from the Acre Lane elevation it is visible beyond the roof of the neighbouring Universal
Pentecostal Church. The addition of a further floor would appear incongruous and would draw the eye upwards to a substantially glazed and somewhat alien structure of 2-storeys in
height. The proposed development would appear overly dominant and bulky when viewed in context with its neighbours and the Town Hall opposite. In conclusion, the Inspector found
that the proposal would be contrary to the Lambeth Local Plan.
With regards to the proposed living conditions the Inspector found that there are no exceptional circumstances that would justify one of the proposed units being single aspect and that
this combined with the less than 2.5m floor to ceiling height would result in a unit that would be difficult to ventilate. In addition, the single aspect unit would face Acre Lane would be
vulnerable to relatively high levels of noise. In conclusion, the Inspector found that the proposed development would cause harm to future occupiers and would be contrary to the

4

Page 240

The Inspector considered the main issues to be; whether the proposed development would preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the Brixton (BCA) and Trinity Gardens
(TGCA) CAs and the setting of the Grade II Listed Lambeth Town Hall, the effect of the proposed development on the living conditions of future occupiers, with particular regards to
overheating and noise, the effect of the proposed development on the highway in regards of safety and parking, and whether the proposal would make adequate provision for cycle,
refuse and recycling storage.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

London Plan and Lambeth Local Plan.
With regards to the highways impacts the Inspector found that the lack of appropriate cycle storage and in the absence of a S106 agreement to restrict access to car parking permits the
proposed development was contrary to the objectives of the London Plan and the Lambeth Local Plan.
With regards to the refuse and recycling storage the Inspector found that the facility proposed would be unwieldy and would not be functional or suitably ventilated and was therefore
contrary to the objectives of the Lambeth local Plan.
The appeal was subsequently dismissed.
17/00383/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

41 Stockwell Park
Road
London
SW9 0DD

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

10.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: the effect of the development on the character and appearance of the area, the effect on the living conditions of adjacent
occupiers, on-street parking and risk of flooding.
The Inspector noted the design of the building would have a heavy appearance which jars with the streetscene and is accentuated by it being at the junction of two roads. He noted that
the proposed development would be much more prominent than the existing garage block occupying much of the gap through to back gardens. He did not object to a front boundary of a
wall and railings, and considered the blocks construction would likely have a significant adverse effect on T2s RPA and its future contribution to the streetscene, together with its loss
would be detrimental. Overall, the development would cause harm to the character and appearance of the area.
The Inspector considered that the development would result in a confined external garden for the adjacent property, be very enclosed and offer users limited outlook. The users of the
garden would also experience a loss of privacy when the rear balconies are in use, which, are in close proximity to the adjacent garden.
However, the Inspector was satisfied with the content of the car free unilateral undertaking, allowing those who already have a parking permit in the Borough to retain theirs, if they
move to the proposed development.
The Inspector was satisfied that the occupiers of the development would not be subject to any unacceptable risk of flooding.
The Inspector noted that the development appellant would provide 100% affordable housing, and in the absence of a planning obligation in relation to affordable housing, should not
weigh against the development.

5

Page 241

Redevelopment of the garage site and rear
garden of the property accessed via Groveway ,
involving the demolition of existing garages and
erection of 3 storey building plus lower ground
floor to provide 4 self-contained flats, with
provision of cycle stands, refuse store and
landscaping.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

Enlargement of existing first floor rear window.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

24.05.2018

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal.

17/04243/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

45 Rodenhurst Road
London
SW4 8AE

The main issue in this appeal was the effect of the development on the character and appearance of the host building and surrounding area, including consideration of whether the
proposal would lead to harm to the visual amenity of the occupants of neighbouring residential buildings.
The Inspector considered that the scale of the projecting bay window would appear modest given total size of the host building. The use of glass in its construction would replicate
materials used elsewhere on the rear elevation. Given the limited extent of its projection, it would not significantly compromise the pattern of rear returns found on the host property and
those that surround it.

17/04244/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

45 Rodenhurst Road
London
SW4 8AE

Installation of a rear projecting glass box at first
floor level.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

22.05.2018

Appeal
Allowed

The main issue in this appeal is the effect of the development on the character and appearance of the host building and surrounding area, including consideration of whether the proposal
would lead to harm to the visual amenity of the occupants of neighbouring residential buildings.
The Inspector considered the scale of the projecting bay window would appear modest given total size of the host building. The use of glass in its construction would replicate materials
used elsewhere on the rear elevation. Given the limited extent of its projection,
it was considered it would not significantly compromise the pattern of rear returns found on the host property and those that surround it.
He noted it would be visible from both habitable windows in neighbouring properties and their garden areas, but it would be set well away from the relevant site boundaries. It would not
therefore appear unduly prominent or overbearing. In consequence, it was considered would be no harm to the living conditions of the occupants of surrounding residential properties
through any loss of visual amenity.
Therefore the Appeal was allowed.
17/05217/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

84 Heybridge Avenue
London
SW16 3DT

Erection of a single storey ground floor rear and
side infill extension.

6

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

04.05.2018

Appeal
Allowed

Page 242

As a result, the Inspector allowed the appeal.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be whether the proposal would preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the conservation area.
The Inspector was of the opinion that the proposed extension would be a relatively modest alteration to this two storey property and would not unacceptably dominate or overwhelm the
host building and, that the extension should be set in from the edge of the house to remain subordinate. Aside from one small area of roof, he considered that it would not be evident
from within the public domain and would be of limited prominence from within private gardens.
However, the Inspector noted that the proposed bi-fold doors would not be in keeping with the detailing of the house, but considered that, whilst this would be the case, the addition
would appear as a modern extension, that would contrast with the form and detail of the original.
The Inspector allowed the appeal.

17/03875/ADV

Refusal Advert

Display of an internally illuminated freestanding
digital screen forum structure at one end of the
bus shelter

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

02.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issue is the effect of proposed development on the character and appearance of the area, including the Brixton Conservation Area and the setting of
nearby listed buildings.
The Inspector noted the location of the existing bus shelter with the large, symmetrical, Grade II listed, 19th century three-storey terrace at Nos 341 - 361 Brixton Road, along with
neighbouring complementary buildings of the same composition at Nos 337, 339, 363 and 365. He also observed that this part of the Conservation Area is characterised by the width of
the road and large residential buildings on one side of the road being set back from the main highway. Noting that there are more active frontages on the western side of Brixton Road,
while the listed buildings at Nos 337 - 365 are set back from Brixton Road, with a number of large trees providing visual separation from the street, the presence of street trees, when
approaching the appeal site from the north, the existing bus shelter lies in the visual foreground of the listed buildings at 341 - 361 and 363 -365 beyond. The buildings and the shelter are
viewed together in this view and from the western side of Brixton Road.
The Inspector considered that despite the proposed development replacing an existing static display panel and providing improvements in flexibility, energy consumption, and efficiency in
terms of changing displays without visiting the appeal site, the introduction of a succession of static images would increase the prominence of the advertisement from Brixton Road. He
also considered that it would appear visually intrusive and add to visual clutter in this sensitive location in the foreground of the aforementioned listed buildings within the Conservation
Area.
The Inspector subsequently dismissed the appeal, stating that the proposal would compromise visual amenity and clutter in the public realm, and, diminish the setting and significance of
heritage assets, including conservation areas and listed buildings.

7

Page 243

Bus Shelter Outside
359
Brixton Road
London

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

17/03869/ADV

Refusal Advert

Bus Shelter Opposite
330
Kennington Park
Road
London

Display of internal facing digital display panel and
static illuminated outer display panel.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

02.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issue of the appeal to be the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the area, including St Marks Conservation Area
and the setting of nearby listed buildings.

The inspector went on to dismiss the appeal.

17/05456/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

40 Canterbury Grove
London
SE27 0NY

Erection of a single storey ground floor rear and
side infill extension; erection of a dormer to the
rear roofslope and the rear return and
installation of 2 rooflights to the front roof slope.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

23.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the host building and the area, and on the living conditions of
neighbouring occupants at No. 38 Canterbury Grove with reference to daylight and sunlight.
The Inspector noted the proposed dormer on the main roof would appear to extend across almost its full width and would be of a considerable scale and bulk, failing to be subordinate to
the existing roof. The rear wall of the dormer would have a larger window than the existing window below it, which would add to visual harm of the proposed bulky dormer; it would be
highly visible from a number of rear gardens of surrounding properties, thusly failing to preserve or enhance the character of the existing dwelling or the surrounding area.
The Inspector considered, given the dimensions of the dormer, and its siting at roof level, it would not result in any unacceptable effects on daylight or sunlight issues. He concluded that
the open plan nature of the accommodation at the adjoining property, where rooms are served by a number of different windows, means the dormer would not have an unacceptable
impact by way of loss of daylight. Furthermore, as the development would be located to the rear, which is broadly north-facing, there would be only a minimal loss of sunlight.
The Inspector however dismissed the appeal.

8

Page 244

The Inspector noted that the appeal followed a previous appeal dismissal for a similar development which contained LED advertisement boards on both sides. The current appeal
application removed the outer facing LED board. The Inspector considered that the introduction of successive static images would increase the prominence of the advertisement. The
appellants intention to reduce illumination levels was noted, however, the proposal was considered to appear visually intrusive and add to visual clutter in this particularly sensitive
location in the foreground of the aforementioned Grade II* and II listed buildings.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

17/06198/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

1 Grayscroft Road
London
SW16 5UP

Alterations to existing ground floor rear
extension including installation of new roof with
roof lights, level parapet to flank walls and
altered rear door profile.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

29.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be the main issue is the effect of the proposal on the living conditions of the occupiers of 3 Grayscroft Road (No.3), with
particular regard to visual impact, daylight and sunlight.
The Inspector considered that, No.3 is an inner terraced dwelling whose rear windows have a north easterly aspect and whose rear garden does not exceed six metres in width. The
attached dwelling to the southwest, 5 Grayscroft Road (No.5), has a single storey rear extension which is some 4.5 metres deep and three metres high. Due to its height, depth and
proximity the flank wall of this extension is prominent and has an enclosing impact within the rear garden and from the rear facing ground floor windows at No.3, clearly resulting in a
modest loss of daylight and sunlight within the immediately adjacent rear garden and room.

As the former conservatory and part of the parapet wall have been demolished, the proposed extension cannot be compared to the former rear extension. This is because the former
conservatory would require planning permission, if it was to be rebuilt and the merits of any such proposal would need to be assessed at that time and thus falls outside the scope of this
Appeal. However, it is clear from the retained section of the parapet wall that its receding height provided some visual interest and created a sense that the enclosed gap to the rear of
No.3 opened up as it progressed into the rear garden area.
The Inspector considered that, the parapet wall would be partially reused and partially rebuilt. It would project 4.3 metres into the rear garden and it would have a uniform height of
some 3.2 metres, which would be slightly higher than the extension at No.5. Due to its combined depth and uniform height the proposed extension would be visually stark. Together with
the existing extension at No.5 the proposed extension would create a tunnel effect, which would have an unduly enclosing and overbearing impact on the outlook into the rear garden
from the immediately adjacent garden area and rear facing rooms at No.3. This would unacceptably harm the living conditions of the occupiers of No.3.
He also noted that, the proposed extension would be both single storey in height and located to the north/northwest of No.3. As a result, the proposed extension would only result in a
modest level of loss of daylight and early morning sunlight within the adjacent rear garden and rooms at No.3. Whilst this would not amount to a reason for dismissing this Appeal, the
resultant detrimental impact of the proposed development, was noted.
The Inspector considered that, this harm would outweigh the benefits for the future occupiers of the property that would result from the additional accommodation, as well as

9

Page 245

The Inspector noted that, the Appeal dwelling adjoins No.3 immediately to the north/northwest. At the time of the Appeal site visit, the Appeal property was undergoing internal and
external works. The rear ground floor wall and part of the former rear extension had been removed, as has part of the former parapet wall that formed the side wall of the former
conservatory extension. Due to its reduced depth, the retained part of this parapet wall only has a modest impact on the sense of enclosure within the rear garden and in the outlook
from the adjacent ground floor rear room at No.3. It results in a modest loss of daylight and sunlight within the immediately adjacent rear garden area and adjacent room at No.3.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

Refuse Permission

23.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

unacceptably harm the living conditions of the occupiers of No.3 due to its overbearing and enclosing visual impact.
The Inspector subsequently dismissed the appeal.

17/06232/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

131 Milkwood Road
London
SE24 0JB

Erection of a hip-to-gable roof extension, rear
dormer and rear extension over 1st floor
outrigger, a first floor side extension and the
installation of 2 rooflights to front elevation.

Delegated
Decision

As a preliminary matter, the Inspector noted that approved elements of an LDCP had not been constructed. As the proposed elements would be physically and functionally attached to
the appeal development, the Council were correct to include all elements as part of the planning application scheme.

The Inspector noted from the south, that this proposed extension would appear as a box alongside the retained hipped roof and the irregular shaped parapet wall. Its window would be
larger than and totally out of alignment with the first floor window below. From the east, due to its height and roof design the extension would fail to respect or respond to the more
modest proportions and design of the existing outrigger. In addition, it would project in front of the windows serving the proposed dormer extension. From the front, the hip to gable
extension, together with its large rooflights would appear visually awkward alongside the shallow pitched roof of the adjoining property. The eaves line of the outrigger extension would
project above the eaves line of the adjacent property and its pitched roof would be at odds with the proposed hip to gable extension.
The Inspector considered that, the resultant dwelling would appear disjointed, poorly proportioned and unbalanced. It would dominate the roof of the property and would totally fail to
respect or reflect the character and appearance of the host dwelling, the terrace, the street scene or the locality.
As a result, the Inspector dismissed the appeal.
17/05957/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

46 Kirkstall Road
London
SW2 4HF

Installation of 2 rooflights to the front elevation.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

23.05.2018

Appeal
Allowed

The Inspector considered the main issue of this appeal to be the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of Telford Park Conservation Area (TPCA).
The Inspector noted the proposed two conservation style rooflights would be modest in size and would be fitted flush with the roof tiles. They would be viewed as being symmetrically
sited on either side of the front gable projection and would sit below the ridge line of the front gable feature. In addition, they would respect the width of the window panes of the
windows on the front elevation of the dwelling and the area above the central gable would remain free from windows or other additions.

10

Page 246

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be: the effect of the proposal on the appearance of the host building and the terrace, and, the visual amenities of the
surrounding area.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

The Inspector allowed the appeal, stating that the development would have no detrimental impact upon the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.
17/05341/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

5 Lancaster Avenue
London
SE27 9EL

Erection of single storey ground floor rear and
side extensions.

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

23.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues to be: the effect of the proposal on the host building and its building group, and the impact of the scheme on the living conditions of the
occupiers of No. 3 Lancaster Avenue. The applicant also made an appeal for costs against LBL stating a lack of site visit had resulted in an incorrect decision.
The Inspector considered the scale, irregular shape, projection and proposed fenestration of the proposal to fail to relate to the host building. Further, the proposed height of the side
extension would be clearly visible from the streetscene and the flat roof would detract from the design and appearance of the host property. He also considered that the staggered side
wall of the proposal, in conjunction with the 1m set in of the nearest habitable window at the neighbouring property and existing boundary treatment, would mitigate any impact on the
amenity of No. 3.

The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal and the costs appeal.

17/04947/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

12 Fieldhouse Road
London
SW12 0HJ

Erection of a rear roof extension with rear
dormers and the installation of 3 No. rooflights to
the front slope. (Resubmission 17/03793/FUL)

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

22.05.2018

Appeal
Dismissed

The Inspector considered the main issues of this appeal to be the effect of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the host property, the terrace, the roofscape in
the locality and the Hyde Farm Conservation Area (HFCA).
The Inspector noted that the proposed roof lights on the front roof-slope of the Appeal dwelling would be poorly positioned in relation to the existing hipped roof over the bay windows.
They would also fail to align with the existing windows and front door below. At the same time, they would sit very close to the ridge line of the dwelling, within an area of the roofscape
that is visually uncluttered.
For these reasons, despite their modest size, the proposed rooflights would appear top heavy, visually unbalanced and the overall roof would appear visually cluttered. As a consequence,
the proposed rooflights would materially harm the character and appearance of the host dwelling, the terrace and the roofscape within the locality. They would also result in some harm
to the significance of the HFCA.
The Inspector noted that the proposed rear mansard roof and associated dormer windows would respect the character and appearance of the host dwelling, the terrace and would be

11

Page 247

In relation to the costs appeal, the Inspector stated that there is no statutory requirement for a site visit and that the submitted plans and aerial photographs would have been sufficient
to judge the scale and positioning of the proposal. While ultimately disagreeing with the officers assessment on the second issue, the inspector considered the concerns were clearly
informed and set out within the report.

PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN 01/05/2018 AND 31/05/2018
Council ref.

Appeal type

Address

Proposal

Decision
type

Officer
recommendation

Decision date

Appeal
decision

readily assimilated into the rear garden environment. The acceptability of this part of the scheme would not however outweigh the harm that would be caused by the proposed
rooflights.
However, because the rooflights would provide light and outlook to parts of the accommodation within the mansard roof extension they are not physically and functionally independent.
The Inspector went on to dismiss the appeal.

17/01340/FUL

Refusal - Town
Planning

37 Hainthorpe Road
London
SE27 0PL

Delegated
Decision

Refuse Permission

Appeal Withdrawn.

Allowed

Dismissed

Mixed

Month total

4

12

0

Financial year to date

6

20

0

12

25.05.2018

Appeal
Withdrawn

Page 248

Demolition of existing building and construction
of two semi-detached residential units and one
detached residential unit, together with the
provision of bin/cycle storage, landscaping and
boundary treatment with amenity spaces.

